REPUBLIC OF KENYA COAST WATER WORKS DEVELOPMENT AGENCY







IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND **SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA; MWACHE CKE 1103**

LOT 1 – CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TRUNK MAIN (SECTION 1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION MAIN AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AfD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BIDDING DOCUMENT VOLUME I

CONTENTS

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS AND BID DATA SHEET **EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA BIDDING FORMS BILL OF QUANTITIES WORKS REQUIREMENTS GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT** PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT **CONTRACT FORMS**

Employer:

Chief Executive Officer, Coast Water Works Development Agency, P.O. Box 90417-80100, Nkrumah Road off Mikindani Street MOMBASA - Kenya

+254-041-2315230 E-mail: info@cwwda.go.ke

Engineer:

Artelia / Mangat I.B Patel (MIBP) Ltd. Consulting Engineers Joint Venture



Head Office 6 rue de Lorraine 38130 Echirolles, France Tel: +33 4 76334000

Local Project Office P.O. Box 48674 – 00100 Nairobi - Kenya Tel: +254 2710500

Bidding Document

Procurement of

Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa

Lot 1 – Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Reservoir

IPC No: CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

Project: IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION

SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA; MWACHE CKE 1103

Employer: Coast Water Works Development Agency

Country: REPUBLIC OF KENYA

Issued on: 19th AUGUST 2024

Table of Contents

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	1-i
Section I - Instructions to Bidders	1-1
Section II – Bid Data Sheet	.1-19
Section III – Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	.1-23
Section IV – Bidding Forms	.1-26
Section V – Eligibility Criteria	.1-60
Section VI – AFD Policy – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices - Environmental and S Responsibility	
PART 2 – Works Requirements	2-i
Section VII – Works Requirements	2-2
PART 3 – Conditions of Contract (CC) and Contracts Forms	3-i
Section VIII – General Conditions (GC)	3-1
Section IX – Particular Conditions (PC)	.3-88
Section X – Contract Forms	R-110

PART 1 - Bidding Procedures

Section I - Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

Α.	Gene	ral	. 1-3
	1	Scope of Bid	. 1-3
	2	Source of Funds	. 1-3
	3	Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices	. 1-3
	4	Eligible Bidders	. 1-3
	5	Eligible Materials, Equipment and Services	. 1-4
В.	Conte	ents of Bidding Documents	. 1-4
	6	Sections of Bidding Documents	. 1-4
	7	Clarification of Bidding Documents, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting	. 1-5
	8	Amendment of Bidding Documents	. 1-6
c.	Prepa	ration of Bids	. 1-6
	9	Cost of Bidding	. 1-6
	10	Language of Bid	. 1-6
	11	Documents Comprising the Bid	. 1-6
	12	Letter of Bid, Statement of Integrity, Bidding Forms and Schedules	. 1-7
	13	Alternative Bids, Alternative Technical Solutions and Alternative Times for Completion of Works	
	14	Bid Prices and Discounts	. 1-7
	15	Currencies of Bid and Payment	. 1-8
	16	Documents Comprising the Technical Proposal	. 1-8
	17	Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Bidder	. 1-8
	18	Period of Validity of Bids	. 1-9
	19	Bid Security	. 1-9
	20	Format and Signing of Bid	1-11
D.	Subm	ission and Opening of Bids	1-11
	21	Sealing and Marking of Bids	1-11
	22	Deadline for Submission of Bids	1-11
	23	Late Bids	1-12
	24	Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids	1-12
	25	Bid Opening	1-12
E.	Evalu	ation and Comparison of Bids	1-13
	26	Confidentiality	1-13
	27	Clarification of Bids	1-13
	28	Deviations, Reservations and Omissions	1-13
	29	Determination of Responsiveness	1-13
	30	Non-material Non-conformities	1-14
	31	Correction of Arithmetical Errors	1-14
	32	Conversion to Single Currency	1-15
	33	Margin of preference	1-15

	34	Subcontractors	.1-15
	35	Evaluation of Bids	1-15
	36	Abnormally low Bid	1-16
	37	Qualification of the Bidder	1-16
	38	Employer's Right to Reject all Bids	1-17
F.	Award of Contract		. 1-17
	39	Award Criteria	. 1-17
	40	Notification of Award	. 1-17
	41	Signing of Contract	. 1-17
	42	Performance Security	1-17

A. General

1 Scope of Bid

- 1.1 In connection with the Invitation for Bids specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Employer, as specified in the BDS, issues these Bidding Documents for the procurement of Works as specified in Section VII Works Requirements. The name, identification, and number of lots (contracts) of this International Procurement Competition (IPC) process are specified in the BDS.
- 1.2 Throughout these Bidding Documents:
 - a) The term "in writing" means communicated in written form and delivered against receipt;
 - Except where the context requires otherwise, words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular; and
 - c) "Day" means calendar day.

2 Source of Funds

2.1 The Employer specified in the BDS has received or has applied for financing (hereinafter called "funds") from Agence Française de Développement (hereinafter called "AFD") toward the project named in the BDS. The Employer intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract(s) for which these Bidding Documents are issued.

3 Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

- 3.1 AFD requires compliance with its policy regarding corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI - AFD Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices - Environmental and Social Responsibility.
- 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause its subcontractors and subconsultants, to permit AFD to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any prequalification process, Bid submission, and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

4 Eligible Bidders

- 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a State-owned entity subject to ITB 4.3 or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. Unless specified in the BDS, there is no limit on the number of members in a JV.
- 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this procurement process, if the Bidder:
 - a) Directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
 - Receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
 - c) Has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or

- d) Has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this bidding process; or
- e) Participates in more than one Bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one Bid; or
- f) Has (or any of its affiliates has) participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the Works that are the subject of the Bid; or
- g) Has been hired, or is proposed to be hired (or any of its affiliates has been hired, or is proposed to be hired) by the Employer as Engineer for the Contract implementation; or
- h) Has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Employer (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the funds) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the Bidding Documents or specifications of the contract, and/or the Bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to AFD throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract.
- 4.3 AFD's eligibility criteria to Bid are described in Section V Eligibility Criteria.
- 4.4 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Employer as the result of the execution of a Bid–Securing Declaration.
- 4.5 This Bidding is open only to prequalified Bidders unless **specified in** the BDS.
- 4.6 A Bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.
- 5 Eligible Materials, Equipment and Services
- 5.1 The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by AFD may have their origin in any country subject to the restrictions specified in Section V - Eligibility Criteria, and all expenditures under the Contract will not contravene such restrictions. At the Employer's request, Bidders may be required to provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and services.

B. Contents of Bidding Documents

6 Sections of Bidding Documents

6.1 The Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections specified below, and which should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.

PART 1: Bidding Procedures

- Section I Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV Bidding Forms

- Section V Eligibility Criteria
- Section VI AFD Policy Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices Environmental and Social Responsibility

PART 2: Works Requirements

Section VII – Works Requirements

PART 3: Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

- Section VIII General Conditions (GC)
- Section IX Particular Conditions (PC)
- Section X Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Employer is not part of the Bidding Documents.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Employer, the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the Bidding Documents, responses to requests for clarification, the minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or amendments to the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Employer shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information and documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents.
- 7 Clarification of Bidding Documents, Site Visit, Pre-Bid Meeting
- 7.1 A Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Documents shall contact the Employer in writing at the Employer's address specified in the BDS or raise its enquiries during the pre-Bid meeting if provided for in accordance with ITB 7.4. The Employer will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids. The Employer shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so specified in the BDS, the Employer shall also promptly publish its response at the web page identified in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the Bidding Documents, the Employer shall amend the Bidding Documents following the procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2.
- 7.2 The Bidder is advised to visit and examine the Site of Works and its surroundings and obtain for itself on its own responsibility all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for construction of the Works. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.
- 7.3 The Bidder and any of its personnel or agents will be granted permission by the Employer to enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit, but only upon the express condition that the Bidder, its personnel, and agents will release and indemnify the Employer and its personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof, and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property, and any other loss, damage, costs, and expenses incurred as a result of the inspection.
- 7.4 If so specified in the BDS, the Bidder's designated representative is invited to attend a pre-Bid meeting. The purpose of the meeting will

be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.

- 7.5 The Bidder is requested, as far as possible, to submit any questions in writing, to reach the Employer not later than one week before the meeting.
- 7.6 Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting, if applicable, including the text of the questions asked by Bidders, without identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 6.3. Any modification to the Bidding Documents that may become necessary as a result of the pre-Bid meeting shall be made by the Employer exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to ITB 8 and not through the minutes of the pre-Bid meeting. Non-attendance at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a Bidder

8 Amendment of Bidding Documents

- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, the Employer may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing amendments.
- 8.2 Any amendment issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Documents from the Employer in accordance with ITB 6.3. The Employer shall also promptly publish the amendment on the Employer's web page in accordance with ITB 7.1.
- 8.3 To give Bidders reasonable time in which to take an amendment into account in preparing their Bids, the Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2.

C. Preparation of Bids

9 Cost of Bidding

9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid, and the Employer shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

10 Language of Bid

10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer, shall be written in the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified in the BDS, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

11 Documents Comprising the Bid

11.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:

- a) Letter of Bid and the Bidding Forms in accordance with ITB 12;
- Completed schedules as required, including Price Schedules, in accordance with ITB 12 and 14 and as indicated in the BDS;
- Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITB 19.1;
- d) Alternative Bids, if permissible in accordance with ITB 13;
- e) Written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.2;
- f) Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Social and Environmental Responsibility duly signed, in accordance with ITB 12;

- g) Documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's continued qualified status or, if post-qualification applies, as specified in accordance with ITB 4.5, the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its Bid is accepted;
- h) Technical proposal in accordance with ITB 16;
- Any other document required in the BDS.
- 11.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, Bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful Bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the Bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
- 11.3 The Bidder shall furnish information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid
- 12 Letter of Bid, Statement of Integrity, Bidding Forms and Schedules
- 12.1 The Letter of Bid, the Statement of Integrity, the Bidding Forms and Schedules, including the Bill of Quantities for unit price contracts or the Schedule of Prices in case of lump sum contracts, shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV Bidding Forms. The Letter of Bid and the Statement of Integrity must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.4. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.
- 13 Alternative Bids,
 Alternative
 Technical
 Solutions and
 Alternative Times
 for Completion of
 the Works
- 13.1 **Unless otherwise specified in the BDS**, alternative Bids shall not be considered. If permitted, the method for their evaluation shall be described in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 13.2 Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, alternative technical solutions shall not be considered. If Bidders are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions and only for specified parts of the Works, such parts shall be identified in Section VII Works Requirements. The methods for their evaluation shall be described in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 13.3 Bidders wishing to submit alternatives, if permitted under ITB 13.1 and/or ITB 13.2, shall provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation by the Employer, including but not limited to, drawings, design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, proposed construction methodology, evidence of meeting the qualification criteria, the benefits to the employer for selecting the alternative Bid and/or alternative technical solution and other relevant details.
- 13.4 Only one (1) alternative Bid per Bidder may be submitted and only one (1) alternative technical solution for each permitted part of the Works may be submitted.
- 13.5 **Unless otherwise specified in the BDS**, alternative times for completion of the Works shall not be considered. If permitted the method for their evaluation shall be described in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 14 Bid Prices and Discounts
- 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.
- 14.2 The Bidder shall submit a Bid for the whole of the Works described in ITB 1.1, by filling in price(s) for all items of the Works, as identified

in Section IV - Bidding Forms. In case of admeasurement contracts, the Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder shall be deemed covered by the rates for other items in the Bill of Quantities and will not be paid for separately by the Employer. An item not listed in the priced Bill of Quantities shall be assumed to be not included in the Bid, and provided that the Bid is determined substantially responsive notwithstanding this omission, the highest price of the item quoted by substantially responsive Bidders will be added to the Bid price and the equivalent total cost of the Bid so determined will be used for price comparison.

- 14.3 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid shall be the total price of the Bid, excluding any discounts offered.
- 14.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid.
- 14.5 Unless otherwise specified in the BDS and the Contract, the rate(s) and price(s) quoted by the Bidder are subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with the provisions of the Conditions of Contract. In such a case, the Bidder shall furnish the indices and weightings for the price adjustment formulae in the Schedule of Adjustment Data and the Employer may require the Bidder to justify its proposed indices and weightings.
- 14.6 If so specified in ITB 1.1, Bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their Bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4, provided the Bids for all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.
- 14.7 Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, all duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, shall be included in the rates and prices and the total Bid Price submitted by the Bidder.
- 15 Currencies of Bid and Payment
- 15.1 The currency(ies) of the Bid and the currency(ies) of payments shall be as specified in the BDS.
- 15.2 Bidders may be required by the Employer to justify, to the Employer's satisfaction, their local and foreign currency requirements, and to substantiate that the amounts included in the prices shown in the Schedule of Adjustment Data in the Appendix to Bid are reasonable, in which case a detailed breakdown of the foreign currency requirements shall be provided by Bidders.
- 16 Documents
 Comprising the
 Technical Proposal
- 16.1 The Bidder shall furnish a technical proposal including a statement of work methods, equipment, personnel, Schedules and any other information as stipulated in Section IV - Bidding Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Bidder's proposal to meet the Work requirements and the completion time.
- 17 Documents
 Establishing the
 Qualifications of
 the Bidder
- 17.1 In accordance with Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, to establish that the Bidder continues to meet the criteria used at the time of prequalification, the Bidder shall provide in the corresponding information sheets included in Section IV Bidding Forms, updated information on any assessed aspect that changed from that time, or if post-qualification applies as specified in ITB 4.5, the Bidder shall

- provide the information requested in the corresponding information sheets included in Section IV Bidding Forms.
- 17.2 If a margin of preference applies as specified in accordance with ITB 33.1, domestic Bidders, individually or in joint ventures, applying for eligibility for domestic preference shall supply all information required to satisfy the criteria for eligibility specified in accordance with ITB 33.1.
- 17.3 Any change in the structure or formation of a Bidder after being prequalified and invited to Bid (including, in the case of a JV, any change in the structure or formation of any member thereto) shall be subject to the written approval of the Employer prior to the deadline for submission of Bids. Such approval shall be denied if (i) as a consequence of the change, the Bidder no longer substantially meets the qualification criteria set forth in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria; or (ii) in the opinion of the Employer, the change may result in a substantial reduction in competition. Any such change should be submitted to the Employer not later than fourteen (14) days after the date of the Invitation for Bids.

18 Period of Validity of Bids

- 18.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period **specified in the BDS** after the Bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Employer in accordance with ITB 22.1. A Bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 18.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Bid validity period, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid security is requested in accordance with ITB 19, it shall also be extended for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the deadline of the extended validity period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
- 18.3 If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial Bid validity, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
 - a) In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the Bid price adjusted by the factor specified in the BDS;
 - b) In the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made:
 - c) In any case, Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.

19 Bid Security

- 19.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a Bid Security as specified in the BDS, in original form and, in the case of a Bid Security, in the amount and currency specified in the BDS.
- 19.2 A Bid-Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV Bidding Forms.
- 19.3 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
 - a) An unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);

- An irrevocable letter of credit;
- A cashier's or certified check; or
- d) Another security specified in the BDS;

from a reputable source from an eligible country as specified in Section V - Eligibility Criteria. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a financial institution located outside the Employer's Country, the issuing financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country to make it enforceable. In the case of a bank guarantee, the Bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV - Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Employer prior to Bid submission. The Bid Security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original validity period of the Bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under ITB 18.2.

- 19.4 Any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 19.5 The Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the Contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 42.
- 19.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance Security.
- 19.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid-Securing Declaration executed:
 - a) If a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or
 - b) If the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) Sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or
 - (ii) Furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB 42.
- 19.8 The Bid Security or the Bid-Securing Declaration of a JV shall be in the name of the JV that submits the Bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of Bidding, the Bid Security or the Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.
- 19.9 If a Bid Security is **not required in the BDS** pursuant to ITB 19.1, and
 - a) If a Bidder withdraws its Bid during the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder, or
 - b) If the successful Bidder fails to sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or furnish a Performance Security in accordance with ITB 42;

the Employer may, **if provided for in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for a period of time **as stated in the BDS**.

20 Format and Signing of Bid

- 20.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the Bid as described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL". Alternative Bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, shall be clearly marked "ALTERNATIVE". In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number specified in the BDS and clearly mark them "COPY". In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 20.2 The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be attached to the Bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.
- 20.3 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of Bidding, then the Bid shall be signed by every member of the proposed JV.
- 20.4 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

21 Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 21.1 The Bidder shall enclose the original and all copies of the Bid, including alternative Bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, in separate sealed envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as "ORIGINAL", "ALTERNATIVE" and "COPY". These envelopes containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single envelope.
- 21.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - a) Bear the name and address of the Bidder;
 - b) Be addressed to the Employer in accordance with ITB 22.1;
 - c) Bear the specific identification of this bidding process in accordance with ITB 1.1; and
 - Bear a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid opening.
- 21.3 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

22 Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 22.1 Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later than the date and time **specified in the BDS**. When so **specified in the BDS**, Bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. Bidders submitting Bids electronically shall follow the electronic Bid submission procedures **specified in the BDS**.
- 22.2 The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids by amending the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

- 23 Late Bids
- 23.1 The Employer shall not consider any Bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any Bid received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of Bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 24 Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids
- 24.1 A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization in accordance with ITB 20.2. The corresponding substitution or modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - a) Prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and ITB 21 (except that withdrawals notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL", "SUBSTITUTION", "MODIFICATION"; and
 - b) Received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 22.
- 24.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
- 24.3 No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the expiration of the period of Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.

25 Bid Opening

- 25.1 Except in the cases specified in ITB 23 and 24, the Employer shall publicly open and read out in accordance with ITB 25 all Bids received by the deadline (regardless of the number of Bids received), at the date, time and place **specified in the BDS**, in public and in the presence of Bidders` designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend. Any specific electronic Bid opening procedures required if electronic Bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 22.1, shall be **as specified in the BDS**.
- 25.2 First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding Bid shall not be opened but returned to the Bidder. No Bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Bid opening. Next, envelopes marked "SUBSTITUTION" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at Bid opening. Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening. Only Bids that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further.
- 25.3 All other envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative Bids; the presence or absence of a Bid security or Bidsecuring declaration, if required; and any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative Bids read out at Bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. The Letter of Bid and the Schedules are to be initialed by a minimum of

- three representatives of the Employer attending Bid opening. At Bid opening, the Employer shall neither discuss the merits of any Bid nor reject any Bid (except for late Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.1).
- 25.4 The Employer shall prepare a record of the Bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative Bids; and the presence or absence of a Bid security or Bid-securing declaration, if one was required. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

26 Confidentiality

- 26.1 Information relating to the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids, and qualification of the Bidders and recommendation of contract award shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the bidding process until information on Contract award is communicated to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 40.
- 26.2 Any attempt by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids, and qualification of the Bidders, or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 26.3 Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of Bid opening to the time of Contract award, if a Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the bidding process, it shall do so in writing.

27 Clarification of Bids

- 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid, given a reasonable time for a response. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder that is not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the Bids, in accordance with ITB 31.
- 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and time set in the Employer's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.

28 Deviations, Reservations and Omissions

- 28.1 During the evaluation of Bids, the following definitions apply:
 - a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents;
 - b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and
 - c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Documents.

29 Determination of Responsiveness

29.1 The Employer's determination of a Bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the Bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.

- 29.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without material Deviation, Reservation, or Omission. A material Deviation, Reservation, or Omission is one that,
 - a) If accepted, would:
 - Affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works specified in the Contract; or
 - (ii) Limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the proposed Contract; or
 - b) If rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bid.
- 29.3 The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII Works Requirements have been met without any material Deviation, Reservation or Omission.
- 29.4 If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material Deviation, Reservation, or Omission.

30 Non-material Non-conformities

- 30.1 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any non-material non-conformity (a non-conformity being a Deviation, Reservation or Omission) in the Bid.
- 30.2 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify non-material non-conformities in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such non-conformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 30.3 Only for admeasurement contracts and provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable non-material non-conformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component.

31 Correction of Arithmetical Errors

- 31.1 Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
 - a) Only for admeasurement contracts, if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the total price that is obtained by multiplying the unit price and quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the total price shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the total price as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
 - Only for admeasurement contracts, if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
 - If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless, only for admeasurement contracts, the amount expressed in words is related to an

- arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 31.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 31.1 shall result in the rejection of the Bid.
- 32 Conversion to Single Currency
- 32.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted into a single currency **as specified in the BDS.**
- 33 Margin of preference
- 33.1 **Unless otherwise specified in the BDS**, a margin of preference for domestic Bidders shall not apply.
- 34 Subcontractors
- 34.1 **Unless otherwise stated in the BDS**, the Employer does not intend to execute any specific elements of the Works by subcontractors selected in advance by the Employer (nominated subcontractors).
- 34.2 A "specialized subcontractor" is a subcontractor hired for specialized work as defined by the Employer in Section III 4.2 Experience. If no specialized work is specified by the Employer as such, subcontractors experience shall not be considered for Bids evaluation.
- 34.3 In case of Prequalification, the Bidder's Bid shall name the same specialized subcontractor as submitted in the prequalification application and approved by the Employer, or may name another specialized subcontractor meeting the requirements specified in the prequalification phase.
- 34.4 In case of Postqualification, the Employer may permit subcontracting for certain specialized works as indicated in Section III 4.2 Experience. When sub-contracting is permitted by the Employer, the specialized subcontractor's experience shall be considered for the evaluation. Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, describes the qualification criteria for subcontractors.

35 Evaluation of Bids

- 35.1 The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Clause. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.
- 35.2 To evaluate a Bid, the Employer shall consider the following:
 - a) The Bid price, excluding Provisional Sums unless priced competitively and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the Schedules, but including Daywork items, where priced competitively;
 - b) Price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 31.1;
 - Price adjustment due to missing items, missing rates, or discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.2 and 14.4;
 - d) Price adjustment due to quantifiable non-material non-conformities in accordance with ITB 30.3;
 - e) Converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (d) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32;
 - f) The additional evaluation factors as specified in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

- 35.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 35.4 If these Bidding Documents allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated price of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid, is specified in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 35.5 If the Bid is seriously unbalanced or front loaded in the opinion of the Employer and after evaluation of the price analyses, taking into consideration the schedule of estimated Contract payments, the Employer may require that the amount of the performance security be increased at the expense of the Bidder to a level sufficient to protect the Employer against financial loss in the event of default of the successful Bidder under the Contract.
- 35.6 Only the qualifications of the Bidder shall be considered. In particular, the qualifications of a parent or other affiliated company that is not party to the Bidder under a JV in accordance with ITB 4.1 shall not be considered.
- 35.7 In case of multiple contracts, Bidders should indicate in their Bids the individual contracts in which they are interested. The Employer shall qualify each Bidder for the maximum combination of contracts for which the Bidder has thereby indicated its interest and for which the Bidder meets the appropriate aggregate requirements. The Qualification Criteria and Requirements are mentioned in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

36 Abnormally low Bid

36.1 If the Bid, which results in the lowest Evaluated Bid Price, is twenty per cent (20%) or more, lower than the Employer's estimate, and unless the Employer provides justification that the estimate is inaccurate, the Employer shall require the Bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Schedules, to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices and priced quantities with the construction methods, resources and schedule proposed, as well as the Works Requirements. Notwithstanding the provisions of ITB 14.2 which shall not be applicable, if one or several inconsistencies are evidenced, the Bid shall be declared non-compliant and rejected.

37 Qualification of the Bidder

- 37.1 Any change in the structure or formation of a Bidder after being prequalified and invited to bid (including, in the case of a JV, any change in the structure or formation of any member thereto) shall be subject to the written approval of the Employer. Such approval shall be denied if (i) as a consequence of the change, the Bidder no longer substantially meets the prequalification criteria; or (ii) in the opinion of the Employer, the change may result in a substantial reduction in competition. Any such change should be submitted to the Employer not later than fourteen (14) days after the date of the Invitation for Bids.
- 37.2 The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive Bid either continues to meet (if prequalification applies) or meets (if postqualification applies) the qualifying criteria specified in Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

- 37.3 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17.1.
- 37.4 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the Bid, in which event the Employer shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated Bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.

38 Employer's Right to Reject all Bids

38.1 The Employer reserves the right to annul the bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all Bids submitted and specifically, Bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

F. Award of Contract

39 Award Criteria

- 39.1 The Employer shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially responsive Bids established in accordance with ITB 35.2 to determine the lowest evaluated Bid.
- 39.2 Subject to ITB 38.1, the Employer shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated Bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

40 Notification of Award

- 40.1 Prior to the expiration of the period of Bid validity, the Employer shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the requirement for the Contractor to remedy any defects therein (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Accepted Contract Amount"). At the same time, the Employer shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the Bidding.
- 40.2 Until a formal contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 40.3 The Employer shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after notification of award in accordance with ITB 40.1, requests in writing the grounds on which its Bid was not selected.
- 40.4 In exceptional circumstances, a contract negotiation may be needed. In such case, the Employer shall send to the successful Bidder a letter of invitation to negotiate which should not be mistaken as a Letter of Acceptance which, under FIDIC Conditions of Contract, triggers contractual obligations from both Parties. The Letter of Acceptance shall be sent once the contract negotiation ends successfully. Minutes of negotiation meetings, and agreements reached therein, shall be attached to the Letter of Acceptance.

41 Signing of Contract 41.1

- 41.1 Promptly upon notification, the Employer shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.
- 41.2 Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Employer.

42 Performance Security

42.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Employer, the successful Bidder shall furnish the

performance security in accordance with the General Conditions of Contract, subject to ITB 36, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X - Contract Forms, or another form acceptable to the Employer. If the performance security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Employer. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country.

42.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid security or execution of the Bid-Securing Declaration. In that event the Employer may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder whose offer is substantially responsive and is determined by the Employer to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

Section II - Bid Data Sheet

A. Introduction			
ITB 1.1	The number of the Invitation for Bids is: CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023		
ITB 1.1	The Employer is: Coast Water Works Development Agency		
ITB 1.1	The name of the IPC is: Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa, Lot 1 – Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Reservoir		
	The identification number of the IPC is: CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023		
	The number and identification of lots (contracts) comprising this IPC is: Lot 1 – Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Reservoir		
ITB 2.1	The name of the Project is: Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa; Mwache CKE 1103		
ITB 3.1	Add Paragraph at end of clause 3.1; "All commitments and Oblogations under Section VI – AFD Policy – Corruption and Fraudulent Practices – Environmental and Social Responsibility are applicable to all Sub-Contractors"		
ITB 4.1	Maximum number of members in the JV shall be: Three (3)		
	Prequalified Bidders CANNOT reconsitute their JV Membership at the tendering stage, i.e. Members prequalified as individual firms cannot enter into a JV at the tendering stage and firms prequalified as a JV cannot alter the JV membership at the tendering stage, unless expressly approved in written by the Employer as per ITB 17.3.		
	Bidders violating the above shall be disqualified.		
ITB 4.5	This bidding process was subject to prequalification		
	B. Bidding Documents		
ITB 7.1	For <u>clarification purposes</u> only, the Employer's address is:		
	Attention: Chief Executive Officer, Coast Water Works Development Agency		
Address: P.O. Box 90417 – 80100, Mombasa, Kenya Telephone: +254 041 2315230			
Telephone: +254 041 2315230 Electronic mail address: <i>info@cwwda.go.ke</i>			
	Web page: www.cwwda.go.ke		
ITB 7.4	A Pre-Bid meeting shall take place at the following date, time and place:		
	Date: 11th September 2024		
	Time: 09:30 AM (local time)		
	Place: At the CEO's Board Room,		
	Coast Water Works Development Agency (CWWDA)		
	Nkrumah Road, Off Mikindani Street, Mombasa – Kenya		
	A Site visit conducted by the Employer shall be organized.		
ITB 7.6	The last sentence of Sub-clause 7.6 is Deleted and Replaced with the following:		
	"The Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Visit organized by the Employer at the specified date and time is Mandatory and the Employer will reject Bids from Bidders who do not attend."		

	C. Preparation of Bids
ITB 10.1	The language of the Bid is: <i>English</i>
	All correspondence exchange shall be in the <i>English</i> language. Language for translation of supporting documents and printed literature is <i>English</i> .
ITB 11.1(b)	 The following schedules shall be submitted with the Bid: Duly filled and signed Bills of Quantities (BOQ): the excel version shall be submitted in the soft copy in addition to the hard copy (otherwise the bid may be rejected). Bidders are NOT allowed to make any modification in the BOQ and only the BOQ issued with the Bidding Documents will prevail and shall be the basis for subsequent Contract preparation. Schedule of Manufacturers AND QUOTATIONS from Manufacturers form the following key materials: Steel or Ductile Iron Pipes and Fittings (as applicable depending on material selected) Valves and Meters Reinforcement Steel A priced proposal for a Cathodic Protection Maintenance Contract following the DLP, from the specialized Cathodic Protection System Sub-Contractor.
	4. All other Schedules as per Section IV (Bidding Forms) A Bid comprising unit prices of key materials in the Bill of Quantities that are more than 20% lower than the quotations from suppliers may be rejected, unless justifiable.
ITB 11.1(i)	The Bidder shall submit with its Bid the following additional documents:
	As the Works are in an area labelled as Yellow by the French Ministry of Europe and Foreign Affairs, the Bidder shall provide with its Bid a Security Methodology that meets the requirements of the security specifications.
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids <i>shall not</i> be permitted.
ITB 13.2	Alternative technical solutions <i>shall not</i> be permitted.
ITB 13.5	Alternative times for completion of the Works shall not be permitted.
ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the bidder shall be subject to Adjustment over the Contract period, using the Schedule of Adjustment Data filled by the Bidder in Appendix 1 to Bid and the Adjustment for Changes in Cost formula given in sub-clause 13.8 of the GCC and PCC.
	In addition, to minimize the risk of price escalation, the Contractor is required, within 2 months of receipt of Advance Payment, to place orders, pay deposit to suppliers and secure the following key materials:
	 All Pipes and Fittings (Steel / Ductile Iron), Valves (Gate Valves, Butterfly Valves, Air Valves, Altitude Valves) Flow Meters Reinforcement Steel
	Contractor to submit to the Engineer documentary evidence of the secured orders, and deposits paid.

	_				
ITB 14.7	The Bidder shall identify in the Bid Price, as a separate amount, the total VAT payable under the Contract. The rates in the Bills of Quantities shall threfore be <u>exclusive</u> of VAT				
	Other taxes, duties and fees shall be deemed included in the Contract Prices and Bills of Quantities Rates.				
	Taxes, duties and fees exemptions, to which payments under the Contract are entitled, are specified in clause 14.1 (b) of the Particular Conditions of Contract.				
ITB 15.1	he currency(ies) of the Bid and the payment currency(ies) shall be as described elow:				
	dders to quote entirely in local currency:				
	a) The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the Bidder in the Schedules, entirely in <i>Kenya Shillings</i> , the name of the currency of the Employer's country, and further referred to as "the local currency". A Bidder expecting to incur expenditures in other currencies for inputs to the Works supplied from outside the Employer's country (referred to as "the foreign currency") shall indicate in the Appendix to Bid, the percentage(s) of the Bid Price (excluding Provisional Sums), needed by the Bidder for the payment of such foreign currency requirements, limited to Euro (€);				
	b) The rates of exchange to be used by the Bidder in arriving at the local currency equivalent and the percentage(s) mentioned in (a) above shall be specified by the Bidder in the Appendix to Bid, and shall apply for all payments under the Contract so that no exchange risk will be borne by the successful Bidder.				
ITB 18.1	The Bid Validity Period shall be 120 days.				
ITB 18.3(a)	The Bid Price shall be adjusted N/A				
ITB 19.1	A Bid Security shall be required. Only an Unconditional On-Demand Guarantee issued by a reputable Bank in an Eligible Country is acceptable. Other forms of Bid Security are NOT acceptable. Guarantees issued by non-bank financial institutions are NOT acceptable.				
	A Bid-Securing Declaration <i>shall not</i> be required.				
	The amount and currency of the Bid security shall be: Kshs. 52,000,000 (Kenya Shillings Fifty Five Million) or equivalent in Euro.				
ITB 19.3(d)	Other types of acceptable securities: "None"				
ITB 20.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: <i>Three (3)</i> paper copies and one (1) digital copy (CD or flashdisk).				
ITB 20.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of:				
	(a) The name and description of the documentation required to demonstrate the authority of the signatory to sign the Bid such as a "Sealed" Power of Attorney; and				
	(b) In the case of Bids submitted by an existing or intended JV an undertaking signed by all parties (i) stating that all parties shall be jointly and severally liable, if so required in accordance with ITB 4.1 and (ii) nominating a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the parties of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution				

D. Submission and Opening of Bids						
ITB 22.1	For Bid submission purposes only, the Employer's address is:					
	Attention: Chief Executive Officer, Coast Water Works Development Agency					
	Address: Nkrumah Road off Mikindani Street					
	City: <i>Mombasa</i>					
	Country: <i>Kenya</i>					
	The deadline for Bid submission is:					
	Date: 14th October 2024					
	Time: 12:00 PM (Local Time)					
	Bidders shall not have the option of submitting their Bids electronically.					
ITB 25.1	The Bid opening shall take place at:					
	Address: Coast Water Works Development Agency, Nkrumah Road off Mikindani Street					
	City: <i>Mombasa</i>					
	Country: <i>Kenya</i>					
	Date: 14th October 2024					
	Time: 12:05 PM (Local Time)					
	No minimum number of Bids is required in order to proceed to Bid opening.					
	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids					
ITB 32.1	The currency that shall be used for Bid evaluation and comparison purposes to convert all Bid price(s) expressed in various currencies into a single currency is: <i>Kenya Shillings</i>					
	The source of exchange rate shall be: Central Bank of Kenya Selling Rate					
	The date for the exchange rate shall be seven (7) days prior to the date of deadline for Bid submission.					
	The currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted into a single currency in accordance with the procedure that follows:					
	Bidders quote entirely in local currency					
	For comparison of Bids, the Bid Price, corrected pursuant to Clause 31, shall first be broken down into the respective amounts payable in various currencies by using the exchange rates specified by the Bidder in accordance with Sub-Clause 15.1.					
	In the second step, the Employer will convert the amounts in various currencies in which the Bid Price is payable (excluding Provisional Sums but including Daywork where priced competitively) to the single currency identified above at the selling rates established for similar transactions by the authority specified and on the date stipulated above.					
ITB 33.1	A margin of preference shall not apply.					
ITB 34.1	At this time the Employer "does not intend" to execute certain specific parts of the Works by subcontractors selected in advance (nominated subcontractors).					
ITB 35.2	Evaluation of Bids will be done on the basis of prices excluding VAT.					

Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains all the criteria that the Employer shall use to evaluate Bids and qualify Bidders. In accordance with ITB 35, 36 and ITB 37, no other factors, methods or criteria shall be used. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section IV - Bidding Forms.

Wherever a Bidder is required to state a monetary amount, Bidders should indicate the EUR equivalent using the rate of exchange determined as follows:

- For construction turnover or financial data required for each year Exchange rate prevailing on the last day of the respective calendar year;
- Value of single contract Exchange rate prevailing on the date of the contract.

Exchange rates shall be taken from the publicly available source identified in the ITB 32.1. Any error in determining the exchange rates in the Bid may be corrected by the Employer.

1 Evaluation

In addition to the criteria listed in ITB 35.2 a) - e), the following criteria shall apply:

1.1 Assessment of adequacy of technical proposal with requirements:

The assessment of the technical proposal submitted by a Bidder shall comprise (a) evaluation of the Bidder's technical capacity to mobilize key equipment and key personnel to carry out the Works, (b) construction method, (c) construction schedule and (d) sufficiently detailed supply sources, in accordance with requirements specified in Section VII - Works Requirements, (e) evaluation of the Bidder's ESHS Methodology.

The Bidder shall use the the ESHS Methodology Form provided in Section IV- Bidding Forms. A Bid not comprising of an ESHS Methodology or a Bid for which the ESHS Methodology is not substantially responsive (i.e. with material deviation, reservation or omission) shall be rejected.

1.2 Acceptability of the security methodology

The security methodology shall be evaluated to determine whether each admissibility requirement specified in the security specifications is met. Otherwise, the Bid will be rejected.

1.3 Multiple Contracts, if permitted under ITB 35.4, will be evaluated as follow:

Not Applicable

1.4 <u>Alternative Bids</u>, if permitted under ITB 13.1, shall be evaluated as follows:

Not Applicable

1.5 <u>Alternative Technical Solutions</u>, if permitted under ITB 13.2, shall be evaluated as follows:

Not Applicable

1.6 <u>Alternative Times for Completion of the Works</u>, if permitted under ITB 13.5, shall be evaluated as follows:

Not Applicable

1.7 Personnel:

The Bidder must demonstrate that it has the personnel for the key positions that meet the following requirements:

No.	Position	Requirements / Qualifications	Total Work Experience (years)	In Similar Works Experience (years)
1.	Project Manager	BSc. Civil EngineeringProof of Fluency in Written and Spoken English	20	10
2.	Site Agent	BSc. Civil EngineeringProof of Fluency in Written and Spoken English	15	10
3.	Site Engineer	BSc. Civil EngineeringProof of Fluency in Written and Spoken English	10	5
4.	Engineering Surveyors - Two (2Nr)	BSc. Surveying or Higher National Diploma in Surveying or equivalent	10	5
5.	Foremen (Pipeline Works) – Two (2Nr)	Diploma in Civil Engineering / Building Construction or equivalent	10	8
6.	Foreman (Concrete Works) – One (1Nr)	Diploma in Civil Engineering / Building Construction or equivalent	10	8
7.	Environmental Expert	 Degree in Environmental Science or related field Registered NEMA Lead Expert Proof of Fluency in Written and Spoken English 	10	5
8.	Social Expert	 Degree in Sociology / Community Development or equivalent Proof of Fluency in Written and Spoken English 	10	5
9.	Health & Safety Expert	 First Degree in a relevant field and a Course in Occupation Health and Safety Proof of Fluency in Written and Spoken English 	10	5

The Bidder shall provide details of the proposed personnel and their experience records using Forms PER-1 and PER-2 included in Section IV - Bidding Forms.

1.8 Equipment:

The Bidder must demonstrate that it can obtain (purchase, lease or rent) the key equipment listed hereafter:

No.	Equipment Type and Characteristics	Minimum Number Required
1	Excavator with 0.75m ³ Bucket & 1.5 Tonne Hammer	3
2	Back Hoe Excavators	3
3	7 / 10 / 15 ton Tipper Lorries	3
4	Pick-Ups – 1 Ton	2
5	Plate Compactors	2
6	Compressors (5,000 l/min)	2
7	Total Station (for Surveying Works)	2
8	Portable De-Watering Pumps	3
9	Mechanical Pressure Testing Equipment (for Pipelines upto PN25)	2
10	Generator – 15 kVA	2
11	Concrete Batching Plant – min capacity 15m³/hr	2
12	Concrete Poker Vibrators (25mm – 45mm)	6
13	Concrete Mixers – capacity 0.3m³ to 1m³ including batch weighing	3
14	Mobile Crane – 30T	2
15	Roller Compactor – 20T	2

The Bidder shall provide further details of proposed items of equipment using Form EQU in Section IV - Bidding Forms.

2 Domestic Preference

Not Applicable

3 Qualification

3.1 Subcontractors:

The general experience and financial resources of the subcontractors shall not be added to those of the Bidder for purposes of qualification of the Bidder.

3.2 Update of Information Provided during Prequalification:

The Bidder shall update the information provided during the corresponding prequalification exercise to demonstrate that he continues to meet the criteria used at the time of Prequalification by using the relevant Forms included in Section IV - Bidding Forms. If needed, the Bidder may use any of the Prequalification Forms to notify a change which occurred following the Prequalification. The Employer reserves the right to request updated financial resources from the Bidder.

Section IV – Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

Letter of Bid	1-27
Appendix 1 to Bid – Schedule of Adjustment Data	1-29
Appendix 2 to Bid - Summary of Payment Currencies	1-31
Appendix 3 to Bid - Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Environmental and So	
Schedules	1-35
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule	1-46
Security Cost Schedule	1-47
Technical Proposal	1-48
Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Methodology	1-49
List of Subcontractors	1-50
Site Organisation and Method Statement	1-52
Construction Schedule	1-53
Form PER-1: Proposed Personnel	1-54
Form PER-2: Resume of Proposed Personnel	1-55
Form EQU: Equipment	1-56
Form EQU: Equipment	1-68
Form of Bid Security	1-59

Letter of Bid

[The Bidder shall prepare his	Letter of Bid on a Letterhead	paper specifying his nai	me and address.]
-------------------------------	-------------------------------	--------------------------	------------------

Date:	
IPC No : CWWDA/AFD/PQ/WA/2022-2023	

To: Chief Executive Officer
Coast Water Works Development Agency
P.O. Box 90417 – 80100
Mombasa, Kenya

We, the undersigned, declare that:

- a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB 8):
- b) We have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4.2;
- c) We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Employer based on execution of a Bid Securing Declaration in the Employer's country in accordance with ITB 4.4;
- d) We offer to execute in conformity with the Bidding Documents the following works: Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa, Lot 1 Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Reservoir
- e) The total price of our Bid, excluding VAT and excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

(i)	Total price (excluding VAT) of the Bid: Kshs.	

- (ii) The total amount of VAT is: **Kshs.**_____
- (iii) The total bid price including VAT is: **Kshs.**
- f) The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

(i)	The discounts offered are:		,
-----	----------------------------	--	---

- (ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below: ______.
- g) Our Bid shall be valid for a period of **120** days from the date fixed for the Bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- h) If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with ITB 43 of the Bidding Documents;
- i) We are not participating, as a Bidder, in more than one Bid in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
- We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;

- k) We acknowledge and agree that the Employer reserves the right to annul the bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to contract award without thereby incurring any liability to us; and
- I) We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any type of fraud and corruption.

Name of the Bidder ¹ :	
Name of the person duly authorized to sign the	Bid on behalf of the Bidder ² :
Title of the person signing the Bid:	
Signature of the person named above:	
Date signed:	day of:

¹ In the case of the Bid submitted by a JV specify the name of the JV as Bidder.

Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid.

Appendix 1 to Bid - Schedule of Adjustment Data

Table of Weightings

Factor of description	Range of Values	Weightings for curre	Total (3)	
	permitted (1)	(national currency:Kshs.)	(foreign currency: €)	
X Non Adjustable	0.2	0.15	0.05	0.2
(a) Ferrous Materials (including Pipes, Fittings, Valves, etc.)	0.45 - 0.65			
(b) Fuels & Lubricants	0.10 - 0.25			
(c) Cement and other Concrete Materials	0.05 – 0.10			
(d) Labour	0.05 – 0.10			
	Totals			1.00

The Bidder shall indicate in Columns (2) the specific weightings for each factor and Bid currency, and in Column (3) the sub-totals for each factor, which must be within the range specified by the Employer in Column (1), respectively; furthermore, the sum of the sub-totals in Column (3) must be equal to 1 (one).

A formula shall be used for each payment currency, to be derived from the above Table as follows: the weightings to be used in each formula will be derived from the values in each currency column, respectively, by dividing each individual value by the sum of the values in the given column.

Table A: National Currency (Kenya Shillings)

Index Code	Index Description/ Identification	Publication Source for the Index	Base Value in [month] ¹
(T)	Ferrous Materials (including Pipes,	Metal Bulletin	
	Fittings, Valves, etc.)		
(S)	Fuels & Lubricants	ERC	
(Q)	Cement and other Concrete Materials	KNBS	
(P)	Labour	KNBS	

Sources of Indices

Metal Bulletin - Appropriate Index for Ferrous Materials to be selected from the appropriate category of the Metal Bulletin depending on the Country / Region of origin of the goods or equivalent approved source of Index.

KNBS - Kenya National Bureau of Statistics (KNBS) Construction Cost Index or equivalent approved source of Index

ERC - Ex Mombasa Depot Price published monthly by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) or equivalent approved source of Index

Bidder to Insert the month of the Base Date, i.e. the month of the Deadline for Bid Submission in accordance with ITB Clause 22.

Table B: Foreign Currency

The Bidder shall fill a table similar to the following one for each foreign currency of payment, as appropriate.

Index	Index Description/	Publication Source for	Base Value in [month] ²
Code	Identification	the Index	
(T)	Ferrous Materials (including Pipes,	Metal Bulletin	
	Fittings, Valves, etc.)		
(S)	Fuels & Lubricants	ERC	
(Q)	Cement and other Concrete Materials	KNBS	
(P)	Labour	KNBS	

Sources of Indices

Metal Bulletin - Appropriate Index for Ferrous Materials to be selected from the appropriate

category of the Metal Bulletin depending on the Country / Region of origin of

the goods or equivalent approved source of Index.

KNBS - Kenya National Bureau of Statistics (KNBS) Construction Cost Index or

equivalent approved source of Index

ERC - Ex Mombasa Depot Price published monthly by the Energy Regulatory

Commission (ERC) or equivalent approved source of Index

Bidder's Signature:		
Diduel S Signature.		

Example:

The following example shows a table of weightings and the corresponding price adjustment formula which are derived from it, on the basis of the following assumptions:

- Three weightings/factors are shown in this example: X is the non-adjustable portion and two adjustment factors (a and b) contribute to price adjustment through the variation of Indices T and S respectively, for which the respective ranges permitted by the Employer and values selected by the Bidder are shown in the table; these values are to be used in the price adjustment formula.
- Two payment currencies are shown in this example: the national currency (I) and a foreign currency (f), the indices T and S are the respective indices in the country of the currency.
- The data in bold are those specified by the Employer in the Bidding Documents, whereas the
 other data are provided either by the Bidder in its Bid or by the Contractor in the payment request.

Factor and Description	Factor and Range of Values permitted payme		s for each currency	Totals
Description		n	е	
X	0,15	0,05	0,10	0,15
a	0,30 - 0,50	0,15	0,25	0,40
b	0,25 - 0,45	0,20	0,25	0,45
Totals		0,40	0,60	1,00

Formula to be used for calculation of adjustment of payments:

Payment in national currency (n): $P \ln = \frac{0.05}{0.40} + \frac{0.15}{0.40} \frac{T \ln}{T lo} + \frac{0.20}{0.40} \frac{S \ln}{S lo}$

Payment in foreign currency (f): $Pfn = \frac{0.10}{0.60} + \frac{0.25}{0.60} \frac{Tfn}{Tfo} + \frac{0.25}{0.60} \frac{Sfn}{Sfo}$

Bidder to Insert the month of the Base Date, i.e. the month of the Deadline for Bid Submission in accordance with ITB Clause 22.

Appendix 2 to Bid - Summary of Payment Currencies

For the whole of the Works

Name of payment currency	A) Amount of currency	B) Rate of exchange (local currency per unit of foreign	C) Local currency equivalent (C = A x B)	D) Percentage of Total Bid Price (100 x C / TPB)
Local currency: Kenya Shillings (Kshs.)		1.00		
Foreign currency: Euro (€)		*		
Total Bid Price				100.00
Provisional Sums expressed in local currency (Kshs)	190,000,000		190,000,000	
TOTAL BID PRICE (including provisional sum)				

^{*} Bidder to enter Exchange Rate applicalbe 14 days before the deadline of submission of bids

Note:

- i) Amounts to be indicated in the Table above are portions of the Bid Price <u>Exclusive</u> of Value Added Tax (VAT)
- ii) The VAT component of all payments under the Contract shall be paid in the Local Currency, <u>Kenya Shillings</u>. All Foreign Contractors have to register with the Kenya Revenue Authority (KRA) for payment of VAT as required under the Laws of Kenya

Appendix 3 to Bid - Statement of Integrity, Eligibility and Environmental and Social Responsibility

Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa, Lot 1 – Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Reservoir (the "Contract")

To: The Chief Executive Officer, Coast Water Works Development Agency, P.O. Box 90417 – 80100, Mombasa, Kenya (the "Contracting Authority")

- 1. We recognise and accept that *Agence Française de Développement* ("**AFD**") only finances projects of the Contracting Authority subject to its own conditions which are set out in the Financing Agreement which benefits directly or indirectly to the Contracting Authority. As a matter of consequence, no legal relationship exists between AFD and our company, our joint venture or our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants. The Contracting Authority retains exclusive responsibility for the preparation and implementation of the procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. We hereby certify that neither we nor any other member of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants are in any of the following situations:
 - 2.1 Being bankrupt, wound up or ceasing our activities, having our activities administered by the courts, having entered into receivership, reorganisation or being in any analogous situation arising from any similar procedure;

2.2 Having been:

- convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata in the country where the Contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract (in the event of such conviction, you may attach to this Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this conviction is not relevant in the context of this Contract);
- subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European Union or by the competent authorities of the country where we are constituted, for fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract (in the event of such sanction, you may attach to this Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this sanction is not relevant in the context of this Contract);
- c) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;
- 2.3 Being listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and security;
- 2.4 Having been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against us for significant or persistent failure to comply with our contractual obligations during contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against us;
- 2.5 Not having fulfilled our fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with the legal provisions of either the country where we are constituted or the Contracting Authority's country;

- 2.6 Being subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and being listed on the website http://www.worldbank.org/debarr (in the event of such exclusion, you may attach to this Statement of Integrity supporting information showing that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of this Contract);
- 2.7 Having created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of this Contract.
- 3. We hereby certify that neither we, nor any of the members of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants are in any of the following situations of conflict of interest:
 - 3.1 Being an affiliate controlled by the Contracting Authority or a shareholder controlling the Contracting Authority, unless the stemming conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction;
 - 3.2 Having a business or family relationship with a Contracting Authority's staff involved in the procurement process or the supervision of the resulting Contract, unless the stemming conflict of interest has been brought to the attention of AFD and resolved to its satisfaction;
 - 3.3 Being controlled by or controlling another bidder or consultant, or being under common control with another bidder or consultant, or receiving from or granting subsidies directly or indirectly to another bidder or consultant, having the same legal representative as another bidder or consultant, maintaining direct or indirect contacts with another bidder or consultant which allows us to have or give access to information contained in the respective applications, bids or proposals, influencing them or influencing decisions of the Contracting Authority;
 - 3.4 Being engaged in a consulting services activity, which, by its nature, may be in conflict with the assignments that we would carry out for the Contracting Authority;
 - 3.5 In the case of procurement of goods, works or plants:
 - Having prepared or having been associated with a consultant who prepared specifications, drawings, calculations and other documentation to be used in the procurement process of this Contract;
 - b) Having been recruited (or being proposed to be recruited) ourselves or any of our affiliates, to carry out works supervision or inspection for this Contract.
- 4. If we are a state-owned entity, and to compete in a procurement process, we certify that we have legal and financial autonomy and that we operate under commercial laws and regulations.
- 5. We undertake to bring to the attention of the Contracting Authority, which will inform AFD, any change in situation with regard to points 2 to 4 here above.
- 6. In the context of the procurement process and performance of the corresponding contract:
 - 6.1 We have not and we will not engage in any dishonest conduct (act or omission) deliberately indented to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate someone's consent, to make them circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate their internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit;
 - 6.2 We have not and we will not engage in any dishonest conduct (act or omission) contrary to our legal or regulatory obligations or our internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit;
 - 6.3 We have not promised, offered or given and we will not promise, offer or give, directly or indirectly to (i) any Person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate within the State of the Contracting Authority regardless of whether that Person was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the Person occupies, (ii) any other Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned company, or who provides a public service, or (iii) any other person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the Contracting Authority's country, an undue

- advantage of any kind, for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity;
- 6.4 We have not promised, offered or given and we will not promise, offer or give, directly or indirectly to any Person who occupies an executive position in a private sector entity or works for such an entity, regardless of the nature of his/her capacity, any undue advantage of any kind, for himself or another Person or entity for such Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations;
- 6.5 We have not and we will not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award process to the detriment of the Contracting Authority and, in particular, in any anti-competitive practice having for object or for effect to prevent, restrict or distort competition, namely by limiting access to the market or the free exercise of competition by other undertakings;
- 6.6 Neither we nor any of the members of our joint venture or any of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants shall acquire or supply any equipment nor operate in any sectors under an embargo of the United Nations, the European Union or France:
- 6.7 We commit ourselves to comply with and ensure that all of our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants comply with international environmental and labour standards, consistent with laws and regulations applicable in the country of implementation of the Contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties. Moreover, we shall implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the environmental and social commitment plan (ESCP) provided by the Contracting Authority.
- 7. We, as well as members of our joint venture and our suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants authorise AFD to inspect accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process and performance of the contract and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

Name:	In the capacity of:
Duly empowered to sign in the name ar	nd on behalf of¹:
Signature:	
Dated:	

In case of joint venture, insert the name of the joint venture. The person who will sign the application, bid or proposal on behalf of the applicant, bidder or consultant shall attach a power of attorney from the applicant, bidder or consultant.

Schedules

Rates and prices in the Bills of Quantities shall exclude VAT. The VAT estimate will be indicated as a separate amount in the Grand Summary. Information on applicable tax exemptions is provided in Sub-Clause 14.1 (b) of the Particular Conditions of Contract.

The Bills of Quantites must be prepared in Kenya Shillings as per BDS - ITB 15.1.

The Schedule of Bills of Quantities is given below:

Bill N	<u>0.</u>		<u>Description</u>
1		-	Preliminaries and General
2		-	Trunk Main Section 1 (Line TM)
	2.1	-	Trunk Main Section 1 (Line TM1): Supply of Pipes, Fittings, Valves and
			Ancillaries
	2.2	-	Trunk Main Section 1 (Line TM1): Pipeline Construction
3		-	South Mainland Water Transmission Pipeline (Line SM)
	3.1	-	South Mainland Water Transmission Pipeline (Line SM): Supply of Pipes,
			Fittings, Valves and Ancillaries
	3.2	-	South Mainland Water Transmission Pipeline (Line SM): Pipeline
			Construction
4		-	Dongo Kundu Reservoir Site
	4.1	-	Dongo Kundu Reservoir (28,000m³ capacity)
	4.2	-	Chlorine Storage and Mixing Building
	4.3	-	Administration Building, Staff Houses and Site and Ancillary Works
5		-	Instrumentation
	5.1	-	Instrumentation

PREAMBLE AND NOTES TO BILLS OF QUANTITIES

- 1. These Bills of Quantities form part of the Contract Documents and are to be read in conjunction with the Conditions of Contract, Standard and Special Specifications and Drawings. The Particular Specifications overrides any Clauses / General Specifications given in the Preamble.
- 2. Whenever reference is made to "The Engineer" or "The Engineer's Representative" in the Bills of Quantities, it shall be construed to mean the person appointed by the Employer to act as the Project Manager or Engineer for the purposes of the Contract and named in the Contract Data, or other person appointed from time to time by the Employer and notified to the Contractor.
- 3. The quantities set forth in the Bills of Quantities represent the character of the work to be carried out. There is no guarantee to the Contractor that he will be required to carry out the quantities of work indicated under any one particular item or group of items in the Bills of Quantities. Though on the Contract as a whole, the quantities are intended to represent the overall value of the work to be carried out.
- 4. The prices and rates inserted in the Bills of Quantities will be used for valuing the work executed and the Engineer will measure the whole of the works executed in accordance with the Contract.
- 5. The prices and rates inserted in the Bills of Quantities are to be the full inclusive costs of the works described under the items, complete in place and in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings, including setting out of the works, including costs and expenses which may be required in and for the construction of the works described, together with any temporary works and installations which may be necessary and all general risks, liabilities and obligations set forth or implied in the Documents on which the Contract is based.
- 6. The brief description of the items given in the Bills of Quantities are purely for the purpose of identification and in no way modify or supersede the detailed descriptions given in the Conditions of Contract, Specifications or Drawings. When pricing items, reference is to be made to the Conditions of Contract, Standard Specifications, Drawings and Special Specification for the full directions and description of work and materials.
- 7. A price or rate is to be inserted, in ink, against each item in the Bills of Quantities, whether quantities are stated or not, and if the Bidder includes the cost of a particular item elsewhere in his rates or prices, he shall insert the word "nil" against both the rate and extension of that particular item. Should the Bidder omit to price an item, then it will be assumed that he has included the cost of the item elsewhere in his rates or prices.
- 8. No alteration shall be made to the Bills of Quantities and no extra item shall be inserted. The Bidder shall satisfy himself that the Contract Sum arrived at by pricing the quantities and items given is sufficient compensation for constructing and maintaining the whole of the works in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 9. For the purpose of payment by Interim Certificate of "Lump Sum" items the Engineer may assess the portion of the work completed on the "Lump Sum" item and allow for payment of the portion of the "Lump Sum" he deems fair and reasonable. The total of all portions allowed shall not exceed the "Lump Sum". All interim payments shall be subject to the retention stipulated in the Contract Documents.
- 10. During construction, the unit rate established for an item in one Bill of Quantities may be used as a basis for establishing a unit rate for similar work in another Bill of Quantities which contains no such item. No additional cost will be considered for such an eventuality.
- 11. The Contractor will be provided by the Employer with all that land occupied by the Permanent Works including the specified working width for pipe laying and other permanent construction works. The costs of compensation and entry upon land (if any) for the specified working width will be paid by the Employer. All other costs for temporary access to the works or additional working space shall be borne by the Contractor.
- 12. All costs related to strict adherence to all Health and Safety regulations stipulated in the National Legislation of Kenya as well acceptable international good practices for both temporary and

permanent works pertaining to nature of the works under this Contract, shall be deemed included in the Contractor's rates.

- 13. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to arrange for the removal of, or alteration to existing services where necessitated by the Works. Costs incurred will be paid under relevant items in the Bills of Quantities.
- 14. Quantities for site clearance, stripping and spreading shall be based on plan area cleared or stripped.
- 15. The rates for excavation items shall be deemed to include inter alia for setting aside spoil for reuse in the Works or disposing to approved tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authority and approved by the Engineer, except where otherwise provided for in the Bills of Quantities.
- 16. Generally, excavation items are based on volumes for structures and on linear measurements for certain pipelines. The work may be covered by one or more items. The rates shall include as appropriate for:
 - a) Breaking through surfaces, handling different classes of material separately; excavation beyond the net plan area of the foundations, for safe working space and for battering or timbering etc.
 - b) Timbering
 - c) Dealing with water from any source whatsoever
 - d) Backfilling as specified
 - e) Disposal of surplus spoil

Measurement of volume of excavation for structures shall be calculated from the plan dimensions of the structure without allowance for working space.

The depth of excavation in pipe trenches will be measured from stripped ground level to the invert of the pipe. Measurement for other excavations will be to the size which is required to accommodate the permanent works. A Bidder shall accordingly allow in his prices for any amount of extra excavation, which may be necessary for safe working space to complete the work to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

Items are included for "Extra Over for Rock" on a volume basis and within the specified trench dimensions. The rates shall include for breaking out, mucking and disposal by method(s) approved by the Engineer and any other additional costs for other works or special methods adopted for excavation and disposal by the Contractor, encountered within measured excavation.

Different rock classifications are defined in the Specifications and have been billed separately. Rock shall be measured as a volume calculated from the thickness encountered within the plan area of a mass excavation, within the plan dimensions of a structure, or within the nominal width of a trench. The decision of the Engineer on the classification of rock encountered in excavation shall be final and binding. Note: Any excavation of murram in whatever form will be taken as common excavation.

Timbering left in excavations shall only be measured for payment where it is specified or ordered by the Engineer.

17. Excavation by mechanical equipment may not be possible in some area due to restricted wayleaves, slopes/topographical features, ground water from whatsoever source, existing structures, drains, roads, trees, fences, walls, etc. The Contractor's rates for pipe trench excavation shall be deemed to cover mechanical and/or manual excavation. No claim for restricted space or double haulage will be entertained.

The Contractor shall indemnify the Employer against all claims for damage which in opinion of the Engineer may be caused by Excavation. This includes reinstatement of road surfaces, drains, fences, wall, culverts, etc., all in accordance to relevant authority.

18. When the site of any particular item of the Works has been sufficiently cleared of trees, undergrowth etc. and before any excavation or filling has been carried out, the Contractor shall carry out a survey

under the Supervision of the Engineer's Representative to take, record and agree upon an adequate number of original ground levels. The data so obtained shall be used as a basis for the computation of excavation and filling and preparation of "As-Built" Drawings by the Contractor. If for whatever reason the Contractor commences excavation without taking levels, the Engineer's decision on the original ground levels to be used for computation will be final.

19. The volume of fill will be measured net to the finished levels as shown on drawings or as amended by the Engineer.

20. METHOD RELATED CHARGES

- a) In order that the Contractor may cover his cost in executing specific portions of work, where those costs are not properly attributable to the quality of permanent works to be executed, he may cover such costs in the Bills of Quantities in accordance with the following provisions.
- **b)** For the purpose of these charges the following words and expressions shall have the meaning hereby assigned to them.
 - i. 'Method Related Charge' means the sum for an item inserted in the Bills of Quantities by a Bidder in accordance with paragraph 20 c).
 - ii. 'Time Related Charge' means a Method Related Charge for work the cost of which is to be considered as proportional to the length of time taken to execute the work.
 - iii. 'Fixed Charge' means a Method Related Charge which is not a Time Related Charge.
- c) A Bidder may insert in the Bills of Quantities, in the Bill provided, such items for Method Related Charges as he may decide to cover items of work relating to his intended method of executing the works, the costs of which are not to be considered as proportional to the quantities, rates and prices for the other items.
- d) Each item for a Method Related Charge inserted by the Bidder shall be fully described so as to define precisely the extent of work covered and to identify the constructional resources (plant, equipment, etc.) to be used and particular items of permanent or temporary works to which the items relate. The description shall include the type of charge (Time Related or Fixed) and in the case of a Time Related Charge, shall include also the expected duration, and the rate of charge.
- e) The insertion by a Bidder of an item for a Method Related Charge in the Bills of Quantities shall not bind him to adopt the method stated in the description of the item. However, in the case of a Time Related Charge, where the method is changed, a revised rate of charge shall be used taking account of the revised execution period to give the same total charge, had the original method, time and charge rate been adhered to.
 - If the charge is a Fixed Charge then payment to the Contractor for such an item shall be in equal installments spread evenly throughout the duration of that part of the works which is the subject of the Fixed Charge.
- f) Method Related Charges shall not be admeasured but shall be deemed to be prices for the purpose of Clauses 36 of the Conditions of Contract and shall be paid in accordance with Clause 40.4 of the Conditions of Contract.
- g) In the event of the satisfactory execution of any part of the works which has been the subject of an item for a Method Related Charge using, whether in whole or in part, a method other than that described in the item, the Contractor shall nevertheless be entitled to payment of the Method Related Charge or the balance thereof, as the case may be, such instalments at such times and upon such events as may from time to time be agreed between the Engineer and the Contractor. In default of such agreement the Method Related Charge, or the balance then unpaid, shall be allowed to the Contractor by way of instalments in interim certificates at such times and upon such events as the Engineer shall decide.

The amount of Method Related Charge shall be neither increased nor decreased by reason of any change in method made by the Contractor, unless such change has been ordered by the Engineer, in which case the provisions of Clause 38 of the Conditions of Contract shall apply.

- 21. The rates for concrete shall include for fresh and hardened concrete tests prescribed in the Specifications including making and testing concrete cubes and forwarding the results to the Engineer. Testing to be carried out by a Test Laboratory approved by the Engineer. The Contactor shall maintain a written log of cubes prepared indicating date of testing and results achieved. The Contractor shall designate a qualified person for preparation and follow-up on cube tests in coordination with the Engineer / Engineer's Representative.
- 22. The rates for precast concrete paving shall include for all cutting, bedding, jointing and laying to falls.
- 23. The rates for precast concrete edging and kerbs shall include for formwork, concrete bed and backing, all cutting, jointing and laying.
- 24. All formwork must be cleaned and oiled prior to use. All exposed concrete edges shall have a 20 mm chamfer unless otherwise directed and costs deemed to be included in formwork rates. The formwork rates shall also be inclusive of all necessary box outs and cut outs for individual holes up to 1 square metre.

The rates for forming rebates in concrete walls etc. shall include for forming pockets for the fish tail fixing cleats where required.

Deductions from formwork quantities will be made for openings more than 1 square metre in area.

- 25. Formwork for upper surfaces inclined at 30 degrees or less to the horizontal is not measured and the cost of any such formwork used will be deemed to be included in the relevant concrete item rate.
- 26. Wrought formwork where specified will be measured to 150 mm below final ground levels.
- 27. Items required for Structural Joints and Construction Joints shown on drawings shall be paid for as per the rates in the Bills of Quantities; the rate for providing and fixing PVC water bar is deemed to be inclusive of all joints, overlaps, junctions, welding, etc. formwork not shown on drawings shall be deemed to be included in the unit rates for concrete work.
- 28. All rates and sums in the Bills of Quantities shall be in Kenya Shillings and Cents.
- 29. If possible a construction wayleave of up to 9m for the Transmission Mains and construction wayleave of up to 3m for Distribution Mains will generally be allowed. In the event the above mentioned wayleave widths are not available due to obstructions or restricted access, the Contractor will execute the works using suitable approved alternative methods. The costs for alternative methods are deemed to be covered by bid rates. No additional costs will be allowed.

Payment for site clearance will be based upon this width except that the Engineer reserves the right to restrict this width due to the presence of obstructions, roads, houses, footpaths, boundary walls, fences, trees and the like. Payment shall then be according to the actual area cleared. In case additional space is required this may be made available by the Contractor at his own cost.

No claim for additional space will be entertained by the Engineer. No claims for inconvenience and the like caused by obstruction will be entertained. The rates shall be deemed to include for reinstatement of fences, gates, etc.

- 30. All pipe diameters indicated in the Bills of Quantities and on Drawings are nominal. Fittings dimensions to suit size/type of pipes supplied by the Bidder and Bidder's rates are deemed to allow for this. No additional cost adjustment will be allowed.
- 31. Unless otherwise specified the method of measurement shall be in accordance with the Standard Method of Measurement of Civil Engineering Quantities (CESMM4) published by the Institution of Civil Engineers, London, 2012. In some cases variations to this method have been made to suit local practice. A Contractor shall be deemed to have priced the items accordingly and no claims

relating to variation from the method of measurement stated in these documents shall be considered.

- 32. Items for buildings, electrical and mechanical works are not described using CESMM3 for clarity purposes.
- 33. All quantities have been measured in Metric Units.
- 34. Explanation of abbreviations used in the Bills of Quantities are as follows:-

L.S.	-	Lump Sum
P.S.	-	Provisional Sum
P.C.	-	Prime Cost
E.O.	-	Extra Over
Avg.	-	Average
Max.	-	Maximum
Min.	-	Minimum
n.e.	-	Not Exceeding
Nr	-	Number
mm	-	Millimetre
m	-	Linear Metre
m^2	-	Square Metre
m^3	-	Cubic Metre
На.	-	Hectare
Drg.	-	Drawing
Kg.	-	Kilogramme
H.T.	-	High Tensile
M.S.	-	Mild Steel
B.L.	-	Bitumen Lined
Dia.	-	Diameter
E.C.	-	Epoxy Coated
E.L.	-	Epoxy Lined
S&S	-	Socket & Spigot
C.L.	-	Cement-mortar Lined
C.I.	-	Cast Iron
D.I.	-	Ductile Iron
uPVC	-	Unplasticised Polyvinyl Chloride
G.I.	-	Galvanised Iron
G.M.S.	-	Galvanised Mild Steel
P.E.H.	-	Palothene
PE	-	Polyethylene
Hr.	-	Hour
FE/Fe	-	Ferrous
MM	-	Man Months

- 35. The rates for metalwork shall include for bolts, nuts, washers and rag-bolts, fixing as specified or in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and rectifying as specified any parts of the painted, coated or galvanised surface that may be damaged either before or after erection.
- 36. The rates for fixing penstocks and flap valves etc. shall include for bedding and grouting, testing for water tightness, greasing all working parts and leaving in good working order; where the item includes supply, the rates shall also include for supplying drawings for approval before manufacture is commenced.

37. Concrete Works

a) Item : <u>Concrete</u>

Unit: m³ of each class

Concrete shall be measured by the cubic metre of each class calculated from the dimensions given on the drawings or as instructed by the Engineer.

No deduction shall be made in the measurement for:

- bolt holes, pockets, box outs and cast-in components provided that the volume of each is less than 0.15 cubic metres;
- ii) mortar beds, fillets, drip moulds, rebates, recesses, grooves, chamfers and the like of 100 mm total width or less;
- iii) reinforcement.

The rates for concrete shall include for the cost of:

- i) provision and transport of cement, aggregate and water;
- ii) admixtures and workability agents including submission of details unless otherwise specified;
- iii) batching, mixing, transporting, placing, compacting and curing;
- iv) class UF1 finish;
- v) laying to sloping surfaces not exceeding 15 degrees from the horizontal and laying to falls;
- vi) formwork to blinding concrete;
- vii) placing and compacting against excavated surfaces where required including any additional concrete to fill overbreak or working space;
- viii) complying with all the requirements of the Specifications.
- b) Item : <u>Blinding Concrete</u>

Unit: m³

Blinding concrete shall be measured by the square metre to specified thickness. No deduction shall be made for openings provided that the area of each is less than 0.5 square metres. Blinding concrete over hard material shall be measured as the volume used provided that the maximum thickness of 150 mm allowed for overbreak is not exceeded.

The rate for blinding concrete shall include for all costs itemised in Note 37(a) of this Preamble.

c) Item : <u>No Fines Concrete</u>

Unit: m³

No fines concrete shall be measured by the cubic metre calculated from the dimensions given on the drawings or as instructed by the Engineer.

The rate for no fines concrete shall include for all costs stated in Note 37(a) of this Preamble.

d) Item : <u>Unformed Surface Finishes</u>

Unit: m² of each class of finish

Unformed surface finishes shall be measured by the square metre from the dimensions given on the drawings or as instructed by the Engineer.

The rate for concrete in Notes 35(a), (b) and (c) shall include for class UF1 finish.

The rate for unformed surface finishes shall include for the cost of complying with Clause 410 of the Specification.

e) Item : <u>Formwork for Formed Surface Finishes</u>

Unit : m^2 of formwork for each class of finish for each range of inclinations

Except as stated below, formwork shall be measured by the square metre of formwork actually in contact with the finished face of the concrete. No deduction shall be made in the measurement for openings, pipes, ducts and the like, provided that the area of each is less than 0.50 square metres. Unless otherwise stated, if the volume or area of concrete has not been deducted when measuring the concrete in accordance with Notes 37(a), (b) and (c), formwork to form or box out the void shall not be measured.

Formwork less than 300 mm high to edges of slabs shall be measured by the linear metre in accordance with Note 37(f) of this Preamble.

Inclined formwork shall be measured in accordance with the following classifications:

i) Horizontal: 85 to 90 degrees inclination from vertical

ii) Sloping: 10 to 85 degrees inclination from verticaliii) Battered: 0 to 10 degrees inclination from vertical

iv) Vertical: 0 degrees

v) Sloping upper surfaces inclined at more than 15 degrees from the horizontal

Formwork required for blinding concrete, to form construction joints and shear keys for future concrete and other construction surfaces shall not be measured and the costs shall be included in the rates for other work.

Formwork to contraction and expansion joints shall be measured by the square metre on one face only. The rates shall include for the costs stated below and for forming recesses for sealant and channels for grout.

The rates for formwork shall include for the cost of submission of details, providing and transporting all materials for formwork and falsework, erection including provision of supports, fillets and chamfers 75 mm and less in width, bolts, ties, fixings, cutting to waste, drilling or notching the formwork for reinforcement where required, working around pipes, ducts, conduits and waterstops, temporary openings, cleaning, dressing, stripping, filling bolt holes and any remedial work and for complying with all the requirements of the Specifications.

f) Item : Formwork to Edges of Slabs

Unit: m of each class of finish

Formwork less than 300mm high to edges of slabs shall be measured by the linear metre.

The rate shall include for the costs stated in Note 37 (e) of this Preamble.

g) Item : <u>Waterstops</u>

Unit: m of each type

Waterstops shall be measured by the metre run of each type.

The rate for waterstops shall include for the provision, installation, jointing, any sealants required at the face of the concrete and for placing and compacting concrete around the waterstop.

h) Item : Mortar

Unit: m²

Mortar used for bedding base plates and the like shall be measured by square metre as the area of the base plate at the specified nominal thickness of bedding.

Mortar used in filling bolts pockets and the like shall not be measured separately and the costs shall be included in the rates for the bolts.

The rates for mortar shall include for the cost of providing and placing the mortar and of complying with all the requirements of the Specifications.

i) Item : Admixture Workability and Hardening Agents

Unit : As specified in the Special Specification

Where required by the Special Specification admixtures, workability and hardening agents shall be measured and paid for in accordance with the Special Specification.

j) Item : Reinforcement

Unit : Kilograms or Tonnes

Steel fabric reinforcement shall be measured in accordance with Note 37(k) of this Preamble.

Steel (plain and deformed bars) reinforcement shall be measured by the tonne and shall be the calculated weight of the steel required including splice lengths shown on the drawings. No allowance shall be made in the measurement for rolling margins or cutting waste. The density of steel shall be taken as 7850 kilogrammes per cubic metre.

The rates for reinforcement shall include for cost of providing, cutting to length, splice lengths additional to those shown on the drawings, laps, bending, hooking, waste incurred by cutting, cleaning, spacer blocks, provision and fixing of chairs or other types of supports, welding, fixing the reinforcement in position including the provision of wire or other material for supporting and tying the reinforcement in place, being reinforcement aside temporarily and straightening, placing and compacting concrete around reinforcement and for complying with all the requirements of the Specifications.

k) Item: Fabric Reinforcement

Unit: m² of each type

Steel fabric reinforcement shall be measured by the square metre and shall be the calculated area excluding any allowance for laps.

The rate for steel fabric reinforcement shall include for the costs stated in Note 37(j) of this Preamble.

Sewers, Drains and Pipelines

- 38. The rates for pipes, pipework and specials shall include for supply of all materials, setting of concrete blocks and hardwood wedges where specified, providing any temporary support that may be necessary, preparing ends of pipes for jointing and all labour in jointing, protection to detachable joints, cleaning pipelines and rectifying as specified any damage to surface coating. The rates shall also include for all cutting of pipes consequent upon structures, specials and fittings being constructed in the designated positions.
- 39. The rates for concrete surround, bed and haunching to pipes, concrete in anchor blocks to pipes, and to gully pots shall include for all formwork required and for any additional concrete the Contractor may place for his own convenience or by reason of the method of carrying out the work.

- 40. <u>Pipes, Fittings and Valves Specifications are given in Volume II, Section 1 General Specifications and Particular Specifications or in applicable International Standards referred to SRNs listed in Volume II, Section 2:</u>
 - a) uPVC pipes and fittings as specified
 - b) Steel pipes and fittings as specified
 - c) Ductile Iron (DI) pipes and fittings as specified
 - d) Galvanised Iron (GI) pipes and fittings to SRN 203
 - e) Flexible joint spigot and socket precast concrete (PVC) pipes to SRN 409

Rigid joint spigot and socket pcc pipes to SRN 409

Ogee joint pcc pipes to SRN 407

- f) All flanges as specified
- g) Gate valves as specified
- h) Double orifice air valves as specified

Single large orifice air valves as specified

Single small orifice air valves as specified

- i) Fire hydrants to SRN 509
- j) Butterfly valves as specified
- k) Ball float valves as specified
- I) All pipe, fittings and valve diameters indicated are nominal diameters
- m) Supply of pipes and fittings to include for cost of supply of all jointing materials like bolts, nuts, washers, gaskets, packings, jointing glue, etc.
- n) uPVC pipes to be supplied complete with compression joints
- o) Galvanised Iron pipes to be with threaded coupling joints, or as specified
- p) Precast concrete ogee pipes to be complete with all jointing materials

Shop Drawings

41. Detailed shop drawings, in triplicate, to be provided for all items where ferrous pipework, fittings and any metalwork i.e. penstocks, ladders etc., are indicated to be installed as outlined in the bills of quantities and drawings. These drawings to be submitted well in advance of ordering of the above materials and the billed rates are deemed to include for provision of these drawings, samples where requested, and inspection where fabricated by the Engineer or his Representative.

Prime Cost Items

- 42. Attendance on nominated Sub-Contractors shall include for all or any of the following as appropriate labour, materials and plant required for taking delivery, carting, storing, hoisting and builder's work entailed in fixing, erecting and installing as specified or in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions and all overheads and profits.
- 43. When, in the opinion of the Engineer, it is reasonable to expect the Contractor to price the attendance item it will be so included in the Bills of Quantities. In all other cases it will form the subject of a

Provisional Sum to be expended on a Dayworks basis.

- Profit shall include for establishment charges, profit and any other costs not included in the attendance item.
- 45. The rates for the supply of any mechanical and electrical equipment shall include for the submission of factory test results.
- 46. Definitions of Terms used in Bill of Quantities
 - a) 'Provide' shall mean all costs to cover purchase of materials in good condition, services for transaction with the supplier, supervision, transport to site of works all charges for rental, consumptions, overheads and profits throughout the Contract. It shall also include for all maintenance, insurance and handling and storage whenever applicable.
 - b) 'Excavate for' shall mean handling of any material from its incumbent position intended for specified work shown in the drawings or directed by the Project Manager and backfilling and compacting part of material after laying of pipes or erection of structures, and cart away remaining to tips to be provided by the Contractor. The cost for this work shall include all survey, supervision, labour, tools, machinery, protection of work, pumping, insurances and overheads and profits.
 - c) **'Laying'** shall cover all work necessary for placing an object or material to true line and level specified in a drawing or as directed by the Engineer.
 - d) 'Jointing' shall mean process of fixing specified material, pipes, fittings and specials together using appropriate tools, material, labour and machinery. It should cover for all work necessary to provide matching of opposite parts in size, shape and position indicated and clamps, seatings and holders to hold firmly.
 - e) 'Testing' shall mean provision of all materials, apparatus, labour, machinery, charges for the media or chemical to be used and their transport, repair of object to be tested if required, re-testing, excavation of any part for visual inspection, erection of any type all until the object has been certified as having passed the required test satisfactorily.
 - f) 'Install' shall include for all work requirements stipulated for "laying" and "jointing". It will cover all expenses for the provision of labour, materials, removal from stores, complete erection, installation, supervision, site testing and commissioning as per the Specifications.
- 47. The unit rates for the various items listed in the BOQ shall include, except insofar as it is otherwise provided under the Contract, all labour, construction equipment, materials, erection, maintenance, supervision, insurances etc. set forth or implied in the Contract. These are all deemed to include all allowances for waste or surplus of any kind, which are not subject to measurement.
- 48. The rates to be indicated in the Bills of Quantities shall be inclusive of all applicable Government duties and taxes except Value Added Tax (VAT). The VAT amount shall be added to the Overall Bills Total in the Grand Summary. The Grand Total from the Grand Summary (inclusive of VAT) shall be carried to the Letter of Bid.

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS A - GENERAL ITEMS Contractual Requirements				
A110.1	Perfomance Security	Item	L.S		
A110.2	Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Performance Security.	Item	L.S		
A120.1	Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment	Item	L.S		
A120.2	Insurance for Contractor's Personnel	Item	L.S		
A120.3	Insurance against Injury to Third Party Persons and Damage to Property.	Item	L.S		
	Specified Requirements				
A211	Maintenance and Attendance to the Resident Engineer's Office as per Clause 703 of Particular Specifications including supply of provisions and consumables (stationery, refreshments, cleaning materials, etc) and payment of bills (water, electricity, day and night security, etc).		28		
A221	Provide temporary Supervision Vehicles for use by Resident Engineer's Staff whilst the Project Vehicles under items A422.1 and A422.2 are being procured. The temporary vehicles to be of equivalent specifications to the Vehicles being procured.		10,000		
A233.1	Provision of Survey Equipment for sole use by the Resident Engineer for the duration of the Contract (2Nr Total Stations, 2Nr Automatic Levels, 4Nr Metric Levelling Staffs, 15Nr 3m Ranging Rods and other equipment as per Specifications). All equipment shall be new and with carry cases, tripods, reflectors as necessary. All manuals in English Language and metric units. Equipment to revert to Contractor at the end of the Contract.		28		
A233.2	Maintenance of Survey Equipment provided above.	month	28		-
A233.3	Test Running of the Works: Contractor to Test-run the newly constructed facilities for a period of 12 weeks upon completion of the Works. Test Running to be carried out in close liaison with the Water Services Provider's Staff. The Contractor to allow for 'on job' training of Operation and Maintenance Staff, Tools, etc, and ensure that the operations are carried out full time on a 24 hour basis.		L.S		-
A233.4	Allow for provision of As-Built Drawings in accordance with Clause 501 of Particular Specifications.	Item	L.S		
A233.5	Allow for provision of Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manuals in accordance with Clause 502 of Particular Specifications.		L.S		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	<u></u>			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Attendance upon Resident Engineer's Staff				
A241	Staff for Employer / Engineer (salaries for staff under this item will be based on the latest Job Group Salary Scales for the Government of Kenya's Civil Service including Basic pay, overtime, hardship allowance, house allowance, per diems and other allowances). The Bidder should allow for annual increments in his rates. The rates for the following staff shall consider Kwale County as a primary place of work (Chap. 0110, Clause 8.2.1)				
A241.1	Drivers - 6Nr for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'J')	ММ	168		
A241.2	Secretary - 1Nr for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'N')	ММ	28		
A241.3	Office Assistant - 1Nr. for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'H')	ММ	28		
A242.1	Surveyors - 2Nr. for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'P')	ММ	56		
A242.2	Chainmen - 2Nr. for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'G')	ММ	56		
A242.3	ACAD Technician - 1Nr. for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'M')	ММ	28		
A242.4	Sociologists - 2Nr. for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'P')	ММ	56		
A242.5	Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Officer - 1Nr. for 28 months (Government of Kenya Job Group 'P')	MM	28		
	Testing of Materials and Works				
A250.1	Allow for testing of materials as per Specifications	Item	L.S		
A260.1	Allow for testing of the Works as per Specifications	Item	L.S		
	Project Signboards				
A279	Provision, fixing, maintaining and removal of Project Signboards.	Nr	4		
	Surveying and Setting Out				
	Allow for Establishment of Level Datum, Topographical Survey, preparation of an updated Layout Plans with Contours at 1m interval, submission of Survey Drawings to the Resident Engineer and Setting Out of proposed Structures and Pipelines.				
A290.1	Water Storage Reservoir Site	ha	5		
A290.2	Pipeline Routes	m	35,000		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEE	Γ			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Contractor's Camps, Offices, Stores, etc.				
A310	Establish, maintain and remove Contractor's Camp(s) including offices, stores, laboratories, cabins, canteens etc as the Contractor may require and all services inclusing electricity, water, security, transport, staff welfare etc (NB-The Employer has no land available for these Contractor's facilities. Identification and aquisition of suitable locations will be responsibility of the Contractor subject to the Engineer's Approval).		L.S		
A4	Provisional Sums				
A41	<u>Daywork</u>				
A410.1	Provisional Sum for undertaking works under the Dayworks Bill as instructed by the Engineer (<i>Bidder to insert total of Daywork Bill from the Dayworks Summary</i>).	Item	P.S		
A410.2	% Adjustment to the provisional sum for Item A410.1	%			
A421	Furnishing and Equiping of the Chief Resident Engineer's Office				
	Note: The Administration Building to be constructed at the Dongo Kundu Reservoir Site will be used as the Chief Resident Engineer's Office for the duration of the Construction and Defects Liability Period.				
A421.1	Provisional Sum for provision of Rented or Pre-fab Offices for Chief Resident Engineer's Staff during the first 16 Weeks of the Contract Period as per Clause 701 of the Particular Specifications. Offices to include 3 Nr Offices, Conference Room, Tea Room, W.C and Parking Space for at least 3 Nr Vehicles. Include for provision of 24 hour security, water, sewerage, electricity, etc. Note: If Construction of the Adminstration Building under Bill No. 4.3 is delayed beyond the first 16 weeks of the Contract Period, the Contractor shall be liable to provide rented or Pre-fab offices for any additional period at his own cost	Item	P.S		1,500,000.00
A421.2	Provisional Sum for furnishing and equiping the R.E's offices to include furniture, computers, digital cameras, printers etc. (List of items to be provided by the Resident Engineer).	Item	P.S		5,000,000.00
A421.3	% Adjustment to the provisional sum for Item A421.1 and A421.2	%	6,500,000.00		
A422	Project Supervision Vehicles				
A422.1	Provisional Sum for purchase of 4Nr. Double Cabin Pick-up Vehicles (2800cc) for use by Resident Engineer's Staff. Specifications to be approved by the Engineer. Vehicles to revert to the Employer at the end of the Contract.		P.S		34,000,000.00
A422.2	Provisional Sum for purchase of 2Nr Station Wagon Vehicles (2800cc) for use by the Chief Resident Engineer (1Nr) and by the Engineer / Employer (1Nr). Vehicles to revert to the Employer on at the end of the Contract.		P.S		20,000,000.00
A422.3	Provisional Sum for provision of Comprehensive Insurance Cover for the Project Vehicles above for 3 years up to end of Defects Liability Period.	Item	P.S		6,500,000.00
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
A422.4	Provisional Sum for Running and Maintenance costs of the Project Vehicles including costs of transfer to the Employer at the end of the Contract.	Item	P.S		15,000,000.00
A422.5	% Adjustment to the provisional sum for Items A422.1 to A422.4	%	75,500,000.00		
A423	Accomodation for the Supervision Staff				
A423.1	Provisional Sum for provision of fully furnished rented accomodation for the Chief Resident Engineer and his Staff, including provision of water, electricity, security, etc.			22,500,000.00	
A423.2	% Adjustment to the provisional sum for Item A423.1	%	22,500,000.00		
A429	Other Provisional Sums				
A429.1	Provisional Sum for fees requested by various authorities, road agencies, etc for permits and relocation of services.	Item	P.S		10,000,000.00
A429.2	% Adjustment to the provisional sum for Item A429.1	%	10,000,000.00		
A429.3	Provisional Sum for communication costs (telephone, email, postal, courier services, etc) for the Resident Engineer's Office and Staff.	Item	P.S		3,000,000.00
A429.4	% Adjustment to the provisional sum for Item A429.3	%	3,000,000.00		
A429.5	Provisional Sum for Inspection and Witness Testing of Pipes, Fittings and other Equipment at manufacturer's premises by the Employer, Engineer and their representatives to be expended as directed by the Engineer.		P.S		5,000,000.00
A429.6	Provisional Sum for Third Party Inspection of Pipes, Fittings, Equipment, etc. during Manufacture and Construction Works to be expended as directed by the Engineer.	Item	P.S		2,000,000.00
A429.7	% Adjustment to the provisional sum Items A429.5 and A429.6	%	7,000,000.00		
A429.8	Provisional Sum for Training of the Employer's Staff during Construction, Testing and Commissioning of the Works.	Item	P.S		1,000,000.00
A429.9	Provisional Sum to cover costs for Employer's Counterpart Staff assigned to the Project.	Item	P.S		10,000,000.00
A429.10	Provisional Sum to be spent for other Project related expenses as directed by the Engineer / Employer.	Item	P.S		5,000,000.00
A429.11	% Adjustment to the provisional sum Items A429.8 to A429.10	%	16,000,000.00		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	Γ			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	AMOUNT
No.				(Kshs)	(Kshs)
А9	Method Related Charges, Other Items, Works / Obligations				
A911	In addition to the items listed above, tenderer may insert such items as he may require to cover items of work relating to his intended method of executing the works, other obligations as mentioned in the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, etc., costs of which are not to be considered as allowed in the rates and prices for the other items. Full descrition of such Items and Works should be made. If no separate charge is made hereunder, the rates in the Bills of Quantities will be deemed as covering expenses for all such Items and Works. (Tenderer can include additional sheets of paper if				
	necessary)				
i)					
ii)					
iii)					
iv)					
ESHS	Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule				
ESHS 1	Resources allocated to ESHS Management (Ref. Clause 4 of ESHS Specifications).	Item	L.S		
ESHS 2	Drafting and updating the ESHS Documentation, Reporting, Inspections (Ref. Clauses 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7and 9 of ESHS Specifications). [Note: Cost of ESHS 1 should exclude all or part of the costs of these Tasks]		L.S		
ESHS 3	Implementation of the Health and Safety Plan: Meetings, health care centre, medical check-ups, emergencies and evacuations, safety protective equipment, hygiene (Ref. Clauses 1, 9, 21 to 25, 27 to 35, 37 and 38 of ESHS Specifications). [Note: Cost of ESHS 1 should exclude all or part of the costs of these Tasks]		L.S		
ESHS 4	Accommodation, Drinking Water, Meals and Transportation of Staff. (Ref. Clauses 36, 40 and 41 of ESHS Specifications). [Note: The Bidder shall detail the financial conditions of the supply of accommodation, meals and transport to its staff. The cost for "Site Mobilization" should exclude all or part of the costs of these Tasks]				
ESHS 4.1	Accommodation	Month	24		
	Meals	Month	24		
ESHS 4.3	Transport	Month	24		
	DAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION CLIEF				
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	I			<u> </u>

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
ESHS 5	Training and Local Recruitment Management Costs (Ref. Clauses 8 and 39 of ESHS Specifications) [Note: Cost of ESHS 1 should exclude all or part of the costs of these Tasks]	Item	L.S		
ESHS 6	Protection of Adjacent Areas, Biodiversity, Prevention of Erosion and Wastewater Management (Ref. Clauses 10, 11, 12, 17 and 18 of ESHS Specifications).	Item	L.S		
ESHS 7	Traffic, Noise and Atmospheric Emissions Management, Land Take (Ref. Clauses 13, 14, 42, 43 and 44 of ESHS Specifications).	Item	L.S		
ESHS 8	Waste Management (Ref. Clause 15 of ESHS Specifications)	Item	L.S		
ESHS 9	Vegetation Clearing and Site Rehabilitation (Ref. Clauses 16, 19 and 20 of ESHS Specifications). [Note: The cost for "Site Mobilization" should exclude all or part of the costs associated to these Tasks]	Item	L.S		
Security	Security Cost Schedule				
Security 1	Security Organisation (Ref. Security Specifications, Article 4.1).	Item	L.S		
Security 2	Travel within the country and to the relevant area (Ref. Security Specifications, Article 4.2).	Item	L.S		
Security 3	Accommodation during assignments (Ref. Security Specifications, Article 4.3).	Item	L.S		
Security 4	Accommodation and security on project sites and worksites (Ref. Security Specifications, Article 4.4).	Item	L.S		
Security 5	Communication (Ref. Security Specifications, Article 4.5).	Item	L.S		
Other	This price may remunerate all the other services described in Articles 1 to 3 of the Security Specifications (Ref. Security Specifications, Articles 1 to 3, and 5 to 6).	Item	L.S		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	<u> </u>			

BILL No. 1 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (SECTION 1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 6	
Page Total, Page 2 of 6	
Page Total, Page 3 of 6	
Page Total, Page 4 of 6	
Page Total, Page 5 of 6	
Page Total, Page 6 of 6	
Bill Total (Exclusive of Value Added Tax - VAT) carried to the Bills of Quantities Grand Summary	

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (KShs.)	AMOUNT (KShs.)
1	<u>LABOUR</u>				
	The rates inserted herein should include for all costs such as insurance, travelling time, overtime, accommodation, use and maintenance of small tools of trade and supervision. Only time engaged upon work will be paid for:				
1.1	Unskilled Labourer	Hrs	100		
1.2	Timberman	Hrs	50		
1.3	Stone Mason	Hrs	100		
1.4	Carpenter	Hrs	50		
1.5	Concreter	Hrs	50		
1.6	Blaster (Certified)	Hrs	10		
1.7	Plant Operator	Hrs	100		
1.8	Pipe Fitter	Hrs	100		
1.9	Electrician	Hrs	100		
1.10	Painter	Hrs	10		
1.11	Welder	Hrs	100		
1.12	Surveyor	Hrs	50		
1.13	Chainman	Hrs	50		
1.14	Foreman	Hrs	100		
1.15	Watchman (including use of firewood, lights, day, night, Sunday and Public Holiday watching)	Hrs	50		
	OR DAYWORK: LABOUR CARRIED FORWARD TO DAYWORK SU				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	AMOUNT
No.				(KShs.)	(KShs.)
2	PLANT				
	The rates inserted herein should include for all operational and maintenance costs, fuel, oil, grease, operators, turnboys and supervision. Only the time actually employed on works will be paid for and the rates should include for idle, travelling and overtime				
2.1	Compressor (3.0 m ³ /minute)	Hrs	100		
2.2	Generator (15 KVA)	Hrs	100		
2.3	Backhoe Excavator	Hrs	100		
2.4	Excavator (0.75m ³ bucket) with 1.5 Tonne Hammer	Hrs	100		
2.5	Concrete Vibrator (Petrol or Diesel) - 40mm	Hrs	100		
2.6	Concrete Mixer - 1.0m ³	Hrs	100		
2.7	Dumper 0.75m ³	Hrs	50		
2.8	D7 Bulldozer	Hrs	100		
2.9	Tandem 3 wheels roller. Dead weight 9 tonnes	Hrs	50		
2.10	Mobile Crane - 30T	Hrs	100		
2.11	5 Tonne Lorry (Tipper)	Hrs	50		
2.12	10 Tonne Lorry (Tipper)	Hrs	50		
2.13	Portable water pump 100mm diameter (inclusive of hoses, couplings, etc.)	Hrs	50		
2.14	Oxy-Acetylene cutting and welding set, including oxygen and acetylene	Hrs	20		
2.15	Electric welding set including electrodes	Hrs	10		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (KShs.)	AMOUNT (KShs.)
3	MATERIALS				
	All materials are to comply with the specifications. The rates inserted herein are to include for delivery to site, storage and handling.				
3.1	Ordinary Portland Cement	Tonne	1		
3.2	Mild steel (any size from 8mm to 25mm dia.)	Kg	50		
3.3	High tensile steel (any size from 8mm to 25mm dia.)	Kg	50		
3.4	Fine aggregate for concrete	m ³	20		
3.5	Coarse aggregate for concrete	m ³	20		
3.6	Shuttering timber	m ²	10		
3.7	Hardcore	m ³	50		
3.8	Murram / Gravel	m ³	50		
3.9	150mm thick Stone / Concrete Blocks	Nr	500		
3.10	225mm thick Stone / Concrete Blocks	m	500		
3.11	300mm dia. Concrete Ogee Pipe	m	20		
3.12	Concrete Class 15/20	m ³	10		
3.13	Concrete Class 20/20	m ³	10		
3.14	Concrete Class 25/20	m ³	10		

DAYWORK SUMMARY

Descripti	Description				
1	Total For Daywork: Labour				
2	Total For Daywork: Plant				
3	Total for Daywork: Materials				
Total f	Total for Daywork (Provisional Sum) carried to Bill No. 1 (Preliminaries and General), Item No. A410.1				

LOT 1; CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

IMPORTANT:

THE BIDDER TO QUOTE FOR ANY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING OPTIONS FOR PIPES AND FITTINGS MATERIALS AND JOINTING. THE SELECTED OPTION TO BE TICKED IN THE SPACE PROVIDED.

SCADA ITEMS ARE NOT INCLUDED - TO BE PROVIDED LATER BY ARTELIA

OPTION	DESCRIPTION	INDICATE SELECTED OPTION BY TICKING ONE BOX BELOW
OPTION 1	<u>Ductile Iron</u> Socket and Spigot Pipes and Fittings with <u>Standard Push-On</u> <u>Joints</u> as specified	
OPTION 2	Steel Pipes and Fittings with provision for Field Butt Welded Joints as specified.	

ONLY ONE OPTION SHOULD BE SELECTED (TICK ONLY ONE BOX)

IF NONE OR BOTH BOXES ARE TICKED, THE BID WILL BE CONSIDERED UNRESPONSIVE AND REJECTED

Bill No. 2 - Instruction to Bidders

Page 1 of 1

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.1 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	NOTES:				
1.	THIS BILL ONLY COVERS RATES FOR PROCUREMENT OF PIPES AND FITTINGS, TRANSPORT TO CONTRACTOR'S SITE STORE AND STORAGE. ALL RATES SHALL INCLUDE SUPPLY OF ALL REQUIRED JOINTING MATERIALS, BOLTS,				
2.	NUTS, GASKETS, ETC. RATES FOR TRANSPORT FROM SITE STORE AND				
	INSTALLATION TO BE INCLUDED IN BILL No. 2.2.				
3.	BIDDER TO PRICE EITHER FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS WITH PROVISION FOR FIELD BUTT-WELDED JOINTS AS SPECIFIED OR DUCTILE IRON SOCKET AND SPIGOT PIPES AND FITTINGS WITH STANDARD PUSH-ON JOINTS AS SPECIFIED				
4.	ALL RATES TO BE INCLUSIVE OF RELEVANT GOVERNMENT OF KENYA DUTIES AND TAXES, EXCEPT VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) WHICH IS TO BE ADDED SEPARATELY IN THE GRAND SUMMARY.				
5.	ALL PIPES AND FITTINGS TO PRESSURE RATING AS INDICATED FOR EACH ITEM UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED				
6.	FOR STEEL PIPELINES, STEEL GRADE AND THICKNESS AS SPECIFIED				
7.	PIPELINE EXTERNAL COATING AND INTERNAL LINING AS SPECIFIED FOR THE SELECTED PIPELINE MATERIAL				
8.	BIDDERS QUOTING FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS TO PRICE FOR SERIES X ITEMS : OTHER PRICES FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS				
9.	IN VIEW OF THE LARGE PIPE DIAMETERS INVOLVED, BIDDERS TO ALLOW FOR REINFORCEMENT OF FITTINGS AS MAYBE REQUIRED, ALL AS PER THE AWWA MANUAL OF WATER SUPPLY PRACTICES (AWWA M11); REINFORCEMENT OF PIPE FITTINGS EITHER BY COLLAR PLATE, WRAPPER PLATE OR BY CROTCH-PLATE, AS MAY BE REQUIRED. BIDDER TO INCLUDE RATE FOR REINFORCEMENT OF FITTINGS IN THEIR RATES FOR RESPECTIVE FITTINGS				
	CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES				
14	Ductile Iron Pipes or Steel Pipes; Joints as specified				
	Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints (class 25, cement mortar lining, zinc-aluminium coating) OR Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-Welded Joints (minimum yield strength 290 Mpa, minimum wall thickness 8.8mm, epoxy lining, 3-layer polyethylene coating)				
I45	DN 1000 mm	m	3,075		
	TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 1 of 4 Bill No. 2.1

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.1 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
15	High Density Polyethylene Pipes (HDPE)				
	Butt-fusion weld jointed HDPE Pipes - PN 16				
l51	Nominal Bore 110 mm (provisional length) for Chamber Drainage	m	200		
152	Nominal Bore 225 mm (provisional length) for Washout Drainage	m	500		
	CLASS J: PIPE WORK - FITTINGS AND VALVES				
J3	Ductile Iron Fittings or Steel Fittings; Joints as specified				
J31	Bends				
J311	Nominal Bore 200mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends OR Steel Socket and Spigot Bends				
J311.1	90° DN 200, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	10		
J315	Nominal Bore 1000mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel plain ended Bends with provision for field butt-welded Joints				
J315.1	11.25° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	42		
J315.2	22.5° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	9		
J315.3	30° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	2		
J32	Junctions and Branches				
	All Flanged Tee				
J325	Nominal Bore 1000mm				
J325.1.1	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves within Line Valve Chambers	Nr	2		
J325.1.2	DN 1000 x DN 800, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves	Nr	12		
J325.1.3	DN 1000 x DN 1000, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for offtakes	Nr	2		
	All Flanged Level Invert Tee				
J325.2.1	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Washouts	Nr	11		
J34	Ferrous Couplings				
J341.1	DN 200, PN 16 - Stepped Coupling	Nr	11		
J345.1	DN 1000, PN 16 - Straight Coupling (Provisional)	Nr	3		
J35	Ferrous Flange Adaptor				
J351.1	DN 200 PN 16	Nr	11		
J355.1	DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	1		
J38	Straight Specials Plain Ended Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J381.1	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long (Provisional)	Nr	5		
	Plain Ended Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J381.2	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	11		
PAGE	TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET	1	1		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.1 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Double Flanged Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J385.1	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	12		
J385.2	DN 1000, PN 16, 6m long	Nr	9		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes without Puddle Flanges		_		
J385.3	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	4		
J385.4	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	21		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J385.5	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	23		
	Double Flanged Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J385.6	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
	Special Fittings				
J381.3	DN 200, PN 16, special double flanged pipe 325mm long with flange to suit 800mm dia. tee on one end and 200mm dia flange on the other end as per Dwg No. M430/SD/02 (Detail 1).	Nr	12		
J385.7	DN 1000 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 307mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	2		
J39	Ferrous Blank Flange				
J395.1	DN 1000 PN 16	Nr	1		
J8	Valves and Penstocks				
J81	Flanged Gate Valve				
J811.1	DN 200, PN 16, with handwheel (Isolating Valve for Air Valves)	Nr	12		
J811.2	DN 200, PN 16, with Extension Spindle, length n.e. 3.0m without handwheel (for washouts)	Nr	11		
J84	Flanged Butterfly Valve complete with Gear Mechanism designed to slow down flow reduction at end of closure as specified and Hand Wheel as specified				
J845.1	DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	1		
J86	Air Valve				
J861.1	Flanged Double Acting Non-Slam (Anti-Surge) Air Valve (DAV) as specified				
J861.1	DN 200, PN 16	Nr	12		

Bill No. 2.1

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.1 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS X: OTHER COSTS FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES & FITTINGS				
	Note: This item is only to be priced if the Bidder has quoted for Ductile Iron Pipes & Fittings. Bidders quoting for Steel Pipes and Fittings should not price this item.				
	Additional protection for Ductile Iron Pipes and Fittings in areas of high corrosivity				
X990.1	Carry out Field Tests and Analysis to confirm the specified external coating of Ductile Iron Pipes and Fittings or propose an alternative if required at particular locations	m	3075		
	Ductile Iron Pipes and Bends with Self-Anchored Joints				
X999	Extra-over cost on top of Items I4 and J31 for the supply of Ductile Iron Pipes and Bends with Self-Anchored Joints				
X999.1	DN 1000mm C25 Ductile Iron pipes with Self-Anchored Joints	m	100		
X991.2	DN 1000mm C25 Ductile Iron bends with Self-Anchored Joints	Nr	5		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 4 of 4 Bill No. 2.1

BILL No. 2.1 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1:CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.1 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 4	
Page Total, Page 2 of 4	
Page Total, Page 3 of 4	
Page Total, Page 4 of 4	
Bill No. 2.1 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary Sheet	

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	NOTES:				
1.	The Mwache Twin Trunk Main traverses through a number of valleys along its entire alignment. A significant section of the pipeline is to be constructed within the Mwache Forest, characterized by a dense thicket and steep cross-fall slopes. The pipeline in this section is to be laid between the Mwache River and the Standard Gauge Railway, with limited motorized acccess due to the steep topography with cross slopes > 1:1 at some sections. The Twin Trunk Main has been designed as a Twin pipeline with the two pipelines to be laid adjacent to each other for the entire length. The Contractors Rates should allow for any specific measures necessary to deal with the terrain, provision of access roads to work sites, liason with the relevant authorities and local residents, including payment of any required Statutory charges that may be levied to the Contractor, etc. The costs for compliance with specific requirements for carrying out the levies shall be deemed to be included in the Contractor's rates. The Contractor will be required to submit a Method Statement for execution of works under these specific conditions for approval prior to execution of the works. These include, but are not limited to the following; i) No blasting will be permitted ii) The contractor to maintain uninterrupted continuity of Water Supply in existing Mains where applicable iii) Pedestrians and Vehicular access to individual Shops/ Plots, Houses, etc. to be maintained at all times. Where necessary, alternative temporary access to be availed iv) Safety hoarding, lighting, bands, warning signs, etc. to be				
2.	maintained at all times. v) Immediate Reinstatement and Stabilization of Slopes upon laving of the Pineline The proposed works are within the Coastal Region, generally charactyerized by a corrosive environment and soils. Bidders quoting for Steel Pipes and Fittings shall be required to price for Cathodic Protection of the entire Transmission Pipeline (Item X995). Installation of the Cathodic Protection System to be carried out by a certified approved Specialized Sub-Contractor.				
3.	All Rates to include for Government of Kenya Duties and Taxes, Except Value Added Tax (VAT).				
4.	Value Added Tax (VAT) to be added separately in the Grand Summary.				
	CLASS A: GENERAL ITEM				
A260	Testing of works				
	Pipeline Testing and Commissioning, including provision of all Equipment, Materials and works necessary for Testing, such as but not limited to thrust blocks, anchor blocks, provision, transportation and use of water, requisite pipe fittings, etc., successful testing to specified pressure and safe disposal of used water.				
	NOTE: Any additional fittings that may be neccecitated by the Contractor's Methodology for testing shall be supplied and installed at the Contractor's own cost.				

Page 1 of 17 Bill No. 2.2

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
A260.1	DN 1000mm	m	3,075		
	Disinfection of Pipe lines: Flushing with clear water, filling with water containing 0.05 g/l calcium hypochlorite, left for 24 hours. This includes supply of all necessary equipment, materials, chemicals and water, measurement of residual chlorine, all as specified and safe disposal of disinfecting water to Engineer's approval.				
A260.2	DN 1000 Pipeline	m	3,075		
А3	Method Related Charges				
A35	Temporary Works				
A35.1	Working within available limited wayleave, include costs for double / multiple handling of excavated materials if required, as well as provision of alternative access to private property during execution of the works.	Item	L.S		
A35.2	Working within marshy areas with weak soil formation	Item	L.S		
A35.3	Keeping trenches free of excessive groundwater, seepage or water from whatever source	Item	L.S		
A35.4	Liaison, facilitation with local residents	Item	P.S	5,000,000.00	5,000,000.00
A35.5	Allow for carrying out Pilot Excavation, exposing and identification of existing UNDERGROUND SERVICES (water lines, sewerlines, storm water drains, telephone/electricity ducts, fibre optic cables, etc.) prior to setting out and excavation of the pipeline where applicable. Pilot excavation n.e. 3m depth on approx 5m wide corridor, estimate No. of pilot holes along the Pipeline route is 50Nr.	Item	L.S		
A35.6	Allow for crossing existing UNDERGROUND SERVICES (water lines, sewerlines, storm water drains, telephone/electricity ducts, fibre optic cables (including cables for security cameras), etc.), including reinstatement to original states and liason with the relevant body for the inspection/ approval during execution of the works. Nominal bore up to - 1800mm	Item	L.S		
A35.7	Allow a Provisional Sum for re-alignment of existing services, both buried and above ground, as may be required and directed on site, to create space for laying of proposed Transmission Mains. This item covers re-alignment/re-routing of existing water mains, Telecommunication cables, buried and overhead power lines where appropriate.	Item	P.S	1,000,000.00	1,000,000.00
A35.8	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item (Bidder may attach additional sheets if necessary):				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
	CLASS D: DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARANCE				
D100.1	General site clearance along easement	ha	5		
D2	Tree Cutting				
	Cut down trees, grub up roots and cart away to tips				
D210	Girth: 0.5 m - 1.0 m	Nr	100		
	L CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
D220	Girth: 1.0 m - 2 m	Nr	200		
D230	Girth 2.0 m - 3 m	Nr	500		
D240	Girth 3.0 m - 5 m	Nr	200		
D320	Remove stump dia. 0.5 - 1m	Nr	100		
D330	Remove stump dia. exceeding 1m	Nr	100		
	CLASS E: EARTHWORKS				
E220	Mass Excavation in selected areas to level localized high points and to remove imported deposited material on pipeline alignment to original ground level as directed by the Engineer prior to excavation of pipeline trenches. Include for transportation and disposal of excavated material to approved tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities.	m³	2,000		
	CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES				
	Transport from Site Store, Lay and Joint Pipes in Trench, Include for Excavation, Preparation of Surfaces, Disposal of Excavated Material, Shoring Sides of Excavation and Backfilling.				
	Note: Trench width and minimum cover to pipes is as per the Specification. The cost shall include for strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the earth faces of trenches and keeping the trenches free of water from whatever source by pumping or other means and cost of use of selected soil from the excavated material for compaction in bed and surround to backfilling of trenches, etc., all as specified.				
14	Ductile Iron Pipes OR Steel Pipes; Joints as specified				
	Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-welded Joints. Rate for Welded Steel Pipe to include for provision of all materials and wrapping of all Welded joints as specified				
145	Nominal Bore 1000mm in trenches				
I451	Nominal Bore 1000mm not in trenches (For aerial crossings)	m	77		
1452	Depth not exceeding 1.5 m	m	56		
1453	Depth 1.5 m - 2.0 m	m	165		
1454	Depth 2.0 m - 2.5 m	m	662		
1455	Depth 2.5 m -3.0 m	m	660		
1456	Depth 3.0 m - 3.5 m	m	659		
1457	Depth 3.5m - 4.0 m	m	465		
1458	Depth exceeding 4.0 m	m	331		
15	High Density Polyethylene Pipes (HDPE)				
I51	Butt-fusion weld jointed HDPE Pipes - PN 16 Nominal Bore 110mm in trenches				
I512	Depth not exceeding 1.5 m	m	40		
I513	Depth 1.5m - 2.0 m	m	100		
l514	Depth 2 m - 2.5 m	m	100		
PAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET		!		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
152	Butt-fusion weld jointed HDPE Pipes - PN 16 Nominal Bore 225mm in trenches				
1522	Depth n.e 1.5	m	120		
I523	Depth 1.5m - 2.0m	m	120		
1524	Depth 2.0m - 2.5m	m	140		
1525	Depth 2.5m - 3.0m	m	140		
1526	Depth 3.0m - 3.5m	m	140		
1527	Depth 3.5m - 4.0m	m	100		
1528	Depth exceeding 4.0m	m	100		
	CLASS J: PIPE WORK - FITTINGS AND VALVES				
	Transport from Site Store, Lay and Joint Pipes and Fittings in Trench/on Aerial Crossings, Include for Excavation, Preparation of Surfaces, Disposal of Excavated Material, Shoring Sides of Excavation and Backfilling. Rate to include for Transport to Site and Installation of all Jointing Materials, Bolts, Nuts, Gaskets, etc.				
J3	Ductile Iron Fittings OR Steel Fittings; Joints as specified				
J31	Bends				
J311.1	Nominal Bore 200mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends OR Steel Socket and Spigot Bends				
J311.1	90° DN 200, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	10		
J315	Nominal Bore 1000mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel plain ended Bends with provision for field butt-welded Joints				
J315.1	11.25° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	42		
J315.2	22.5° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	9		
J315.3	30° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	2		
J32	Junctions and Branches				
	All Flanged Tee				
J325	Nominal Bore 1000mm				
J325.1.1	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves within Line Valve Chambers	Nr	2		
J325.1.2	DN 1000 x DN 800, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves	Nr	12		
J325.1.3	DN 1000 x DN 1000, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for offtakes	Nr	2		
	All flanged Level Invert Tee				
J325.2.1	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Washout	Nr	11		
J34	Ferrous Couplings				
J341.1	DN 200, PN 16 - Stepped Coupling	Nr	11		
J345.1	DN 1000, PN 16- Straight Coupling (Provisional)	Nr	5		
J35	Ferrous Flange Adaptor				
J351.1	DN 200 PN 16	Nr	11		
J355	DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	1		
PAGE TOTA	L CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
J38	Straight Specials				
	Plain Ended Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J381.1	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long (Provisional)	Nr	3		
	Plain Ended Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J381.2	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	11		
	Double Flanged Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J385.1	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	12		
J385.2	DN 1000, PN 16, 6m long	Nr	9		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J385.3	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	4		
J385.4	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	21		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J385.5	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	23		
	Double Flanged Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J385.6	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
	Special Fittings				
J381.3	DN 200, PN 16, special double flanged pipe 325mm long with flange to suit 800mm dia. tee on one end and 200mm dia flange on the other end as per Dwg No. M430/SD/02 (Detail 1).	Nr	12		
J385.7	DN 1000 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 307mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	2		
J39	Ferrous Blank Flange				
J395.1	DN 1000 PN 16	Nr	1		
J8	Valves and Penstocks				
J81	Flanged Gate Valve				
J811.1	DN 200, PN 16, with handwheel (Isolating Valve for Air Valves)	Nr	12		
J811.2	DN 200, PN 16, with Extension Spindle, length n.e. 5.0m without handwheel (for washouts)	Nr	11		
J84	Flanged Butterfly Valve complete with Gear Mechanism designed to slow down flow reduction at end of closure as specified and Hand Wheel as specified				
J845.1	DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	1		
J86	Air Valve				
J861	Flanged Double Acting Non-Slam (Anti-surge) Air Valve (DAV) as specified				
J861.1	DN 200, PN 16	Nr	12		
AGE TOTAL	L CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 5 of 17 Bill No. 2.2

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS K: PIPE WORK - CHAMBERS AND PIPE WORK ANCILLARIES				
	Chambers, ducts, culverts, crossings, thrust and anchor blocks, reinstatement and others pipeworks and ancillaries.				
	Note:- Items for Work in this class shall include: Excavation, dewatering, preparation of surfaces, disposal of excavated material, shoring sides of excavation, backfilling and removal of redundant services Concrete, reinforcement, formwork, joints and finishes Tips for disposal of excavated material or debris to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authorities Rate to include for placing and compaction of pipe embedment material below the chamber and filling around pipe before construction of chamber - All Chambers to be fitted with adequate drainage system and permanent ventilation as per details or as directed by Engineer in Site Chambers to be fitted with plastic coated step irons or Access ladders as specified: and lockable covers to access manholes.				
K23	IN SITU CONCRETE CHAMBERS				
K232	Depth 1.5 - 2 m				
K232.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete WASHOUT VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 1200mm x 1200mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/03	Nr	2		
K233	Depth 2-2.5 m				
K233.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	4		
K234	Depth 2.5-3 m				
K234.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	2		
K234.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete LINE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions not exceeding 2700mm x 2400mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, Vents, drainage system etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	1		
AGE TOTA	L CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 6 of 17 Bill No. 2.2

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K235	Depth 3 - 3.5 m				
K235.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete AIR VALVE Chambers, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete slab / cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, step irons, compacted granular fill, vents, drainage system, rendering of exposed blockwork etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	1		
K236	Depth 3.5 - 4 m				
K236.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete AIR VALVE Chambers, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete slab / cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, step irons, compacted granular fill, vents, drainage system, rendering of exposed blockwork etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	1		
K237	Depth exceeding 4 m				
K237.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete AIR VALVE Chambers, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete slab / cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, step irons, compacted granular fill, vents, drainage system, rendering of exposed blockwork etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	2		
K25	PRECAST CONCRETE CHAMBERS				
K254	Depth 2.5-3m				
K254.1	Provide all materials and construct Precast Concrete WASHOUT VALVE Surface Box. Include for supply and fixing of Class 30 PCC unit, MS surface box and lockable cover, compacted granular fill, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length not exceeding 3m, etc. all as specified and as detailed on Drawing . No. M430/SD/04	Nr	2		
K255	Depth 3-3.5m				
K255.1	Provide all materials and construct Precast Concrete WASHOUT VALVE Surface Box. Include for supply and fixing of Class 30 PCC unit, MS surface box and lockable cover, compacted granular fill, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length not exceeding 3.5m, etc. all as specified and as detailed on Drawing . No. M430/SD/04	Nr	1		
K256	Depth 3.5-4m				
K256.1	Provide all materials and construct Precast Concrete WASHOUT VALVE Surface Box. Include for supply and fixing of Class 30 PCC unit, MS surface box and lockable cover, compacted granular fill, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length not exceeding 4m, etc. all as specified and as detailed on Drawing . No. M430/SD/04	Nr	2		
K257	Depth exceeding 4m				
K257.1	Provide all materials and construct Precast Concrete WASHOUT VALVE Surface Box. Include for supply and fixing of Class 30 PCC unit, MS surface box and lockable cover, compacted granular fill, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length exceeding 4m, etc. all as specified and as detailed on Drawing . No. M430/SD/04	Nr	3		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K6	CROSSINGS				
K63	Under-River Crossings, Width exceeding 10m				
	Details as per Dwg No. M430/SD/13				
K633	Pipe Nominal bore 900-1800mm				
	Note: Items for work shall include:				
K633.1	Excavation for foundation in river/stream beds depth n.e 4.0m, preparation of surfaces, disposal of excavated material, upholding sides of excavation, backfilling and removal of redundant services, all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/10, Nominal Bore 1000mm	m	140		
K633.2	Extra over item K633.1 for excavation in rock, depth n.e. 4.0m including preparation of trenches (No blasting permitted) (Provisional)				
K633.2.1	Class 'A'	m ³	15		
K633.2.2	Class 'B'	m ³	280		
K633.2.3	Class 'C'	m ³	60		
K633.3	Transport from Site Store, Install, Test and Commission DN 1000mm ferrous pipes on under-river Crossings, jointing to specifications	m	140		
K633.4	Supply 'Denso Tape' wrapping or approved equivalent. Bidder to include for wrapping at welded joints on the 1000mm dia. ferrous pipe in two layers as directed by the Engineer.	m²	500		
K633.5	Backfill the trench with concrete Class 15/20 surround, include for vibrating as directed by the Engineer all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/10	m ³	100		
K633.6	Backfill the trench with approved selected excavated material compacted in 300mm layers	m ³	85		
K633.7	Backfill trench with approved imported compacted granular material compacted in 300mm layers	m ³	95		
	Gabion Works				
K633.8	Provide all materials and carry out laying of 2m x 1m x 1m Gabions mesh wire minimum size 5mm or as specified. Gabion Boxes to be laid in stretches with 0.5m overlap, mesh wire to be galvanised and minimum diameter 5mm. Include for tying of adjacent gabions with approved wire and 16mm dia anchor rods to suit site conditions (Provisional)	Nr	400		
K633.9	Provide all materials and carry out laying of 0.23 - 0.5m thick Gabion Mattresses mesh wire minimum size 5mm or as specified , mesh wire to be galvanised and of minimum diameter 5mm. Include for tying of adjacent gabions with approved wire and 16mm dia anchor rods to suit site conditions (Provisional)	m ²	840		
K633.10	Provide and place rockfill to gabions and mattresses	m ³	2,000		
K633.11	Extra over for infilling of gabions with Class 15 mass concrete	m ³	40		
K633.12	Formwork Provide and fix shutterings including propping, strutting and striking, all as specified.				
	Sawn Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
K633.12.1	Vertical Sides of Concrete in foundation	m ²	392		
DAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K633.13	Method Related Charges				
K633.13.1	Allow for diverting River/Stream including construction of cofferdam etc., for river crossing works and reinstate after construction. The River/Stream to be kept operational during construction, width 3 - 6m	Nr	4		
K633.13.2	Allow for keeping excavation free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other means.	Item	L.S		
K633.13.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
K7	Reinstatement				
K733.3	Breaking up, temporary and permanent reinstatement of MURRAM road with 300mm thick well graded stabilised gravel with 3% cement base compacted in 150mm thick layers using an 8-10 tonne roller and 150mm deep approved compacted hardcore to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Nominal pipe bore n.e. 1800mm. all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/12. Rates quoted shall be deemed to include for costs incurred on traffic control, signage and safety measures during execution of the works.	m	20		
K743.1	Breaking up temporary and permanent reinstatement of UNPAVED FOOTPATHS. Pipe bore 900mm - 1800mm all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/12	m	10		
K8	Other Pipework Ancillaries				
K821	Marker Posts on Pipeline Alignment				
K821.1	Supply and fix marker posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction, air valves, washouts, and valve chambers. All in accordance with drawings and specifications	Nr	100		
K822	Pipeline Wayleave Monumentation				
K822.1	Supply and Install wayleave Boundary Indicator Posts at edges of acquired Pipeline Wayleave, to mark full extent of the pipeline wayleave. Wayleave Boundary Indicator Posts details as per drawings, to be installed at approx. intervals of 200m.	Nr.	50		
	Wash-out Outfall Rising Pipe				
K87	Provide all materials, fabricate and install washout chamber outfall rising pipe as detailed in drg. No. M430/SD/03. Rate to include for supply of all fittings, jointing, installation and connection to washout tee and valve.	Nr.	13		
K88	Removal and Reinstatement of Existing Hedges, Fences, Walls and Drains				
K88.1	Allow for removal of existing HEDGES and reinstating these after laying of the water mains is completed. (Provisional)	m	50		
K88.2	Allow for breaking up of existing FENCES, including but not limited to chain link fence, barbed wire fence, timber, iron sheet, electric fence, etc., and reinstating these after construction of the water mains is completed. (Provisional)	m	50		
PAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET		·		

Page 9 of 17 Bill No. 2.2

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K88.3.1	Allow for breaking up of existing UNLINED EARTH DRAINS and reinstating these after construction of the water mains is completed. Include for provision of diverting the drains or water ways and keeping them operational during construction. Depth of Drain n.e. 3m (See Drg. No. M430/SD/19) (Provisional)	m	100		
	CLASS L:- PIPEWORK - SUPPORTS AND PROTECTION, ANCILLARIES TO LAYING AND EXCAVATION				
L1	Extras to excavation and backfilling (Provisional)				
L11	In pipe trench and chambers				
L111.1	Excavation in trench for rock class "A"	m³	400		
L111.2	Excavation in trench for rock class "B"	m³	2,200		
L111.3	Excavation in trench for rock class "C"	m³	1,000		
	Note:- Blasting is NOT permitted for Item L11				
L5	Surrounds				
L52	Provide, transport to site and place selected excavated granular fill and compact in bed and surround to pipes as specified and where directed by the Engineer.				
L525	To pipes nominal bore: 900 - 1200 mm	m	3,690		
L53	Provide, transport to site and place imported granular fill and compact in bed and surround to pipes as specified and where directed by the Engineer.				
L535	To pipes nominal bore: 900 - 1200 mm	m	2,460		
L54	Provide all materials, transport to site and place mass concrete class 15/20 in bed and surround to pipes under road crossings. Include for provision, fixing and dismantling of all formwork, vibration of concrete etc. all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/10				
L545	To pipes nominal bore: ne 900 - 1200 mm	m	20		
L7	Concrete Support, Thrust Blocks, Stools and Anchor Blocks				
	Details as per Dwg No. M430/SD/08 - 09 (Provisional)				
	Rates to include for excavation, formwork, provision and placing of concrete, backfilling etc.				
	Class 20/20 Mass Concrete				
	NOTE:- The work includes pipe and fitting fixing				
L74	Volume:- 0.5 - 1 m ³				
L745	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	35		
L75	Volume:- 1 - 2 m³				
L755	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	20		
L76	Volume:- 2 - 4 m³				
L765	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	22		<u> </u>
L77	Volume:- 4 - 6 m ³				
L775	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	5		
L78.1	Volume:- 6- 10 m³				
L785.1.1	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	3		
L78.2	Volume:- exceeding 10m³				
L785.1.2	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	60		
PAGE TOTAL	L. CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET	<u> </u>	1		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS V: PAINTING				
V310	Allow for cleaning and painting with 3 coats of approved epoxy paint on all exposed Pipework, Fittings, Valves, etc.	m ²	500		
	CLASS X: MISCELLANEOUS WORKS				
X4	Gabion Works				
X411	Supply and Install approved Gabion Boxes, size 2m x 1m x 1m mesh wire minimum size 5mm diameter or as specified. Gabion Boxes to be laid in cascading stacks around R.C. piers on aerial crossings, and where instructed by the Engineer on site, all as directed. Rate to include for supply and packing of approved hardcore into gabion boxes, all to Engineer's approval, as shown on Drg. No. M430/SD/10.	Nr	110		
X421	Ditto - but Gabion Mattresses, thickness 500mm mesh wire 5mm diameter	m ²	150		
<u>X990</u>	EROSION CONTROL AND PROTECTION MEASURES (PROVISIONAL)				
X990.1	Provide all materials and construct mass concrete EROSION CHECKS on steep sloped as specified and according to details given in Drg. No. M430/SD/10.	Nr.	110		
X990.2	Provide all materials and carry out hydraulic mulch Grass seeding to slopes as specified on the drawings, all to Engineer's approval.	m ²	2,000		
X990.3	Supply and plant approved grass on slopes and maintain until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Rate to include for excavation of cut-off drains to divert run-off water from pipe trench alignment.	m ²	6,000		
<u>X991</u>	HEADWALLS, CASCADES AND OUTFALL CHAMBERS				
	Details as per Dwg No. M430/SD/03-04 (Provisional Quantities)				
X991.1	Excavation				
	The rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilising the excavation and preparation of excavated surfaces to receive permanent work.				
	Excavate for foundations, part backfill after construction and remainder, cart away to tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Tips to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authority.				
X991.1.1	Maximum depth n.e. 1.0m	m ³	50		
X991.1.2	-Ditto - depth 1.0 to 1.5m	m ³	85		
X991.1.3	-Ditto - depth exceeding 1.5m	m ³	35		
X991.1.4	E.O. excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A'	m ³	2		
X991.1.5	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'B' (Provisional)	m ³	25		
X991.1.6	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'C' (Provisional)	m ³	15		
X991.2	Concrete Works				
	Provide, mix and place concrete as directed				
X991.2.1	Plain concrete Class 15/20 in 50mm blinding layer under bases/treads.	m ²	140		
PAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET	<u> </u>			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X991.2.2	Vibrated, Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20 in:-				
X991.2.2.1	Footings	m ³	3		
X991.2.2.2	Bases	m^3	20		
X991.2.2.3	Walls	m ³	20		
X991.2.2.4	Treads	m ³	2		
X991.2.2.5	Risers	m ³	5		
X991.2.2.6	Roof Slabs	m ³	10		
X991.3	Reinforcement				
	Provide and fix high tensile steel reinforcement to SRN 127 including cutting, bending, propping, with spacers and tying as specified.				
X991.3.1	All diameters	kg	7,800		
X991.4	<u>Formwork</u>				
	Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking all as specified.				
	(i) Vertical Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
X991.4.1	Sides of 200mm treads/ bases/ risers	m	285		
X991.4.2	Sides of footings - width n.e. 0.2m	m	20		
X991.4.3	Sides of footings - width exceeding 0.2m	m²	10		
X991.4.4	External faces of chamber walls/ headwalls - width exceeding	m²	200		
	(ii) Vertical Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X991.4.5	Sides of 200mm roof slabs and walls	m	140		
X991.4.6	Internal faces of chamber walls/ headwalls etc	m²	160		
	(iii) Horizontal Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X991.4.7	Soffites of roof slabs and walls	m²	25		
X991.5	Walling				
	Natural Stone Block Walling, Medium Chisel Dressed, Reinforced with 20 swg Hoop Iron at Every Alternate Course, and Bedded, Jointed and Pointed in Cement Mortar (1:4):-				
X991.5.1	200 mm Walling	m^2	50		
X991.6	<u>Plastering</u>				
	12.5mm Thick Gauged Cement Plaster as per specifications				
X991.6.1	Natural stone block walling and other surfaces	m ²	100		
X991.7	Miscellaneous Works				
X991.7.1	Provide for and fix plastic coated step irons in rising outfall chambers for Washouts as specified by the Engineer. Details of chamber are in Dwg Nr. M430/SD/03	Nr	60		
X991.7.2	Provide Precast Reinforced Concrete Covers size 600 x 600 x 50mm thick to the rising outlet Chambers.	Nr	8		
PAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X991.8	Method Related Charges				
X991.8.1	Allow for River diversion, for construction of W.O outfall structure including construction of cofferdam etc., for river crossing works and reinstate after construction. The River / Waterway to be kept operational during construction. The Bidder to submit method	Item	L.S		
X991.8.2	Method related charges for keeping excavation free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other	Item	L.S		
X991.8.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
<u>X992</u>	AERIAL CROSSINGS ON PIERS - 3Nr. Crossings				
	Details as per Dwg Nos. M430/SD/13				
	Pipe Nominal Bore n.e 900 - 1800mm				
X992.1	<u>Excavation</u>				
	The rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilising the excavation faces and preparation of excavated surfaces to receive permanent work.				
	Excavate for pier footings and Under-River Crossings, part backfill after construction and remainder, cart away to approved tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Tips to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authority.				
X992.1.1	Maximum depth n.e. 1.5m	m^3	150		
X992.1.2	-Ditto - depth 1.5 to 2.0m	m ³	50		
X992.1.3	-Ditto - depth exceeding 2.0m	m ³	90		
X992.1.4	E.O. excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	50		
X992.1.5	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'B' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	70		
X992.1.6	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'C' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	105		
X992.2	Concrete Works				
	Provide, mix and place concrete as directed				
X992.2.1	Plain concrete Class 15/20 in 75mm blinding layer under pier footings.	m ²	30		
X992.2.2	-Ditto- but 75mm thick, on exposed surface of gabions	m ²	30		
X992.2.3	Vibrated, Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20 in:-				1
X992.2.3.1	Footings	m ³	16		
X992.2.3.2	Piers	m ³	95		
PAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET		<u> </u>		+

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X992.3	Reinforcement				
	Provide and fix high tensile steel reinforcement to SRN 127 including cutting, bending, propping, with spacers and tying as specified.				
X992.3.1	12mm and under	kg	6,100		
X992.3.2	16mm and over	kg	9,200		
X992.4	<u>Formwork</u>				
	Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking all as specified.				
	(i) Vertical Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
X992.4.1	Sides of 500mm footings	m^2	12		
X992.4.2	Sides of piers in foundations	m ²	160		
	(ii) Vertical Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X992.4.3	Outer faces of column piers - width 1.0m - 3.0m	m^2	185		
	(iii) Sloping Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X992.4.4	Sloping face of column head	m^2	150		
X992.5	Pipe Support Details				
	Provide all materials, fabricate and install 75mm wide x 15mm thick flat GMS Strap on pipes on piers at Aerial Crossings; Rate to include for supply and installation of Rag Bolts, Rubberoid layers, etc. all as detailed in Drg. No. M430/SD/13; to Engineer's approval.				
X992.5.1	DN 1000	Nr	12		
X992.6	Method Related Charges (Applicable to all River Crossings)				
X992.6.1	Allow for River Diversion Works, including construction of cofferdams etc., for river crossing works and reinstate after construction. The Rivers / Waterways to be kept operational during construction. Bidder to submit method statement with Bid for execution of these works.	Item	L.S		
X992.6.2	Method related charges for keeping excavations free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other	Item	L.S		
X992.6.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	lii)	Item	L.S		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
<u>X993</u>	Transverse R.C. Supports to Pipeline on Steep Cross-fall within the Mwache forest (600m Section). 152Nr. R.C. Piers @8m c/c				
	Details as per Dwg Nos. M430/SD/13				
	Pipe Nominal Bore n.e 900 - 1800mm				
X993.1	<u>Excavation</u>				
	The rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilising the excavation faces and preparation of excavated surfaces to receive permanent work.				
	Excavate for pier footings, part backfill after construction and remainder, cart away to approved tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Tips to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authority.				
X993.1.1	Maximum depth n.e. 1.5m	m ³	2,150		
X993.1.2	-Ditto - depth 1.5 to 2.0m	m ³	720		
X993.1.3	-Ditto - depth exceeding 2.0m	m ³	2,500		
X993.1.4	E.O. excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	145		
X993.1.5	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'B' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	1,920		
X993.1.6	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'C' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	510		
X993.2	Concrete Works				
	Provide, mix and place concrete as directed				
X993.2.1	Plain concrete Class 15/20 in 75mm blinding layer under pier footings.	m ²	1,360		
X993.2.3	Vibrated, Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20 in:-				
X993.2.3.1	Footings	m ³	680		
X993.2.3.2	Piers	m^3	840		
X993.3	Reinforcement				
	Provide and fix high tensile steel reinforcement to SRN 127 including cutting, bending, propping, with spacers and tying as specified.				
X993.3.1	12mm and under	kg	80,000		
X993.3.2	16mm and over	kg	120,000		
X993.4	Formwork				
	Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking all as specified.				
	(i) Vertical Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
X993.4.1	Sides of 500mm footings	m ²	525		
X993.4.2	Sides of piers in foundations	m ²	3,040		
	(ii) Vertical Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X993.4.3	Outer faces of column piers - width 1.0m - 3.0m	m ²	275		
PAGE TOTAL	CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	(iii) Sloping Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X993.4.4	Sloping face of column head	m ²	2,050		
X993.5	Pipe Support Details				
	Provide all materials, fabricate and install 75mm wide x 15mm thick flat GMS Strap on pipes on piers at Aerial Crossings; Rate to include for supply and installation of Rag Bolts, Rubberoid layers, etc. all as detailed in Drg. No. M430/SD/13; to Engineer's approval.				
X993.5.1	DN 1000	Nr	48		
X993.6	Method Related Charges for Construction of Transverse Supports on Steep Cross-fall Section				
X993.6.1	Method related charges for keeping excavations free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other means.	Item	L.S		
X993.6.2	Allow for provision of mechanized access and working within the Steep Section of the Cross-fall.	Item	L.S		
X993.6.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
X994	Miscellaneous Works (Provisional)				
X994.1	Allow a Provisional Sum for other Miscellaneous Works that may be required on site to be carried out as directed by the Engineer.	Item	P.S	10,000,000.00	10,000,000.00
X995	CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS:				
	NOTE: THIS ITEM SHOULD ONLY BE PRICED IF THE BIDDER HAS QUOTED FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS. BIDDERS QUOTING FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS SHOULD NOT PRICE FOR THESE ITEMS.				
X995.1	Carry out Detailed Design of Cathodic Protection system for the Mwache Twin Trunk Main, total length of pipeline 6.1km. Rate to include for all requisite confirmatory field tests and analysis such as soil resistivity, current drain, natural potential survey, etc., system design and approval. Design to be based on impressed current Cathodic Protection system.	Item	L.S		
X995.2	Supply of all required materials, Installation, Testing and commissioning of the Impressed Current Cathodic Protection system on Steel Mwache Twin Trunk Main as per approved design, total length of pipeline not exceeding 6.1km.	Item	L.S		
X995.3	Test running and maintenance of the installed Cathodic Protection system for a duration of 1 Year during the Defects Liability Period including training of MOWASSCO staff.	Item	L.S		
AGE TOTAL	L L CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X996	WRAPPING OF STEEL FITTINGS AND JOINTS NOTE: THIS ITEM SHOULD ONLY BE PRICED IF THE BIDDER HAS QUOTED FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS. BIDDERS QUOTING FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS SHOULD NOT PRICE FOR THESE ITEMS.				
X996.1	Provide all materials and wrap all Steel Fittings with approved Petrolatum Tape such as Denso Tape or appoved equivalent, including an outwrap applied with atleast 55% overlap. Wrapping to be applied on all Steel Fittings without 3LPE coating, including Bends, Tees, Short Pieces, Tapers, couplings and Sockets, etc. Application to be carried out as per Manufacture's Specifications, to the Engineer's Approval	m ²	500		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

BILL No. 2.2 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 2.2 - TWIN TRUNK MAIN SECTION 1 (LINE TM1)

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 17	
Page Total, Page 2 of 17	
Page Total, Page 3 of 17	
Page Total, Page 4 of 17	
Page Total, Page 5 of 17	
Page Total, Page 6 of 17	
Page Total, Page 7 of 17	
Page Total, Page 8 of 17	
Page Total, Page 9 of 17	
Page Total, Page 10 of 17	
Page Total, Page 11 of 17	
Page Total, Page 12 of 17	
Page Total, Page 13 of 17	
Page Total, Page 14 of 17	
Page Total, Page 15 of 17	
Page Total, Page 16 of 17	
Page Total, Page 17 of 17	
Bill No. 2.2 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary Sheet	

LOT 1; CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

IMPORTANT:

THE BIDDER TO QUOTE FOR ANY ONE OF THE FOLLOWING OPTIONS FOR PIPES AND FITTINGS MATERIALS AND JOINTING. THE SELECTED OPTION TO BE TICKED

OPTION	DESCRIPTION	INDICATE SELECTED OPTION BY TICKING ONE BOX BELOW
OPTION 1	<u>Ductile Iron</u> Socket and Spigot Pipes and Fittings with <u>Standard Push-On Joints</u> as specified	
OPTION 2	Steel Pipes and Fittings with provision for Field Butt Welded Joints as specified.	

ONLY ONE OPTION SHOULD BE SELECTED (TICK ONLY ONE BOX)

IF NONE OR BOTH BOXES ARE TICKED, THE BID WILL BE CONSIDERED UNRESPONSIVE AND REJECTED

Bill No. 2 - Instruction to Bidders Page 1 of 1

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.1 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
140.	NOTES:		407	(Italia)	(1(3)13)
1.	THIS BILL ONLY COVERS RATES FOR PROCUREMENT OF PIPES AND FITTINGS, TRANSPORT TO CONTRACTOR'S SITE STORE AND STORAGE. INCLUDING SUPPLY OF JOINTING MATERIALS, BOLTS, NUTS, GASKETS, ETC.				
2.	RATES FOR TRANSPORT FROM SITE STORE AND INSTALLATION TO BE INCLUDED IN BILL No. 3.2.				
3.	BIDDER TO PRICE <u>EITHER</u> <u>FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS WITH PROVISION FOR FIELD BUTT-WELDED JOINTS AS SPECIFIED OR DUCTILE IRON SOCKET AND SPIGOT PIPES AND FITTINGS WITH STANDARD PUSH-ON JOINTS AS SPECIFIED</u>				
4.	ALL RATES TO BE INCLUSIVE OF RELEVANT GOVERNMENT OF KENYA DUTIES AND TAXES, EXCEPT VALUE ADDED TAX (VAT) WHICH IS TO BE ADDED SEPARATELY IN THE GRAND SUMMARY.				
5.	ALL PIPES AND FITTINGS TO PRESSURE RATING AS INDICATED FOR EACH ITEM UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED				
6.	FOR STEEL PIPELINES, STEEL GRADE AND THICKNESS AS SPECIFIED				
7.	PIPELINE EXTERNAL COATING AND INTERNAL LINING AS SPECIFIED FOR THE SELECTED PIPELINE MATERIAL				
8.	BIDDERS QUOTING FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS TO PRICE FOR SERIES X ITEMS : OTHER PRICES FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS				
9.	IN VIEW OF THE LARGE PIPE DIAMETERS INVOLVED, BIDDERS TO ALLOW FOR REINFORCEMENT OF FITTINGS AS MAYBE REQUIRED, ALL AS PER THE AWWA MANUAL OF WATER SUPPLY PRACTICES (AWWA M11); REINFORCEMENT OF PIPE FITTINGS EITHER BY COLLAR PLATE, WRAPPER PLATE OR BY CROTCH-PLATE, AS MAY BE REQUIRED. BIDDER TO INCLUDE RATE FOR REINFORCEMENT OF FITTINGS IN THEIR RATES FOR RESPECTIVE FITTINGS				
	CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES				
14	Ductile Iron Pipes or Steel Pipes; Joints as specified				
	Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints (class 25, cement mortar lining, zinc-aluminium coating) OR Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-Welded Joints (minimum yield strength 290 Mpa, epoxy lining, 3-layer polyethylene coating)				
144	DN 900 mm; Minimum Wall Thickness 8mm	m	6,400		
145	DN 1000 mm; Minimum Wall Thickness 8.8mm	m	22,750		
15	High Density Polyethylene Pipes (HDPE)				
	Butt-fusion weld jointed HDPE Pipes - PN 16				
l51	Nominal Bore 110 mm (provisional length)	m	1,800		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION	SHEET	<u>I</u>		

Page 1 of 5 Bill No. 3.1

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.1 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
152	Nominal Bore 225 mm (provisional length) for Washout Drainage	m	2,000	(1.101.10)	(1.01.0)
	CLASS J: PIPE WORK - FITTINGS AND VALVES				
J3	Ductile Iron Fittings or Steel Fittings; Joints as specified				
J31	Bends				
J311	Nominal Bore 200mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends OR Steel Socket and Spigot Bends				
J311.1	90° DN 200, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	45		
J312.1	Nominal bore 250mm; Double Flanged Bend				
J312.1.1	45° DN 250, PN 16	Nr	5		
J313	Nominal Bore 500mm; Ductile Iron Double flanged Bends OR Steel Double flanged Bends				
J313.1	45° DN 500, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	2		
J313.2	90° DN 500, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	2		
J314.1	Nominal bore 800mm; Double Flanged Bend				
J314.1.1	45° DN 800, PN 16	Nr	5		
J314.2	Nominal Bore 900mm; Double Flanged Bend				
J314.2.1	45° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	5		
J314.3	Nominal Bore 900mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel plain ended Bends with provision for field butt-welded Joints				
J314.3.1	11.25° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	11		
J314.3.2	30° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	2		
J314.3.3	90° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	2		
J315.2	Nominal Bore 1000mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel plain ended Bends with provision for field butt-welded Joints				
J315.2.1	11.25° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	133		
J315.2.2	22.5° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	30		
J315.2.3	30° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	10		
J315.2.4	45° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	6		
J32	Junctions and Branches				
	All Flanged Tee				
J321.1	DN 200 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee	Nr	1		
J323.1	DN 500 x DN 500, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Non Return Valves	Nr	1		
J324.1	DN 900 x DN 800, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves	Nr	6		
J325.1	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves within Line Valve Chambers	Nr	7		
J325.2	DN 1000 x DN 250, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Interconnection	Nr	1		
J325.3	DN 1000 x DN 500, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves	Nr	1		
J325.4	DN 1000 x DN 800, PN 16 all Flanged Tee Tee for Air Valves	Nr	40		
	All Flanged Level Invert Tee_				
J324.2	DN 900 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Washouts	Nr	5		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION	SHEET			

Page 2 of 5 Bill No. 3.1

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.1 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
J325.5	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Washouts	Nr	41	(110110)	(1.01.0)
J33	Tapers				
	All Flanged Concentric Taper				
J332.1	DN 250 x DN 200, PN 16	Nr	1		
J334.1	DN 900 x DN 800, PN 16	Nr	3		
J335.1	DN 1000 x DN 900, PN 16	Nr	4		
J34	Ferrous Couplings				
J341.1	DN 200, PN 16 - Straight Coupling	Nr	2		
J341.2	DN 200, PN 16 - Stepped Coupling	Nr	45		
J342.1	DN 250, PN 16 - Straight Coupling	Nr	2		
J343.1	DN 500, PN 16 - Straight Coupling	Nr	4		
J344.1	DN 900, PN 16 - Straight Coupling (Provisional)	Nr	3		
J345.1	DN 1000, PN 16- Straight Coupling (Provisional)	Nr	12		
J35	Ferrous Flange Adaptor				
J351.1	DN 200, PN 16	Nr	42		
J352.1	DN 250, PN 16	Nr	4		
J353.1	DN 500, PN 16	Nr	3		
J38	Straight Specials				
	Plain Ended Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J381.1	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long (Provisional)	Nr	5		
J383.1	DN 500, PN 16, 6m long (cut to suit on site)	Nr	1		
J384.1	DN 900 PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange (Provisional)	Nr	2		
	Plain Ended Pipes without Puddle Flanges		_		
J381.2	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	45		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J381.3	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	2		
J382.1	DN 250, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	3		
J382.2	DN 250, PN 16, 2.5m long	Nr	2		
J383.2	DN 500, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	2		
J383.3	DN 500, PN 16, 6m long (cut to suit on site)	Nr	1		
J384.2	DN 900, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	13		
J385.1	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	92		
J385.2	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	30		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J382.3	DN 250, PN 16, 1.2m long with puddle flange	NI.	2		
J382.4		Nr	3		
J382.4 J382.5	DN 250, PN 16, 2.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
	DN 250, PN 16, 1.25m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J383.4	DN 500, PN 16, 1.2m long with puddle flange	Nr	4		
J384.3	DN 900, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	12		
J385.3	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	91		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION	SHEET			

Page 3 of 5 Bill No. 3.1

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.1 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Double Flanged Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J382.6	DN 250, PN 16, 1.25m long (Provisional)	Nr	2		
J385.4	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	2		
J385.5	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	25		
J385.6	DN 1000, PN 16, 4m long	Nr	87		
J385.7	DN 1000, PN 16, 5m long	Nr	59		
J385.8	DN 1000, PN 16, 6m long	Nr	22		
J385.9	DN 1000, PN 16, 8m long	Nr	78		
J385.10	DN 1000, PN 16, 10m long	Nr	57		
	Double Flanged Pipes with puddle flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J383.5	DN 500, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	2		
J383.6	DN 500, PN 16, 2.5m long	Nr	1		
J383.7	DN 500, PN 16, 5m long	Nr	1		
J384.4	DN 800, PN 16, 4m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J384.5	DN 800, PN 16, 8m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J384.6	DN 900, PN 16, 4.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J384.7	DN 900, PN 16, 9m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J385.11	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
	Special Fittings				
J381.4	DN 200, PN 16, special double flanged pipe 325mm long with flange to suit 800mm dia. tee on one end and 200mm dia flange on the other end as per Dwg No. M430/SD/02 (Detail 1).	Nr	50		
J384.8	DN 800 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 300mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	3		
J384.9	DN 900 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 307mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	3		
J385.12	DN 1000 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 307mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	6		
J8	Valves and Penstocks				
J81	Flanged Gate Valve	Nr	51		
J811.1 J811.2	DN 200, PN 16, with handwheel (Isolating Valve for Air Valves) DN 200, PN 16, with Extension Spindle, length n.e. 5.0m without handwheel (for washouts)	Nr	45		
J812.1	DN 250, PN 16, with handwheel (for Interconnection)	Nr	1		
J813.1	DN 500, PN 16, with handwheel (for Interconnection)	Nr	2		
J83	Flanged Non Return Valve				
J832.1	DN 250, PN 16	Nr	1		
J833.1	DN 500, PN 16	Nr	2		
J84	Flanged Butterfly Valve complete with Gear Mechanism designed to slow down flow reduction at end of closure as specified and Hand Wheel as specified				
J844.1	DN 900, PN 16	Nr	2		
J845.1	DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	7		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION	CUELT			

Page 4 of 5 Bill No. 3.1

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.1 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
J86	Air Valve				
J861	Flanged Double Action Non-Slam (Anti-Surge) Air Valve (DAV) as specified				
J861.1	DN 200, PN 16	Nr	51		
J87	Flanged Flow Control Valve				
J873	DN 500, PN 16	Nr	1		
J9	Electromagnetic Water Meters				
J992.1	DN 250 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16, complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	1		
J993.1	DN 500 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16 complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	1		
J994.1	DN 800 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16 complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	2		
J994.2	DN 900 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16 complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	1		
	CLASS X: OTHER COSTS FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES & FITTINGS				
	Note: This item is only to be priced if the Bidder has quoted for Ductile Iron Pipes & Fittings. Bidders quoting for Steel Pipes and Fittings should not price this item.				
X990	Additional protection for Ductile Iron Pipes and Fittings in areas of high corrosivity				
X990.1	Carry out Field Tests and Analysis to confirm the specified external coating of Ductile Iron Pipes and Fittings or propose an alternative if required at particular locations	m	29,150		
	Extra over cost of supply of Pipes and Fittings (Class I and J) for factory heat applied fused polyurethane coating to EN 15189 to Ductile Iron Pipes from CH 6+200 to CH 6+800 (see drawing M430/MP/SM/06)				
X990.2	DN 1000mm	m	600		
	Ductile Iron Pipes and Bends with Self-Anchored Joints				
X999	Extra-over cost on top of Items I4 and J31 for the supply of Ductile Iron Pipes and Bends with Self-Anchored Joints				
X999.1	DN 900mm Pipes with Self-Anchored Joints	m	50		
X999.2	DN 1000mm Pipes with Self-Anchored Joints	m	200		
X999.3	DN 900mm D.I. Bends with Self-Anchored Joints, assorted angle	Nr.	5		
X999.4	DN 1000mm D.I. Bends with Self-Anchored Joints, assorted	Nr.	10		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 5 of 5 Bill No. 3.1

BILL No. 3.1 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1; CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.1 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

SUPPLY OF PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND ANCILLARIES

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 5	
Page Total, Page 2 of 5	
Page Total, Page 3 of 5	
Page Total, Page 4 of 5	
Page Total, Page 5 of 5	
Bill No. 3.1 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary She	et

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	AMOUN'
No.				(Kshs)	(Kshs)
	NOTES:				
1.	The South Mainland Water Transmission Pipeline is to be laid				
	generally within the same wayleave as the existing Marere and				
	Kaya Bombo Pipelines which are active, with the proposed line crossing to the existing lines at some points. The pipeline				
	alignment traverses through a number of valleys along its				
	entire alignment, notably crossing the 450m wide Mwache				
	Creek and numerous seasonal rivers and streams, both narrow				
	and wide. A section of the pipeline is to be laid within the				
	Mwache forest, characterized by a dense thicket and steep				
	topography. Though the pipeline alignment is within a rural set				
	up, sections of the line are to be laid within trading centres and				
	along busy murram roads connecting villages and trading				
	centres. Specific conditions in execution of these works are				
	deemed to be included in the Contractor's Rates.The				
	Contractor will be required to submit a Method Statement for				
	execution of works under these specific conditions for				
	approval prior to execution of the works. These include, but are				
	not limited to the following;				
	i) No blasting will be permitted				
	ii) The contractor to maintain uninterrupted continuity of				
	Water Supply in existing Mains				
	iii) Pedestrians and Vehicular access to individual Shops/ Plots, Houses, etc. to be maintained at all times. Where				
	necessary, alternative temporary access to be availed				
	iv) Safety hoarding, lighting, bands, warning signs, etc. to be				
	maintained at all times.				
	v) Immediate Reinstatement and Stabilization of Slopes upon				
	laying of the Pipeline.				
2.	The Contractor shall carry out pilot excavations along the				
۷.	pipeline route to establish locations and alignment of existing				
	Telecommunication and Fibre Optic Cables and other buried				
	services, if any, prior to actual trench excavation, all in close				
	liaison with service providers. It shall be deemed that any costs				
	for crossing existing Telecommunication and Fibre Optic				
	Cables is included in the Contractor's Rates. Any claims				
	thereof SHALL NOT be paid and damages caused on the same				
	as a result of execution of the works shall be the Contractor's				
	liability. These will be duly repaired at the Contractor's cost.				
	The Contractor's rates should allow for any measures				
	necessary to deal with the terrain, provision of access road to				
	work site, liason with the relevant Authorities and local				
	residents, payment of any required statutory charges, etc. The				
	costs for compliance shall be deemed to be covered by the				
3.	Contractor's Rates. The proposed works are within the Coastal Region, generally				
J.	characterized by a corrosive environment and soils. Bidders				
	quoting for Steel Pipes and Fittings shall be required to price				
	for Cathodic Protection of the entire Transmission Pipeline				
	(Item X994). Installation of the Cathodic Protection System to				
	be carried out by a certified approved Specialized Sub-				
	Contractor				
4.	All Rates to include for Government of Kenya Duties and				
	Taxes, Except Value Added Tax (VAT).				
5.	Value Added Tax (VAT) to be added separately in the Grand				
	Summary.				
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS A: GENERAL ITEM				
A260	Testing of Works				
	Pipeline Testing and Commissioning, including provision of all Equipment, Materials and works necessary for Testing, such as but not limited to thrust blocks, anchor blocks, provision, transportation and use of water, requisite pipe fittings, etc., successful testing to specified pressure and safe disposal of used water.				
	NOTE: Any additional fittings that may be neccecitated by the Contractor's Methodology for testing shall be supplied and installed at the Contractor's own cost.				
A260.1.1	DN 900mm	m	6,400		
A260.1.2	DN 1000mm	m	22,750		
	Disinfection of Pipe lines: Flushing with clear water, filling with water containing 0.05 g/l calcium hypochlorite, left for 24 hours. This includes supply of all necessary equipment, materials, chemicals and water, measurement of residual chlorine, all as specified and safe disposal of disinfecting water to Engineer's approval.				
A260.2.1	DN 900 Pipeline	m	6,400		
A260.2.2	DN 1000 Pipeline	m	22,750		
A3	Method Related Charges				
A35	Temporary Works				
A35.1	Working within available limited wayleave, include costs for double / multiple handling of excavated materials if required, as well as provision of alternative access to private property during execution of the works.	Item	L.S		
A35.2	Working within marshy areas with weak soil formation and/or within permanently flooded sections of the Mwache Creek, with weak soil formations, include for construction of cofferdams, dewatering of excavation areas and keeping them free of water during execution of the works. Contractor to provide a Method Statement for carrying out the works	Item	L.S		
A35.3	Keeping trenches free of excessive groundwater, seepage or water from whatever source	Item	L.S		
A35.4	Allow Provisional Sum for Liaison, facilitation with local residents and payment for accesses	Item	P.S	3,000,000.00	3,000,000.00
A35.5	Allow for carrying out Pilot Excavation, exposing and identification of existing UNDERGROUND SERVICES (water lines, sewerlines, storm water drains, telephone/electricity ducts, fibre optic cables, etc.) prior to setting out and excavation of the pipeline. Pilot excavation n.e. 3m depth on approx 5m wide corridor, estimate No. of pilot holes along the Pipeline route is 300Nr.	Item	L.S		
A35.6	Allow for crossing existing UNDERGROUND SERVICES (water lines, sewerlines, storm water drains, telephone/electricity ducts, fibre optic cables (including cables for security cameras), etc.), including reinstatement to original states and liason with the relevant body for the inspection/ approval during execution of the works. Nominal bore up to - 1800mm	Item	L.S		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

Allow a Provisional Sum for re-alignment of existing services, both				
buried and above ground, as may be required and directed on site, to create space for laying of proposed Transmission Mains. This item covers re-alignment/re-routing of existing water mains, Telecommunication cables, buried and overhead power lines where appropriate.	Item	P.S	2,500,000.00	2,500,000.00
Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item (Bidder may attach additional sheets if necessary):				
i)	Item	L.S		
ii)	Item	L.S		
CLASS D: DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARANCE				
General site clearance along easement	ha	17		
Tree Cutting Cut down trees, grub up roots and cart away to tips				
Girth: 0.5 m - 1.0 m	Nr	50		
Girth: 1.0 m - 2 m	Nr	120		
Girth 2.0 m - 3 m	Nr	200		
Girth 3.0 m - 5 m	Nr	60		
Remove stump dia. 0.5 - 1m	Nr	30		
Remove stump dia. exceeding 1m	Nr	30		
CLASS E: EARTHWORKS				
Mass Excavation in selected areas to level localized high points and to remove imported deposited material on pipeline alignment to original ground level as directed by the Engineer prior to excavation of pipeline trenches. Include for transportation and disposal of excavated material to approved tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities.	m³	45,000		
CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES				
Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints <u>OR</u> Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-welded Joints. Rate for Welded Steel Pipe to include for provision of all materials and wrapping of all Welded joints as specified				
Note: Trench width and minimum cover to pipes is as per the Specification. The cost shall include for strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the earth faces of trenches and keeping the trenches free of water from whatever source by pumping or other means and cost of use of selected soil from the excavated material for compaction in bed and surround to backfilling of trenches, etc., all as specified.				
	appropriate. Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item (Bidder may attach additional sheets if necessary): i) ii) iii) CLASS D: DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARANCE General site clearance along easement Tree Cutting Cut down trees, grub up roots and cart away to tips Girth: 0.5 m - 1.0 m Girth: 0.5 m - 1.0 m Girth: 2.0 m - 3 m Girth 3.0 m - 5 m Remove stump dia. 0.5 - 1m Remove stump dia. exceeding 1m CLASS E: EARTHWORKS Mass Excavation in selected areas to level localized high points and to remove imported deposited material on pipeline alignment to original ground level as directed by the Engineer prior to excavation of pipeline trenches. Include for transportation and disposal of excavated material to approved tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities. CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-welded Joints. Rate for Welded Steel Pipe to include for provision of all materials and wrapping of all Welded joints as specified Note: Trench width and minimum cover to pipes is as per the Specification. The cost shall include for strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the earth faces of trenches and keeping the trenches free of water from whatever source by pumping or other means and cost of use of selected soil from the excavated material for compaction in bed and surround to backfilling of trenches, etc., all as specified.	appropriate. Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item (Bidder may attach additional sheets if necessary): i) Item ii) Item iii) Item CLASS D: DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARANCE General site clearance along easement ha Tree Cutting Cut down trees, grub up roots and cart away to tips Girth: 0.5 m - 1.0 m Nr Girth: 1.0 m - 2 m Nr Girth 2.0 m - 3 m Nr Girth 3.0 m - 5 m Nr Remove stump dia. 0.5 - 1m Nr Remove stump dia. exceeding 1m Nr CLASS E: EARTHWORKS Mass Excavation in selected areas to level localized high points and to remove imported deposited material on pipeline alignment to original ground level as directed by the Engineer prior to excavation of pipeline trenches. Include for transportation and disposal of excavated material to approved tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities. CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-welded Joints. Rate for Welded Steel Pipe to include for provision of all materials and wrapping of all Welded joints as specified Note: Trench width and minimum cover to pipes is as per the Specification. The cost shall include for strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the earth faces of trenches and keeping the trenches free of water from whatever source by pumping or other means and cost of use of selected soil from the excavated material for compaction in	appropriate. Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item (Bidder may attach additional sheets if necessary): i) Item L.S ii) Item L.S CLASS D: DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARANCE General site clearance along easement ha 17 Tree Cutting Cut down trees, grub up roots and cart away to tips Girth: 0.5 m - 1.0 m Nr 50 Girth: 1.0 m - 2 m Nr 120 Girth 2.0 m - 3 m Nr 200 Girth 3.0 m - 5 m Nr 60 Remove stump dia. 0.5 - 1m Nr 30 Remove stump dia. exceeding 1m Nr 30 CLASS E: EARTHWORKS Mass Excavation in selected areas to level localized high points and to remove imported deposited material on pipeline alignment to original ground level as directed by the Engineer prior to excavation of pipeline trenches. Include for transportation and disposal of excavated material to approved tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities. CLASS I: PIPE WORK - PIPES Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints Oß Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-welded Joints. Rate for Welded Steel Pipe to include for provision of all materials and wrapping of all Welded joints as specified Note: Trench width and minimum cover to pipes is as per the Specification. The cost shall include for strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the earth faces of trenches and keeping the trenches free of water from whatever source by pumping or other means and cost of use of selected soil from the excavated material for compaction in bed and surround to backfilling of trenches, etc., all as specified.	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item (Bidder may attach additional sheets if necessary): ii)

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
14	Ductile Iron Pipes OR Steel Pipes; Joints as specified				
	Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Pipes with Standard Push-On Joints <u>OR</u> Steel Pipes with provision for Field Butt-welded Joints. Rate for Welded Steel Pipe to include for provision of all materials and wrapping of all Welded joints as specified				
144	Nominal Bore 900mm in trenches				
1442	Depth 1.5m - 2.0m	m	290		
1443	Depth 2.0 m - 2.5 m	m	1,640		
1444	Depth 2.5 m - 3.0 m	m	2,200		
1445	Depth 3.0 m - 3.5 m	m	1,080		
1446	Depth 3.5 m - 5 m	m	1,190		
145	Nominal Bore 1000mm in trenches		-,		
I451	Nominal Bore 1000mm not in trenches (For aerial crossings)	m	1,500		
1452	Depth not exceeding 1.5 m	m	470		
1453	Depth 1.5 m - 2.0 m	m	800		
1454	Depth 2.0 m - 2.5 m	m	4,300		
1455	Depth 2.5 m -3.0 m	m	6,220		
1456	Depth 3.0 m - 3.5 m	m	4,550		
1457	Depth 3.5m - 4.0 m	m	2,750		
1458	Depth exceeding 4.0 m	m	2,160		
15	High Density Polyethylene Pipes (HDPE)				
I 51	Butt-fusion weld jointed HDPE Pipes - PN 16 Nominal Bore 110mm in trenches				
l512	Depth not exceeding 1.5 m	m	360		
I513	Depth 1.5m - 2.0 m	m	540		
I514	Depth 2.0 m - 2.5m	m	900		
152	Butt-fusion weld jointed HDPE Pipes - PN 16 Nominal Bore 225mm in trenches				
1522	Depth n.e 1.5	m	140		
1523	Depth 1.5m - 2.0m	m	140		
1524	Depth 2.0m - 2.5m	m	195		
1525	Depth 2.5m - 3.0m	m	195		
I526	Depth 3.0m - 3.5m	m	195		
1527	Depth 3.5m - 4m	m	389		
I528	Depth exceeding 4m	m	746		

Page 4 of 20 Bill No. 3.2

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS J: PIPE WORK - FITTINGS AND VALVES				
	Transport from Site Store, Lay and Joint Pipe Fittings in Trench/on Aerial Crossings, Include for Excavation, Preparation of Surfaces, Disposal of Excavated Material, Shoring Sides of Excavation and Backfilling. Rate to include for Transport to Site and Installation of all Jointing Materials, Bolts. Nuts. Gaskets. etc.				
J3	Ductile Iron Fittings OR Steel Fittings; Joints as specified				
J31 J311.1	Bends Nominal Bore 200mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends OR Steel Socket and Spigot Bends				
J311.1.1	90° DN 200, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	45		
J312.1	Nominal bore 250mm; Double Flanged Bend				
J312.1.1	45° DN 250, PN 16	Nr	5		
J313	Nominal Bore 500mm; Ductile Iron Double flanged Bends OR Steel Double flanged Bends				
J313.1	45° DN 500, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	2		
J313.2	90° DN 500, PN 16 (provisional)	Nr	2		
J314.1	Nominal bore 800mm; Double Flanged Bend				
J314.1.1	45° DN 800, PN 16	Nr	5		
J314.2	Nominal Bore 900mm; Double Flanged Bend				
J314.2.1	45° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	5		
J314.3	Nominal Bore 900mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel plain ended Bends with provision for field butt-welded Joints				
J314.3.1	11.25° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	11		
J314.3.2	30° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	2		
J314.3.3	90° DN 900, PN 16	Nr	2		
J315.2	Nominal Bore 1000mm; Ductile Iron Socket and Spigot Bends with Standard Push-On Joints OR Steel plain ended Bends with provision for field butt-welded Joints				
J315.2.1	11.25° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	133		
J315.2.2	22.5° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	30		
J315.2.3	30° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	10		
J315.2.4	45° DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	6		
J32	Junctions and Branches				
	All Flanged Tee				
J321.1	DN 200 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee	Nr	1		
J323.1	DN 500 x DN 500, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Non Return Valves	Nr	1		
J324.1	DN 900 x DN 800, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves	Nr	6		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	SHEET			

Page 5 of 20 Bill No. 3.2

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
J325.1	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves within Line Valve Chambers	Nr	7		
J325.2	DN 1000 x DN 250, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Interconnection	Nr	1		
J325.3	DN 1000 x DN 500, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Air Valves	Nr	1		
J325.4	DN 1000 x DN 800, PN 16 all Flanged Tee Tee for Air Valves	Nr	40		
	All Flanged Level Invert Tee				
J324.2	DN 900 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Washouts	Nr	5		
J325.5	DN 1000 x DN 200, PN 16 all Flanged Tee for Washouts	Nr	41		
J33	Tapers All Flanged Concentric Taper				
J332.1	DN 250 x DN 200, PN 16	Nr	1		
J334.1	DN 900 x DN 800, PN 16	Nr	3		
J335.1	DN 1000 x DN 900, PN 16	Nr	4		
J34	Ferrous Couplings				
J341.1	DN 200, PN 16 - Straight Coupling	Nr	2		
J341.2	DN 200, PN 16 - Stepped Coupling	Nr	45		
J342.1	DN 250, PN 16 - Straight Coupling	Nr	2		
J343.1	DN 500, PN 16 - Straight Coupling	Nr	4		
J344.1	DN 900, PN 16 - Straight Coupling (Provisional)	Nr	3		
J345.1	DN 1000, PN 16- Straight Coupling (Provisional)	Nr	12		
J35	Ferrous Flange Adaptor				
J351.1	DN 200, PN 16	Nr	42		
J352.1	DN 250, PN 16	Nr	4		
J353.1	DN 500, PN 16	Nr	3		
J38	Straight Specials				
	Plain Ended Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J381.1	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long (Provisional)	Nr	5		
J383.1	DN 500, PN 16, 6m long (cut to suit on site)	Nr	1		
J384.1	DN 900 PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange (Provisional)	Nr	2		
	Plain Ended Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J381.2	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	45		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J381.3	DN 200, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	2		
J382.1	DN 250, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	3		
J382.2	DN 250, PN 16, 2.5m long	Nr	2		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET	<u> </u>		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
J383.2	DN 500, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	2		
J383.3	DN 500, PN 16, 6m long (cut to suit on site)	Nr	1		
J384.2	DN 900, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	13		
J385.1	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	92		
J385.2	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	30		
	Flanged Spigot Pipes with Puddle Flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J382.3	DN 250, PN 16, 1.2m long with puddle flange	Nr	3		
J382.4	DN 250, PN 16, 2.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J382.5	DN 250, PN 16, 1.25m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J383.4	DN 500, PN 16, 1.2m long with puddle flange	Nr	4		
J384.3	DN 900, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	12		
J385.4	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	91		
	Double Flanged Pipes without Puddle Flanges				
J382.6	DN 250, PN 16, 1.25m long (Provisional)	Nr	2		
J385.5	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long	Nr	2		
J385.6	DN 1000, PN 16, 3m long	Nr	25		
J385.7	DN 1000, PN 16, 4m long	Nr	87		
J385.8	DN 1000, PN 16, 5m long	Nr	59		
J385.9	DN 1000, PN 16, 6m long	Nr	22		
J385.10	DN 1000, PN 16, 8m long	Nr	78		
J385.11	DN 1000, PN 16, 10m long	Nr	57		
	Double Flanged Pipes with puddle flanges (location of Puddle Flange as specified in Drawings)				
J383.5	DN 500, PN 16, 1.2m long	Nr	2		
J383.6	DN 500, PN 16, 2.5m long	Nr	1		
J383.7	DN 500, PN 16, 5m long	Nr	1		
J384.4	DN 800, PN 16, 4m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J384.5	DN 800, PN 16, 8m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J384.6	DN 900, PN 16, 4.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J384.7	DN 900, PN 16, 9m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
J385.11	DN 1000, PN 16, 1.5m long with puddle flange	Nr	2		
	Special Fittings				
J381.4	DN 200, PN 16, special double flanged pipe 325mm long with flange to suit 800mm dia. tee on one end and 200mm dia flange on the other end as per Dwg No. M430/SD/02 (Detail 1).	Nr	50		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

Page 7 of 20 Bill No. 3.2

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
J384.8	DN 800 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 300mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	3		
J384.9	DN 900 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 307mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	3		
J385.12	DN 1000 PN 16 Dismantling Joint (Viking Johnson dismantling joint, nominal length 307mm or approved equivalent)	Nr	6		
J8 J81	Valves and Penstocks Flanged Gate Valve				
J811.1	DN 200, PN 16, with handwheel (Isolating Valve for Air Valves)	Nr	51		
J811.2	DN 200, PN 16, with Extension Spindle, length n.e. 5.0m without handwheel (for washouts)	Nr	45		
J812.1	DN 250, PN 16, with handwheel (for Interconnection)	Nr	1		
J813.1	DN 500, PN 16, with handwheel (for Interconnection)	Nr	2		
J83	Flanged Non Return Valve				
J832.1	DN 250, PN 16	Nr	1		
J833.1	DN 500, PN 16	Nr	2		
J84	Flanged Butterfly Valve complete with Gear Mechanism designed to slow down flow reduction at end of closure as specified and Hand Wheel as specified				
J844.1	DN 900, PN 16	Nr	2		
J845.1	DN 1000, PN 16	Nr	7		
J86	Air Valve				
J861	Flanged Double Action Non-Slam (Anti-Surge) Air Valve (DAV) as specified				
J861.1	DN 200, PN 16	Nr	51		
J87	Flanged Flow Control Valve				
J873	DN 500, PN 16	Nr	1		
J9	Electromagnetic Water Meters				
J992.1	DN 250 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16, complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	1		
J993.1	DN 500 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16 complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	1		
J994.1	DN 800 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16 complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	2		
J994.2	DN 900 All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter to PN 16 complete with accessories; Minimum Battery Life 6 Years.	Nr	1		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

Page 8 of 20 Bill No. 3.2

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	CLASS K: PIPE WORK - CHAMBERS AND PIPE WORK ANCILLARIES				
	Chambers, ducts, culverts, crossings, thrust and anchor blocks, reinstatement and others pipeworks and ancillaries.				
	Note:- Items for Work in this class shall include:- - Excavation, dewatering, preparation of surfaces, disposal of excavated material, shoring sides of excavation, backfilling and removal of redundant services. - Concrete, reinforcement, formwork, joints and finishes. - Tips for disposal of excavated material or debris to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authorities. - Rate to include for placing and compaction of pipe embedment material below the chamber and filling around pipe before construction of chamber - All Chambers to be fitted with adequate drainage system and permanent ventilation as per details or as directed by Engineer in Site. - Chambers to be fitted with plastic coated step irons or Access ladders as specified; and lockable covers to access manholes, to detail.				
K23	IN SITU CONCRETE CHAMBERS				
K232	Depth 1.5 - 2 m				
K232.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete WASHOUT VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 1200mm x 1200mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/03	Nr	10		
K232.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	4		
K232.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete GATE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 1800mm x 1700mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05-1	Nr	2		
K232.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete ELECTROMANGETIC WATER METER Chamber, internal dimensions 2300mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No.	Nr	1		
K233	Depth 2-2.5 m				
K233.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete WASHOUT VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 1200mm x 1200mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/03	Nr	16		

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K233.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	2		
K234	Depth 2.5-3 m				
K234.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	22		
K234.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete LINE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions not exceeding 2700mm x 2400mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, Vents, drainage system etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	1		
K234.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete LINE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions not exceeding 3500mm x 2400mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, Vents, drainage system etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	1		
K235	Depth 3-3.5 m				
K235.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete LINE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions not exceeding 2700mm x 2400mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, Vents, drainage system etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	2		
K235.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	9		
K235.3	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete ELECTROMAGNETIC METER Chambers internal dimensions 1500mm x 1300mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/06	Nr	2		
K235.4	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete GATE VALVE Chambers internal dimensions 1600mm x 1300mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, vents, drainage system etc . All as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	2		

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K236	Depth 3.5-4 m				
K236.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, plastic coated step irons, Vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	1		
K236.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete LINE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions not exceeding 2700mm x 2400mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, Vents, drainage system etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	1		
K236.3	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete ELECTROMAGNETIC METER Chambers internal dimensions 2400mm x 2800mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, vents, drainage system, etc. All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/06	Nr	1		
K237	Depth exceeding 4 m				
K237.1	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced Concrete AIR VALVE Chambers, internal dimensions 2400mm x 2000mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete slab / cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, step irons, compacted granular fill, vents, drainage system, rendering of exposed blockwork etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/02	Nr	5		
K237.2	Provide all materials and construct Reinforced concrete LINE VALVE Chamber, internal dimensions not exceeding 2700mm x 2400mm. Include for supply and fixing of removable reinforced concrete cover, mild steel frame, lifting / opening mechanism, mild steel CAT Ladder, Vents, drainage system etc . All as specified and as detailed on Drawing No. M430/SD/05	Nr	2		
K25	PRECAST CONCRETE CHAMBERS				
K254	Depth 2.5-3m				
K254.1	Provide all materials and construct Precast Concrete WASHOUT VALVE Surface Box. Include for supply and fixing of Class 30 PCC unit, surface box and lockable cover, 1000x1000x250mm Class 25/20 RC protection slab, compacted granular fill, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length not exceeding 3m, etc. all as detailed on Drawing . No. M430/SD/04	Nr	3		
K255	Depth 3-3.5m				
K255.1	Ditto but depth 3-3.5m, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length not exceeding 3.5m	Nr	7		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K256	Depth 3.5-4m				
K256.1	Ditto but depth 3.4-4m, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length not exceeding 4m	Nr	5		
K257	Depth exceeding 4m				
K257.1	Ditto but depth exceeding 4m, OD 160mm uPVC pipe sleeve, length exceeding 4m	Nr	3		
K6	CROSSINGS				
K63	Under-River Crossings, Width exceeding 10m				
	Details as per Dwg No. M430/SD/10				
K633	Pipe bore 900-1800mm				
K633.1	Note: Items for work shall include: Excavation for foundation in river/stream beds depth n.e 4.0m, preparation of surfaces, disposal of excavated material, upholding sides of excavation, backfilling and removal of redundant services, all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/10, Nominal Bore 1000mm (Provisional)	m	520		
K633.2	Extra over item K633.1 for excavation in rock, depth n.e. 4.0m including preparation of trenches (No blasting permitted) (Provisional)				
K633.2.1	Class 'A'	m ³	40		
K633.2.2	Class 'B'	m ³	450		
K633.2.3	Class 'C'	m ³	250		
K633.3	Transport from Site Store, Install, Test and Commission DN 1000mm ferrous pipes on under-river Crossings, jointing to specifications	m	520		
K633.4	Supply 'Denso Tape' wrapping or approved equivalent. Bidder to include for wrapping at welded joints on the ferrous pipe in two layers as directed by the Engineer.	m²	3,270		
K633.5	Backfill the trench with concrete Class 15/20 surround, include for vibrating as directed by the Engineer all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/10	m ³	985		
K633.6	Backfill the trench with approved selected excavated material compacted in 300mm layers	m ³	550		
K633.7	Backfill trench with approved imported compacted granular material compacted in 300mm layers	m ³	825		
	Gabion Works				
K633.8	Provide all materials and carry out laying of 2m x 1m x 1m Gabions, wire minimum size 5mm or as specified. Gabion boxes to be laid in stretches with 0.5m overlap, mesh wire to be galvanised and minimum diameter 5mm. Include for tying of adjacent gabions with approved wire and 16mm dia anchor rods to suit site conditions (Provisional)	Nr	1,250		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET	<u> </u>		
K633.9	Provide all materials and carry out laying of 0.23 - 0.5m thick gabion mattresses, mesh wire to be galvanised and of minimum diameter 5mm. Include for tying of adjacent gabions with approved wire and 16mm dia anchor rods to suit site conditions (Provisional)	m ²	1,620		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
K633.10	Provide and place rockfill to gabions and mattresses	m ³	3,500		
K633.11	Extra over for infilling of gabions with Class 15 mass concrete	m ³	110		
K633.12	Formwork Provide and fix shutterings including propping, strutting and striking, all as specified.				
	Sawn Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
K633.12.1	Vertical Sides of Concrete in foundation	m ²	2,310		
K633.13	Method Related Charges				
K633.13.1	Allow for diverting River/Stream including construction of cofferdam etc., for river crossing works and reinstate after construction. The River/Stream to be kept operational during construction, width 3 - 6m	Nr	2		
K633.13.2	Allow for keeping excavation free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other means.	Item	LS		
K633.13.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
K7	Reinstatement				
K733.3	Breaking up, temporary and permanent reinstatement of MURRAM road with 300mm thick well graded stabilised gravel with 3% cement base compacted in 150mm thick layers using an 8-10 tonne roller and 150mm deep approved compacted hardcore to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Nominal pipe bore n.e. 1800mm. all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/12. Rates quoted shall be deemed to include for costs incurred on traffic control, signage and safety measures during execution of the works.	m	800		
K743.1	Breaking up temporary and permanent reinstatement of UNPAVED FOOTPATHS. Pipe bore 900mm - 1800mm all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/12	m	400		
K8	Other Pipework Ancillaries				
K821	Marker Posts on Pipeline alignment				
K821.1	Supply and fix marker posts for water main route, road crossings, change of direction, air valves, washouts, and valve chambers. All in accordance with drawings and specifications	Nr	320		
K822 K822.1	Pipeline Wayleave Monumentation Supply and Install wayleave Boundary Indicator Posts at edges of acquired Pipeline Wayleave, to mark full extent of the pipeline wayleave. Wayleave Boundary Indicator Posts details as per drawings, to be installed at approx. intervals of 200m.	Nr.	300		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Wash-out Outfall Rising Pipe				
K87	Provide all materials, fabricate and install washout chamber outfall rising pipe as detailed in drg. No. M430/SD/03. Rate to include for supply of all fittings, jointing, installation and connection to washout tee and valve.	Nr.	30		
K88	Removal and Reinstatement of Existing Hedges, Fences, Walls and Drains				
K88.1	Allow for removal of existing HEDGES and reinstating these after laying of the water mains is completed. (Provisional)	m	500		
K88.2	Allow for breaking up of existing masonry perimeter WALLS approx. 2.5m high, with concrete columns at approx. 3m intervals, and reinstatement after laying of water mains is completed.(Provisional)	m	20		
K88.3	Allow for breaking up of existing FENCES, including but not limited to chain link fence, barbed wire fence, timber, iron sheet, electric fence, etc., and reinstating these after construction of the water mains is completed.	m	250		
K88.4.1	Allow for breaking up of existing UNLINED EARTH DRAINS and reinstating these after construction of the water mains is completed. Include for provision of diverting the drains or water ways and keeping them operational during construction. Depth of Drain n.e. 3m (See Drg. No. M430/SD/19) (Provisional)	m	500		
K88.4.2	-Ditto - but for existing STONE-PITCHED OPEN DRAINS, depth n.e. 3.0m (See Drg. No. M430/SD/19) (Provisional)	m	50		
	CLASS L:- PIPEWORK - SUPPORTS AND PROTECTION, ANCILLARIES TO LAYING AND EXCAVATION				
L1	Extras to excavation and backfilling (Provisional)				
L11	In pipe trench and chambers				
L111.1	Excavation in trench for rock class "A"	m³	1,200		
L111.2	Excavation in trench for rock class "B"	m³	18,000		
L111.3	Excavation in trench for rock class "C"	m³	10,000		
	Note:- Blasting is NOT permitted for Item L11				
L5	Surrounds				
L52	Provide, transport to site and place selected excavated granular fill and compact in bed and surround to pipes as specified and where directed by the Engineer				
L525	To pipes nominal bore: 900 - 1200 mm	m	17,484		
L53	Provide, transport to site and place imported granular fill and compact in bed and surround to pipes as specified and where directed by the Engineer				
L535	To pipes nominal bore: 900 - 1200 mm	m	11,946		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	UEET			

Bill No. 3.2

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
L54	Provide all materials, transport to site and place mass concrete class 15/20 in bed and surround to pipes under road crossings and on shallow pipeline sections as directed by the Engineer. Include for provision, fixing and dismantling of all formwork, vibration of concrete etc. all as per Dwg No. M430/SD/13				
L545	To pipes nominal bore: ne 900 - 1200 mm	m	800		
L7	Concrete Support, Thrust Blocks, Stools and Anchor Blocks				
	Details as per Dwg No. M430/SD/08 - 09 (Provisional)				
	Rates to include for excavation, formwork, provision and placing of concrete, backfilling etc.				
	Class 20/20 Mass Concrete				
	NOTE:- The work includes pipe and fitting fixing				
L73	Volume:- 0.2 - 0.5 m ³				
L734	To pipes nominal bore: 600 -900mm	Nr	8		
L74	Volume:- 0.5 - 1 m ³				
L745	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	95		
L75	Volume:- 1 - 2 m ³				
L755	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	15		
L76	Volume:- 2 - 4 m ³				
L764	To pipes nominal bore: 600 -900mm	Nr	55		
L77	Volume:- 4 - 6 m ³				
L775	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	15		
L78.1	Volume:- 6- 10 m ³				
L785.1.1	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	20		
L78.2	Volume:- exceeding 10m³				
L785.1.2	To pipes nominal bore: 900 -1200mm	Nr	320		
	CLASS V: PAINTING				
V310	Allow for cleaning and painting with 3 coats of approved epoxy paint all exposed Pipework, Fittings, Valves, etc.	m ²	5,470		
	CLASS X: MISCELLANEOUS WORKS				
X4	Gabion Works				
X411	Supply and Install approved Gabion Boxes, size 2m x 1m x 1m mesh wire minimum size 5mm diameter laid in cascading stacks around R.C. piers on aerial crossings, and or as specified, Gabion boxes to be instructed by the Engineer on site, all as directed. Rate to include for supply and packing of approved hardcore into gabion boxes, all to Engineer's approval, as shown on Drg. No. M430/SD/16.	Nr	900		
X421	Ditto - but Gabion Mattresses, thickness 500mm mesh wire 5mm diameter	m ²	1,200		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
<u>X990</u>	EROSION CONTROL AND PROTECTION MEASURES (PROVISIONAL)				
X990.1	Provide all materials and construct mass concrete EROSION CHECKS on steep sloped as specified and according to details given in Drg. No. M430/SD/10.	Nr.	850		
X990.2	Provide all materials and carry out hydraulic mulch Grass seeding to slopes as specified on the drawings, all to Engineer's approval.	m ²	4,500		
X990.3	Supply and plant approved grass on slopes and maintainance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Rate to include for excavation of cut-off drains to divert run-off water from pipe trench alignment.	m ²	9,850		
<u>X991</u>	HEADWALLS, CASCADES AND OUTFALL CHAMBERS				
	Details as per Dwg No. M430/SD/03-04 (Provisional Quantities)				
X991.1	<u>Excavation</u>				
	The rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilising the excavation and preparation of excavated surfaces to receive permanent work.				
	Excavate for foundations, part backfill after construction and remainder, cart away to tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Tips to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authority.				
X991.1.1	Maximum depth n.e. 1.0m	m ³	220		
X991.1.2	-Ditto - depth 1.0 to 1.5m	m ³	230		
X991.1.3	-Ditto - depth exceeding 1.5m	m ³	350		
X991.1.4	E.O. excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' (Provisional)	m ³	16		
X991.1.5	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'B' (Provisional)	m ³	240		
X991.1.6	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'C' (Provisional)	m^3	130		
X991.2	Concrete Works				
	Provide, mix and place concrete as directed				
X991.2.1	Plain concrete Class 15/20 in 50mm blinding layer under bases/treads.	m ²	290		
X991.2.2	Vibrated, Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20 in:-				
X991.2.2.1	Footings	m^3	7		
X991.2.2.2	Bases	m ³	37		
X991.2.2.3	Walls	m ³	37		
X991.2.2.4	Treads	m ³	2		
X991.2.2.5	Risers	m^3	7		
X991.2.2.6	Roof Slabs	m ³	14		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET	<u> </u>		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X991.3	Reinforcement				
	Provide and fix high tensile steel reinforcement to SRN 127 including cutting, bending, propping, with spacers and tying as specified.				
X991.3.1	All diameters	kg	21,700		
X991.4	<u>Formwork</u>				
	Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking all as specified.				
	(i) Vertical Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
X991.4.1	Sides of 200mm treads/ bases/ risers	m	912		
X991.4.2	Sides of footings - width n.e. 0.2m	m	68		
X991.4.3	Sides of footings - width exceeding 0.2m	m²	38		
X991.4.4	External faces of chamber walls/ headwalls - width exceeding 0.2m	m²	530		
	(ii) Vertical Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X991.4.5	Sides of 200mm roof slabs and walls	m	292		
X991.4.6	Internal faces of chamber walls/ headwalls etc	m²	370		
	(iii) Horizontal Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X991.4.7	Soffites of roof slabs and walls	m²	62		
X991.5	Walling				
	Natural Stone Block Walling, Medium Chisel Dressed,				
	Reinforced with 20 swg Hoop Iron at Every Alternate Course,				
	and Bedded, Jointed and Pointed in Cement Mortar (1:4):-				
X991.5.1	200 mm Walling	m ²	83		
X991.6	Plastering				
	12.5mm Thick Gauged Cement Plaster as per specifications on:				
X991.6.1	Natural stone block walling and other surfaces	m ²	166		
X991.7	Miscellaneous Works				
X991.7.1	Provide for and fix plastic coated step irons in rising outfall chambers for Washouts as specified by the Engineer. Details of chamber are in Dwg Nr. M430/SD/04	Nr	110		
X991.7.2	Provide Precast Reinforced Concrete Covers size 600 x 600 x 50mm thick to the rising outlet Chambers.	Nr	12		
X991.8	Method Related Charges				
X991.8.1	Allow for River diversion, for construction of W.O outfall structures including construction of cofferdam etc., for River crossing works and reinstate after construction. The River / Waterway to be kept operational during construction. The Bidder to submit method statement with Bid for execution of these works.	Item	L.S		
X991.8.2	Method related charges for keeping excavation free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other means.	Item	L.S		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HFFT			

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X991.8.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
X992	AERIAL CROSSINGS ON PIERS - 14Nr Crossings				
	Details as per Dwg Nos. M430/SD/13				
	Pipe Nominal Bore n.e 900 - 1800mm				
X992.1	Excavation				
	The rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilising the excavation faces and preparation of excavated surfaces to receive permanent work.				
	Excavate for pier footings on aerial Crossings, part backfill after construction and remainder, cart away to approved tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Tips to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with the Local Authority.				
X992.1.1	Maximum depth n.e. 1.5m	m ³	1,368		
X992.1.2	-Ditto - depth 1.5 to 2.0m	m ³	466		
X992.1.3	-Ditto - depth exceeding 2.0m	m ³	445		
X992.1.4	E.O. excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	50		
X992.1.5	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'B' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	770		
X992.1.6	-Ditto - for excavation in rock Class 'C' (Provisional) - Blasting not permitted	m ³	330		
X992.2	Concrete Works				
	Provide, mix and place concrete as directed Note: Concrete Works at the Mwache Creek Crossing to be carried out using Sulphate Resistant Cement as specified in SRN 104 of the Specifications.				
X992.2.1	Plain concrete Class 15/20 in 75mm blinding layer under pier footings.	m ²	869		
X992.2.2	-Ditto- but 75mm thick, on exposed surface of gabions	m ²	936		
X992.2.3	Vibrated, Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20 in:-				
X992.2.3.1	Footings	m ³	435		
X992.2.3.2	Piers	m ³	897		
X992.3	Reinforcement				
	Provide and fix high tensile steel reinforcement to SRN 127 including cutting, bending, propping, with spacers and tying as specified.				
X992.3.1	12mm and under	kg	74,592		
X992.3.2	16mm and over	kg	111,888		1

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X992.4	Formwork Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking all as specified.				
	(i) Vertical Formwork - Class F1 Finish				
X992.4.1	Sides of 500mm footings	m ²	670		
X992.4.2	Sides of piers in foundations	m ²	1,265		
	(ii) Vertical Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X992.4.3	Outer faces of column piers - width 1.0m - 3.0m	m ²	1,999		
	(iii) Sloping Formwork - Class F2 Finish				
X992.4.4	Sloping face of column head	m ²	2,267		
X992.5	Pipe Support Details				
	Provide all materials, fabricate and install 75mm wide x 15mm thick flat GMS Strap on pipes on piers at Aerial Crossings; Rate to include for supply and installation of Rag Bolts, Rubberoid layers, etc. all as detailed in Drg. No. M430/SD/13; to Engineer's approval.				
X992.5.1	DN 1000	Nr	174		
X992.6	Piling Works for Mwache Creek Crossing				
X992.6.1	Provide all materials and install cylindrical driven and cast-in-situ friction piles, diameter 150mm; to receive pier bases, minimum depth of pile 120m, all as directed by the Structural Engineer on site. Rate to include for provision and placing of vibrated class 25/20 Reinforced Concrete internally in the steel piles, etc. all as directed. Minimum No. of piles per pier is 4Nr. Applicable for the Mwache Creek Crossing only.	Nr	250		
X992.6.2	Allow Method Related Charges for construction of piles and piers with pier bases on piles, and installation of DN 1000 Steel Pipes on Piers across the creek. Rate to include for all method related charges for working within the flooded creek crossing at heights.	Item	L.S		
X992.7	Method Related Charges (Applicable to all River Crossings)				
X992.7.1	Allow for River Diversion Works, including construction of cofferdams etc., for river crossing works and reinstate after construction. The Rivers / Waterways to be kept operational during construction. Bidder to submit method statement with Bid for execution of these works.	Item	L.S		
X992.7.2	Method related charges for keeping excavations free of water which may occur through ground water seepage, rain or other means.	Item	L.S		
X992.7.3	Allow for any other method related charges the Bidder feels may be required. These should be indicated below with pricing of each item.				
	i)	Item	L.S		
	ii)	Item	L.S		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
X993	Miscellaneous Works (Provisional)				
X993.1	Allow Provisional Sum for other Miscellaneous Works that may be required on site to be carried out as directed by the Engineer.	Item	P.S	20,000,000.00	20,000,000.00
X994	CATHODIC PROTECTION FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS:				
	NOTE: THIS ITEM SHOULD ONLY BE PRICED IF THE BIDDER HAS QUOTED FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS. BIDDERS QUOTING FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS SHOULD NOT PRICE FOR THESE ITEMS.				
X994.1	Carry out Detailed Design of Cathodic Protection system for the DN 1000/900 Transmission Pipeline to the South Mainland, total length of pipeline 27.8km. Rate to include for all requisite confirmatory field tests and analysis such as soil resistivity, current drain, natural potential survey, etc., system design and approval.Design to be based on impressed current Cathodic Protection system.	Item	L.S		
X994.2	Supply of all required materials, Installation, Testing and commissioning of the Impressed Current Cathodic Protection system on Steel South Mainland Transmission Pipeline as per approved design, total length of pipeline not exceeding 27.8km.	Item	L.S		
X994.3	Test running and maintenance of the installed Cathodic Protection system for a duration of 1 Year during the Defects Liability Period including training of MOWASSCO staff	Item	L.S		
X995	Interconnection to Existing Marere Pipeline				
X995.1	Allow for identification, exposing, cutting, backfiling and reinstatement after installation of fittings and pipework for interconnection of the existing Marere Pipeline to the proposed South Mainland pipeline. Pipework and fittings provision and installation has been measures in the respective bill items. Pipe Nominal bore DN500	Item	L.S		
X996	WRAPPING OF STEEL FITTINGS AND JOINTS				
	NOTE: THIS ITEM SHOULD ONLY BE PRICED IF THE BIDDER HAS QUOTED FOR STEEL PIPES AND FITTINGS. BIDDERS QUOTING FOR DUCTILE IRON PIPES AND FITTINGS SHOULD NOT PRICE FOR THESE ITEMS.				
X996.1	Provide all materials and wrap all Steel Fittings with approved Petrolatum Tape such as Denso Tape or approved equivalent, including an outwrap applied with atleast 55% overlap. Wrapping to be applied on all Steel Fittings without 3LPE coating, including Bends, Tees, Short Pieces, Tapers, couplings, etc. Application to be carried out as per Manufacture's Specifications, to the Engineer's Approval	m ²	2500		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION S	HEET			

BILL No. 3.2 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 3.2 - SOUTH MAINLAND WATER TRANSMISSION PIPELINE (LINE SM)

PIPELINE CONSTRUCTION

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 20	
Page Total, Page 2 of 20	
Page Total, Page 3 of 20	
Page Total, Page 4 of 20	
Page Total, Page 5 of 20	
Page Total, Page 6 of 20	
Page Total, Page 7 of 20	
Page Total, Page 8 of 20	
Page Total, Page 9 of 20	
Page Total, Page 10 of 20	
Page Total, Page 11 of 20	
Page Total, Page 12 of 20	
Page Total, Page 13 of 20	
Page Total, Page 14 of 20	
Page Total, Page 15 of 20	
Page Total, Page 16 of 20	
Page Total, Page 17 of 20	
Page Total, Page 18 of 20	
Page Total, Page 19 of 20	

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	NOTES:				
	The Proposed Dongo Kundu Reservoir comprises of 2Nr. RC Water Storage Tanks, each of 14,000 m³ Capacity, with a combined capacity of 28,000 m³.				
	This Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 4.1) covers the construction of the Proposed 2Nr. RC Tanks. Other Works within the Reservoir Site are measured separately under Bill Nos. 4.2 and 4.3.				
1	<u>General</u>				
1.1	Water tightness testing of the 2Nr. R.C. Tanks in accordance with specifications, all to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Include for provision of water from approved source, and safe disposal after testing.	Item	L.S		
	Cleaning and sterilization of the 2Nr. RC Tanks in accordance with specifications. Rate to include for provision of water, all required chemicals and carrying out relevant water quality tests as well as safe disposal of used water, all to the Engineer's approval.	Item	L.S		
1.3	Pressure testing, flushing and sterilization of all pipework (inlet pipework, outlet pipework, washout and overflow pipework), etc., for the 2Nr. Tanks, all in accordance with specifications. Rate to include for provision of water, all required chemicals and carrying out relevant water quality tests as well as safe disposal of used water, all to the Engineer's approval.	Item	L.S		
	Compaction Tests (Provisional)				
	Allow for carrying out Compaction tests at formation level of the 2Nr. RC Tanks using the Sand Displacement method or other approved In-situ method. Rate to include for provision of all apparatus, Equipment and Materials and carrying out the test as per standard procedures. Test to be carried out in at least 10Nr. locations, to be selected by the Engineer, within the reservoir bases.	Item	L.S		
	Allow for compaction of formation surfaces deemed to be inadequate upon compaction tests under Item 1.4 above. Rate to include for provision of an adequate capacity vibrating roller compaction equipment and compaction of formation levels to a relative density of 98% MDD, all as per specifications.	m ²	5,600		
2	<u>Earthworks</u>				
	Note: Excavation quantities to be measured from stripped surface / reduced ground levels. Top soil stripping and Mass Excavation for site is measured separately under Bill No 4.3 (Site and Ancillary Works)				
	Rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the excavation faces and keeping the excavation free of water by pumping, bailing or other means.				
	Excavate for the 2Nr. R.C. Tanks from stripped surface / reduced ground levels, part backfill with approved selected material after construction and remainder cart away to approved tips or use as fill on site, all as directed. Tips to be identified by the Contractor in liaison with local authorities.				
2.1	Maximum depth of excavation n.e. 1.0m	m ³	6,600		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
2.2	-Ditto - but excavation depth 1.0m to 2.0m	m ³	6,600		
2.3	-Ditto - but excavation depth 2.0m to 3.0m	m ³	3,600		
2.4	-Ditto - but excavation depth 3.0m to 6.0m	m ³	100		
2.5	Allow for trimming of excavated surface to formation level of Reservoir, to receive plain concrete blinding.	m ²	6,600		
2.6	Extra Over items 2.1 to 2.5 for excavation in rock class 'A', blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	80		
2.7	-Ditto- but for excavation in rock class 'B', blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	2,320		
2.8	-Ditto- but for excavation in rock class 'C', blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	980		
2.9	Provide, place and compact approved imported murram, compacted in 150mm thick layers in making-up levels where unsuitable material is identified, to compaction densities as directed by the Engineer on site, all in accordance to specifications. Contractor to identify suitable borrow pits as source of material. Contractor's Rate to include for compaction tests, transport, provision of compaction equipment, water, etc. and other related charges.	m ³	3,600		
2.10	Provide and place approved hardcore packing, hand-packed and compacted to Engineer's approved, maximum 300mm thick layer. Rate to include for provision, packing and compaction.	m ³	1,800		
3	Concrete Works				
	Provide all materials, mix and place Concrete as directed.				
3.1	Provide and place 75mm thick blinding concrete class 15/20 under Base Slabs and Foundations.	m ²	6,600		
	Guaranteed Strength Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20, maximum aggregate as specified in:-				
3.2	External Wall Bases including key and splay	m ³	1,200		
3.3	Internal Partition Wall Bases	m ³	200		
3.4	Base Slab and Sumps	m ³	840		
3.5	Bases to Columns	m ³	100		
3.6	Bases to Internal Baffle Walls	m ³	30		
3.7	Main External Walls	m ³	960		
3.8	Internal Partition Walls	m ³	200		
3.9	Baffle Walls	m ³	240		
3.10	Columns, including top flared heads	m ³	90		
3.11	250mm thick Roof Slabs, including all Upstands	m ³	1,530		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				-

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Class 20/20 Mass Concrete, maximum aggregate as specified in:-				
3.12	300mm thick Mass Concrete Pad above and below Base Slab at Inlet Pipe discharge point.	m ³	5		
3.13	Surround to pipework and thrust blocks.	m ³	100		
4	Steel Reinforcement				
	Provide and fix high tensile reinforcement to BS 4461, including for cutting, bending, propping with spacers and tying as specified:-				
4.1	Reinforcement; all diameters	Ton	810		
4.2	Fabric Mesh Reinforcement (BRC Class A252)	m²	4,600		
5	<u>Formwork</u>				
	Provide all materials and fix shuttering, including propping, strutting and striking all as specified. Rate to include for formation of chamfers at exposed concrete edges.				
	i) Vertical Formwork Class F1 Finish				
5.1	External sides of base slab, width n.e. 0.3m	m	1,600		
5.2	Both sides of key, width 1 to 1.5m	m ²	1,000		
5.3	External sides of washout and Outlet Pipe Sumps	m ²	100		
	ii) Vertical Formwork Class F3 Finish				
5.4	Both sides of external walls, width n.e. 5.3m	m²	5,600		
5.5	Both sides of internal partition wall base, width n.e. 0.5m	m ²	600		
5.6	Both sides of internal partition wall, width n.e. 5.3m	m ²	1,120		
5.7	Both sides of baffle wall bases, width n.e. 0.25m	m	1,000		
5.8	Both sides of baffle walls, width n.e. 4.7m	m²	4,000		
5.9	Sides of column bases, width n.e. 0.3m	m	1,000		
5.10	Sides of columns, width n.e. 0.3m	m	3,200		
5.11	Internal sides of washout and Outlet Pipe Sumps, width n.e. 1.5m	m ²	100		
5.12	Both sides of overflow chambers, width n.e.1.3m	m ²	60		
5.13	Outer side of roof slab and upstand, width n.e.0.6m	m ²	280		
5.14	Inner side of roof upstand 300mm high	m²	160		
5.15	Inner sides of access manholes, width n.e. 0.6m	m ²	64		
5.16	Outer sides of access manhole upstands 300mm high	m ²	60		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	iii) Sloping Formwork Class F3 Finish				
5.17	Splay of base slab	m ²	840		
5.18	Splay in wall, width n.e. 0.3m	m	1200		
5.19	Splay at column heads, width n.e. 0.5m	m ²	200		
5.20	100mm x 100mm chamfer at overflow chamber, width n.e. 0.1m	m	412		
5.21	20mm x 20mm fillet to form chamfer for all exposed concrete upstands, wall edges, column edges, etc., width n.e. 0.05m	m	5,600		
	iv) Horizontal Formwork Class F3 Finish				
5.22	Soffit of suspended slab	m ²	7,560		
5.23	Soffit of overflow chambers	m ²	10		
	v) Box Outs, Rebates and Drip Mould				
5.24	Form 1200mm x 550mm void for overflow	Nr	4		
5.25	50mm x 50mm rebates on slabs for manhole covers	m	140		
5.26	12mm dia. half round fillet for drip mould round soffit of roof slab overhang	m	560		
5.27	Extra over concrete works for boxouts for pipes nominal bore n.e 900mm and making good after installation of Inlet Pipework	Nr.	4		
5.28	- Ditto-, but for 1020mm x 1020mm Access / Inspection Manholes	Nr.	24		
6	<u>Joints</u>				
	i) Expansion Joints				
6.1	Form 20mm wide x 200mm deep expansion joint including for the following: a) 20mm x 20mm polysulphide sealant on upper face b) Non-absorbent compressible filler material c) 250mm Expadite Supercast Rearguard S PVC waterstop or similar approved	m	450		
	ii) Contraction Joints				
	a) In Base Slabs:				
6.2	Form partial contraction joint in Base Slab including for 20mm x 20mm polysulphide sealant on upper face and 200mm Expadite Supercast Rearguard R PVC waterstop or similar approved.	m	900		
	b) In Wall Bases:				
6.3	Form full contraction joint in wall base including for 20mm x 20mm polysulphide sealant on upper face and 250mm Expadite Supercast Rearguard R PVC waterstop or similar approved.	m	265		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	1	1		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	c) In Walls:				
6.4	Form full contraction joint in wall including for 20mm x 20mm polysulphide sealant on upper face and 250mm Expadite Supercast water foil PVC waterstop or similar approved.	m	40		
	iii) Construction Joints				
	a) In Roof Slabs:				
6.5	Form construction joints in roof slab including for 20mm x 20mm polysulphide sealant in upper face.	m	700		
	b) In Walls:				
6.6	Form construction joint in wall including for 20mm x 20mm polysulphide sealant on inner face and 200mm wide PVC waterstop.	m	1,320		
	iv) Roof Slab / Walls joints				
6.7	Form roof slab / wall joint including for 13mm x 25mm polysulphide joint sealant on both faces, non-compressible joint filler and PSC rubber bearing 3KX or similar approved.	m	700		
	Pipes, Fittings and Valves				
7	Supply, Transport to Site & Store in secure place including Jointing Material, Bolts, Gaskets, Packing, Jointing glue, etc. as applicable				
	A) Inlet Pipework- Approved Lined Ferrous Pipes and Fittings to PN 16				
7.1	900 mm dia. Coupling (Mark A)	Nr	1		
7.2	900 mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1500mm long (Mark B)	Nr	1		
7.3	900 x 600mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark C)	Nr	1		
7.4	600 x 900 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper (Mark D)	Nr	1		
7.5	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 3000mm long. (Mark E)	Nr	5		
7.6	600 mm dia. Coupling (Mark F)	Nr	9		
7.7	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 8000mm long. (cut to suit) (Mark G)	Nr	3		
7.8	600mm dia. All Flanged 90° Bend (Mark H)	Nr	1		
7.9	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000 mm long (Mark I)	Nr	4		
7.10	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 9500mm long. (cut to suit) (Mark J)	Nr	1		
7.11	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 9000mm long. (cut to suit) (Mark K)	Nr	1		
7.12	600mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark L)	Nr	2		
7.13	500mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark L1)	Nr	8		
7.14	600x 500 mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark M)	Nr	4		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
7.15	500mm dia Spigot Flanged Pipe 1200mm long with puddle flange at 600mm from Flanged end. (Mark N)	Nr	2		
7.16	500mm dia. All Flanged Butterfly Valve with extension spindle, headstock and handwheel. (Mark O)	Nr	4		
7.17	500mm dia. All Flanged Dismantling Joint 300mm long. (Mark P)	Nr	4		
7.18	500mm dia All Flanged Flow Control Valve with Integrated Altitude Valve Function. (Mark Q)	Nr	4		
7.19	500mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 2000mm long. (Mark R)	Nr	4		
7.20	500mm dia All Flanged Pipe 1200mm long with puddle flange at 600mm from one end. (Mark S)	Nr	4		
7.21	500mm dia All Flanged Pipe 2300mm long with puddle flange at 750mm from one end. (Mark T)	Nr	4		
7.22	500mm dia Flanged Spigot 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark U)	Nr	4		
7.23	500mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 800mm long (cut to suit). (Mark V)	Nr	2		
7.24	500mm dia All Flanged Pipe 1900mm long with puddle flange at 600mm from one end. (Mark W)	Nr	2		
7.25	500mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 4700mm long. (Mark X)	Nr	4		
7.26	500mm dia Flanged 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark Y)	Nr	8		
7.27	500 mm dia. Coupling (Mark Z)	Nr	2		
7.28	600 mm dia. Blank Flange. (Mark A1)	Nr	2		
	B) Outlet Pipework - Approved Lined Ferrous Pipes and Fittings to PN 16				
7.29	600mm dia. Special Flanged Bellmouth 400mm long with puddle flange 300mm from flanged end. (Mark 1)	Nr	4		
7.30	600mm dia. All Flanged 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark 2)	Nr	6		
7.31	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 5000mm long. (Mark 3)	Nr	4		
7.32	600mm dia. Coupling. (Mark 4)	Nr	15		
7.33	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 1400mm long with puddle flange 800mm from flanged end. (Mark 5)	Nr	4		
7.34	600mm dia all Flanged Butterfly Valve with Extension Spindle, headstock and Handwheel. (Mark 6)	Nr	4		
7.35	600mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark 7)	Nr	4		
7.36	600mm dia Plain Ended Pipe 1400mm long with puddle flange at 800mm from one end. (Mark 8)	Nr	4		
7.37	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 1200mm long. (Mark 9)	Nr	2		
7.38	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 10600mm long (cut to suit). (Mark 10)	Nr	2		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
7.39	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 11)	Nr	6		
7.40	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 11A)	Nr	1		
7.41	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 11300mm long . (Mark 11B)	Nr	1		
7.42	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 2000mm long (cut to suit). (Mark 12)	Nr	2		
7.43	700mm x 600 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper (Mark 13)	Nr	2		
7.44	700 x 600mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark 14)	Nr	2		
7.45	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1500mm long (Mark 15)	Nr	3		
7.46	700mm dia. Coupling. (Mark 16)	Nr	16		
7.47	700mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 17)	Nr	12		
7.48	700mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 4300mm long.(cut to suit) (Mark 18)	Nr	1		
7.49	700mm dia. All Flanged 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark 19)	Nr	1		
7.50	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 5000mm long (cut to suit). (Mark 20)	Nr	1		
7.51	800mm x 700 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper (Mark 21)	Nr	1		
7.52	600mm x 800mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark 22)	Nr	1		
7.53	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 7300mm long (Mark 23)	Nr	1		
7.54	800mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1500mm long (Mark 24)	Nr	1		
7.55	800 mm dia. Coupling (Mark 25)	Nr	1		
7.56	700mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 3200mm long . (Mark 26)	Nr	1		
	C) Washout & Overflow Pipework - Approved Lined Ferrous Pipes and Fittings to PN 16				
	Overflow Pipework				
7.57	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 2700mm long with puddle flange at 100mm from spigot end (Mark 1)	Nr	4		
7.58	700mm dia. All Flanged Special 45° Bend (Mark 2)	Nr	4		
7.59	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 2650mm long with spigot and beveled (Mark 3)	Nr	4		
	Scour Pipework				
	400mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 5500 mm long with puddle flange 100mm from one end (Mark i)	Nr	4		
7.61	400mm dia. Coupling (Mark ii)	Nr	4		
7.62	400mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1200mm long with puddle flange at 540mm from flanged end (Mark iii)	Nr	4		
	400mm dia. All Flanged Butterfly Valve with extended spindle 2200mm long, headstock and handwheel (Mark iv)	Nr	4		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
7.64	400mm dia. Flanged Spigot 90° Bend (plain end cut to suit) (Mark v)	Nr	4		
8	Pipes, Fittings & Valves				
	Transport from Site Store, Lay Joint and Test				
	A) Inlet Pipework- Approved Lined Ferrous Pipes and Fittings to PN 16				
8.1	900 mm dia. Coupling (Mark A)	Nr	1		
8.2	900 mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1500mm long (Mark B)	Nr	1		
8.3	900 x 600mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark C)	Nr	1		
8.4	600 x 900 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper (Mark D)	Nr	1		
8.5	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 3000mm long. (Mark E)	Nr	5		
8.6	600 mm dia. Coupling (Mark F)	Nr	9		
8.7	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 8000mm long. (cut to suit) (Mark G)	Nr	3		
8.8	600mm dia. All Flanged 90° Bend (Mark H)	Nr	1		
8.9	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000 mm long (Mark I)	Nr	4		
8.10	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 9500mm long. (cut to suit) (Mark J)	Nr	1		
8.11	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 9000mm long. (cut to suit) (Mark K)	Nr	1		
8.12	600mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark L)	Nr	2		
8.13	500mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark L1)	Nr	8		
8.14	600x 500 mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark M)	Nr	4		
8.15	500mm dia Spigot Flanged Pipe 1200mm long with puddle flange at 600mm from Flanged end. (Mark N)	Nr	2		
8.16	500mm dia. All Flanged Butterfly Valve with extension spindle, headstock and handwheel. (Mark O)	Nr	4		
8.17	500mm dia. All Flanged Dismantling Joint 300mm long. (Mark P)	Nr	4		
8.18	500mm dia All Flanged Flow Control Valve with Integrated Altitude Valve Function. (Mark Q)	Nr	4		
8.19	500mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 2000mm long. (Mark R)	Nr	4		
8.20	500mm dia All Flanged Pipe 1200mm long with puddle flange at 600mm from one end. (Mark S)	Nr	4		
8.21	500mm dia All Flanged Pipe 2300mm long with puddle flange at 750mm from one end. (Mark T)	Nr	4		
8.22	500mm dia Flanged Spigot 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark U)	Nr	4		
8.23	500mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 800mm long (cut to suit). (Mark V)	Nr	2		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	500mm dia All Flanged Spigot Pipe 1900mm long with puddle flange at 600mm from one end. (Mark W)	Nr	2		
8.25	500mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 4700mm long. (Mark X)	Nr	4		
8.26	500mm dia Flanged 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark Y)	Nr	8		
8.27	500 mm dia. Coupling (Mark Z)	Nr	2		
8.28	600 mm dia. Blank Flange. (Mark A1)	Nr	2		
	B) Outlet Pipework - Approved Lined Ferrous Pipes and Fittings to PN 16				
8.29	600mm dia. Special Flanged Bellmouth 400mm long with puddle flange 300mm from flanged end. (Mark 1)	Nr	4		
8.30	600mm dia. All Flanged 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark 2)	Nr	6		
8.31	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 5000mm long. (Mark 3)	Nr	4		
8.32	600mm dia. Coupling. (Mark 4)	Nr	15		
	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 1400mm long with puddle flange 800mm from flanged end. (Mark 5)	Nr	4		
8.34	600mm dia all Flanged Butterfly Valve with Extension Spindle, headstock and Handwheel. (Mark 6)	Nr	4		
8.35	600mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark 7)	Nr	4		
8.36	600mm dia Plain Ended Pipe 1400mm long with puddle flange at 800mm from one end. (Mark 8)	Nr	4		
8.37	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 1200mm long. (Mark 9)	Nr	2		
8.38	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 10600mm long (cut to suit). (Mark 10)	Nr	2		
8.39	600mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 11)	Nr	6		
8.40	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 11A)	Nr	1		
8.41	600mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 11B)	Nr	1		
8.42	600mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 2000mm long (cut to suit). (Mark 12)	Nr	2		
8.43	700mm x 600 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper (Mark 13)	Nr	2		
8.44	700 x 600mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark 14)	Nr	2		
8.45	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1500mm long (Mark 15)	Nr	3		
8.46	700mm dia. Coupling. (Mark 16)	Nr	16		
8.47	700mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 17)	Nr	12		
8.48	700mm dia Flanged Spigot Pipe 4300mm long.(cut to suit) (Mark 18)	Nr	1		
8.49	700mm dia. All Flanged 90 ⁰ Bend (Mark 19)	Nr	1		
8.50	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 5000mm long (cut to suit). (Mark 20)	Nr	1		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET				
8.51	800mm x 700 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper (Mark 21)	Nr	1		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	AMOUNT
No.				(Kshs)	(Kshs)
8.52	600mm x 800mm dia. All Flanged Special Tee (Mark 22)	Nr	1		
8.53	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 7400mm long (Mark 23)	Nr	1		
8.54	800mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1500mm long (Mark 24)	Nr	1		
8.55	800 mm dia. Coupling (Mark 25)	Nr	1		
8.56	700mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 12000mm long . (Mark 26)	Nr	1		
	C) Washout & Overflow Pipework - Approved Lined Ferrous Pipes and Fittings to PN 16				
	Overflow Pipework				
8.57	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 2700mm long with puddle flange at 100mm from spigot end (Mark 1)	Nr	4		
8.58	700mm dia. All Flanged Special 45° Bend (Mark 2)	Nr	4		
8.59	700mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 2650mm long with spigot and beveled (Mark 3)	Nr	4		
	Scour Pipework				
	400mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 5500 mm long with puddle flange 100mm from one end (Mark i)	Nr	4		
8.61	400mm dia. Coupling (Mark ii)	Nr	4		
8.62	400mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1200mm long with puddle flange at 540mm from flanged end (Mark iii)	Nr	4		
8.63	400mm dia. All Flanged Butterfly Valve with extended spindle 2200mm long, headstock and handwheel (Mark iv)	Nr	4		
8.64	400mm dia. Flanged Spigot 90° Bend (plain end cut to suit) (Mark v)	Nr	4		
9	<u>Metalwork</u>				
	All Galvanized Steelwork to be completely cleaned by acid dipping prior to galvanizing.				
	Supply and Install:				
9.1	Stainless steel ladders, height n.e. 6000mm installed internally in Reservoir, all as per details on Drg No. M430/SD/05-2	Nr	8		
9.2	Stainless steel ladders, height n.e. 6000mm installed externally in Reservoir, all as per details on Drg No. M430/SD/05-2	Nr	8		
9.3	Lockable mild steel chequered plate covers over inspection manholes to Reservoir size 1000mm x 1000mm. Rate to include for fabrication, installation, painting work, etc., all to Engineer's approval.	Nr	20		
9.4	-Ditto- but lockable mild steel chequered plate covers over access manholes to Reservoir size 1000mm x 1000mm. Rate to include for fabrication, installation, painting work, etc., all to Engineer's approval.	Nr	4		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET		<u>. </u>		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

10.1 50 10.2 15 No 10.3 St St 10.4 St ro 10.5 St wt W at	Provide and lay 500 gauge polythene sheeting in blinding for Base Slabs 150mm thick layer of pumice on roof of Reservoirs as per details in Drg. No. M30/MP/SR/DKR/04 Supply and Install vent pipes on roof of Reservoirs embedded into Roof Slabs Supply and install 80mm dia. uPVC drain pipes at base of parapet wall on oof slabs at 2m c/c Supply and install floating type calibrated staff depth measuring Gauge for vater level monitoring in the Reservoirs. Nater Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments. ASSOCIATED CHAMBERS AND PIPELINES	m² m² Nr Nr m²	6,600 6,600 50 280 4	
10.1 50 10.2 15 No 10.3 St SI 10.4 St ro 10.5 St with W at 10.6 Ep	Supply and install 80mm dia. uPVC drain pipes at base of parapet wall on oof slabs at 2m c/c Supply and install floating type calibrated staff depth measuring Gauge for vater level monitoring in the Reservoirs. Nater Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent. Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir lnlet Compartments.	m² Nr Nr Nr	6,600 50 280 4	
10.2 15 No Start 10.4 Start 10.5 Start 10.5 Water 10.6 Ept 10.6 Ep	I 50mm thick layer of pumice on roof of Reservoirs as per details in Drg. No. M30/MP/SR/DKR/04 Supply and Install vent pipes on roof of Reservoirs embedded into Roof Slabs Supply and install 80mm dia. uPVC drain pipes at base of parapet wall on oof slabs at 2m c/c Supply and install floating type calibrated staff depth measuring Gauge for water level monitoring in the Reservoirs. Water Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.	m² Nr Nr Nr	6,600 50 280 4	
10.3 Su SI 10.4 Su ro 10.5 Su wa W ar	Supply and Install vent pipes on roof of Reservoirs embedded into Roof Slabs Supply and install 80mm dia. uPVC drain pipes at base of parapet wall on of slabs at 2m c/c Supply and install floating type calibrated staff depth measuring Gauge for vater level monitoring in the Reservoirs. Water Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.	Nr Nr Nr	50 280 4	
10.4 Su ro 10.5 Su wa Water 10.6 Ep	Supply and install 80mm dia. uPVC drain pipes at base of parapet wall on oof slabs at 2m c/c Supply and install floating type calibrated staff depth measuring Gauge for vater level monitoring in the Reservoirs. Nater Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.	Nr Nr	280	
10.5 Su wa	Supply and install floating type calibrated staff depth measuring Gauge for water level monitoring in the Reservoirs. Water Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.	Nr	4	
wa w	Water Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.			
10.6 E _i	Epoxy wall and floor coating, 'MASTERTOP 1110T' or approved equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.	m²	4,700	
	equivalent, on internal surfaces of Reservoir Inlet Compartments.	m²	4,700	
ec	ASSOCIATED CHAMBERS AND PIPELINES			
11 <u>A</u>				
	Reinforced Concrete Inlet, Outlet, Scour and Overflow Chambers to Storage Reservoir and Meter Chamber			
- 4 C	 4 Nr. Reinforced concrete Inlet Valve Chambers, dimensions 4850 x 1700 x 5000mm deep. 4 Nr. Reinforced concrete Outlet Valve Chambers, dimensions 1800 x 2000 x 4250mm deep. 6 Nr. Reinforced concrete Scour and Overflow Chambers, dimensions 3000 x 3000 x 4300mm deep. 			
<u>E</u> ;	Excavation			
ex	The rates should include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the excavation faces and keeping the excavation free of water by pumping, pailing or other means.			
	Excavate for foundations, part backfill after construction and remainder cart away to tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer.			
11.1 M	Maximum depth n.e. 1.0m	m ³	110	
11.2 M	Maximum depth 1.0m to 2.0m	m ³	110	
11.3 M	Maximum depth 2.0m to 3.0m	m ³	82	
11.4 M	Maximum depth 3.0m to 6.0m	m ³	34	
	Extra over items 11.1 to 11.4 for excavation in rock Class 'A'. Blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	3.2	
	Ditto - but for excavation in rock Class 'B'. Blasting not permitted Provisional).	m ³	44	
	Ditto - but for excavation in rock Class 'C'. Blasting not permitted Provisional).	m ³	20	
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	l		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Supply all Materials, Mix and Place Mass Concrete Class 15/20mm Maximum Aggregate as Specified in:-				
11.8	75mm thick blinding concrete layer under Base Slabs.	m ²	202		
	Supply all Materials, Mix and Place Guaranteed Strength Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20mm Maximum Aggregate as Specified in:-				
11.9	Base slabs	m^3	52		
11.10	Vertical Walls	m ³	152		
11.11	Roof Slabs	m ³	40		
	Supply all Materials, Mix and Place Mass Concrete Class 20/20mm Maximum Aggregate as Specified in:-				
11.12	Mass concrete stools	m^3	4		
11.13	Mass concrete benching	m ³	8		
	Reinforcement				
	Provide and Fix High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to SRN 127, Including Cutting, Bending, Propping with Spacers and Tying as Specified:-				
11.14	Reinforcement, all diameters	ton	35		
	Formwork				
	Provide and Fix Shuttering including Propping, Strutting and Striking, all as Specified:-				
	Sawn Formwork - Class F1 finish				
11.15	Vertical formwork, width n.e 300mm	m	280		
11.16	Vertical formwork, width exceeding 300mm	m ²	630		
	Wrot Formwork - Class F3 finish				
11.17	Vertical formwork, width n.e 300mm	m	210		
11.18	Vertical formwork, width exceeding 300mm	m ²	560		
11.19	Horizontal formwork, width exceeding 300mm	m²	120		
11.20	Extra over concrete works for boxouts for pipes nominal bore n.e 900mm and making good after installation of pipework.	Nr.	36		
11.21	- Ditto-, but for 1020mm x 1020mm Access Manhole	Nr.	20		
	Metal Work				
11.22	Provide all materials and fix Stainless Steel ladder, depth n.e 3m internally in chambers, as per detail in Drg. No. M430/SD/05-2	Nr.	4		
11.23	Ditto but Chamber depth 3 - 5.0m internally as per detail in Drg. No. M430/SD/05-2	Nr.	8		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET		1		
11.24	Provide and fix lockable G.M.S checkered plate cover to chamber size 1020 x 1020 as per details on Drg. No. M430/SD/17-18	Nr.	20		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)	
	Miscellaneous Works					
	Provide and fix 150mm dia uPVC vent pipes to reinforced concrete wall, with plastic coated metal gauze fitted at both ends	Nr.	112			
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET					

BILL No. 4.1 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEM IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 13	
Page Total, Page 2 of 13	
Page Total, Page 3 of 13	
Page Total, Page 4 of 13	
Page Total, Page 5 of 13	
Page Total, Page 6 of 13	
Page Total, Page 7 of 13	
Page Total, Page 8 of 13	
Page Total, Page 9 of 13	
Page Total, Page 10 of 13	
Page Total, Page 11 of 13	
Page Total, Page 12 of 13	
Page Total, Page 13 of 13	
Bill No. 4.1 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary Sheet	

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
1	SUBSTRUCTURE Excavations and Earthworks				
	The rates shall include for all strutting, shuttering, stabilizing the excavation faces and keeping the excavation free of water by pumping, bailing or other means				
	Bulk excavations and top soil stripping for all structures are measured under Bill No. 4.3 - Site and Ancillary Works.				
	Excavate below stripped level/ reduced level for foundations in common material, part backfill after construction and remainder, cart away to tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer				
	Excavation Depth n.e 1.5m deep starting from stripped level/ reduced level to receive:-				
1.1	Foundations	m ³	35		
	Extra over Excavation in any position for Excavation in Rock (Blasting not permitted)				
1.2	Excavation in Rock Class A (Provisional)	m ³	1		
1.3	Ditto- But Rock Class B (Provisional)	m ³	7		
1.4	Ditto- But Rock Class C (Provisional)	m ³	3		
	Approved selected Filling				
1.5	Fill and ram selected excavated materials around foundations and buildings	m ³	6		
	Approved Imported Fill as described:-				
1.6	Provide and deposit approved imported murram in maximum 150mm thick compacted layers in making up levels over 300mm thick. Rate to include for compaction to the Engineer's approval	m ³	8		
1.7	Provide and place hand-packed 300mm thick layer of approved hardcore fill material in making up levels including achieving satisfactory compaction	m ²	22		
1.8	Provide, lay and level out, 50mm thick fine crushed stone, sand or gravel blinding to surface of filling, including watering and rolling to achieve satisfactory compaction	m ²	22		
	Disposal of Surplus Spoil:-				
1.9	Cart away surplus excavated materials to an approved dumping site	m ³	25		
	Anti-Termite Treatment				
1.10	Chemical anti-termite treatment to surface of filling with approved insecticide	m ²	26		
	Damp-proof Membrane				
1.11	500 Gauge polythene sheeting, laid over hardcore	m²	26		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

	Concrete Work:			(Kshs)
	Mass Concrete Class 15/20mm Maximum Aggregate as Specified in:-			
1.12	50mm thick blinding concrete under foundation concrete	m ²	26	
	Guaranteed Strength Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20mm Maximum Aggregate as Specified in:-			
	Foundation trenches, columns and piers combined with foundation trenches	m ³	15	
1.14	Columns and piers combined with foundation trenches	m³	3	
1.15	Entrance Ramp	m ³	2	
	Reinforcement			
	Fabric Reinforcement No. A142 Mesh Size 150 x 150mm Weighing 2.22 kgs Per m ² , Including Bends, Tying Wire and Distance Blocks:-			
	Fabric reinforcement with minimum 150mm wide side and end laps, laid in bed	m ²	22	
	Provide and Fix High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to BS 4449 including cutting, bending, propping with spacers and tying as specified:-			
1.17	Reinforcement, all diameters	Ton	3	
	<u>Formwork</u>			
	Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking, all as specified			
	Sawn Formwork - Class F1 Finish:-			
1.18	Vertical sides of columns in foundations	m ²	23	
	Wrot Formwork - Class F3 Finish:-			
1.19	Edges of entrance ramp (150mm high)	m	17	
1 70 1	Raking open string edge of entrance steps 325mm (extreme) high including cutting top edge to profile of treads and risers	m	2	
	<u>Walling</u>			
	Natural Stone Block Walling, Medium Chisel Dressed, Reinforced with 20 swg Hoop Iron at every alternate course, and Bedded, Jointed and Pointed in Cement Mortar (1:3):-			
1.21	200 mm Walling	m ²	32	

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
2	SUPERSTRUCTURE				
	CONCRETE, FORMWORK, REINFORCEMENT				
	<u>Concrete</u>				
	Guaranteed Strength Reinforced Concrete Class 25/20mm as Described in:				
2.1	Ground Floor Base Slab	m ³	5		
2.2	First Floor Slab	m ³	5		
2.3	Columns	m ³	5		
2.4	Beams	m ³	7		
2.5	External Stairs, Landings and Stair Beams	m ³	4		
2.6	200mm Thick Mixing Platform Slab	m ³	1		
2.7	200mm Thick Tank Base slab	m ³	1		
2.8	200mm Thick Walls	m ³	5		
2.9	100mm Thick Tank Wall	m ³	1		
2.10	100mm Thick Doser platform	m ³	1		
2.11	Provide all materials and form scour and dosing pipework channel with 150mm thick RC walls internal size 300mm wide x 150mm deep in concrete floor slab including forming rebate 50mm wide x 50mm deep to top inner edges of channel wall to receive precast concrete cover slabs.	m	7		
2.12	Labour and material in forming lip in mixing tank concrete walls and partitions, lip 75mm wide x 150mm high with 75 x 75mm chamfered bottom edge	m	5		
	Formwork				
	Provide and fix shuttering including propping, strutting and striking, all as specified				
	Sawn Formwork - Class F1 Finish :-				
2.13	Horizontal and Sloping formwork	m ²	16		
	Wrot Formwork - Class F3 Finish :-				
2.14	Vertical sides of slab and tank walls	m ²	40		
2.15	Vertical sides of Columns and Beams	m ²	85		
2.16	Horizontal Formwork for first floor slab soffit	m ²	18		
2.17	Sloping Soffit of Stairs	m ²	5		
	I AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE		1		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Reinforcement				
	Provide and Fix High Tensile Steel Reinforcement to BS 4449 including cutting, bending, propping with spacers and tying as specified:				
2.18	Reinforcement, all diameters	Kg	5,150		
	Precast Reinforced Concrete (1:2:4) with minimum cube strength of 14 N/square millimetre at 7 days and 21 N/ square millimetre at 28 days as described in:				
2.19	Channel cover slab 300mm long x 300mm wide x 75mm thick including setting in formed rebate on top of channel	Nr	20		
2.20	Cover slab 300mm long x 900mm wide x 100mm thick including setting in formed rebate on top of SCOUR/OVERFLOW Chamber	Nr	3		
2.21	PCC Slab 600 x 600mm wide x 100mm thick around the building	m ²	55		
3	WALLING				
	Natural Stone Block Walling, Medium Chisel Dressed, Reinforced with 20swg Hoop Iron at Every Alternate Course and Bedded, Jointed and Pointed in Cement Mortar(1:3)				
3.1	200mm Thick walling	m ²	60		
	<u>Labours</u>				
3.2	Extra over walling for ruled horizontal joints	m^2	60		
	Precast Concrete Cills :-				
3.3	200mm Thick × 275mm precast concrete cill bedded, jointed and pointed in cement mortar on top of 200mm wall.	m ²	12		
	Damp -Proof Course:				
	Bituminous Felt Damp-Proof Course as Described:-				
3.4	200mm Wide under walls	m	30		
3.5	Plinths 15mm Cement and sand (1:4) render to plinth walls, finished with wood float	m ²	10		
	Prepare and apply two coats of bituminous paint on rendered plinth walls				
	Precast Reinforced Concrete (1:2:4) Lintel 200mm Deep Reinforced with 4 No.10mm Diameter Mild Steel Bars and 6mm Diameter Mild Steel Link at 20mm Centres, Finished Smooth on all Exposed Surfaces, Including all Moulds and Formwork, Hoisting, Bedding and Flush Pointing in Cement and Sand Mortar (1:4):-				
3.6	Lintel 200mm wide × 1000mm long	Nr	2		
	Precast Concrete Louvre Block Walling :-				
3.7	200mm Thick louvre block walling with twin section with plastic coated coffee tray wire sandwiched between sections	m ²	8		
P	AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
4	ROOF COVERINGS				
	Single lap interlocking coloured concrete roofing tiles on and including sawn cypress (Grade 2) battens size 40 x 40mm pressure impregnated with approved preservative:-				
4.1	Roof tiles	m ²	50		
	Extra over roofing tiles for:-				
4.2	Ridge capping including bedding and pointing in cement sand (1:4) mortar with colouring to match colour of tiles	m	8		
4.3	Filled ends of ridge capping	Nr	2		
4.4	28 Gauge galvanized plain sheeting laid in two layers as underlay and nailed to rafters	m ²	50		
4.5	Fair raking cutting roofing tiles	m	21		
4.6	Fair raking cutting corrugated sheet roofing	m	21		
5	CARPENTRY AND JOINERY				
	<u>Carpentry</u>				
	Roof Timbers				
	Double Pitch Roof Truss in Sawn Cypress Grade II Seasoned and Pressure Impregnated with Wood Preservative and timber joints with bolted and nailed connections to the Engineer's approval:-				
	Equal scissor truss 6000mm clear span and 900mm high with 600mm eaves projection, in 200 x 50mm rafters and 150 x 50mm sloping ceiling joists	Nr	3		
	Other Roof Members				
	Sawn Cypress Grade II Maximum Moisture Content 12% Seasoned and Pressure Impregnated with Wood Preservative and timber joints with bolted and nailed connections to the Engineer's approval:-				
5.2	100 x 50mm Intermediate rafters	m	40		
5.3	150 x 50mm Purlins	m	55		
5.4	200 x 50mm Ridge board	m	6		
5.5	100 x 50mm Wall plate tied to wall with 20 s.w.g. hoop iron at 900mm centres	m	17		
5.6	Scarfed joint to 200 x 50mm timber member	Nr	5		
5.7	Scarfed joint to 150 x 50mm timber member	Nr	4		
	<u>Sundries</u>				
5.8	Bed wall plate in cement mortar (1:3)	m	17		
	AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	<u>Joinery</u>				
	General Timbers				
	Wrot Prime Grade Cypress				
5.9	250 x 40mm Fascia board	m	24		
6	CEILING				
	12mm Thick Gypsum Board or Approved Equivalent Fixed to and including 50 x 50mm Sawn Cypress Grade 2 Battens at 600mm Centres in Both Directions Complete with Gauge Jointing and filler Material				
6.1	Ceiling laid to slope n.e 15 degrees fixed to underside of trusses	m ²	35		
6.2	12mm Cornice 50mm high laid to slope, plugged	m	16		
6.3	Extra over ceiling lining for forming removable access trap door size 600 x 600mm with 100 x 38 mm sawn treated cypress trimming joists between tie beams,120 x 20mm (finished) wrot cypress frame all round and 20mm blockboard removable panel set loose on top of framing	Nr	1		
7	METALWORK				
	Steel Doors				
	Pressed Metal Louvre Doors				
	Supply and Fix the following Pressed Metal Louvre Doors with 100 x 50mm Stiles and Top Rails, 150 x 50mm Middle and Bottom Rails With Pressed Metal Infill Louvres and 100 x 50mm Pressed Metal Frames, Including Hinges, Pad Bolts and Tower Bolts, All To Manufacturer's Details, with one coat lead oxide primer complete with opening accessories including bedding and pointing around frames in cement mortar:-				
7.1	Double door size 1200 x 2400 mm high in two equal panels (D2a)	Nr	1		
7.2	Single door size 900 x 2400 mm high (D2b)	Nr	1		
	uPVC Casement Windows				
	Supply and Fix the following Standard Section PVC Casement Windows, including 4mm Thick Clear Sheet Glass glazed to uPVC Casements with Putty, Complete with Opening Accessories, Including Building in Lugs to Jambs and Head and Water-Proofing and Filling Around Opening with Approved Compound; and Including Burglar-Proofing Fabricated from 12 x 12mm Mild Steel Square Bars at 150mm Centres Vertically and 150mm Horizontally and Fixed Internally to Surrounding Wall with 12mm Mild Steel Fish-Tailed Lugs at Maximum 600mm Centres; all Finished with Three Coats Oil Paint, :-				
7.3	Window size 1197 x 1197mm high with 3 equal panels, with upper part having 2nr fixed and 1nr. top being ventilator and lower half having 2nr. side hung panels opening outwards and 1nr. fixed panel	Nr	2		
P.	AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
7.4	Window size 1197 x 597mm high steel casement window in 3 equal panels with 1No. Fixed and 2No top hung panels opening outwards (W5)	Nr	2		
	Balustrades and Railings				
	Balustrade Unit 1000mm High comprising 40mm Diameter				
	Galvanized Pipe Top, Middle and Bottom Rails and 40mm Diameter Galvanized Pipe Balusters Spaced at Maximum 1000mm centres and bottom end bent, fanged and built into mortice in concrete, including all necessary Welding:-				
7.5	Raking Balustrade unit 9000mm long, 6000mm and 3000mm	m	10		
7.6	Level Balustrade unit 6000mm long, 4500mm and 1500mm	m	4		
	RENDERING				
	12.5mm Thick Cement and Sand Render as described externally on :-				
7.7	Columns	m^2	45		
7.8	Horizontal sides and soffites of beams	m ²	24		
8	PLASTERING				
	12.5mm Thick Gauged Cement Plaster as described internally				
	on :-	2	450		
8.1	Concrete or blockwork	m ²	150		
8.2	Reveals of openings	m ²	5		
8.3	Sloping soffites of ramp not exceeding 15 degrees from horizontal	m²	5		
8.4	Sloping soffites of staircase exceeding 15 degrees from horizontal	m ²	5		
8.5	Horizontal soffites of suspended slabs	m^2	5		
	<u>Screeds</u>				
	Bonded cement and sand (1:4) screed bed in one coat, well bonded to concrete base as described:-				
8.6	38mm Thick screed laid level to receive granito floor tiling (measured separately)	m ²	80		
8.7	12mm (minimum) Thick Cement and sand backing (1:4) with approved plasticiser to receive granito floor laid to skirtings, treads and risers (measured separately)	m ²	40		
	Bonded cement and sand (1:4) screed bed in one coat with approved hardener incorporated in the mix, well bonded to concrete base as described:-				
8.8	38mm Thick screed laid level to receive epoxy lining (measured separately)	m ²	50		
8.9	150 x 20mm Thick skirting with hardener laid with a square top edge and coved junction with floor finish	m	45		
P	AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	Floor Tiling				
	Acid-proof Granito Floor Tiles :-				
8.10	Floor tiles laid on screed (measured separately) with straight joints both ways	m ²	85		
8.11	Tiles laid to risers and treads of steps on screed (measured separately) with straight joints both ways	m ²	24		
8.12	Tiles laid as skirting 150mm high	m	40		
8.13	Provide and fix 12mm thick Acrilin Tank Wall Tiles fixed with tile adhesive with straight joints both ways	m ²	50		
	Water Based Epoxy Floor and Wall Coating as 'MASTERTOP 1110T' applied strictly in accordance with the Manufacturer's printed instruction:-				
8.14	Coating laid to floors	m ²	39		
8.15	Coating laid to mixing tank walls and partitions	m ²	18		
8.16	Coating laid to vertical skirting or upstand surfaces	m ²	22		
9	<u>GLAZING</u>				
	4mm Thick Clear Sheet Glass And Glazing to Upvc Casements with putty in panes:-				
9.1	0.10 - 0.50 Square metres	m ²	2		
9.2	0.50 - 1.00 Square metres	m ²	3		
10	PAINTING AND DECORATING				
	Prepare, Knot, Prime, Stop and Apply Three Coats First Quality Gloss Paint to Wood Surfaces				
	Externally on:-				
10.1	General surfaces of fascia boards	m ²	6		
	Prepare, Touch up Primer and Apply Three Coats Gloss Paint:				
	Externally on:-				
10.2	General surfaces of louvred metal doors (measured flat overall)	m ²	15		
10.3	Surfaces of Balustrades and Railings	m	12		
	Internally on:-				
10.4	General surfaces of louvred metal doors (measured flat overall)	m ²	11		
10.5	Balustrades and Railings	m	14		
	Prepare and apply Three Coats Exterior Quality Plastic Emulsion Paint:-				
	Externally on:-				
10.6	Fair-faced vertical concrete columns	m ²	38		
Р	AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE		1		

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
10.7	Fair-faced horizontal sides and soffites of beams	m^2	16		
	Prepare and apply Three Coats Interior Quality Plastic Emulsion Paint:-				
	Internally on:-				
10.8	Plastered concrete or blockwork	m^2	118		
10.9	Ditto reveals of openings	m^2	6		
10.10	Ditto sloping soffites of ramp n.e 15° from horizontal	m²	5		
10.11	Ditto sloping soffites of staircase exceeding 15 ° from horizontal	m ²	5		
10.12	Ditto raking open string edge of staircase 295mm (extreme) high	m	2		
10.13	Plastered horizontal soffites of suspended slabs	m ²	18		
	Prepare and Apply Three Washable Distemper as Described to:-				
10.14	Sloping soffites of suspended plasterboard ceilings	m ²	40		
11	CHLORINE MIXING TANKS				
	Note: All technical details including type, material, specification, etc. to be submitted with Tender for all Chlorine mixing equipment and pipework. Non-submission of above requirement will result in equipment to be supplied to approval of the Engineer and cost quoted will deem to include required approved materials & equipment				
11.1	Provide and place 6mm stainless steel chemical dissolving tray as per details on Drg. No. M430/MP/SR/DK/CSMB/03	Nr	2		
	Ranges in Chlorine mixing tanks in chlorination building				
	Supply all equipment to site, store, install, test, commission and maintain the following ranges and equipment, including all nuts, bolts, washers, packing etc.				
11.2	Three ranges complete of 25mm uPVC pipework for water supply to chlorine mixing tanks including for making connection to domestic water supply main as per details	Item	L.S		
11.3	Three ranges complete of 50mm diameter uPVC pipes and fittings for outlet from Chlorine mixing tanks to solution feed dosers as per details	Item	L.S		
11.4	Two ranges complete of 80mm diameter uPVC pipes and fittings for overflow and for washout from Chlorine mixing tanks to SCOUR/OVERFLOW chamber as per details. Include for all anchoring and supporting of all pipework and fittings	Item	L.S		
11.5	Two ranges of pipework of 40mm diameter reinforced nylon pipe from chlorine mixing tank to 4Nr Inlet Points of Tanks; total length n.e 60m	Item	L.S		
11.6	Two ranges of 150mm dia. uPVC Pipe Sleeves from Chlorine Mixing Building to Inlet Points of 2Nr Tanks. Estimated total length 100m	Item	L.S		
P	 AGE TOTAL CARRIED TO BILL COLLECTION PAGE				

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

ITEM	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	AMOUNT
No.				(Kshs)	(Kshs)
	Provide and fix approved "Epofloor" lining in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions				
11.7	5mm lining to bottom of mixing tanks	m ²	3		
11.8	5mm lining to sides of mixing tanks	m ²	3		
11.9	Provide and fix gravity feed chemical dosers for hypochlorite solution dosing. Dosing Rate up to 100 ml/s, FRO Type or approved equivalent complete with outlet funnels, etc.	Nr	2		
11.10	Provide and fix 300mm diameter exhaust extractor fan to be fixed in the chlorine mixing room and chlorine store	Nr	3		
11.11	Provide and fix hand driven mixers for Chlorine Mixing Tanks. The plate, paddle and shaft to be of non-corrosive material. Include for fixing on tanks as shown on Drg. No. M430/MP/SR/CHR/CMSB/03	Nr	2		
11.12	detailed	nr	2		
12	SCOUR / OVERFLOW DRAINAGE				
12.1	Provide all materials and form Scour Chamber internal size 1200mm long x1200mm wide x 1000mm deep made out of 150mm thick reinforced concrete class 25/20 base slab and 200mm thick masonry walls including forming rebate 50mm wide x 50mm deep to top inner edges of the chamber wall to receive a precast concrete cover as shown on Drg. No. M430/MP/SR/DK/CSMB/02.	Nr	3		
12.2	Excavate, provide, lay and joint 150mm dia uPVC Flexible Jointed Drain Pipes, backfill after laying of pipes and cart away surplus to tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Depth n.e	m	100		
12.3	Supply and install, including excavation, etc 1No Chemical Soakaway Pit / Radial Arms including Inlet Chambers and Pipework, etc all as per Supplier's instructions.	Item	L.S		

BILL No. 4.2 COLLECTION SHEET

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEM IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL NO 4.2 - CHLORINE MIXING AND STORAGE BUILDING

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 10	
Page Total, Page 2 of 10	
Page Total, Page 3 of 10	
Page Total, Page 4 of 10	
Page Total, Page 5 of 10	
Page Total, Page 6 of 10	
Page Total, Page 7 of 10	
Page Total, Page 8 of 10	
Page Total, Page 9 of 10	
Page Total, Page 10 of 10	
Bill No. 4.2 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary Sheet	

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
1	ADMINISTRATION BUILDING/ R.E'S OFFICE				
1.1	Excavate for Foundations, supply all materials and construct Administration Building / Resident Engineer's Office as per Drg. No. M430/DK-REO/01,02,03&04 and Clause 801 of the Particular Specifications, including maintenance, water supply, sewerage, drainage, electrical supply, telephone, internet, and other facilities, all as specified, during use as the Resident Engineer's Office. The Building, furniture and equipment to revert to Employer at the end of the Contract. Include for all water supply and water borne sanitation including waste pipes, inspection chambers, Septic Tank etc. Include for KPLC Power Supply with a Meter Board. Building to be constructed using permanent building materials as per Ministry of Public Works Building By-laws or approved equivalent. Note: This is to be done as Priority Works within the first 16 Weeks after date of Mobilization. Floor area approx. 220m ²	Item	L.S		
2	DEMOLITION AND SITE CLEARANCE			,	
	The Employer has no available land to offer for dumping of spoil, construction debris or demolished materials. Identification of and all accruing costs related to securing suitable area of land for dumping is the responsibility of the Contractor. Dumping and spreading is to be done in accordance with existing National Legislation and Local Authority's by-laws. The Contractor to allow for this aspect of Work in his excavation, demolition and cart away to tips rates				
	Excavation shall include for all strutting, shoring sides, stabilizing excavated surfaces, dewatering etc. It shall also include, trimming and compaction of excavated surfaces as required, all to the satisfaction of the Engineer.				
2.1	Clear area within the reservoir site of all grass, bushes, shrubs, hedges, grub up roots and cart away to tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities as directed by the Engineer	ha	5		
2.2	Cut down trees, grub up roots and cart away to tips identified by the Contractor in liaison with Local Authorities. Girth n.e. 1.5m (Provisional)	Nr	20		
2.3	-Ditto- but girth 1.5 - 3.0m	Nr	10		
2.4	Stumps of diameter n.e 1.5m	Nr	10		
2.5	Stumps of diameter 1.5m to 3.0m	Nr	10		
2.6	Top Soil Stripping Stripping off top 200mm deep vegetable soil within Reservoir site and stack part of material for reuse as and where directed by the Engineer, cart away surplus to tips.	ha	5		
	Earthworks				
	Excavation including maintaining and supporting sides and keeping free from water, mud and fallen materials, part backfill and remainder cart away to tips identified by the Contractor and approved by the local authorities				
PAG	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

2.7	Excavate area around the tank from stripped surface after			
	removal of top soil, depth n.e. 1.0m. Stack on site selected material for reuse (surplus to be carted away under item 2.13 below)	m ³	5,000	
2.8	-Ditto - but excavation depth 1.0m to 2.0m	m ³	5,000	
2.9	-Ditto - but excavation depth 2.0m to 5.0m	m ³	4,000	
2.10	Extra Over items 2.7 to 2.9 for excavation in rock class 'A', blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	80	
2.11	-Ditto- but for excavation in rock class 'B', blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	1,920	
2.12	-Ditto- but for excavation in rock class 'C', blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	800	
2.13	Cart away surplus material to tip as directed	m ³	26,000	
	Landscaping			
2.14	Spread top soil stacked on site (item 2.6) for reuse. Level and prepare for grassing and landscaping	m ²	12,600	
2.15	Provide and plant approved grass in areas prepared under the item above and maintain until it takes root	m ²	12,600	
3	MASONRY PERIMETER WALL FENCING AND GATES			
3.1	Provide all materials and construct Masonry Perimeter Wall around the proposed Reservoir site. Rate to include for earthworks and construction of Masonry Perimeter Wall complete with R.C. Columns on R.C. Bases at 3m c/c, R.C Ground Beam and Machine Cut Masonry Stone walling for the super-structure above Ground Beam. Masonry wall to be reinforced with Gauge 16 Hoop Iron at alternate courses. Rate to include for rendering of the walls on lower and upper courses and provision of Precast Concrete Coping with drips on both sides, all as per detail on Drawing No. M430/SD/14B and to the Engineer's approval. Masonry wall to be applied with adequate coats of approved water repelant on both faces as per manufacturer's specifications.	m	1,300	
3.2	Provide all materials, fabricate and fix double leaf vehicular access steel gate, 4m wide, including 2Nr. reinforced concrete pillars, all as per details in Drg. No. M430/SD/15 &16	Nr	2	
3.3	Ditto but 1m wide Gate.	Nr	1	
4	WORKS PIPELINE			
	A) Supply, Transport to Site & Store in secure place including Jointing Material, Bolts, Gaskets, Packing, Jointing glue, etc. as applicable			
	900/800mm Dia.Ferrous Inlet Interconnection Pipeline from Mwache WTP Transmission Main to Proposed 14,000m ³ Reservoir - Line"A"			
	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET			

Page 2 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
900 mm dia. Coupling. (Mark 1)	Nr	3		
900mm dia Plain Ended Pipe 23m long with couplings (cut to suit on site). (Mark 2)	Nr	1		
900mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1.5m Long. (Mark 3)	Nr	2		
900mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 1.5m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark 4)	Nr	2		
900mm dia. All Flanged Butterfly Valve with Bypass and Gear Mechanism. (Mark 5)	Nr	1		
900 mm dia. Dismantling Piece (Mark 6)	Nr	1		
900 x 800 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper. (Mark 7)	Nr	1		
800mm dia. All Flanged 45 ⁰ Bend. (Mark 8)	Nr	4		
800mm dia All Flanged Pipe 8m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark 9)	Nr	1		
800 mm dia. Dismantling Piece (Mark 10)	Nr	1		
800mm dia. All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter, minimum battery life 5yrs. (Mark 11)	Nr	1		
800mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 4m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark 12)	Nr	1		
800 x 900 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper. (Mark 13)	Nr	1		
900 mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 61m long with couplings (cut to suit on site). (Mark 14)	Nr	1		
900mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark 15)	Nr	1		
900mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 1.5m long. (Mark 16)	Nr	1		
900mm Dia. Ferrous Outlet Interconnection Pipeline from Proposed 14,000m ³ 2Nr Reservoirs to Transmission Pipeline - Line "B"				
800mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 4m Long. (Mark A)	Nr	1		
800mm dia. All Flanged 45 ⁰ Bend. (Mark B)	Nr	4		
800mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 8m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark C)	Nr	1		
800 mm dia. Dismantling Piece (Mark D)	Nr	1		
800mm dia. All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter, minimum battery life 5yrs. (Mark E)	Nr	1		
800mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 4m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark F)	Nr	1		
800 x 900 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper. (Mark G)	Nr	1		
900mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1.5m Long. (Mark H)	Nr	1		
900 mm dia. Coupling. (Mark I)	Nr	2		
900mm dia Plain Ended Pipe 25m long with couplings (cut to suit). (Mark J)	Nr	1		
PE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SUITET				
suit). (Mark J)	ain Ended Pipe 25m long with couplings (cut to			

Page 3 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
	B) Transport from Site Store, Lay Joint and Test				
	900/800mm Dia.Ferrous Inlet Interconnection Pipeline from Mwache WTP Transmission Main to Proposed 14,000m ³ Reservoir - Line"A"				
4.27	Trench excavation, backfilling and Reinstatement after installation of fittings, depth n.e 6m. Rate to include for supply of imported fill material where necessary. Pipe dia. 900/800mm	m	125		
4.28	Extra over excavation, backfillinng and Reinstatement item(4.27) for excavation in Rock (all classes)	m ³	800		
4.29	900 mm dia. Coupling. (Mark 1)	Nr	3		
4.30	900mm dia Plain Ended Pipe 23m long with couplings (cut to suit on site). (Mark 2)	Nr	1		
4.31	900mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1.5m Long. (Mark 3)	Nr	2		
4.32	900mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 1.5m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark 4)	Nr	2		
4.33	900mm dia. All Flanged Butterfly Valve with Bypass and Gear Mechanism. (Mark 5)	Nr	1		
4.34	900 mm dia. Dismantling Piece (Mark 6)	Nr	1		
4.35	900 x 800 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper. (Mark 7)	Nr	1		
4.36	800mm dia. All Flanged 45 ⁰ Bend. (Mark 8)	Nr	4		
4.37	800mm dia All Flanged Pipe 8m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark 9)	Nr	1		
4.38	800 mm dia. Dismantling Piece (Mark 10)	Nr	1		
4.39	800mm dia. All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter, minimum battery life 5yrs. (Mark 11)	Nr	1		
4.40	800mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 4m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark 12)	Nr	1		
4.41	800 x 900 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper. (Mark 13)	Nr	1		
4.42	900 mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 61m long with couplings (cut to suit on site). (Mark 14)	Nr	1		
4.43	900mm dia. Flange Adaptor. (Mark 15)	Nr	1		
4.44	900mm dia. Plain Ended Pipe 1.5m long. (Mark 16)	Nr	1		
	900mm Dia. Ferrous Outlet Interconnection Pipeline from Proposed 14.000m ³ 2Nr Reservoirs to Transmission Pipeline - Line "B"				
4.45	Trench excavation, backfilling and Reinstatement after installation of fittings, depth n.e 6m. Rate to include for supply of imported fill material where necessary. Pipe dia. 900/800	m	55		
4.46	Extra over excavation, backfillinng and Reinstatement item(4.45) for excavation in Rock (all classes)	m ³	300		
4.47	800mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 4m Long. (Mark A)	Nr	1		
PAG	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
4.48	800mm dia. All Flanged 45 ⁰ Bend. (Mark B)	Nr	4		
4.49	800mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 8m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark C)	Nr	1		
4.50	800 mm dia. Dismantling Piece (Mark D)	Nr	1		
4.51	800mm dia. All Flanged Battery Powered Electromagnetic Water Meter, minimum battery life 5yrs. (Mark E)	Nr	1		
4.52	800mm dia. All Flanged Pipe 4m long with puddle flange at 700mm from one end. (Mark F)	Nr	1		
4.53	800 x 900 mm dia. All Flanged Concentric Taper. (Mark G)	Nr	1		
4.54	900mm dia. Flanged Spigot Pipe 1.5m Long. (Mark H)	Nr	1		
4.55	900 mm dia. Coupling. (Mark I)	Nr	2		
4.56	900mm dia Plain Ended Pipe 25m long with couplings (cut to suit). (Mark J)	Nr	1		
4.57	Scour / Overflow Drainage Pipeline Excavate trench for 600mm dia. Double Wall Corrugated (DWC) HDPE SN8 Socket and Spigot Jointed Pipes, backfill after laying of pipes and cart away surplus to tips or use as fill on site, all as directed by the Engineer. Depth n.e. 8.0m	m	1000		
4.58	Provide, lay and joint 600mm dia. Double Wall Corrugated (DWC) HDPE SN8 Socket and Spigot Jointed Pipes	m	1000		
4.59	Provide all materials, mix and place concrete Class 15/20 in bed, haunch and surround as specified, to DWC HDPE Pipes and where directed by the Engineer.	m ³	100		
4.60	Extra over item 4.57 for excavation in rock, all Classes, blasting not permitted (Provisional)	m ³	1,700		
4.61	Chambers Provide all materials, excavate for and construct 1600mm x 2000mm x 2400mm deep R.C. Meter Chambers. Rate to include for Supply of formwork, excavation in all materials, supply and placing of concrete, Reinforcement steel, curing etc. Supply, fixing and constructing of access ladders, ventilation, drainage, etc. All to detail and as specified in Drg. No. M430/SD/06	Nr	2		
4.62	Ditto but for Line Valve Chamber dimensions 350 x 2400mm deep	Nr	1		
4.63	Excavate for, provide all materials, special shuttering etc. and construct 1200 mm dia. internal dimensions Reinforced Concrete chambers. Include for building in pipes, forming benching to falls, Composite FRP manhole cover, Access Ladders, Ventilation, etc. all as detailed. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m	Nr	4		
4.64	Ditto but for depths 1-2m	Nr	4		
4.65	Ditto but for depths 2-3m	Nr	4		
4.66	Ditto but for depths 3-4m	Nr	4		
4.67	Ditto but for depths exceeding 4m	Nr	4		
DA	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 5 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ROADS AND FOOTPATHS				(Kshs.)
KOADO AND FOOTI ATTO				
Roads				
Excavate below stripped surface to formation levels for roads, buildings, etc., and stack part of material for use as and where directed by the Engineer, cart away surplus to tips. (Provisional)	m ³	2,000		
Extra Over excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' for roads and footpaths (Provisional)	m ³	16		
-Ditto- but rock Class 'B'	m^3	240		
-Ditto- but rock Class 'C'	m ³	40		
Fill using approved excavated material and compact in 150 mm layers as specified under roads and verges	m ³	2,000		
Provide and apply approved weed killer to the murram base as specified for Roads and Footpaths	m ²	2,100		
Concrete Block Paved Roads				
Sub-Base and Base Courses: Provide, Lay and Compact:				
Hand packed hardcore compacted to CBR not less than 30 up to formation level (where road is in fill)	m²	1,700		
Base 200mm thick crusher run or quarry chips (hand packed), including for watering and stone dust blinding as directed.	m ²	1,700		
Provide and apply approved weed killer / herbicide to road surface in accordance with manufacturer's instructions	m ²	1,700		
Concrete Block Paving (as Manufactured by Cabro Works Ltd or Other Approved Supplier)				
Heavy duty loading blocks size 210mm x 105mm x 80mm (Minimum strength 47N/m²) laid on and including 50mm screeded sand bed and compacted by surface vibration	m ²	1,700		
Kerbs and Channels				
Provide, lay and joint 255 mm x 125 mm precast concrete kerbs on and including 250 mm x 100 mm Class 15/20 concrete foundation and haunch 125 mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified.	m	900		
E.O. Item for kerbs laid to radius n.e. 3.0 m	m	100		
Provide, lay and joint 125mm x 100mm precast concrete channels on and including 225mm x 125mm Class 15/20 concrete bed and haunch 100mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified.	m	400		
E.O item for channels laid to radius n.e. 3.0m	m	50		
<u>Footpaths</u>				
Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional)	m ²	100		
150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted.	m ²	100		
	buildings, etc., and stack part of material for use as and where directed by the Engineer, cart away surplus to tips. (Provisional) Extra Over excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' for roads and footpaths (Provisional) -Ditto- but rock Class 'B' -Ditto- but rock Class 'C' Fill using approved excavated material and compact in 150 mm layers as specified under roads and verges Provide and apply approved weed killer to the murram base as specified for Roads and Footpaths Concrete Block Paved Roads Sub-Base and Base Courses: Provide, Lay and Compact: Hand packed hardcore compacted to CBR not less than 30 up to formation level (where road is in fill) Base 200mm thick crusher run or quarry chips (hand packed), including for watering and stone dust blinding as directed. Provide and apply approved weed killer / herbicide to road surface in accordance with manufacturer's instructions Concrete Block Paving (as Manufactured by Cabro Works Ltd or Other Approved Supplier) Heavy duty loading blocks size 210mm x 105mm x 80mm (Minimum strength 47N/m²) laid on and including 50mm screeded sand bed and compacted by surface vibration Kerbs and Channels Provide, lay and joint 255 mm x 125 mm precast concrete kerbs on and including 250 mm x 100 mm Class 15/20 concrete foundation and haunch 125 mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. E.O. Item for kerbs laid to radius n.e. 3.0 m Provide, lay and joint 125mm x 100mm precast concrete channels on and including 225mm x 125mm Class 15/20 concrete bed and haunch 100mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. E.O. Item for channels laid to radius n.e. 3.0m Footpaths Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional)	buildings, etc., and stack part of material for use as and where directed by the Engineer, cart away surplus to tips. (Provisional) Extra Over excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' for roads and footpaths (Provisional) -Ditto- but rock Class 'B' m³ -Ditto- but rock Class 'C' m³ Fill using approved excavated material and compact in 150 mm layers as specified under roads and verges Provide and apply approved weed killer to the murram base as specified for Roads and Footpaths Concrete Block Paved Roads Sub-Base and Base Courses: Provide, Lay and Compact: Hand packed hardcore compacted to CBR not less than 30 up to formation level (where road is in fill) Base 200mm thick crusher run or quarry chips (hand packed), including for watering and stone dust blinding as directed. Provide and apply approved weed killer / herbicide to road surface in accordance with manufacturer's instructions Concrete Block Paving (as Manufactured by Cabro Works Ltd or Other Approved Supplier) Heavy duty loading blocks size 210mm x 105mm x 80mm (Minimum strength 47N/m²) laid on and including 50mm screeded sand bed and compacted by surface vibration Kerbs and Channels Provide, lay and joint 255 mm x 125 mm precast concrete kerbs on and including 250 mm x 100 mm Class 15/20 concrete foundation and haunch 125 mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. E.O. Item for kerbs laid to radius n.e. 3.0 m m Provide, lay and joint 125mm x 100mm precast concrete channels on and including 225mm x 125mm Class 15/20 concrete bed and haunch 100mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. E.O. item for channels laid to radius n.e. 3.0m m Footpaths Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional) m² 150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted.	buildings, etc., and stack part of material for use as and where directed by the Engineer, cart away surplus to tips. (Provisional) Extra Over excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' for roads and footpaths (Provisional) -Ditto- but rock Class 'B' m³ 240 -Ditto- but rock Class 'C' m³ 40 -Ditto- but rock Class 'C' m³ 40 -Pittusing approved excavated material and compact in 150 mm layers as specified under roads and verges Provide and apply approved weed killer to the murram base as specified for Roads and Footpaths Concrete Block Paved Roads Sub-Base and Base Courses: Provide, Lay and Compact: Hand packed hardcore compacted to CBR not less than 30 up to formation level (where road is in fill) Base 200mm thick crusher run or quarry chips (hand packed), including for watering and stone dust blinding as directed. Provide and apply approved weed killer / herbicide to road surface in accordance with manufacturer's instructions Concrete Block Paving (as Manufactured by Cabro Works Ltd or Other Approved Supplier) Heavy duty loading blocks size 210mm x 105mm x 80mm (Minimum strength 47N/m²) laid on and including 50mm screeded sand bed and compacted by surface vibration Kerbs and Channels Provide, lay and joint 255 mm x 125 mm precast concrete kerbs on and including 250 mm x 100 mm Class 15/20 concrete foundation and haunch 125 mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. E.O. Item for kerbs laid to radius n.e. 3.0 m m 100 Provide, lay and joint 125mm x 125mm Class 15/20 concrete bed and haunch 100mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. E.O item for channels laid to radius n.e. 3.0m m 50 Footpaths Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional) m² 100 150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well m² 100	buildings, etc., and stack part of material for use as and where directed by the Engineer, cart away surplus to tips. (Provisional) Extra Over excavation items for excavation in rock Class 'A' for roads and footpaths (Provisional) -Ditto- but rock Class 'B' m³ 240 -Ditto- but rock Class 'C' m³ 40 -Ditto- dand apply approved weed killer to the murram base as specified to Road surface in fill in the control of the provide and apply approved weed killer / herbicide to road surface in accordance with manufacturer's instructions -Ditto- dand apply approved weed killer / herbicide to road surface in accordance with manufacturer's instructions -Ditto- dand and compacted by Cabro Works Ltd or Other Approved Supplier) -Ditto- dand and provide and beautiful to and including 50mm screeded sand beautiful and surface with manufacturer's instructions -Ditto- dand and haunch 125 mm x 125 mm precast concrete kerbs on and including 250 mm x 125 mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as specified. -Ditto- dand point 125 mm x 125 mm precast concrete channels on and including 225 mm x 125 mm thick including all excavation, shuttering, jointing and bedding as s

Page 6 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
50mm thick compacted sand layer	m ²	100		
Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3)	m ²	100		
Pavements around Proposed Reservoir				
Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional)	m ²	120		
150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted.	m ²	120		
50mm thick compacted sand layer	m ²	120		
Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3)	m ²	120		
SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE				
Precast Concrete Drains				
Excavate trench for precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' as shown on the standard drawings , including trimming of sides and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m	m	350		
-Ditto- but depth to invert 1.0m - 2.0m	m	100		
Provide, lay and joint precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' on 100mm murram bed, including 75mm murram filling both sides for height of block. Rate to include for all cutting, waste, etc.	m	300		
Extra over item D above for provide, lay and joint two courses (one each side) of precast concrete side slabs to Type 'A' drain on 75mm thick compacted murram bed	m	100		
-Ditto- but plus 4 Courses (two on each side)	m	50		
Earth Drains				
Excavate trapezoidal earth drains type 1 as shown on the standard drawings to the lines and levels directed by the Engineer. Allow for trimming of sides to correct slopes and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m	m	750		
-Ditto- but depth to invert n.e. 2.0m	m	200		
Provide and spread 100mm of approved top soil on the base of sides of the earth drain, rake and level to the required profiles as directed by the Engineer (Provisional)	m ²	3,100		
Supply and plant approved grass on base and sides of the earth drain and maintenance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer (Provisional)	m ²	3,100		
Culvert Pipes				
Excavate trench depth n.e. 2.5 m, supply, lay and joint for 600mm diameter precast concrete ogee pipes including concrete surround, backfill after laying of pipes, compact and cart away surplus material to tips.	m	15		
	Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) Pavements around Proposed Reservoir Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional) 150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted. 50mm thick compacted sand layer Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE Precast Concrete Drains Excavate trench for precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' as shown on the standard drawings, including trimming of sides and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m -Ditto- but depth to invert 1.0m - 2.0m Provide, lay and joint precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' on 100mm murram bed, including 75mm murram filling both sides for height of block. Rate to include for all cutting, waste, etc. Extra over item D above for provide, lay and joint two courses (one each side) of precast concrete side slabs to Type 'A' drain on 75mm thick compacted murram bed -Ditto- but plus 4 Courses (two on each side) Earth Drains Excavate trapezoidal earth drains type 1 as shown on the standard drawings to the lines and levels directed by the Engineer. Allow for trimming of sides to correct slopes and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m -Ditto- but depth to invert n.e. 2.0m Provide and spread 100mm of approved top soil on the base of sides of the earth drain, rake and level to the required profiles as directed by the Engineer (Provisional) Supply and plant approved grass on base and sides of the earth drain and maintenance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer (Provisional) Culvert Pipes Excavate trench depth n.e. 2.5 m, supply, lay and joint for 600mm diameter precast concrete ogee pipes including concrete surround, backfill after laying of pipes, compact and cart away	Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) Pavements around Proposed Reservoir Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional) m² 150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted. 50mm thick compacted sand layer m² Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE Precast Concrete Drains Excavate trench for precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' as shown on the standard drawings, including trimming of sides and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m -Ditto- but depth to invert 1.0m - 2.0m m Provide, lay and joint precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' on 100mm murram bed, including 75mm murram filling both sides for height of block. Rate to include for all cutting, waste, etc. Extra over item D above for provide, lay and joint two courses (one each side) of precast concrete side slabs to Type 'A' drain on 75mm thick compacted murram bed -Ditto- but plus 4 Courses (two on each side) m Earth Drains Excavate trapezoidal earth drains type 1 as shown on the standard drawings to the lines and levels directed by the Engineer. Allow for trimming of sides to correct slopes and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m Provide and spread 100mm of approved top soil on the base of sides of the earth drain, rake and level to the required profiles as directed by the Engineer (Provisional) Supply and plant approved grass on base and sides of the earth drain and maintenance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer (Provisional) Excavate trench depth n.e. 2.5 m, supply, lay and joint for 600mm diameter precast concrete ogee pipes including concrete surround, backfill after laying of pipes, compact and cart away surplus material to tips.	Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) Pavements around Proposed Reservoir Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional) m² 120 150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted. 50mm thick compacted sand layer m² 120 Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE Precast Concrete Drains Excavate trench for precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' as shown on the standard drawings, including trimming of sides and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m Ditto- but depth to invert 1.0m - 2.0m m 100 Provide, lay and joint precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' on 100mm murram bed, including 75mm murram filling both sides for height of block. Rate to include for all cutting, waste, etc. Extra over item D above for provide, lay and joint two courses (one each side) of precast concrete side slabs to Type 'A' drain on 75mm thick compacted murram bed -Ditto- but plus 4 Courses (two on each side) m 50 Excavate trapezoidal earth drains type 1 as shown on the standard drawings to the lines and levels directed by the Engineer. Allow for trimming of sides to correct slopes and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m Provide and spread 100mm of approved top soil on the base of sides of the earth drain, rake and level to the required profiles as directed by the Engineer (Provisional) Supply and plant approved grass on base and sides of the earth drain and maintenance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer (Provisional) Culvert Pipes Excavate trench depth n.e. 2.5 m, supply, lay and joint for 600mm diameter precast concrete ogee pipes including concrete surround, backfill after laying of pipes, compact and cart away surplus material to tips.	Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) Pavements around Proposed Reservoir Excavate below stripped level average 300mm deep (provisional) 150mm thick compacted murram sub-base for footpaths, well compacted. 50mm thick compacted sand layer Precast Concrete Paving Slabs, 600 x 600 x 50mm thick, jointed with lime and sand (1:3) SURFACE WATER DRAINAGE Precast Concrete Drains Excavate trench for precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' as shown on the standard drawings, including trimming of sides and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m -Ditto- but depth to invert 1.0m - 2.0m Provide, lay and joint precast concrete invert block drain Type 'A' on 100mm murram bed, including 75mm murram filling both sides for height of block. Rate to include for all cutting, waste, etc. Extra over item D above for provide, lay and joint two courses (one each side) of precast concrete side slabs to Type 'A' drain on 75mm thick compacted murram bed Ditto- but plus 4 Courses (two on each side) Earth Drains Excavate trapezoidal earth drains type 1 as shown on the standard drawings to the lines and levels directed by the Engineer. Allow for trimming of sides to correct slopes and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m -Ditto- but depth to invert n.e. 2.0m Provide and spread 100mm of approved top soil on the base of sides of the earth drain, rake and levels directed by the Engineer. Allow for trimming of sides to correct slopes and cart excavated material to tips. Depth to invert n.e. 1.0m -Ditto- but depth to invert n.e. 2.0m Provide and spread 100mm of approved top soil on the base of sides of the earth drain, rake and levels directed by the Engineer (Provisional) Supply and plant approved grass on base and sides of the earth drain and maintenance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer (Provisional) Culvert Pipes. Excavate trench depth n.e. 2.5 m, supply, lay and joint for 000mm diameter precast concrete og

Page 7 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
6.11	Excavate trench depth n.e. 2.5 m, supply, lay and joint for 300mm diameter precast concrete ogee pipes including concrete surround, backfill after laying of pipes, compact and cart away surplus material to tips.	m	15		
	<u>Headwalls</u>				
6.12	Excavate for, provide all materials and construct 225 mm thick masonry headwalls including concrete Class 20/20 footings as detailed in Drawing No. M430/SD/21	Nr	6		
7	SLOPE PROTECTION				
7.1	Provide all material and carry out laying of 2mx1mx1m rock filled Gabion, Maccaferri or approved equivalent. Gabion boxes to be laid in stretches with 0.5m overlap, mesh wire to be galvanized and minimum diameter 5mm. Include for tying of adjacent gabion with approved wire and 16mm dia. anchor rods to suit site conditions (Provisional).	Nr	200		
7.2	Provide, fill and compact in 200 mm layers imported approved excavated material as backing to gabions as directed by the Engineer. Compaction tests to be done and rates to include for this. (Provisional)	m ³	400		
7.3	Provide and spread 50 mm thick mass concrete layer on exposed surfaces of the gabions . (Provisional)	m ³	25		
7.4	Provide and carry out hydraulic mulch grass seeding to slopes as specified in the Drawings or as directed by the Engineer	m²	1,000		
7.5	Supply and plant approved grass on slopes and maintenance until it takes root to the satisfaction of the Engineer	m²	1,000		
8	ELECTRICAL WORKS (PROVISIONAL)				
	On-Site Power Connection				
8.1	Allow PC sum of Kshs. 5,000,000 for on-site power connection from the KPLC National Grid.	Item	P.C	5,000,000.00	5,000,000.00
	Street Lighting				
8.2	Supply and install 5.0m Columns with single arm for street lighting including suitable foundation	Nr	25		
8.3	3200 Lumens Integral Solar Street Light complete with battery to Engineer's approval.	Nr	25		
8.4	120W LED Area flood light	Nr	25		
8.5	Supply Install and connect 6.0mm ² X 3 core PVC/SWA Cable in cable trenches and ducts	m	1,200		
8.6	Supply and install cable glands	Nr	50		
8.7	Trenching, laying, tiling and backfilling for underground cables - Avg. depth 600mm	m	450		
8.8	Supply and install lucy connector complete with 5Amp H.R.C fused cut-outs in the column window	Nr	25		
PA	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 8 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
8.9	2.5mm² twin plus earth cable between Lucy Cut-out in each of the poles and the lighting fixture	m	200		
8.10	Supply and install 16mm dia. x1500mm long earth electrode for alternate columns complete with 6mm ² copper earth wire	Nr	14		
8.11	Supply and install cable markers	Nr	40		
8.12	Supply and install lables on columns/ Danger warninng notices as may be necessary	Item	1		
8.13	Engrave security lighting lanterns as required by the Engineer	Nr	25		
9	GUARD HOUSE				
9.1	Provide all materials, Excavate for Foundations and construct 1Nr. Guard House Building complete with electrical distribution, light fittings, plumbing works, water supply and drainage works, etc., all as detailed on Drg. No. M430/MP/SR/DK/GR/01 Include for all finishes, paintings, etc.	Item	L.S		
10	STAFF HOUSE				
10.1	Excavate for foundations, supply all materials and construct 2Nr. Double Unit Semi-detached Staff Houses (Type C houses). Each house 110.205 m² has 2 Nr. Units as shown on Drgs. Nos. M430/MP/SR/DKR/01-04 Include for building and provision of plumbing works, inspection chambers, sewer pipes, water supply, storage tank and electrical installation, furniture and other facilities all to the approval of the Engineer.	Item	L.S		
11	ON SITE WATER SUPPLY				
11.1	Allow a Provisional Sum of Kshs 2,500,000 for provision of water supply to the Site. Items covered include	Item	P.S		2,500,000.00
	a) Replenishing of water in the plastic tank using a bowser during construction stage				
	b) Provision of an offtake from Mwache - Dongo Kundu Pipeline after construction completion c) Provision of Materials and erecting of 5m high RC Tower for Water Tank with ladder, walkway and guard rails				
	d) 10,000 Litre Capacity Plastic Water Tank e) Associated Pipework and Fittings for Reticulation within the Site				
	f) Testing and Sterilization of Tank and Pipework				
11.2	All as directed by the Engineer. Allow a Provisional Sum of Kshs 500,000 for installation and commissioning of Rain Water Harvesting system from Administration Block Building, Guard House and Staff Houses as directed by the Engineer.	Item	P.S	500,000.00	500,000.00
11.3	Add% for profit, administration, attendance upon, overheads, etc. for Items 11.1 and 11.2 above.	%	3,000,000		
PAC	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 9 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
12	FOUL SEWERAGE				
	Pipeline Excavation				
12.1	Excavate trench for 160mm diameter DWC HDPE SN8 Drainage pipes, backfill after laying of pipes and cart away surplus to tips as directed by the Engineer. Depth not exceeding 2.0m (all depths to inverts)	m	300		
	Pipeline Construction				
12.2	Provide, lay, joint and test 160mm diameter DWC pipes Class SN8 with flexible (rubber ring) joints on granular or concrete bed and surround.	m	300		
	Chambers				
12.3	Excavate for, provide all materials, special shuttering etc. and construct 600mm x 450mm internal dimensions in-situ concrete inspection chambers on sewers diameter n.e 160mm. All as per the standard drawings. Include for building in pipes, forming benching to falls, Composite FRP Manhole covers, etc. Depth to invert n.e. 2.0m	Nr	11		
12.4	Excavate for, provide all materials, special shuttering etc. and construct 1200 mm x 1200 mm internal dimensions concrete chambers . All as per the standard drawings. Include for building in pipes, forming benching to falls, Composite FRP manhole cover, etc. Depth to invert n.e. 2.0m	Nr	5		
	Septic Tank				
12.5	Supply and install, including excavation, etc, 1 No. Plastic Septic Tank, minimum capacity 2.5m³, including Inlet and Outlet Chambers and Pipework, R.C. Cover Slab with access manhole, Soak Pit / Radial Arms, ventilation pipework, etc. all as per suppliers instructions ("Septank" as manufactured by Kentainers Ltd. or approved equivalent) and as directed by the Engineer.	Item	L.S		
13	CHEMICAL SOAK PIT				
13.1	Excavate for, provide all materials, construct, test and commission chemical soak away pit, including radial arms, cover slab, access manhole, ect. as detailed in Drawing No.M430/SD/22	Nr	1		
14	SIGNBOARD				
14.1	Provide all materials and construct publicity signboard as detailed on the standard drawings for the Site. Include for painting, decorating and anchoring of the signboard to the ground using 300mm x 300mm x 600mm deep mass concrete footing, all as detailed	Nr	1		
	NOTE: FINAL WORDING ON THE SIGN BOARD TO BE DECIDED IN CONSULTATION WITH THE EMPLOYER				
ΡΔ	GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 10 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEMS IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

<u>LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR</u>

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs.)
15	INTERCONNECTION TO EXISTING SOUTH MAINLAND DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM				
15.1	Allow a Provisional Sum of Kshs. 150,000,000/- (Kenya Shillings One Hundred and Fifty Million) for Topographycal Survey, Detailed Design and Construction of 2.5km DN 800 Ferrous Pipeline from the proposed Dongo Kundu Reservoir Outlet, interconnecting to the existing Mombasa South Mainland Distribution Network at the Southern Bypass Road, including Aerial Crossing at the Southern Bypass Road Crossing to the approval of the Road Authorities.	Item	PS	150,000,000.00	150,000,000.00
16	MISCELLANEOUS				
16.1	Allow a Provisional Sum of Kshs. 5,000,000 to be used for any other Works or items that may be required on site as directed by the Engineer.	Item	PS	5,000,000.00	5,000,000.00
PA	 GE TOTAL CARRIED TO SECTION COLLECTION SHEET				

Page 11 of 11 Bill No. 4.3

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEM IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1113

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 4.3 - ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, STAFF HOUSES AND SITE AND ANCILLARY WORKS

	Amount (Kshs.)
Page Total, Page 1 of 11	
Page Total, Page 2 of 11	
Page Total, Page 3 of 11	
Page Total, Page 4 of 11	
Page Total, Page 5 of 11	
Page Total, Page 6 of 11	
Page Total, Page 7 of 11	
Page Total, Page 8 of 11	
Page Total, Page 9 of 11	
Page Total, Page 10 of 11	
Page Total, Page 11 of 11	
Bill No. 4.3 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary Sheet	

IMPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEM IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023

BILL No. 5.1 - INSTRUMENTATION

ITEM No.	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE (Kshs)	AMOUNT (Kshs)
	NOTES:				
	This Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 5.1) covers the supply and installation of the instrumentation for the transmission lines and reservoirs.				
1	Water transmission pipeline				
1.1	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for a DN 800 electromagnetic flow meter.	Nr.	1		
1.2	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for a DN 900 electromagnetic flow meter.	Nr.	1		
2	Kaya Bombo Site				
2.1	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for a DN 250 electromagnetic flow meter.	Nr.	1		
2.2	Supply, installation, wiring and connections for an ultrasonic water level sensor.	Nr.	2		
2.3	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for an ultrasonic water level sensor.	Nr.	2		
2.4	Supply, installation, wiring and connections for a chlorine analyser.	Nr.	2		
2.5	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for a chlorine analyser.	Nr.	2		
3	Dongo Kundu Site				
3.1	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for a DN 800 electromagnetic flow meter.	Nr.	3		
3.2	Supply, installation, wiring and connections for an ultrasonic water level sensor.	Nr.	4		
3.3	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for an ultrasonic water level sensor.	Nr.	4		
3.4	Supply, installation, wiring and connections for a chlorine analyser.	Nr.	2		
3.5	Supply, installation, wiring, connections and calibration of a transmitter for a chlorine analyser.	Nr.	2		
	PAGE TOTAL CARRIED TO COLLECTION SHEET	l .			

BILL No. 4.1 COLLECTION SHEET

IPROVEMENT OF DRINKING WATER AND SANITATION SYSTEM IN MOMBASA: MWACHE CKE 1103			
OT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (TM1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION			
PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR			
BID No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/W4/2022-2023			
BILL No. 5.1 - INSTRUMENTATION			
	Amount (Kshs.)		
Page Total, Page 1 of 1			
Bill No. 5.1 Total Exclusive of VAT carried to Summary Sheet			
	Collection Sheet- Bill No. 5.1		

GRAND SUMMARY

LOT 1: CONSTRUCTION OF THE MWACHE TWIN TRUNK MAIN (SECTION 1), SOUTH MAINLAND TRANSMISSION PIPELINE AND DONGO KUNDU RESERVOIR

BID No. CWWDA/AfD/MWCE/W-TM/01/2022

BILL No.	DESCRIPTION		AMOUNT (Kshs)
			(Nalla)
1	Preliminary and General Items		
2.1	Twin Trunk Main Section 1 (Line TM)		
2.2	Supply of Pipes, Fittings, Valves and Ancillaries Twin Trunk Main (Line TM)		
2.2	Pipeline Construction		
3.1	<u>'</u>		
5.1	South Mainland Water Transmission Pipeline (Line SM)		
3.2	Supply of Pipes, Fittings, Valves and Ancillaries		
3.2	South Mainland Water Transmission Pipeline (Line SM)		
4.4	Pipeline Construction		
4.1	Dongo Kundu Reservoir (28,000m ³ Capacity)		
4.2	Chlorine Storage and Mixing Building		
4.3	Administration Building, Staff Houses and Site & Ancillary Works		
5.1	Instrumentation		
	Bills Total Exclusive of VAT	(A)	
	Add 7.5% of (A) for General and Physical Contingencies	(B)	
	Bill Total Inclusive of Contingencies [A + B]	(C)	
	Value Added Tax (VAT) - 16% of (C)		
	value Audeu Tax (VAT) - 10/0 UI (C)	(D)	
	GRAND TOTAL CARRIED TO LETTER OF BID	(C+D)	

Grand Summary Page1 of 1

Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Cost Schedule

The Cost Schedule for Environmental, Social, Health and safety (ESHS) Requirements has been included for Pricing by the Bidder in the Preliminaries and General Items Bill (Bill No. 1).

Security Cost Schedule

The Cost Schedule for Security Requirements has been included for Pricing by the Bidder in the Preliminaries and General Items Bill (Bill No. 1).

Technical Proposal

The Bidder must provide in its Bid the following information and details in the format of the Forms provided:

- a) Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Methodology
- b) List of Subcontractors (if any)
- c) Subcontractors ESHS undertaking (if applicable)
- d) Site Organisation and Method Statement
- e) Construction Schedule
- f) Personnel proposed (forms PER-1 and PER-2)
- g) Equipment proposed (form EQU)
- h) Schedule of Projected Cash Flow (based on the Construction Schedule)
- i) Schedule of Manufacturers (Vendor List) for the following key materials/equipment:
 - i) Pipes and Fittings
 - ii) Gate Valves and Butterfly Valves
 - iii) Flow Limiting Valves and Altitude Valves
 - iv) Air Valves
 - v) Flow Meters (Battery Powered Electromagnetic Type)
 - vi) Cement
 - vii) Reinforcement Steel

For each item above the Bidder must provide detailed Technical Data Sheets from the manufacturer and indicate the name of the manufacturer, Country of Origin, make of the item where applicable and the standard to which the item is manufactured (ISO/EN/BS/AWWA/DIN. etc).

(a) Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Methodology

The Bidder shall provide an ESHS Methodology providing information on how the Bidder shall meet the requirements and objectives specified in Volume II of the Bidding Document - ESHS Specifications.

The ESHS Methodology submitted shall be in the form of a preliminary draft of the Worksite Environmental and Social Management Plan (Worksite - ESMP), the content of which is detailed in Appendix 1 to ESHS Specifications.

In order to address the highly sensitive ESHS issues highlighted during the project's environmental and social impact assessment, the ESHS Methodology shall provide detailed information on the management of the items listed in the table of paragraph 1. "Essential ESHS issues of worksite management" in Section VII – Works Requirements. The purpose is not for the Bidder to provide one more time policies and internal procedures which were requested in the Prequalification phase but to provide a concrete ESHS methodology adapted to the worksites environment.

A Bid for which the ESHS Methodology is evaluated as non-substantially responsive (i.e. with material deviation, reservation or omission) to the ESHS Specifications shall be rejected.

(b) List of Subcontractors (if any)

Proposed Subcontractors for Key Activities/Sub-Activities

The following subcontractors and/or manufacturers are proposed for carrying out the key activity/sub-activity indicated (if none, Bidder to indicate "Not Applicable")

Key Activity/Sub-Activity	Proposed Subcontractors	Nationality

Bidders shall submit an undertaking from each proposed subcontractor to confirm that they have read, understand and will comply with the ESHS obligations using the form hereby attached.

(c) Form of Subcontractor ESHS Undertaking (if applicable)

	Date:
	Bid No.: CWWDA/AFD/PQ/WA/2022-2023
Contract title: [insert the name of the Contract]	
To: [insert the name of the Employer's agency]	
We, the undersigned, confirm that we have rea Specifications for the above-mentioned contract.	d, understand and will comply with the ESHS
Name of the proposed subcontractor:	
Name and title of the person signing this undertaking	g on behalf of the subcontractor:
[Signature of the person named above]	
[Date signed]	
Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid o	on behalf of the Bidder:
Title of the person signing the Bid:	
Signature of the person named above:	
Date signed (day/month/year):	

(d) Site Organisation and Method Statement

Each Bidder shall set out details of the Site Organization and Method Statement for the Works to demonstrate how it will meet the Employer's objective and requirements. As a minimum, the Method Statement shall address the following:

- Details of the arrangements and methods which the Bidder proposes to implement for the construction of the Works, in sufficient detail to demonstrate their adequacy to achieve the requirements of the Contract including completion within the Time for Completion stated in the Particular Conditions of Contract;
- b) Outline of the arrangements of the Bidder to manage coordination of Site access;
- c) Comments on the geotechnical and subsurface aspects of the Works including materials, material sources and any constraints;
- d) Comments and outline of arrangements on logistics and traffic management;
- e) Outline of the arrangements and organisation of the Bidder to ensure compliance with the Works Requirements and Technical Specifications;
- f) In particular, outline of the arrangements of the Bidder to comply with safe excavation works and trenches protections
- g) Outline of the arrangements of the Bidder to carry out testing upon completion as specified in the Works Requirements;

A Method Statement not addressing properly the above requirements may be considered as none responsive and may lead to rejection of the Bid.

(e) Construction Schedule

Each Bidder shall set out a detailed Program and Schedule for mobilisation and construction of the Works to be performed, including estimated starting and finishing dates for individual components and identification of major milestones and critical path. The proposed Program and Schedule shall be developed according to Works Requirements and shall address the following:

- Details of the proposed schedule for obtaining permits that may be necessary in order to commence the Works, including the preparation of required studies, supporting information, and applications;
- b) Deails of propsed timelines for mobilization including where necessary, importation into Kenya of Key Plant and Equipment, establishment of site offices and facilities, mobilization of staff, etc.
- c) Details of the proposed timeline for carrying out the Works within the Time for Completion, in the form of a bar chart showing notably the critical path;
- d) Details of the proposed timeline for the testing, commissioning and handing over of the completed Works;

(f) Personnel

Form PER-1: Proposed Personnel

Bidders should provide the names of suitably qualified personnel to meet the specified requirements stated in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form below for each candidate.

1.	Title of position (*)
	Name
2.	Title of position (*)
	Name
3.	Title of position (*)
	Name
4.	Title of position (*)
	Name

(*): As listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

Form PER-2: Resume of Proposed Personnel

Name of Bidder:			
Name:	Date of birth:		
Professional qualifications:			
Name of employer:			
Address of employer:			
Telephone:	Contact (manager / personnel officer):		
Fax:	Email:		
Job title:	Years with present employer:		
	Name: Professional qualifications: Name of employer: Address of employer: Telephone: Fax: Job title:		

Summarize professional experience over the last 20 years, in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial experience relevant to the project.

From	То	Company / Project / Position / Relevant technical and management experience

Item of equipment

(g) Form EQU: Equipment

The Bidder shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the requirements for the key equipment listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. A separate Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed, or for alternative equipment proposed by the Bidder.

Equipment Information	Name of manufacturer:	Model and power rating:
	Capacity:	Year of manufacture:
urrent status	Current location:	
	Details of current commitments: _	
Source	Indicate source of the equipment:	
	☐ Owned	☐ Leased
	<u></u>	_
mit the following	Rented information for equipment owned	☐ Specially manufactured by the Bidder.
mit the following		
	information for equipment owned Name of owner:	
	information for equipment owned Name of owner:	by the Bidder.
	Information for equipment owned Name of owner: Address of owner:	Contact name and title:
	Information for equipment owned Name of owner: Address of owner: Telephone: Fax:	Contact name and title:
Owner	Information for equipment owned Name of owner: Address of owner: Telephone: Fax:	Contact name and title: Email:

(h) Schedule of Projected Cash-Flow (based on the Construction Schedule)

Bidder to provide a schedule of Projected Cash-Flow which should be based on an Outline Programme for execution of the Works.

(i) Schedule of Manufacturers (Vendor List) for Key Materials / Equipment

No.	Material/Equipment	Name and Address of Manufacturer (where applicable)	Country of Origin	Name & Address of Supplier (including Country)	Make/Model (Where Applicable)	Applicable Quality Standard to which Material/Equipment Conforms
i)	Pipes and Fittings Contractor to specify here below the material to be used for Pipes and Fittings and method of jointing i.e. Steel Pipeline with Field Welded Joints OR Ductile Iron Pipeline with Standard Push-in Joints.					
ii)	Gate Valves and Butterfly Valves					
iii)	Flow Limiting Valves and Altitude Valves					
iv)	Air Valves					
v)	Flow Meters (Battery Powered Electromagnetic Type)					
vi)	Cement					
vii)	Reinforcement Steel					

Note: Bidder to submit Technical Data Sheets and QUOTATIONS from Manufacturers from the proposed manufacturers for each of the items above. If the Bidder fails to provide adequate details as required above, the Bid may be deemed incomplete and consequently rejected.

Form of Bid Security

Demand Guarantee

Benef	iciary: The Chief Executive Officer, Coast Water Works Development Agency
Bid N	o.:CWWDA/AFD/PQ/WA/2022-2023
Date:	
Bid G	uarantee No.:
Guara	antor:
submi	ave been informed that (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has itted or will submit to the Beneficiary its bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of overment of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa, Lot 1 – Construction of Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundurvoir under Invitation for Bids No. CWWDA/AFD/PQ/WA/2022-2023 ("the IFB").
	ermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, Bids must be supported by guarantee.
sum of the	request of the Bidder, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any or sums not exceeding in total an amount of (amount in words) upon receipt by us Beneficiary's first demand, supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself eparate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that either the Bidder:
a)	Has withdrawn its Bid during the period of Bid validity set forth in the Bidder's Letter of Bid ("the Bid Validity Period"), or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder; or
b)	Having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary during the Bid Validity Period or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder, (i) has failed to execute the contract agreement, or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's Bidding Documents.
This g	guarantee will expire:
a)	if the Bidder is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract agreement signed by the Bidder and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such contract agreement; or
b)	if the Bidder is not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Bidder of the results of the bidding process; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the end of the Bid Validity Period.
	equently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office ted above on or before that date.
_	guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC cation No. 758.
	[Signature(s)]

Section V - Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility in AFD-Financed Procurement

- 1. Financing allocated by AFD to a Contracting Authority has been entirely untied since 1st January 2002. To the exception of any equipment or any sector which is subject to an embargo by the United Nations, the European Union or France, all goods, works, plants, consulting services and non-consulting services are eligible for AFD financing regardless of the country of origin of the supplier, contractor, subcontractor, consultant or subconsultant inputs or resources used in the implementation processes. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. Natural or legal Persons¹ (including all members of a joint venture or any of their suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants) shall not be awarded an AFD-financed contract if, on the date of submission of an application, a bid or a proposal, or on the date of award of a contract, they:
 - 2.1 Are bankrupt or being wound up or ceasing their activities, are having their activities administered by the courts, have entered into receivership, or are in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure;

2.2 Have been:

- convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata in the country where the contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this conviction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- b) subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European Union or by the competent authorities of the country where they are constituted, for fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this sanction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;
- 2.3 Are listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and security;
- 2.4 Have been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against them for significant or persistent failure to comply with their contractual obligations during contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against them;
- 2.5 Have not fulfilled their fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with the legal provisions of either the country where they are constituted or the Contracting Authority's country;
- 2.6 Are subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and are listed on the website http://www.worldbank.org/debarr, unless they provide supporting information together with

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of the Contract;

- 2.7 Have created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of the Contract.
- 3. State-owned entities may compete only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, and (ii) operate under commercial law. To be eligible, a state-owned entity shall establish to AFD's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information AFD may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from their state (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to their state, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt.

Section VI – AFD Policy – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices - Environmental and Social Responsibility

1. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants must observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

By signing the Statement of Integrity the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants declare that (i) "it did not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award process to the Contracting Authority's detriment, and that it did not and will not get involved in any anticompetitive practice", and that (ii) "the procurement process and the performance of the contract did not and shall not give rise to any act of corruption or fraud".

Moreover, AFD requires including in the Procurement Documents and AFD-financed contracts a provision requiring that suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants will permit AFD to inspect their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

AFD reserves the right to take any action it deems appropriate to check that these ethics rules are observed and reserves, in particular, the rights to:

- Reject a proposal for a contract award if it is established that during the selection process the bidder or consultant that is recommended for the award has been convicted of corruption, directly or by means of an agent, or has engaged in fraud or anti-competitive practices in view of being awarded the Contract;
- b) Declare misprocurement when it is established that, at any time, the Contracting Authority, the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants their representatives have engaged in acts of corruption, fraud or anti-competitive practices during the procurement process or performance of the contract without the Contracting Authority having taken appropriate action in due time satisfactory to AFD to remedy the situation, including by failing to inform AFD at the time they knew of such practices.

AFD defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

- a) Corruption of a Public Officer means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to a Public Officer, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person¹ or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity; or
 - The act by which a Public Officer solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity.
- b) A Public Officer shall be construed as meaning:
 - Any person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate (within the country of the Contracting Authority) regardless of whether that natural Person was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the natural Person occupies;
 - Any other natural Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned company, or who provides a public service;

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

- Any other natural Person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the country of the Contracting Authority.
- c) Corruption of a Private Person² means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to any Private Person, directly or indirectly, an
 undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private
 Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or
 professional obligations; or;
 - The act by which any Private Person solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations.
- d) Fraud means any dishonest conduct (act or omission), whether or not it constitutes a criminal offence, deliberately intended to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate consent, to circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit.
- e) Anti-competitive practices mean:
 - Any concerted or implied practices which have as their object or effect the prevention, restriction or distortion of competition within a marketplace, especially where they (i) limit access to the marketplace or free exercise of competition by other undertakings, (ii) prevent free, competition-driven price determination by artificially causing price increases or decreases, (iii) restrict or control production, markets, investments or technical progress; or (iv) divide up market shares or sources of supply;
 - Any abuse by one undertaking or a group of undertakings which hold a dominant position on an internal market or on a substantial part of it;
 - Any practice whereby prices are quoted or set unreasonably low, the object of which is to eliminate an undertaking or any of its products from a market or to prevent it from entering the market.

2. <u>Environmental and Social Responsibility</u>

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognised environmental and social standards are complied with. Suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants for AFD-financed contracts shall consequently undertake in the Statement of Integrity to:

- a) Comply with and ensure that all their subcontractors or subconsultants comply with international environmental and labour standards, consistent with applicable law and regulations in the country of implementation of the contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties;
- b) Implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the environmental and social management plan (ESMP) provided by the Contracting Authority.

1-63

Means any natural Person other than a Public Officer.

PART 2 - Works Requirements

Section VII – Works Requirements

Contents

1. SCOPE OF WORKS

The Scope of Works is as follows:

- i) Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1) comprising of DN 1000 Pipeline 2.9km in length, made of Steel Pipes or Ductile Iron Pipes
- ii) Construction of South Mainland Transmission Pipeline (total length 27.8km comprising of DN1000 section 21.9km and DN 900 section 5.9km) made of Steel Pipes or Ductile Iron Pipes, including approximately 250m wide sea crossing over Mwache Creek.
- iii) Construction of 2Nr Reinforced Concrete Tanks at Dongo Kundu, capacity 14,000m³ each and Ancillary Works including Chlorination Facilities, Administration Building, etc.
- iv) Supply and Installation of Instrumentation for the above Pipelines and Reservoirs to be included in the Overall SCADA System to be installed by Another Contractor (Water Treatment Plant Contractor under a different Project).

2. SPECIFICATIONS

The Specifications to be used for the Works are:

- (i) Technical Specifications
- (ii) Specifications for Environmental, Social, Health and Safety (ESHS) Management of the Works
- (iii) Security Specifications

The Technical Specifications, ESHS Specifications and Security Specifications are given in Volume II of the Bidding Document

3. DRAWINGS

The Drawings for the Works are given in Volume III of the Bidding Document.

PART 3 - Conditions of Contract (CC) and Contracts Forms

Section VIII – General Conditions (GC)

Coast Water Works Development Agency

[Name of Employer]

Improvement of Drinking Water and Sanitation Systems in Mombasa, Lot 1 – Construction of the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), South Mainland Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Reservoir

[Name of Contract]

The General Conditions that follow are the Multilateral Development Banks Harmonized Edition of the Conditions of Contract for Construction prepared and copyrighted by the International Federation of Consulting Engineers (*Fédération Internationale des Ingénieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC*), FIDIC 2010-All rights reserved.

This publication is exclusive for the use of AFD's Beneficiaries and their project implementing agencies as provided under the License Agreement between *Agence Française de Développement* and FIDIC, and, consequently, no part of this publication may be reproduced, translated, adapted, stored in a retrieval system or communicated, in any form or by any means, whether mechanical, electronic, magnetic, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without prior permission in writing from FIDIC, except by the Employer identified above and only for the exclusive purpose of preparing these Standard Bidding Documents for the Contract also identified above.

Table of contents

1	Gene	ral Provisions	3-7
	1.1	Definitions	3-7
	1.2	Interpretation	3-11
	1.3	Communications	3-11
	1.4	Law and Language	3-12
	1.5	Priority of Documents	3-12
	1.6	Contract Agreement	3-12
	1.7	Assignment	3-12
	1.8	Care and Supply of Documents	3-12
	1.9	Delayed Drawings or Instructions	3-13
	1.10	Employer's Use of Contractor's Documents	3-13
	1.11	Contractor's Use of Employer's Documents	3-14
	1.12	Confidential Details	3-14
	1.13	Compliance with Laws	3-14
	1.14	Joint and Several Liability	3-14
	1.15	Inspections and Audit by the Bank	3-15
2	The E	mployer	3-15
	2.1	Right of Access to the Site	3-15
	2.2	Permits, Licences or Approval	3-15
	2.3	Employer's Personnel	3-16
	2.4	Employer's Financial Arrangements	3-16
	2.5	Employer's Claims	3-16
3	The E	ngineer	3-17
	3.1	Engineer's Duties and Authority	3-17
	3.2	Delegation by the Engineer	3-18
	3.3	Instructions of the Engineer	3-18
	3.4	Replacement of the Engineer	3-18
	3.5	Determinations	3-19
4	The C	Contractor	3-19
	4.1	Contractor's General Obligations	3-19
	4.2	Performance Security	3-20
	4.3	Contractor's Representative	3-20
	4.4	Subcontractors	3-21
	4.5	Assignment of Benefit of Subcontractor	3-22
	4.6	Co-operation	3-22
	4.7	Setting Out	3-22
	4.8	Safety Procedures	3-23
	4.9	Quality Assurance	3-23
	4.10	Site Data	
	4.11	Sufficiency of the Accepted Contract Amount	
	4.12	Unforeseeable Physical Conditions	

	4.13	Rights of Way and Facilities	3-25
	4.14	Avoidance of Interference	3-25
	4.15	Access Route	3-25
	4.16	Transport of Goods	3-25
	4.17	Contractor's Equipment	3-26
	4.18	Protection of Environment	3-26
	4.19	Electricity, Water and Gas	3-26
	4.20	Employer's Equipment and Free-issues Materials	3-26
	4.21	Progress Reports	3-27
	4.22	Security of the Site	3-28
	4.23	Contractor's Operations on Site	3-28
	4.24	Fossils	3-28
5	Nomi	nated Subcontractors	3-29
	5.1	Definition of "Nominated Subcontractor"	3-29
	5.2	Objection to Nomination	3-29
	5.3	Payments to Nominated Subcontractors	3-29
	5.4	Evidence of Payments	3-29
6	Staff	and Labour	3-30
	6.1	Engagement of Staff and Labour	3-30
	6.2	Rates of Wages and Conditions of Labour	3-30
	6.3	Persons in the Service of Employer	3-30
	6.4	Labour Laws	3-30
	6.5	Working Hours	3-30
	6.6	Facilities for Staff and Labour	3-31
	6.7	Health and Safety	3-31
	6.8	Contractor's Superintendence	3-32
	6.9	Contractor's Personnel	3-32
	6.10	Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment	3-32
	6.11	Disorderly Conduct	3-32
	6.12	Foreign Personnel	3-32
	6.13	Supply of Foodstuffs	3-33
	6.14	Supply of Water	3-33
	6.15	Measures against Insect an Pest Nuisance	3-33
	6.16	Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs	3-33
	6.17	Arms and Ammunition	3-33
	6.18	Festivals and Religious Customs	3-33
	6.19	Funeral Arrangements	3-33
	6.20	Prohibition of Forced or Compulsory Labour	3-33
	6.21	Prohibition of Harmful Child Labour	3-33
	6.22	Employment Records Workers	3-33
	6.23	Workers' Organisations	3-33
	6.24	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity	3-34

7	Plant	, Materials and Workmanship	3-34
	7.1	Manner of Execution	3-34
	7.2	Samples	3-34
	7.3	Inspection	3-34
	7.4	Testing	3-35
	7.5	Rejection	3-35
	7.6	Remedial Work	3-36
	7.7	Ownership of Plant and Materials	3-36
	7.8	Royalties	3-36
8	Comr	nencement, Delays Suspension	3-36
	8.1	Commencement of Works	3-36
	8.2	Time for Completion	3-37
	8.3	Programme	3-37
	8.4	Extension of Time for Completion	3-38
	8.5	Delays Caused by Authorities	3-38
	8.6	Rate of Progress	3-38
	8.7	Delay Damages	3-39
	8.8	Suspension of Work	3-39
	8.9	Consequences of Suspension	3-39
	8.10	Payment for Plant and Materials in Event of Suspension	3-40
	8.11	Prolonged Suspension	3-40
	8.12	Resumption of Work	3-40
9	Tests	on Completion	3-40
	9.1	Contractor's Obligations	3-40
	9.2	Delayed Tests	3-40
	9.3	Retesting	3-41
	9.4	Failure to Pass Tests on Completion	3-41
10) Empl	oyer's Taking Over	3-41
	10.1	Taking Over of the Works and Sections	3-41
	10.2	Taking Over of Parts of the Works	3-42
	10.3	Interference with Tests on Completion	3-42
	10.4	Surfaces Requiring Reinstatement	3-43
11	Defe	ts Liability	3-43
	11.1	Completion of Outstanding Work and Remedying Defects	3-43
	11.2	Cost of Remedying Defects	3-43
	11.3	Extension of Defects Notification Period	3-43
	11.4	Failure to Remedy Defects	3-44
	11.5	Removal of Defective Work	3-44
	11.6	Further Tests	3-44
	11.7	Right of Access	3-44
	11.8	Contractor to Search	3-44
	11.9	Performance Certificate	3-45

11.10	Unfulfilled Obligations	3-45
11.11	Clearance of Site	3-45
12 Meas	urement and Evaluation	3-45
12.1	Works to be Measured	3-45
12.2	Method of Measurement	3-46
12.3	Evaluation	3-46
12.4	Omissions	3-47
13 Varia	tions and Adjustments	3-47
13.1	Right to Vary	3-47
13.2	Value Engineering	3-48
13.3	Variation Procedure	3-48
13.4	Payment in Applicable Currencies	3-49
13.5	Provisional Sums	3-49
13.6	Daywork	3-49
13.7	Adjustments for Changes in Legislation	3-50
13.8	Adjustments for Changes in costs	3-50
14 Contr	act Price and Payment	3-51
14.1	The Contract Price	3-51
14.2	Advance Payment	3-52
14.3	Application for Interim Payment Certificates	3-53
14.4	Schedule of Payments	3-54
14.5	Plant and Materials Intended for the Works	3-54
14.6	Issue of Interim Payment Certificates	3-55
14.7	Payment	3-56
14.8	Delayed Payment	3-56
14.9	Payment or Retention Money	3-56
14.10	Statement at Completion	3-57
14.11	Application for Final Payment Certificate	3-58
14.12	Discharge	3-58
14.13	Issue of Final Payment Certificate	3-58
14.14	Cessation of Employer's Liability	3-59
14.15	Currencies of Payment	3-59
15 Termi	nation by Employer	3-59
15.1	Notice to Correct	3-59
15.2	Termination by Employer	3-60
15.3	Valuation at Date of Termination	3-61
15.4	Payment after Termination	
15.5	Employer's Entitlement to Termination for Convenience	
15.6	Corrupt or fraudulent Practices	
16 Suspe	nsion and Termination by Contractor	3-62
16.1	Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work	3-62
16.2	Termination by Contractor	3-63

16.3	Cessation of Work and Removal of Contractor's Equipment	.3-64	
16.4	Payment on Termination	. 3-64	
17 Risk a	and Responsibility	3-64	
17.1	Indemnities	. 3-64	
17.2	Contractor's Care of the Works	.3-65	
17.3	Employer's Risks	.3-65	
17.4	Consequences of Employer's Risks	.3-65	
17.5	Intellectual and Industrial Property Right	.3-66	
17.6	Limitation of Liability	.3-66	
17.7	Use of Employer's Accommodation / Facilities	. 3-67	
18 Insur	ances	3-67	
18.1	General Requirements for Insurances	. 3-67	
18.2	Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment	.3-68	
18.3	Insurance against Injury to Persons and Damages to Property	.3-70	
18.4	Insurance for Contractor's Personnel	.3-70	
19 Force	Majeure	3-71	
19.1	Definition of Force Majeure	. 3-71	
19.2	Notice of Force Majeure	.3-71	
19.3	Duty to Minimise Delay	.3-71	
19.4	Consequences of Force Majeure	.3-71	
19.5	Force Majeure Affecting Subcontractor	.3-72	
19.6	Optional Termination, Payment and Release	.3-72	
19.7	Release from Performance	.3-72	
20 Claim	ns, Disputes and Arbitration	3-73	
20.1	Contractor's Claims	.3-73	
20.2	Appointment of the Dispute Board	.3-74	
20.3	Failure to Agree on the Composition of the Dispute Board	.3-75	
20.4	Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision	. 3-75	
20.5	Amicable Settlement	. 3-76	
20.6	Arbitration	. 3-76	
20.7	Failure to Comply with Dispute Board's Decision	. 3-77	
20.8	Expiry of Dispute Board's Appointment	.3-77	
APPEND	IX A – General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement	3-78	
APPENDIX B – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices – Environmental and Social Responsibility 3-84			
VDDENID	APPENDIX C - Fligibility Criteria 3-86		

1 General Provisions

1.1 Definitions

In the Conditions of Contract ("these Conditions"), which include Particular Conditions, Parts A and B, and these General Conditions, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings stated. Words indicating persons or parties include corporations and other legal entities, except where the context requires otherwise.

1.1.1 The Contract

- 1.1.1.1 "Contract" means the Contract Agreement, the Letter of Acceptance, the Letter of Tender, these Conditions, the Specification, the Drawings, the Schedules, and the further documents (if any) which are listed in the Contract Agreement or in the Letter of Acceptance.
- 1.1.1.2 **"Contract Agreement"** means the contract agreement referred to in Sub-Clause 1.6 [Contract Agreement].
- 1.1.1.3 "Letter of Acceptance" means the letter of formal acceptance, signed by the Employer, of the Letter of Tender, including any annexed memoranda comprising agreements between and signed by both Parties. If there is no such letter of acceptance, the expression "Letter of Acceptance" means the Contract Agreement and the date of issuing or receiving the Letter of Acceptance means the date of signing the Contract Agreement.
- 1.1.1.4 "Letter of Tender" means the document entitled letter of tender or letter of bid, which was completed by the Contractor and includes the signed offer to the Employer for the Works.
- 1.1.1.5 **"Specification**" means the document entitled specification, as included in the Contract, and any additions and modifications to the specification in accordance with the Contract. Such document specifies the Works.
- 1.1.1.6 "**Drawings**" means the drawings of the Works, as included in the Contract, and any additional and modified drawings issued by (or on behalf of) the Employer in accordance with the Contract.
- 1.1.1.7 "Schedules" means the document(s) entitled schedules, completed by the Contractor and submitted with the Letter of Tender, as included in the Contract. Such document may include the Bill of Quantities, data, lists, and schedules of rates and/or prices.
- 1.1.1.8 "Tender" means the Letter of Tender and all other documents which the Contractor submitted with the Letter of Tender, as included in the Contract.
- 1.1.1.9 "Bill of Quantities", "Daywork Schedule" and "Schedule of Payment Currencies" mean the documents so named (if any) which are comprised in the Schedules.
- 1.1.1.10 **"Contract Data"** means the pages completed by the Employer entitled contract data which constitute Part A of the Particular Conditions.

1.1.2 Parties and Persons

- 1.1.2.1 "Party" means the Employer or the Contractor, as the context requires.
- 1.1.2.2 **"Employer"** means the person named as employer in the Contract Data and the legal successors in title to this person.
- 1.1.2.3 "Contractor" means the person(s) named as contractor in the Letter of Tender accepted by the Employer and the legal successors in title to this person(s).
- 1.1.2.4 "Engineer" means the person appointed by the Employer to act as the Engineer for the purposes of the Contract and named in the Contract Data, or other person appointed from time to time by the Employer and notified to the Contractor under Sub-Clause 3.4 [Replacement of the Engineer].
- 1.1.2.5 "Contractor's Representative" means the person named by the Contractor in the Contract or appointed from time to time by the Contractor under Sub-Clause 4.3 [Contractor's Representative], who acts on behalf of the Contractor.
- 1.1.2.6 "Employer's Personnel" means the Engineer, the assistants referred to in Sub-Clause 3.2 [Delegation by the Engineer] and all other staff, labour and other employees of the Engineer and of the Employer; and any other personnel notified to the Contractor, by the Employer or the Engineer, as Employer's Personnel.
- 1.1.2.7 "Contractor's Personnel" means the Contractor's Representative and all personnel whom the Contractor utilises on Site, who may include the staff, labour and other employees of the Contractor and of each Subcontractor; and any other personnel assisting the Contractor in the execution of the Works.
- 1.1.2.8 "Subcontractor" means any person named in the Contract as a subcontractor, or any person appointed as a subcontractor, for a part of the Works; and the legal successors in title to each of these persons.
- 1.1.2.9 "**DB**" means the person or three persons appointed under Sub-Clause 20.2 [Appointment of the Dispute Board] or Sub-Clause 20.3 [Failure to Agree on the Composition of the Dispute Board].
- 1.1.2.10 **"FIDIC"** means the *Fédération Internationale des Ingénieurs-Conseils*, the international federation of consulting engineers.
- 1.1.2.11 "Bank" means the financing institution (if any) named in the Contract Data.
- 1.1.2.12 **"Borrower**" means the person (if any) named as the borrower in the Contract Data.

1.1.3 Dates, Tests, Periods and Completion

- 1.1.3.1 **"Base Date"** means the date 28 days prior to the latest date for submission of the Tender.
- 1.1.3.2 **"Commencement Date"** means the date notified under Sub-Clause 8.1 [Commencement of Works].
- 1.1.3.3 "Time of Completion" means the time for completing the Works or a Section (as the case may be) under Sub-Clause 8.2 [Time for Completion], as stated in the Contract Data (with any extension under

- Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]), calculated from the Commencement Date.
- 1.1.3.4 "Tests on Completion" means the tests which are specified in the Contract or agreed by both Parties or instructed as a Variation, and which are carried out under Clause 9 [Tests on Completion] before the Works or a Section (as the case may be) are taken over by the Employer.
- 1.1.3.5 **"Taking-Over Certificate"** means a certificate issued under Clause 10 [Employer's Taking Over].
- 1.1.3.6 "Test after Completion" means the tests (if any) which are specified in the Contract and which are carried out in accordance with the Specification after the Works or a Section (as the case may be) are taken over by the Employer.
- 1.1.3.7 "Defects Notification Period" means the period for notifying defects in the Works or a Section (as the case may be) under Sub-Clause 11.1 [Completion of Outstanding Work and Remedying Defects], which extends over 365 days except if otherwise stated in the Contract Data (with any extension under Sub-Clause 11.3 [Extension of Defects Notification Period]), calculated from the date on which the Works or Section is completed as certified under Sub-Clause 10.1 [Taking Over of the Works and Sections].
- 1.1.3.8 "Performance Certificate" means the certificate issued under Sub-Clause 11.9 [Performance Certificate].
- 1.1.3.9 "Day" means a calendar day and "year" means 365 days.
- 1.1.4 Money and Payments
- 1.1.4.1 "Accepted Contract Amount" means the amount accepted in the Letter of Acceptance for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects.
- 1.1.4.2 **"Contract Price"** means the price defined in Sub-Clause 14.1 *[The Contract Price]*, and includes adjustments in accordance with the Contract.
- 1.1.4.3 "Cost" means all expenditure reasonably incurred (or to be incurred) by the Contractor, whether on or off the Site, including overhead and similar charges, but does not include profit.
- 1.1.4.4 "Final Payment Certificate" means the payment certificate issued under Sub-Clause 14.13 [Issue of Final Payment Certificate].
- 1.1.4.5 **"Final Statement**" means the statement defined in Sub-Clause 14.11 [Application for Final Payment Certificate].
- 1.1.4.6 **"Foreign Currency"** means a currency in which part (or all) of the Contract Price is payable, but not the Local Currency.
- 1.1.4.7 "Interim Payment Certificate" means a payment certificate issued under Clause 14 [Contract Price and Payment].
- 1.1.4.8 "Local Currency" means the currency of the Country.
- 1.1.4.9 "Payment Certificate" means a payment certificate issued under Clause 14 [Contract Price and Payment].
- 1.1.4.10 **"Provisional Sum"** means a sum (if any) which is specified in the Contract as a provisional sum, for the execution of any

- part of the Works or for the supply of Plant, Materials or services under Sub-Clause 13.5 [Provisional Sums].
- 1.1.4.11 "Retention Money" means the accumulated retention moneys which the Employer retains under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates] and pays under Sub-Clause 14.9 [Payment of Retention Money].
- 1.1.4.12 "**Statement**" means a statement submitted by the Contractor as part of an application, under Clause 14 [Contract Price and Payment], for a payment certificate.
- 1.1.5 Works and Goods
- 1.1.5.1 "Contractor's Equipment" means all apparatus, machinery, vehicles and other things required for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects. However, Contractor's Equipment excludes Temporary Works, Employer's Equipment (if any), Plant, Materials and any other things intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works.
- 1.1.5.2 **"Goods"** means Contractor's Equipment, Materials, Plant and Temporary Works, or any of them as appropriate.
- 1.1.5.3 "Materials" means things of all kinds (other than Plant) intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works, including the supply-only materials (if any) to be supplied by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.5.4 "**Permanent Works**" means the permanent works to be executed by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.5.5 **"Plant**" means the apparatus, machinery and other equipment intended to form or forming part of the Permanent Works, including vehicles purchased for the Employer and relating to the construction or operation of the Works.
- 1.1.5.6 "**Section**" means a part of the Works specified in the Contract Data as a Section (if any).
- 1.1.5.7 "**Temporary Works**" means all temporary works of every kind (other than Contractor's Equipment) required on Site for the execution and completion of the Permanent Works and the remedying of any defects.
- 1.1.5.8 "**Works**" mean the Permanent Works and the Temporary Works, or either of them as appropriate.
- 1.1.6 Other Definitions
- 1.1.6.1 "Contractor's Documents" means the calculations, computer programs and other software, drawings, manuals, models and other documents of a technical nature (if any) supplied by the Contractor under the Contract.
- 1.1.6.2 **"Country"** means the country in which the Site (or most of it) is located, where the Permanent Works are to be executed.
- 1.1.6.3 "Employer's Equipment" means the apparatus, machinery and vehicles (if any) made available by the Employer for the use of the Contractor in the execution of the Works, as stated in the Specification; but does not include Plant which has not been taken over by the Employer.
- 1.1.6.4 "Force Majeure" is defined in Clause 19 [Force Majeure].

- 1.1.6.5 "Laws" means all national (or state) legislation, statutes, ordinances and other laws, and regulations and by-laws of any legally constituted public authority.
- 1.1.6.6 "Performance Security" (means the security (or securities, if any) under Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security].
- 1.1.6.7 "Site" means the places where the Permanent Works are to be executed, including storage and working areas, and to which Plant and Materials are to be delivered, and any other places as may be specified in the Contract as forming part of the Site.
- 1.1.6.8 "**Unforeseeable**" means not reasonably foreseeable by an experienced contractor by the Base Date.
- 1.1.6.9 "Variation" means any change to the Works, which is instructed or approved as a variation under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments].
- 1.1.6.10 "Notice of Dissatisfaction" means the notice given by either Party to the other under Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision] indicating its dissatisfaction and intention to commence arbitration.
- 1.2 Interpretation

In the Contract, except where the context requires otherwise:

- a) Words indicating one gender include all genders;
- b) Words indicating the singular also include the plural and words indicating the plural also include the singular;
- c) Provisions including the word "agree", "agreed" or "agreement" require the agreement to be recorded in writing;
- d) "Written" or "in writing" means hand-written, type-written, printed or electronically made, and resulting in a permanent record; and
- e) The word "tender" is synonymous with "bid" and "tenderer" with "Bidder" and the words "tender documents" with "bidding documents".

The marginal words and other headings shall not be taken into consideration in the interpretation of these Conditions.

In these Conditions, provisions including the expression "Cost plus profit" require this profit to be one-twentieth (5%) of this Cost unless otherwise indicated in the Contract Data.

1.3 Communications

Wherever these Conditions provide for the giving or issuing of approvals, certificates, consents, determinations, notices, requests and discharges, these communications shall be:

- In writing and delivered by hand (against receipt), sent by mail or courier, or transmitted using any of the agreed systems of electronic transmission as stated in the Contract Data; and
- b) Delivered, sent or transmitted to the address for the recipient's communications as stated in the Contract Data. However:
 - (i) If the recipient gives notice of another address, communications shall thereafter be delivered accordingly; and
 - (ii) If the recipient has not stated otherwise when requesting an approval or consent, it may be sent to the address from which the request was issued.

Approvals, certificates, consents and determinations shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. When a certificate is issued to a Party, the certifier shall send a copy to the other Party. When a notice is issued to a Party, by the other Party or the Engineer, a copy shall be sent to the Engineer or the other Party, as the case may be.

1.4 Law and Language

The Contract shall be governed by the law of the country or other jurisdiction stated in the Contract Data.

The ruling language of the Contract shall be that stated in the Contract Data.

The language for communications shall be that stated in the Contract Data. If no language is stated there, the language for communications shall be the ruling language of the Contract.

1.5 Priority of Documents

The documents forming the Contract are to be taken as mutually explanatory of one another. For the purposes of interpretation, the priority of the documents shall be in accordance with the following sequence:

- a) The Contract Agreement (if any);
- b) The Letter of Acceptance;
- c) The Letter of Tender;
- d) The Particular Conditions Part A;
- e) The Particular Conditions Part B;
- f) These General Conditions;
- g) The Specification;
- h) The Drawings; and
- The Schedules and any other documents forming part of the Contract

If an ambiguity or discrepancy is found in the documents, the Engineer shall issue any necessary clarification or instruction.

1.6 Contract Agreement

The Parties shall enter into a Contract Agreement within 28 days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance, unless the Particular Conditions establish otherwise. The Contract Agreement shall be based upon the form annexed to the Particular Conditions. The costs of stamp duties and similar charges (if any) imposed by law in connection with entry into the Contract Agreement shall be borne by the Employer.

1.7 Assignment

Neither Party shall assign the whole or any part of the Contract or any benefit or interest in or under the Contract. However, either Party:

- a) May assign the whole or any part with the prior agreement of the other Party, at the sole discretion of such other Party, and
- b) May, as security in favour of a bank or financial institution, assign its right to any moneys due, or to become due, under the Contract.

1.8 Care and Supply of Documents

The Specification and Drawings shall be in the custody and care of the Employer. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, two copies of the Contract and of each subsequent Drawing shall be supplied to the Contractor, who may make or request further copies at the cost of the Contractor.

Each of the Contractor's Documents shall be in the custody and care of the Contractor, unless and until taken over by the Employer. Unless

otherwise stated in the Contract, the Contractor shall supply to the Engineer six copies of each of the Contractor's Documents.

The Contractor shall keep, on the Site, a copy of the Contract, publications named in the Specification, the Contractor's Documents (if any), the Drawings and Variations and other communications given under the Contract. The Employer's Personnel shall have the right of access to all these documents at all reasonable times.

If a Party becomes aware of an error or defect in a document which was prepared for use in executing the Works, the Party shall promptly give notice to the other Party of such error or defect.

1.9 Delayed Drawings or Instructions The Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer whenever the Works are likely to be delayed or disrupted if any necessary drawing or instruction is not issued to the Contractor within a particular time, which shall be reasonable. The notice shall include details of the necessary drawing or instruction, details of why and by when it should be issued, and the nature and amount of the delay or disruption likely to be suffered if it is late.

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost as a result of a failure of the Engineer to issue the notified drawing or instruction within a time which is reasonable and is specified in the notice with supporting details, the Contractor shall give a further notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- a) An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this further notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

However, if and to the extent that the Engineer's failure was caused by any error or delay by the Contractor, including an error in, or delay in the submission of, any of the Contractor's Documents, the Contractor shall not be entitled to such extension of time, Cost or profit.

1.10 Employer's Use of Contractor's Documents

As between the Parties, the Contractor shall retain the copyright and other intellectual property rights in the Contractor's Documents and other design documents made by (or on behalf of) the Contractor.

The Contractor shall be deemed (by signing the Contract) to give to the Employer a non-terminable transferable non-exclusive royalty-free licence to copy, use and communicate the Contractor's Documents, including making and using modifications of them. This licence shall:

- a) Apply throughout the actual or intended working life (whichever is longer) of the relevant parts of the Works;
- b) Entitle any person in proper possession of the relevant part of the Works to copy, use and communicate the Contractor's Documents for the purposes of completing, operating, maintaining, altering, adjusting, repairing and demolishing the Works; and
- c) In the case of Contractor's Documents which are in the form of computer programs and other software, permit their use on any computer on the Site and other places as envisaged by the

Contract, including replacements of any computers supplied by the Contractor.

The Contractor's Documents and other design documents made by (or on behalf of) the Contractor shall not, without the Contractor's consent, be used, copied or communicated to a third party by (or on behalf of) the Employer for purposes other than those permitted under this Sub-Clause.

1.11 Contractor's Use of Employer's Documents

As between the Parties, the Employer shall retain the copyright and other intellectual property rights in the Specification, the Drawings and other documents made by (or on behalf of) the Employer. The Contractor may, at his cost, copy, use, and obtain communication of these documents for the purposes of the Contract.

They shall not, without the Employer's consent, be copied, used or communicated to a third party by the Contractor, except as necessary for the purposes of the Contract.

1.12 Confidential Details

The Contractor's and the Employer's Personnel shall disclose all such confidential and other information as may be reasonably required in order to verify compliance with the Contract and allow its proper implementation.

Each of them shall treat the details of the Contract as private and confidential, except to the extent necessary to carry out their respective obligations under the Contract or to comply with applicable Laws. Each of them shall not publish or disclose any particulars of the Works prepared by the other Party without the previous agreement of the other Party. However, the Contractor shall be permitted to disclose any publicly available information, or information otherwise required to establish his qualifications to compete for other projects.

1.13 Compliance with Laws

The Contractor shall, in performing the Contract, comply with applicable Laws. Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions:

- a) The Employer shall have obtained (or shall obtain) the planning, zoning, building permit or similar permission for the Permanent Works, and any other permissions described in the Specification as having been (or to be) obtained by the Employer; and the Employer shall indemnify and hold the Contractor harmless against and from the consequences of any failure to do so; and
- b) The Contractor shall give all notices, pay all taxes, duties and fees, and obtain all permits, licences and approvals, as required by the Laws in relation to the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects; and the Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against and from the consequences of any failure to do so, unless the Contractor is impeded to accomplish these actions and shows evidence of its diligence.

1.14 Joint and Several Liability

If the Contractor constitutes (under applicable Laws) a joint venture, consortium or other unincorporated grouping of two or more persons:

- a) These persons shall be deemed to be jointly and severally liable to the Employer for the performance of the Contract;
- b) These persons shall notify the Employer of their leader who shall have authority to bind the Contractor and each of these persons; and
- c) The Contractor shall not alter its composition or legal status without the prior consent of the Employer.

1.15 Inspections and Audit by the Bank

The Contractor shall permit the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Site and/or the Contractor's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if required by the Bank.

2 The Employer

2.1 Right of Access to the Site

The Employer shall give the Contractor right of access to, and possession of, all parts of the Site within the time (or times) stated in the Contract Data. The right and possession may not be exclusive to the Contractor. If, under the Contract, the Employer is required to give (to the Contractor) possession of any foundation, structure, plant or means of access, the Employer shall do so in the time and manner stated in the Specification. However, the Employer may withhold any such right or possession until the Performance Security has been received.

If no such time is stated in the Contract Data, the Employer shall give the Contractor right of access to, and possession of, the Site within such times as required to enable the Contractor to proceed without disruption in accordance with the programme submitted under Sub-Clause 8.3 [Programme].

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost as a result of a failure by the Employer to give any such right or possession within such time, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- a) An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

However, if and to the extent that the Employer's failure was caused by any error or delay by the Contractor, including an error in, or delay in the submission of, any of the Contractor's Documents, the Contractor shall not be entitled to such extension of time, Cost or profit.

2.2 Permits, Licences or Approval

The Employer shall provide, at the request of the Contractor, such reasonable assistance as to allow the Contractor to obtain properly:

- a) Copies of the Laws of the Country which are relevant to the Contract but are not readily available, and
- b) Any permits, licences or approvals required by the Laws of the Country:
 - (i) Which the Contractor is required to obtain under Sub-Clause 1.13 [Compliance with Laws];
 - (ii) For the delivery of Goods, including clearance through customs; and
 - (iii) For the export of Contractor's Equipment when it is removed from the Site.

2.3 Employer's Personnel

The Employer shall be responsible for ensuring that the Employer's Personnel and the Employer's other contractors on the Site:

- a) Co-operate with the Contractor's efforts under Sub-Clause 4.6 [Co-operation]; and
- b) Take actions similar to those which the Contractor is required to take under sub-paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) of Sub-Clause 4.8 [Safety Procedures] and under Sub-Clause 4.18 [Protection of the Environment].

2.4 Employer's Financial Arrangements

The Employer shall submit, before the Commencement Date and thereafter within 28 days after receiving any request from the Contractor, reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made and are being maintained which will enable the Employer to pay the Contract Price punctually (as estimated at that time) in accordance with Clause 14 [Contract Price and Payment]. Before the Employer makes any material change to his financial arrangements, the Employer shall give notice to the Contractor with detailed particulars.

In addition, if the Bank has notified to the Borrower that the Bank has suspended disbursements under its loan, which finances in whole or in part the execution of the Works, the Employer shall give notice of such suspension to the Contractor with detailed particulars, including the date of such notification, with a copy to the Engineer, within 7 days of the Borrower having received the suspension notification from the Bank. If alternative funds will be available in appropriate currencies to the Employer to continue making payments to the Contractor beyond a date 60 days after the date of Bank notification of the suspension, the Employer shall provide reasonable evidence in his notice of the extent to which such funds will be available.

2.5 Employer's Claims

If the Employer considers himself to be entitled to any payment under any Clause of these Conditions or otherwise in connection with the Contract, and/or to any extension of the Defects Notification Period, the Employer or the Engineer shall give notice and particulars to the Contractor. However, notice is not required for payments due under Sub-Clause 4.19 [Electricity, Water and Gas], under Sub-Clause 4.20 [Employer's Equipment and Free-Issue Materials], or for other services requested by the Contractor.

The notice shall be given as soon as practicable and no longer than 28 days after the Employer became aware, or should have become aware, of the event or circumstances giving rise to the claim. A notice relating to any extension of the Defects Notification Period shall be given before the expiry of such period.

The particulars shall specify the Clause or other basis of the claim, and shall include substantiation of the amount and/or extension to which the Employer considers himself to be entitled in connection with the Contract. The Engineer shall then proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine (i) the amount (if any) which the Employer is entitled to be paid by the Contractor, and/or (ii) the extension (if any) of the Defects Notification Period in accordance with Sub-Clause 11.3 [Extension of Defects Notification Period].

This amount may be included as a deduction in the Contract Price and Payment Certificates. The Employer shall only be entitled to set off against or make any deduction from an amount certified in a Payment Certificate, or to otherwise claim against the Contractor, in accordance with this Sub-Clause.

3 The Engineer

3.1 Engineer's Duties and Authority

The Employer shall appoint the Engineer who shall carry out the duties assigned to him in the Contract. The Engineer's staff shall include suitably qualified engineers and other professionals who are competent to carry out these duties.

The Engineer shall have no authority to amend the Contract.

The Engineer may exercise the authority attributable to the Engineer as specified in or necessarily to be implied from the Contract. If the Engineer is required to obtain the approval of the Employer before exercising a specified authority, the requirements shall be as stated in the Particular Conditions. The Employer shall promptly inform the Contractor of any change to the authority attributed to the Engineer.

However, whenever the Engineer exercises a specified authority for which the Employer's approval is required, then (for the purposes of the Contract) the Employer shall be deemed to have given approval.

Except as otherwise stated in these Conditions:

- a) Whenever carrying out duties or exercising authority, specified in or implied by the Contract, the Engineer shall be deemed to act for the Employer;
- b) The Engineer has no authority to relieve either Party of any duties, obligations or responsibilities under the Contract;
- c) Any approval, check, certificate, consent, examination, inspection, instruction, notice, proposal, request, test, or similar act by the Engineer (including absence of disapproval) shall not relieve the Contractor from any responsibility he has under the Contract, including responsibility for errors, omissions, discrepancies and non-compliances; and
- d) Any act by the Engineer in response to a Contractor's request except as otherwise expressly specified shall be notified in writing to the Contractor within 28 days of receipt.

The following provisions shall apply:

The Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer before taking action under the-following Sub-Clauses of these Conditions:

- a) Sub-Clause 4.12: agreeing or determining an extension of time and/or additional cost;
- b) Sub-Clause 13.1: instructing a Variation, except;
 - (i) In an emergency situation as determined by the Engineer, or
 - (ii) If such a Variation would increase the Accepted Contract Amount by less than the percentage specified in the Contract Data;
- c) Sub-Clause 13.3: Approving a proposal for Variation submitted by the Contractor in accordance with Sub Clause 13.1 or 13.2;
- d) Sub-Clause 13.4: Specifying the amount payable in each of the applicable currencies.

Notwithstanding the obligation, as set out above, to obtain approval, if, in the opinion of the Engineer, an emergency occurs affecting the safety of life or of the Works or of adjoining property, he may, without relieving the Contractor of any of his duties and responsibility under the Contract, instruct the Contractor to execute all such work or to do

all such things as may, in the opinion of the Engineer, be necessary to abate or reduce the risk. The Contractor shall forthwith comply, despite the absence of approval of the Employer, with any such instruction of the Engineer. The Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price, in respect of such instruction, in accordance with Clause 13 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer.

3.2 Delegation by the Engineer

The Engineer may from time to time assign duties and delegate authority to assistants, and may also revoke such assignment or delegation. These assistants may include a resident engineer, and/or independent inspectors appointed to inspect and/or test items of Plant and/or Materials. The assignment, delegation or revocation shall be in writing and shall not take effect until copies have been received by both Parties. However, unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the Engineer shall not delegate the authority to determine any matter in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations].

Each assistant, to whom duties have been assigned or authority has been delegated, shall only be authorised to issue instructions to the Contractor to the extent defined by the delegation. Any approval, check, certificate, consent, examination, inspection, instruction, notice, proposal, request, test, or similar act by an assistant, in accordance with the delegation, shall have the same effect as though the act had been an act of the Engineer. However:

- Any failure to disapprove any work, Plant or Materials shall not constitute approval, and shall therefore not prejudice the right of the Engineer to reject the work, Plant or Materials;
- b) If the Contractor questions any determination or instruction of an assistant, the Contractor may refer the matter to the Engineer, who shall promptly confirm, reverse or vary the determination or instruction.

3.3 Instructions of the Engineer

The Engineer may issue to the Contractor (at any time) instructions and additional or modified Drawings which may be necessary for the execution of the Works and the remedying of any defects, all in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor shall only take instructions from the Engineer, or from an assistant to whom the appropriate authority has been delegated under this Clause. If an instruction constitutes a Variation, Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments] shall apply.

The Contractor shall comply with the instructions given by the Engineer or delegated assistant, on any matter related to the Contract. Whenever practicable, their instructions shall be given in writing. If the Engineer or a delegated assistant:

- a) Gives an oral instruction;
- b) Receives a written confirmation of the instruction, from (or on behalf of) the Contractor, within two working days after giving the instruction; and
- Does not reply by issuing a written rejection and/or instruction within two working days after receiving the confirmation;

then the confirmation shall constitute the written instruction of the Engineer or delegated assistant (as the case may be).

3.4 Replacement of the Engineer

If the Employer intends to replace the Engineer, the Employer shall, not less than 21 days before the intended date of replacement, give notice to the Contractor of the name, address and relevant experience of the intended replacement Engineer. If the Contractor considers the intended replacement Engineer to be unsuitable, he has the right to

raise objection against him by notice to the Employer, with supporting particulars, and the Employer shall give full and fair consideration to this objection.

3.5 Determinations

Whenever these Conditions provide that the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with this Sub-Clause 3.5 to agree or determine any matter, the Engineer shall consult with each Party in an endeavour to reach agreement. If agreement is not achieved, the Engineer shall make a fair determination in accordance with the Contract, taking due regard of all relevant circumstances.

The Engineer shall give notice to both Parties of each agreement or determination, with supporting particulars, within 28 days from the receipt of the corresponding claim or request except when otherwise specified. Each Party shall give effect to each agreement or determination unless and until revised under Clause 20 [Claims, Disputes and Arbitration].

4 The Contractor

4.1 Contractor's General Obligations

The Contractor shall design (to the extent specified in the Contract), execute and complete the Works in accordance with the Contract and with the Engineer's instructions, and shall remedy any defects in the Works.

The Contractor shall provide the Plant and Contractor's Documents specified in the Contract, and all Contractor's Personnel, Goods, consumables and other things and services, whether of a temporary or permanent nature, required in and for this design, execution, completion and remedying of defects.

All equipment, material, and services to be incorporated in or required for the Works shall have their origin in any eligible source country as defined by the Bank.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the adequacy, stability and safety of all Site operations and of all methods of construction. Except to the extent specified in the Contract, the Contractor (i) shall be responsible for all Contractor's Documents, Temporary Works, and such design of each item of Plant and Materials as is required for the item to be in accordance with the Contract, and (ii) shall not otherwise be responsible for the design or specification of the Permanent Works.

The Contractor shall, whenever required by the Engineer, submit details of the arrangements and methods which the Contractor proposes to adopt for the execution of the Works. No significant alteration to these arrangements and methods shall be made without this having previously been notified to the Engineer.

If the Contract specifies that the Contractor shall design any part of the Permanent Works, then unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions:

- The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer the Contractor's Documents for this part in accordance with the procedures specified in the Contract;
- b) These Contractor's Documents shall be in accordance with the Specification and Drawings, shall be written in the language for communications defined in Sub-Clause 1.4 [Law and Language], and shall include additional information required by the Engineer to add to the Drawings for co-ordination of each Party's designs;

- c) The Contractor shall be responsible for this part and it shall, when the Works are completed, be fit for such purposes for which the part is intended as are specified in the Contract; and
- d) Prior to the commencement of the Tests on Completion, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer the "as-built" documents and, if applicable, operation and maintenance manuals in accordance with the Specification and in sufficient detail for the Employer to operate, maintain, dismantle, reassemble, adjust and repair this part of the Works. Such part shall not be considered to be completed for the purposes of taking-over under Sub-Clause 10.1 [Taking Over of the Works and Sections] until these documents and manuals have been submitted to the Engineer.

4.2 Performance Security

The Contractor shall obtain (at his cost) a Performance Security for proper performance, in the amount stated in the Contract Data and denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer. If an amount is not stated in the Contract Data, this Sub-Clause shall not apply.

The Contractor shall deliver the Performance Security to the Employer within 28 days after receiving the Letter of Acceptance, and shall send a copy to the Engineer. The Performance Security shall be issued by a reputable bank or financial institution selected by the Contractor, and shall be in the form annexed to the Particular Conditions, as stipulated by the Employer in the Contract Data, or in another form approved by the Employer.

The Contractor shall ensure that the Performance Security is valid and enforceable until the Contractor has executed and completed the Works and remedied any defects. If the terms of the Performance Security specify its expiry date, and the Contractor has not become entitled to receive the Performance Certificate by the date 28 days prior to the expiry date, the Contractor shall extend the validity of the Performance Security until the Works have been completed and any defects have been remedied.

The Employer shall not make a claim under the Performance Security, except for amounts to which the Employer is entitled under the Contract.

The Employer shall indemnify and hold the Contractor harmless against and from all damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) resulting from a claim under the Performance Security to the extent to which the Employer was not entitled to make the claim.

The Employer shall return the Performance Security to the Contractor within 21 days after receiving a copy of the Performance Certificate.

Without limitation to the provisions of the rest of this Sub-Clause, whenever the Engineer determines an addition or a reduction to the Contract Price as a result of a change in cost and/or legislation, or as a result of a Variation, amounting to more than 25 percent of the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency, the Contractor shall at the Engineer's request promptly increase, or may decrease, as the case may be, the value of the Performance Security in that currency by an equal percentage.

4.3 Contractor's Representative

The Contractor shall appoint the Contractor's Representative and shall give him all authority necessary to act on the Contractor's behalf under the Contract.

Unless the Contractor's Representative is named in the Contract, the Contractor shall, prior to the Commencement Date, submit to the Engineer for consent the name and particulars of the person the Contractor proposes to appoint as Contractor's Representative. If consent is withheld or subsequently revoked in terms of Sub-Clause 6.9 [Contractor's Personnel], or if the appointed person fails to act as Contractor's Representative, the Contractor shall similarly submit the name and particulars of another suitable person for such appointment.

The Contractor shall not, without the prior consent of the Engineer, revoke the appointment of the Contractor's Representative or appoint a replacement.

The whole time of the Contractor's Representative shall be given to directing the Contractor's performance of the Contract. If the Contractor's Representative is to be temporarily absent from the Site during the execution of the Works, a suitable replacement person shall be appointed, subject to the Engineer's prior consent, and the Engineer shall be notified accordingly.

The Contractor's Representative shall, on behalf of the Contractor, receive instructions under Sub-Clause 3.3 [Instructions of the Engineer].

The Contractor's Representative may delegate any powers, functions and authority to any competent person, and may at any time revoke the delegation. Any delegation or revocation shall not take effect until the Engineer has received prior notice signed by the Contractor's Representative, naming the person and specifying the powers, functions and authority being delegated or revoked.

The Contractor's Representative shall be fluent in the language for communications defined in Sub-Clause 1.4 [Law and Language]. If the Contractor's Representative's delegates are not fluent in the said language, the Contractor shall make competent interpreters available during all working hours in a number deemed sufficient by the Engineer.

4.4 Subcontractors

The Contractor shall not subcontract the whole of the Works.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the acts or defaults of any Subcontractor, his agents or employees, as if they were the acts or defaults of the Contractor. Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions:

- The Contractor shall not be required to obtain consent to suppliers solely of Materials, or to a subcontract for which the Subcontractor is named in the Contract;
- b) The prior consent of the Engineer shall be obtained to other proposed Subcontractors;
- c) The Contractor shall give the Engineer not less than 28 days' notice of the intended date of the commencement of each Subcontractor's work, and of the commencement of such work on the Site; and
- d) Each subcontract shall include provisions which would entitle the Employer to require the subcontract to be assigned to the Employer under Sub-Clause 4.5 [Assignment of Benefit of Subcontract] (if or when applicable) or in the event of termination under Sub-Clause 15.2 [Termination by Employer].

The Contractor shall ensure that the requirements imposed on the Contractor by Sub-Clause 1.12 [Confidential Details] apply equally to each Subcontractor.

Where practicable, the Contractor shall give fair and reasonable opportunity for contractors from the Country to be appointed as Subcontractors.

4.5 Assignment of Benefit of Subcontractor If a Subcontractor's obligations extend beyond the expiry date of the relevant Defects Notification Period and the Engineer, prior to this date, instructs the Contractor to assign the benefit of such obligations to the Employer, then the Contractor shall do so. Unless otherwise stated in the assignment, the Contractor shall have no liability to the Employer for the work carried out by the Subcontractor after the assignment takes effect.

4.6 Co-operation

The Contractor shall, as specified in the Contract or as instructed by the Engineer, allow appropriate opportunities for carrying out work to:

- a) The Employer's Personnel;
- b) Any other contractors employed by the Employer; and
- c) The personnel of any legally constituted public authorities;

who may be employed in the execution on or near the Site of any work not included in the Contract.

Any such instruction shall constitute a Variation if and to the extent that it causes the Contractor to suffer delays and/or to incur Unforeseeable Cost. Services for these personnel and other contractors may include the use of Contractor's Equipment, Temporary Works or access arrangements which are the responsibility of the Contractor.

If, under the Contract, the Employer is required to give to the Contractor possession of any foundation, structure, plant or means of access in accordance with Contractor's Documents, the Contractor shall submit such documents to the Engineer in the time and manner stated in the Specification.

4.7 Setting Out

The Contractor shall set out the Works in relation to original points, lines and levels of reference specified in the Contract or notified by the Engineer. The Contractor shall be responsible for the correct positioning of all parts of the Works, and shall rectify any error in the positions, levels, dimensions or alignment of the Works.

The Employer shall be responsible for any errors in these specified or notified items of reference, but the Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to verify their accuracy before they are used.

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost from executing work which was necessitated by an error in these items of reference, and an experienced contractor could not reasonably have discovered such error and avoided this delay and/or Cost, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine (i) whether and (if so) to what extent the error could not reasonably have been

discovered, and (ii) the matters described in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above related to this extent.

4.8 Safety Procedures

The Contractor shall:

- a) Comply with all applicable safety regulations;
- b) Take care for the safety of all persons entitled to be on the Site;
- Use reasonable efforts to keep the Site and Works clear of unnecessary obstruction so as to avoid danger to these persons;
- d) Provide fencing, lighting, guarding and watching of the Works until completion and taking over under Clause 10 [Employer's Taking Over]; and
- e) Provide any Temporary Works (including roadways, footways, guards and fences) which may be necessary, because of the execution of the Works, for the use and protection of the public and of owners and occupiers of adjacent land.

4.9 Quality Assurance

The Contractor shall institute a quality assurance system to demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the Contract. The system shall be in accordance with the details stated in the Contract. The Engineer shall be entitled to audit any aspect of the system.

Details of all procedures and compliance documents shall be submitted to the Engineer for information before each design and execution stage is commenced. When any document of a technical nature is issued to the Engineer, evidence of the prior approval by the Contractor himself shall be apparent on the document itself.

Compliance with the quality assurance system shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his duties, obligations or responsibilities under the Contract.

4.10 Site Data

The Employer shall have made available to the Contractor for his information, prior to the Base Date, all relevant data in the Employer's possession on sub-surface and hydrological conditions at the Site, including environmental aspects. The Employer shall similarly make available to the Contractor all such data which come into the Employer's possession after the Base Date. The Contractor shall be responsible for interpreting all such data.

To the extent which was practicable (taking account of cost and time), the Contractor shall be deemed to have obtained all necessary information as to risks, contingencies and other circumstances which may influence or affect the Tender or Works. To the same extent, the Contractor shall be deemed to have inspected and examined the Site, its surroundings, the above data and other available information, and to have been satisfied before submitting the Tender as to all relevant matters, including (without limitation):

- a) The form and nature of the Site, including sub-surface conditions;
- b) The hydrological and climatic conditions;
- c) The extent and nature of the work and Goods necessary for the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects;
- d) The Laws, procedures and labour practices of the Country; and

e) The Contractor's requirements for access, accommodation, facilities, personnel, power, transport, water and other services.

4.11 Sufficiency of the Accepted Contract Amount

The Contractor shall be deemed to:

- Have satisfied himself as to the correctness and sufficiency of the Accepted Contract Amount; and
- b) Have based the Accepted Contract Amount on the data, interpretations, necessary information, inspections, examinations and satisfaction as to all relevant matters referred to in Sub-Clause 4.10 [Site Data].

Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, the Accepted Contract Amount covers all the Contractor's obligations under the Contract (including those under Provisional Sums, if any) and all things necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects.

4.12 Unforeseeable Physical Conditions

In this Sub-Clause, "physical conditions" means natural physical conditions and man-made and other physical obstructions and pollutants, which the Contractor encounters at the Site when executing the Works, including sub-surface and hydrological conditions but excluding climatic conditions.

If the Contractor encounters adverse physical conditions which he considers to have been Unforeseeable, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer as soon as practicable.

This notice shall describe the physical conditions, so that they can be inspected by the Engineer, and shall set out the reasons why the Contractor considers them to be Unforeseeable. The Contractor shall continue executing the Works, using such proper and reasonable measures as are appropriate for the physical conditions, and shall comply with any instructions which the Engineer may give. If an instruction constitutes a Variation, Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments] shall apply.

If and to the extent that the Contractor encounters physical conditions which are Unforeseeable, gives such a notice, and suffers delay and/or incurs Cost due to these conditions, the Contractor shall be entitled subject to notice under Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

Upon receiving such notice and inspecting and/or investigating these physical conditions, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine (i) whether and (if so) to what extent these physical conditions were Unforeseeable, and (ii) the matters described in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above related to this extent.

However, before additional Cost is finally agreed or determined under sub-paragraph (ii), the Engineer may also review whether other physical conditions in similar parts of the Works (if any) were more favourable than could reasonably have been foreseen when the Contractor submitted the Tender. If and to the extent that these more favourable conditions were encountered, the Engineer may proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or

determine the reductions in Cost which were due to these conditions, which may be included (as deductions) in the Contract Price and Payment Certificates. However, the net effect of all adjustments under sub-paragraph (b) and all these reductions, for all the physical conditions encountered in similar parts of the Works, shall not result in a net reduction in the Contract Price.

The Engineer shall take account of any evidence of the physical conditions foreseen by the Contractor when submitting the Tender, which shall be made available by the Contractor, but shall not be bound by the Contractor's interpretation of any such evidence.

4.13 Rights of Way and Facilities

Unless otherwise specified in the Contract the Employer shall provide effective access to and possession of the Site including special and/or temporary rights-of-way which are necessary for the Works. The Contractor shall obtain, at his risk and cost, any additional rights of way or facilities outside the Site which he may require for the purposes of the Works.

4.14 Avoidance of Interference

The Contractor shall not interfere unnecessarily or improperly with:

- a) The convenience of the public; or
- b) The access to and use and occupation of all roads and footpaths, irrespective of whether they are public or in the possession of the Employer or of others.

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against and from all damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) resulting from any such unnecessary or improper interference.

4.15 Access Route

The Contractor shall be deemed to have been satisfied as to the suitability and availability of access routes to the Site at Base Date. The Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to prevent any road or bridge from being damaged by the Contractor's traffic or by the Contractor's Personnel. These efforts shall include the proper use of appropriate vehicles and routes.

Except as otherwise stated in these Conditions:

- a) The Contractor shall (as between the Parties) be responsible for any maintenance which may be required for his use of access routes;
- The Contractor shall provide all necessary signs or directions along access routes, and shall obtain any permission which may be required from the relevant authorities for his use of routes, signs and directions;
- c) The Employer shall not be responsible for any claims which may arise from the use or otherwise of any access route;
- d) The Employer does not guarantee the suitability or availability of particular access routes; and
- e) Costs due to non-suitability or non-availability, for the use required by the Contractor, of access routes shall be borne by the Contractor.

4.16 Transport of Goods

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions:

 The Contractor shall give the Engineer not less than 21 days' notice of the date on which any Plant or a major item of other Goods will be delivered to the Site;

- b) The Contractor shall be responsible for packing, loading, transporting, receiving, unloading, storing and protecting all Goods and other things required for the Works; and
- c) The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against and from all damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) resulting from the transport of Goods, and shall negotiate and pay all claims arising from their transport.
- 4.17 Contractor's Equipment

The Contractor shall be responsible for all Contractor's Equipment. When brought on to the Site, Contractor's Equipment shall be deemed to be exclusively intended for the execution of the Works. The Contractor shall not remove from the Site any major items of Contractor's Equipment without the consent of the Engineer. However, consent shall not be required for vehicles transporting Goods or Contractor's Personnel off Site.

4.18 Protection of Environment

The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to protect the environment (both on and off the Site) and to limit damage and nuisance to people and property resulting from pollution, noise and other results of his operations.

The Contractor shall ensure that emissions, surface discharges and effluent from the Contractor's activities shall not exceed the values stated in the Specification or prescribed by applicable Laws.

4.19 Electricity, Water and Gas

The Contractor shall, except as stated below, be responsible for the provision of all power, water and other services he may require for his construction activities and to the extent defined in the Specifications, for the tests.

The Contractor shall be entitled to use for the purposes of the Works such supplies of electricity, water, gas and other services as may be available on the Site and of which details and prices are given in the Specification. The Contractor shall, at his risk and cost, provide any apparatus necessary for his use of these services and for measuring the quantities consumed.

The quantities consumed and the amounts due (at these prices) for such services shall be agreed or determined by the Engineer in accordance with Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] and Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations]. The Contractor shall pay these amounts to the Employer.

4.20 Employer's
Equipment and
Free-issues
Materials

The Employer shall make the Employer's Equipment (if any) available for the use of the Contractor in the execution of the Works in accordance with the details, arrangements and prices stated in the Specification. Unless otherwise stated in the Specification:

- The Employer shall be responsible for the Employer's Equipment; except that
- b) The Contractor shall be responsible for each item of Employer's Equipment whilst any of the Contractor's Personnel is operating it, driving it, directing it or in possession or control of it.

The appropriate quantities and the amounts due (at such stated prices) for the use of Employer's Equipment shall be agreed or determined by the Engineer in accordance with Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] and Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations]. The Contractor shall pay these amounts to the Employer.

The Employer shall supply, free of charge, the "free-issue materials" (if any) in accordance with the details stated in the Specification. The Employer shall, at his risk and cost, provide these materials at the time and place specified in the Contract. The Contractor shall then visually inspect them, and shall promptly give notice to the Engineer of any shortage, defect or default in these materials. Unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the Employer shall immediately rectify the notified shortage, defect or default.

After this visual inspection, the free-issue materials shall come under the care, custody and control of the Contractor. The Contractor's obligations of inspection, care, custody and control shall not relieve the Employer of liability for any shortage, defect or default not apparent from a visual inspection.

4.21 Progress Reports

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions, monthly progress reports shall be prepared by the Contractor and submitted to the Engineer in six copies. The first report shall cover the period up to the end of the first calendar month following the Commencement Date. Reports shall be submitted monthly thereafter, each within 7 days after the last day of the period to which it relates.

Reporting shall continue until the Contractor has completed all work which is known to be outstanding at the completion date stated in the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works.

Each report shall include:

- a) Charts and detailed descriptions of progress, including each stage of design (if any), Contractor's Documents, procurement, manufacture, delivery to Site, construction, erection and testing; and including these stages for work by each nominated Subcontractor (as defined in Clause 5 [Nominated Subcontractors]);
- b) Photographs showing the status of manufacture and of progress on the Site;
- c) For the manufacture of each main item of Plant and Materials, the name of the manufacturer, manufacture location, percentage progress, and the actual or expected dates of:
 - (i) Commencement of manufacture;
 - (ii) Contractor's inspections;
 - (iii) Tests; and
 - (iv) Shipment and arrival at the Site;
- d) The details described in Sub-Clause 6.10 [Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment];
- e) Copies of quality assurance documents, test results and certificates of Materials;
- f) List of notices given under Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] and notices given under Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims];
- Safety statistics, including details of any hazardous incidents and activities relating to environmental aspects and public relations; and
- h) Comparisons of actual and planned progress, with details of any events or circumstances which may jeopardise the

completion in accordance with the Contract, and the measures being (or to be) adopted to overcome delays.

4.22 Security of the Site

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions:

- a) The Contractor shall be responsible for keeping unauthorised persons off the Site, and
- b) Authorised persons shall be limited to the Contractor's Personnel and the Employer's Personnel; and to any other personnel notified to the Contractor, by the Employer or the Engineer, as authorised personnel of the Employer's other contractors on the Site.

4.23 Contractor's Operations on Site

The Contractor shall confine his operations to the Site, and to any additional areas which may be obtained by the Contractor and agreed by the Engineer as additional working areas. The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions to keep Contractor's Equipment and Contractor's Personnel within the Site and these additional areas, and to keep them off adjacent land.

During the execution of the Works, the Contractor shall keep the Site free from all unnecessary obstruction, and shall store or dispose of any Contractor's Equipment or surplus materials. The Contractor shall clear away and remove from the Site any wreckage, rubbish and Temporary Works which are no longer required.

Upon the issue of a Taking-Over Certificate, the Contractor shall clear away and remove, from that part of the Site and Works to which the Taking-Over Certificate refers, all Contractor's Equipment, surplus material, wreckage, rubbish and Temporary Works. The Contractor shall leave that part of the Site and the Works in a clean and safe condition. However, the Contractor may retain on Site, during the Defects Notification Period, such Goods as are required for the Contractor to fulfil obligations under the Contract.

4.24 Fossils

All fossils, coins, articles of value or antiquity, and structures and other remains or items of geological or archaeological interest found on the Site shall be placed under the care and authority of the Employer. The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions to prevent Contractor's Personnel or other persons from removing or damaging any of these findings.

The Contractor shall, upon discovery of any such finding, promptly give notice to the Engineer, who shall issue instructions for dealing with it. If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost from complying with the instructions, the Contractor shall give a further notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this further notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

5 Nominated Subcontractors

5.1 Definition of "Nominated Subcontractor"

In the Contract, "nominated Subcontractor" means a Subcontractor:

- a) Who is stated in the Contract as being a nominated Subcontractor; or
- b) Whom the Engineer, under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments], instructs the Contractor to employ as a Subcontractor subject to Sub-Clause 5.2 [Objection to Notification].

5.2 Objection to Nomination

The Contractor shall not be under any obligation to employ a nominated Subcontractor against whom the Contractor raises reasonable objection by notice to the Engineer as soon as practicable, with supporting particulars. An objection shall be deemed reasonable if it arises from (among other things) any of the following matters, unless the Employer agrees in writing to indemnify the Contractor against and from the consequences of the matter:

- a) There are reasons to believe that the Subcontractor does not have sufficient competence, resources or financial strength;
- b) The nominated Subcontractor does not accept to indemnify the Contractor against and from any negligence or misuse of Goods by the nominated Subcontractor, his agents and employees; or
- c) The nominated Subcontractor does not accept to enter into a subcontract which specifies that, for the subcontracted work (including design, if any), the nominated Subcontractor shall:
 - (i) Undertake to the Contractor such obligations and liabilities as will enable the Contractor to discharge his obligations and liabilities under the Contract;
 - (ii) Indemnify the Contractor against and from all obligations and liabilities arising under or in connection with the Contract and from the consequences of any failure by the Subcontractor to perform these obligations or to fulfil these liabilities; and
 - (iii) Be paid only if and when the Contractor has received from the Employer payments for sums due under the Subcontract referred to under Sub-Clause 5.3 [Payment to nominated Subcontractors].

5.3 Payments to Nominated Subcontractors

The Contractor shall pay to the nominated Subcontractor the amounts shown on the nominated Subcontractor's invoices approved by the Contractor which the Engineer certifies to be due in accordance with the subcontract. These amounts plus other charges shall be included in the Contract Price in accordance with sub-paragraph (b) of Sub-Clause 13.5 [Provisional Sums], except as stated in Sub-Clause 5.4 [Evidence of Payments].

5.4 Evidence of Payments

Before issuing a Payment Certificate which includes an amount payable to a nominated Subcontractor, the Engineer may request the Contractor to supply reasonable evidence that the nominated Subcontractor has received all amounts due in accordance with previous Payment Certificates, less applicable deductions for retention or otherwise. Unless the Contractor:

a) Submits this reasonable evidence to the Engineer, or

- b) (i) Satisfies the Engineer in writing that the Contractor is reasonably entitled to withhold or refuse to pay these amounts: and
 - (ii) Submits to the Engineer reasonable evidence that the nominated Subcontractor has been notified of the Contractor's entitlement,

then the Employer may (at his sole discretion) pay, direct to the nominated Subcontractor, part or all of such amounts previously certified (less applicable deductions) as are due to the nominated Subcontractor and for which the Contractor has failed to submit the evidence described in sub-paragraphs (a) or (b) above. The Contractor shall then repay, to the Employer, the amount which the nominated Subcontractor was directly paid by the Employer.

6 Staff and Labour

6.1 Engagement of Staff and Labour

Except as otherwise stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall make arrangements for the engagement of all staff and labour, local or otherwise, and for their payment, feeding, transport, and, when appropriate, housing.

The Contractor is encouraged, to the extent practicable and reasonable, to employ staff and labour with appropriate qualifications and experience from sources within the Country.

6.2 Rates of Wages and Conditions of Labour

The Contractor shall pay rates of wages, and observe conditions of labour, which are not lower than those established for the trade or industry where the work is carried out. If no established rates or conditions are applicable, the Contractor shall pay rates of wages and observe conditions which are not lower than the general level of wages and conditions observed locally by employers whose trade or industry is similar to that of the Contractor.

The Contractor shall inform the Contractor's Personnel about their liability to pay personal income taxes in the Country in respect of such of their salaries, wages, allowances and any benefits as are subject to tax under the Laws of the Country for the time being in force, and the Contractor shall perform such duties in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such Laws.

- 6.3 Persons in the Service of Employer
- The Contractor shall not recruit, or attempt to recruit, staff and labour from amongst the Employer's Personnel.
- 6.4 Labour Laws

The Contractor shall comply with all the relevant labour Laws applicable to the Contractor's Personnel, including Laws relating to their employment, health, safety, welfare, immigration and emigration, and shall allow them all their legal rights.

The Contractor shall require his employees to obey all applicable Laws, including those concerning safety at work.

6.5 Working Hours

No work shall be carried out on the Site on locally recognised days of rest, or outside the normal working hours stated in the Contract Data, unless:

- a) Otherwise stated in the Contract;
- b) The Engineer gives consent; or
- c) The work is unavoidable, or necessary for the protection of life or property or for the safety of the Works, in which case the Contractor shall immediately advise the Engineer.

6.6 Facilities for Staff and Labour

Except as otherwise stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall provide and maintain all necessary accommodation and welfare facilities for the Contractor's Personnel. The Contractor shall also provide facilities for the Employer's Personnel as stated in the Specification.

The Contractor shall not permit any of the Contractor's Personnel to maintain any temporary or permanent living quarters within the structures forming part of the Permanent Works.

6.7 Health and Safety

The Contractor shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to maintain the health and safety of the Contractor's Personnel. In collaboration with local health authorities, the Contractor shall ensure that medical staff, first aid facilities, sick bay and ambulance service are available at all times at the Site and at any accommodation for Contractor's and Employer's Personnel, and that suitable arrangements are made for all necessary welfare and hygiene requirements and for the prevention of epidemics.

The Contractor shall appoint an accident prevention officer at the Site, responsible for maintaining safety and protection against accidents. This person shall be qualified for this responsibility, and shall have the authority to issue instructions and take protective measures to prevent accidents. Throughout the execution of the Works, the Contractor shall provide whatever is required by this person to exercise this responsibility and authority.

The Contractor shall send, to the Engineer, details of any accident as soon as practicable after its occurrence. The Contractor shall maintain records and make reports concerning health, safety and welfare of persons, and damage to property, as the Engineer may reasonably require.

HIV-AIDS Prevention. The Contractor shall conduct an HIV-AIDS awareness programme via an approved service provider, and shall undertake such other measures as are specified in this Contract to reduce the risk of the transfer of the HIV virus between and among the Contractor's Personnel and the local community, to promote early diagnosis and to assist affected individuals.

The Contractor shall throughout the contract (including the Defects Notification Period): (i) conduct Information, Education and Communication (IEC) campaigns, at least every other month, addressed to all the Site staff and labour (including all the Contractor's employees, all Subcontractors and any other Contractor's or Employer's personnel employees, and all truck drivers and crew making deliveries to Site for construction activities) and to the immediate local communities, concerning the risks, dangers and impact, and appropriate avoidance behaviour with respect to, of Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) - or Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI) in general and HIV/AIDS in particular; (ii) provide male or female condoms for all Site staff and labour as appropriate; and (iii) provide for STI and HIV/AIDS screening, diagnosis, counselling and referral to a dedicated national STI and HIV/AIDS programme, (unless otherwise agreed) of all Site staff and labour.

The Contractor shall include in the programme to be submitted for the execution of the Works under Sub-Clause 8.3 an alleviation programme for Site staff and labour and their families in respect of Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI) and Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) including HIV/AIDS. The STI, STD and HIV/AIDS alleviation programme shall indicate when, how and at what cost the Contractor plans to satisfy the requirements of this Sub-Clause and

6.8 Contractor's Superintendence

the related specification. For each component, the programme shall detail the resources to be provided or utilised and any related sub-contracting proposed. The programme shall also include provision of a detailed cost estimate with supporting documentation. Payment to the Contractor for preparation and implementation this programme shall not exceed the Provisional Sum dedicated for this purpose.

Throughout the execution of the Works, and as long thereafter as is necessary to fulfil the Contractor's obligations, the Contractor shall provide all necessary superintendence to plan, arrange, direct, manage, inspect and test the work.

Superintendence shall be given by a sufficient number of persons having adequate knowledge of the language for communications (defined in Sub-Clause 1.4 [Law and Language]) and of the operations to be carried out (including the methods and techniques required, the hazards likely to be encountered and methods of preventing accidents), for the satisfactory and safe execution of the Works.

6.9 Contractor's Personnel

The Contractor's Personnel shall be appropriately qualified, skilled and experienced in their respective trades or occupations. The Engineer may require the Contractor to remove (or cause to be removed) any person employed on the Site or Works, including the Contractor's Representative if applicable, who:

- a) Persists in any misconduct or lack of care;
- b) Carries out duties incompetently or negligently;
- c) Fails to conform with any provisions of the Contract; or
- Persists in any conduct which is prejudicial to safety, health, or the protection of the environment.

If appropriate, the Contractor shall then appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement person.

6.10 Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment

The Contractor shall submit, to the Engineer, details showing the number of each class of Contractor's Personnel and of each type of Contractor's Equipment on the Site. Details shall be submitted each calendar month, in a form approved by the Engineer, until the Contractor has completed all work which is known to be outstanding at the completion date stated in the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works.

6.11 Disorderly Conduct

The Contractor shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to prevent any unlawful, riotous or disorderly conduct by or amongst the Contractor's Personnel, and to preserve peace and protection of persons and property on and near the Site.

6.12 Foreign Personnel

The Contractor may bring in to the Country any foreign personnel who are necessary for the execution of the Works to the extent allowed by the applicable Laws. The Contractor shall ensure that these personnel are provided with the required residence visas and work permits. The Employer will, if requested by the Contractor, use his best endeavours in a timely and expeditious manner to assist the Contractor in obtaining any local, state, national or government permission required for bringing in the Contractor's personnel.

The Contractor shall be responsible for the return of these personnel to the place where they were recruited or to their domicile. In the event of the death in the Country of any of these personnel or members of their families, the Contractor shall similarly be responsible for making the appropriate arrangements for their return or burial.

•			
	6.13	Supply of Foodstuffs	The Contractor shall arrange for the provision of a sufficient supply of suitable food as may be stated in the Specification at reasonable prices for the Contractor's Personnel for the purposes of or in connection with the Contract.
	6.14	Supply of Water	The Contractor shall, having regard to local conditions, provide on the Site an adequate supply of drinking and other water for the use of the Contractor's Personnel.
	6.15	Measures against Insect an Pest Nuisance	The Contractor shall at all times take the necessary precautions to protect the Contractor's Personnel employed on the Site from insect and pest nuisance, and to reduce the danger to their health. The Contractor shall comply with all the regulations of the local health authorities, including use of appropriate insecticide.
	6.16	Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs	The Contractor shall not, otherwise than in accordance with the Laws of the Country, import, sell, give, barter or otherwise dispose of any alcoholic liquor or drugs, or permit or allow importation, sale, gift, barter or disposal thereof by Contractor's Personnel.
	6.17	Arms and Ammunition	The Contractor shall not give, barter, or otherwise dispose of, to any person, any arms or ammunition of any kind, or allow Contractor's Personnel to do so.
	6.18	Festivals and Religious Customs	The Contractor shall respect the Country's recognized festivals, days of rest and religious or other customs.
	6.19	Funeral Arrangements	The Contractor shall be responsible, to the extent required by local regulations, for making any funeral arrangements for any of his local employees who may die while engaged upon the Works.
	6.20	Prohibition of Forced or Compulsory Labour	The Contractor shall not employ forced labour, which consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labour, such as indentured labour, bonded labour or similar labour-contracting arrangements.
	6.21	Prohibition of Harmful Child Labour	The Contractor shall not employ children in a manner that is economically exploitative, or is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development. Where the relevant labour laws of the Country have provisions for employment of minors, the Contractor shall follow those laws applicable to the Contractor. Children below the age of 18 years shall not be employed in dangerous work.
	6.22	Employment Records Workers	The Contractor shall keep complete and accurate records of the employment of labour at the Site. The records shall include the names, ages, genders, hours worked and wages paid to all workers. These records shall be summarized on a monthly basis and submitted to the Engineer. These records shall be included in the details to be submitted by the Contractor under Sub-Clause 6.10 [Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment].
	6.23	Workers' Organisations	In countries where the relevant labour laws recognise workers' rights to form and to join workers' organisations of their choosing without interference and to bargain collectively, the Contractor shall comply with guest laws. Where the relevant labour laws substantially restrict

with such laws. Where the relevant labour laws substantially restrict workers' organisations, the Contractor shall enable alternative means for the Contractor's Personnel to express their grievances and protect their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment. In either case described above, and where the relevant labour laws are silent, the Contractor shall not discourage the Contractor's Personnel from forming or joining workers' organisations of their choosing or from

bargaining collectively, and shall not discriminate or retaliate against the Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organisations and bargain collectively. The Contractor shall engage with such workers' representatives. Workers' organisations are expected to fairly represent the workers in the workforce.

6.24 Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity

The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where the relevant labour laws provide for non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall comply with such laws. When the relevant labour laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall meet this Sub-Clause's requirements. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on the inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination.

7 Plant, Materials and Workmanship

7.1 Manner of Execution

The Contractor shall carry out the manufacture of Plant, the production and manufacture of Materials, and all other execution of the Works:

- a) In the manner (if any) specified in the Contract;
- b) In a proper workmanlike and careful manner, in accordance with recognised good practice; and
- With properly equipped facilities and non-hazardous Materials, except as otherwise specified in the Contract.

7.2 Samples

The Contractor shall submit the following samples of Materials, and relevant information, to the Engineer for consent prior to using the Materials in or for the Works:

- a) Manufacturer's standard samples of Materials and samples specified in the Contract, all at the Contractor's cost; and
- b) Additional samples instructed by the Engineer as a Variation.

Each sample shall be labelled as to origin and intended use in the Works.

7.3 Inspection

The Employer's Personnel shall at all reasonable times:

- Have full access to all parts of the Site and to all places from which natural Materials are being obtained; and
- b) During production, manufacture and construction (at the Site and elsewhere), be entitled to examine, inspect, measure and test the materials and workmanship, and to check the progress of manufacture of Plant and production and manufacture of Materials.

The Contractor shall give the Employer's Personnel full opportunity to carry out these activities, including providing access, facilities, permissions and safety equipment. No such activity shall relieve the Contractor from any obligation or responsibility.

The Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer whenever any work is ready and before it is covered up, put out of sight, or packaged for storage or transport. The Engineer shall then either carry out the examination, inspection, measurement or testing without

unreasonable delay, or promptly give notice to the Contractor that the Engineer does not require to do so. If the Contractor fails to give the notice, he shall, if and when required by the Engineer, uncover the work and thereafter reinstate and make good, all at the Contractor's cost.

7.4 Testing

This Sub-Clause shall apply to all tests specified in the Contract, other than the Tests after Completion (if any).

Except as otherwise specified in the Contract, the Contractor shall provide all apparatus, assistance, documents and other information, electricity, equipment, fuel, consumables, instruments, labour, materials, and suitably qualified and experienced staff, as are necessary to carry out the specified tests efficiently. The Contractor shall agree, with the Engineer, the time and place for the specified testing of any Plant, Materials and other parts of the Works.

The Engineer may, under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments], vary the location or details of specified tests, or instruct the Contractor to carry out additional tests. If these varied or additional tests show that the tested Plant, Materials or workmanship is not in accordance with the Contract, the cost of carrying out this Variation shall be borne by the Contractor, notwithstanding other provisions of the Contract.

The Engineer shall give the Contractor not less than 24 hours' notice of the Engineer's intention to attend the tests. If the Engineer does not attend at the time and place agreed, the Contractor may proceed with the tests, unless otherwise instructed by the Engineer, and the tests shall then be deemed to have been made in the Engineer's presence.

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost from complying with these instructions or as a result of a delay for which the Employer is responsible, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- a) An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

The Contractor shall promptly forward to the Engineer duly certified reports of the tests. When the specified tests have been passed, the Engineer shall endorse the Contractor's test certificate, or issue a certificate to him, to that effect. If the Engineer has not attended the tests, he shall be deemed to have accepted the readings as accurate.

If, as a result of an examination, inspection, measurement or testing, any Plant, Materials or workmanship is found to be defective or otherwise not in accordance with the Contract, the Engineer may reject the Plant, Materials or workmanship by giving notice to the Contractor, with reasons. The Contractor shall then promptly make good the defect and ensure that the rejected item complies with the Contract.

If the Engineer requires this Plant, Materials or workmanship to be retested, the tests shall be repeated under the same terms and conditions. If the rejection and retesting cause the Employer to incur additional costs, the Contractor shall subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] pay these costs to the Employer.

7.5 Rejection

7.6 Remedial Work

Notwithstanding any previous test or certification, the Engineer may instruct the Contractor to:

- Remove from the Site and replace any Plant or Materials which is not in accordance with the Contract;
- Remove and re-execute any other work which is not in accordance with the Contract; and
- c) Execute any work which is urgently required for the safety of the Works, whether because of an accident, unforeseeable event or otherwise.

The Contractor shall comply with the instruction within a reasonable time, which shall be the time (if any) specified in the instruction, or immediately if urgency is specified under sub-paragraph (c).

If the Contractor fails to comply with the instruction, the Employer shall be entitled to employ and pay other persons to carry out the work. Except to the extent that the Contractor would have been entitled to payment for the work, the Contractor shall subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] pay to the Employer all costs arising from this failure.

7.7 Ownership of Plant and Materials

Except as otherwise provided in the Contract, each item of Plant and Materials shall, to the extent consistent with the Laws of the Country, become the property of the Employer at whichever is the earlier of the following times, free from liens and other encumbrances:

- a) When it is incorporated in the Works;
- b) When the Contractor is paid the corresponding value of the Plant and Materials under Sub-Clause 8.10 [Payment for Plant and Materials in Event of Suspension].

7.8 Royalties

Unless otherwise stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall pay all royalties, rents and other payments for:

- a) Natural Materials obtained from outside the Site, and
- b) The disposal of material from demolitions and excavations and of other surplus material (whether natural or man-made), except to the extent that disposal areas within the Site are specified in the Contract.

8 Commencement, Delays Suspension

8.1 Commencement of Works

Except as otherwise specified in the Particular Conditions of Contract, the Commencement Date shall be the date at which the following precedent conditions have all been fulfilled and the Engineer's notification recording the agreement of both Parties on such fulfilment and instructing to commence the Work is received by the Contractor:

- Signature of the Contract Agreement by both Parties, and if required, approval of the Contract by relevant authorities of the Country;
- b) Delivery to the Contractor of reasonable evidence of the Employer's financial arrangements (under Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements]);
- c) Except if otherwise specified in the Contract Data, effective access to and possession of the Site given to the Contractor together with such permission(s) under (a) of Sub-Clause 1.13 [Compliance with Laws] as required for the commencement of the Works;

d) Receipt by the Contractor of the Advance Payment under Sub-Clause 14.2 [Advance Payment] provided that the corresponding bank guarantee has been delivered by the Contractor.

If the said Engineer's instruction is not received by the Contractor within 180 days from his receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the Contractor shall be entitled to terminate the Contract under Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor].

The Contractor shall commence the execution of the Works as soon as is reasonably practicable after the Commencement Date, and shall then proceed with the Works with due expedition and without delay.

8.2 Time for Completion

The Contractor shall complete the whole of the Works, and each Section (if any), within the Time for Completion for the Works or Section (as the case may be), including:

- a) Achieving the passing of the Tests on Completion; and
- b) Completing all work which is stated in the Contract as being required for the Works or Section to be considered to be completed for the purposes of taking-over under Sub-Clause 10.1 [Taking Over of the Works and Sections].

8.3 Programme

The Contractor shall submit a detailed time programme to the Engineer within 28 days after receiving the notice under Sub-Clause 8.1 [Commencement of Works]. The Contractor shall also submit a revised programme whenever the previous programme is inconsistent with actual progress or with the Contractor's obligations. Each programme shall include:

- The order in which the Contractor intends to carry out the Works, including the anticipated timing of each stage of design (if any), Contractor's Documents, procurement, manufacture of Plant, delivery to Site, construction, erection and testing;
- b) Each of these stages for work by each nominated Subcontractor (as defined in Clause 5 [Nominated Subcontractors]);
- The sequence and timing of inspections and tests specified in the Contract; and
- d) A supporting report which includes:
 - A general description of the methods which the Contractor intends to adopt, and of the major stages, in the execution of the Works; and
 - (ii) Details showing the Contractor's reasonable estimate of the number of each class of Contractor's Personnel and of each type of Contractor's Equipment, required on the Site for each major stage.

Unless the Engineer, within 21 days after receiving a programme, gives notice to the Contractor stating the extent to which it does not comply with the Contract, the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with the programme, subject to his other obligations under the Contract. The Employer's Personnel shall be entitled to rely upon the programme when planning their activities.

The Contractor shall promptly give notice to the Engineer of specific probable future events or circumstances which may adversely affect the work, increase the Contract Price or delay the execution of the Works. The Engineer may require the Contractor to submit an estimate

of the anticipated effect of the future event or circumstances, and/or a proposal under Sub-Clause 13.3 [Variation Procedure].

If, at any time, the Engineer gives notice to the Contractor that a programme fails (to the extent stated) to comply with the Contract or to be consistent with actual progress and the Contractor's stated intentions, the Contractor shall submit a revised programme to the Engineer in accordance with this Sub-Clause.

8.4 Extension of Time for Completion

The Contractor shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to an extension of the Time for Completion if and to the extent that completion for the purposes of Sub-Clause 10.1 [Taking Over of the Works and Sections] is or will be delayed by any of the following causes:

- A Variation (unless an adjustment to the Time for Completion has been agreed under Sub-Clause 13.3 [Variation Procedure]) or other substantial change in the quantity of an item of work included in the Contract;
- b) A cause of delay giving an entitlement to extension of time under a Sub-Clause of these Conditions;
- c) Exceptionally adverse climatic conditions;
- d) Unforeseeable shortages in the availability of personnel or Goods caused by epidemic or governmental actions; or
- e) Any delay, impediment or prevention caused by or attributable to the Employer, the Employer's Personnel, or the Employer's other contractors.

If the Contractor considers himself to be entitled to an extension of the Time for Completion, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims]. When determining each extension of time under Sub-Clause 20.1, the Engineer shall review previous determinations and may increase, but shall not decrease, the total extension of time.

8.5 Delays Caused by Authorities

If the following conditions apply, namely:

- The Contractor has diligently followed the procedures laid down by the relevant legally constituted public authorities in the Country;
- b) These authorities delay or disrupt the Contractor's work; and
- c) The delay or disruption was Unforeseeable,

then this delay or disruption will be considered as a cause of delay under sub-paragraph (b) of Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion].

8.6 Rate of Progress

If, at any time:

- Actual progress is too slow to complete within the Time for Completion; and/or
- b) Progress has fallen (or will fall) behind the current programme under Sub-Clause 8.3 [Programme],

other than as a result of a cause listed in Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion], then the Engineer may instruct the Contractor to submit, under Sub-Clause 8.3 [Programme], a revised programme and supporting report describing the revised methods which the Contractor proposes to adopt in order to expedite progress and complete within the Time for Completion.

Unless the Engineer notifies otherwise, the Contractor shall adopt these revised methods, which may require increases in the working hours and/or in the numbers of Contractor's Personnel and/or Goods, at the risk and cost of the Contractor. If these revised methods cause the Employer to incur additional costs, the Contractor shall subject to notice under Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] pay these costs to the Employer, in addition to delay damages (if any) under Sub-Clause 8.7 below.

Additional costs of revised methods including acceleration measures, instructed by the Engineer to reduce delays resulting from causes listed under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion] shall be paid by the Employer, without generating, however, any other additional payment benefit to the Contractor.

8.7 Delay Damages

If the Contractor fails to comply with Sub-Clause 8.2 [Time for Completion], the Contractor shall subject to notice under Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] pay delay damages to the Employer for this default. These delay damages shall be the sum stated in the Contract Data, which shall be paid for every day which shall elapse between the relevant Time for Completion and the date stated in the Taking-Over Certificate. However, the total amount due under this Sub-Clause shall not exceed the maximum amount of delay damages (if any) stated in the Contract Data.

These delay damages shall be the only damages due from the Contractor for such default, other than in the event of termination under Sub-Clause 15.2 [Termination by Employer] prior to completion of the Works. These damages shall not relieve the Contractor from his obligation to complete the Works, or from any other duties, obligations or responsibilities which he may have under the Contract.

8.8 Suspension of Work

The Engineer may at any time instruct the Contractor to suspend progress of part or all of the Works. During such suspension, the Contractor shall protect, store and secure such part or the Works against any deterioration, loss or damage.

The Engineer may also notify the cause for the suspension. If and to the extent that the cause is notified and is the responsibility of the Contractor, the following Sub-Clauses 8.9, 8.10 and 8.11 shall not apply.

8.9 Consequences of Suspension

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost from complying with the Engineer's instructions under Sub-Clause 8.8 [Suspension of Work] and/or from resuming the work, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

The Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time for, or to payment of the Cost incurred in, making good the consequences of the Contractor's faulty design, workmanship or materials, or of the Contractor's failure to protect, store or secure in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.8 [Suspension of Work].

8.10 Payment for Plant and Materials in Event of Suspension

The Contractor shall be entitled to payment of the value (as at the date of suspension) of Plant and/or Materials which have not been delivered to Site. if:

- a) The work on Plant or delivery of Plant and/or Materials has been suspended for more than 28 days; and
- b) The Contractor has marked the Plant and/or Materials as the Employer's property in accordance with the Engineer's instructions.

8.11 Prolonged Suspension

If the suspension under Sub-Clause 8.8 [Suspension of Work] has continued for more than 84 days, the Contractor may request the Engineer's permission to proceed. If the Engineer does not give permission within 28 days after being requested to do so, the Contractor may, by giving notice to the Engineer, treat the suspension as an omission under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments] of the affected part of the Works. If the suspension affects the whole of the Works, the Contractor may give notice of termination under Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor].

8.12 Resumption of Work

After the permission or instruction to proceed is given, the Contractor and the Engineer shall jointly examine the Works and the Plant and Materials affected by the suspension. The Contractor shall make good any deterioration or defect in or loss of the Works or Plant or Materials, which has occurred during the suspension after receiving from the Engineer an instruction to this effect under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments].

9 Tests on Completion

9.1 Contractor's Obligations

The Contractor shall carry out the Tests on Completion in accordance with this Clause and Sub-Clause 7.4 [Testing], after providing the documents in accordance with sub-paragraph (d) of Sub-Clause 4.1 [Contractor's General Obligations].

The Contractor shall give to the Engineer not less than 21 days' notice of the date after which the Contractor will be ready to carry out each of the Tests on Completion. Unless otherwise agreed, Tests on Completion shall be carried out within 14 days after this date, on such day or days as the Engineer shall instruct.

In considering the results of the Tests on Completion, the Engineer shall make allowances for the effect of any use of the Works by the Employer on the performance or other characteristics of the Works. As soon as the Works, or a Section, have passed any Tests on Completion, the Contractor shall submit a certified report of the results of these Tests to the Engineer.

9.2 Delayed Tests

If the Tests on Completion are being unduly delayed by the Employer, Sub-Clause 7.4 [Testing] (fifth paragraph) and/or Sub-Clause 10.3 [Interference with Tests on Completion] shall be applicable.

If the Tests on Completion are being unduly delayed by the Contractor, the Engineer may by notice require the Contractor to carry out the Tests within 21 days after receiving the notice. The Contractor shall carry out the Tests on such day or days within that period as the Contractor may fix and of which he shall give notice to the Engineer.

If the Contractor fails to carry out the Tests on Completion within the period of 21 days, the Employer's Personnel may proceed with the Tests at the risk and cost of the Contractor. The Tests on Completion shall then be deemed to have been carried out in the presence of the Contractor and the results of the Tests shall be accepted as accurate.

9.3 Retesting

If the Works, or a Section, fail to pass the Tests on Completion, Sub-Clause 7.5 [Rejection] shall apply, and the Engineer or the Contractor may require the failed Tests, and Tests on Completion on any related work, to be repeated under the same terms and conditions.

9.4 Failure to Pass
Tests on Completion

If the Works, or a Section, fail to pass the Tests on Completion repeated under Sub-Clause 9.3 [Retesting], the Engineer shall be entitled to:

- a) Order further repetition of Tests on Completion under Sub-Clause 9.3 [Retesting];
- b) If the failure deprives the Employer of substantially the whole benefit of the Works or Section, reject the Works or Section (as the case may be), in which event the Employer shall have the same remedies as are provided in sub-paragraph (c) of Sub-Clause 11.4 [Failure to Remedy Defects]; or
- c) Issue a Taking-Over Certificate, if the Employer so requests.

In the event of sub-paragraph (c), the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with all other obligations under the Contract, and the Contract Price shall be reduced by such amount as shall be appropriate to cover the reduced value to the Employer as a result of this failure. Unless the relevant reduction for this failure is stated (or its method of calculation is defined) in the Contract, the Employer may require the reduction to be (i) agreed by both Parties (in full satisfaction of this failure only) and paid before this Taking-Over Certificate is issued, or (ii) determined and paid under Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] and Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations].

10 Employer's Taking Over

10.1 Taking Over of the Works and Sections

Except as stated in Sub-Clause 9.4 [Failure to Pass Tests on Completion], the Works shall be taken over by the Employer when (i) the Works have been completed in accordance with the Contract, including the matters described in Sub-Clause 8.2 [Time for Completion] and except as allowed in sub-paragraph (a) below, and (ii) a Taking-Over Certificate for the Works has been issued, or is deemed to have been issued in accordance with this Sub-Clause.

The Contractor may apply by notice to the Engineer for a Taking-Over Certificate not earlier than 14 days before the Works will, in the Contractor's opinion, be complete and ready for taking over. If the Works are divided into Sections, the Contractor may similarly apply for a Taking-Over Certificate for each Section.

The Engineer shall, within 28 days after receiving the Contractor's application:

- a) Issue the Taking-Over Certificate to the Contractor, stating the date on which the Works or Section were completed in accordance with the Contract, except for any minor outstanding work and defects which will not substantially affect the use of the Works or Section for their intended purpose (either until or whilst this work is completed and these defects are remedied); or
- b) Reject the application, giving reasons and specifying the work required to be done by the Contractor to enable the Taking-Over Certificate to be issued. The Contractor shall then complete this work before issuing a further notice under this Sub-Clause.

If the Engineer fails either to issue the Taking-Over Certificate or to reject the Contractor's application within the period of 28 days, and if the Works or Section (as the case may be) are substantially in accordance with the Contract, the Taking-Over Certificate shall be deemed to have been issued on the last day of that period.

10.2 Taking Over of Parts of the Works

The Engineer may, at the sole discretion of the Employer, issue a Taking-Over Certificate for any part of the Permanent Works.

The Employer shall not use any part of the Works (other than as a temporary measure which is either specified in the Contract or agreed by both Parties) unless and until the Engineer has issued a Taking-Over Certificate for this part. However, if the Employer does use any part of the Works before the Taking-Over Certificate is issued:

- a) The part which is used shall be deemed to have been taken over as from the date on which it is used;
- b) The Contractor shall cease to be liable for the care of such part as from this date, when responsibility shall pass to the Employer, and
- c) If requested by the Contractor, the Engineer shall issue a Taking-Over Certificate for this part.

After the Engineer has issued a Taking-Over Certificate for a part of the Works, the Contractor shall be given the earliest opportunity to take such steps as may be necessary to carry out any outstanding Tests on Completion. The Contractor shall carry out these Tests on Completion as soon as practicable before the expiry date of the relevant Defects Notification Period.

If the Contractor incurs Cost as a result of the Employer taking over and/or using a part of the Works, other than such use as is specified in the Contract or agreed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall (i) give notice to the Engineer and (ii) be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price. After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine this Cost and profit.

If a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for a part of the Works (other than a Section), the delay damages thereafter for completion of the remainder of the Works shall be reduced. Similarly, the delay damages for the remainder of the Section (if any) in which this part is included shall also be reduced. For any period of delay after the date stated in this Taking-Over Certificate, the proportional reduction in these delay damages shall be calculated as the proportion which the value of the part so certified bears to the value of the Works or Section (as the case may be) as a whole. The Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these proportions. The provisions of this paragraph shall only apply to the daily rate of delay damages under Sub-Clause 8.7 [Delay Damages], and shall not affect the maximum amount of these damages.

10.3 Interference with Tests on Completion

If the Contractor is prevented, for more than 14 days, from carrying out the Tests on Completion by a cause for which the Employer is responsible, the Employer shall be deemed to have taken over the Works or Section (as the case may be) on the date when the Tests on Completion would otherwise have been completed.

The Engineer shall then issue a Taking-Over Certificate accordingly, and the Contractor shall carry out the Tests on Completion as soon as

practicable, before the expiry date of the Defects Notification Period. The Engineer shall require the Tests on Completion to be carried out by giving 14 days' notice and in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Contract.

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost as a result of this delay in carrying out the Tests on Completion, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

10.4 Surfaces Requiring Reinstatement

Except as otherwise stated in a Taking-Over Certificate, a certificate for a Section or part of the Works shall not be deemed to certify completion of any ground or other surfaces requiring reinstatement.

11 Defects Liability

11.1 Completion of
Outstanding Work
and Remedying
Defects

In order that the Works and Contractor's Documents, and each Section, shall be in the condition required by the Contract (fair wear and tear excepted) by the expiry date of the relevant Defects Notification Period or as soon as practicable thereafter, the Contractor shall:

- a) Complete any work which is outstanding on the date stated in a Taking-Over Certificate, within such reasonable time as is instructed by the Engineer; and
- b) Execute all work required to remedy defects or damage, as may be notified by (or on behalf of) the Employer on or before the expiry date of the Defects Notification Period for the Works or Section (as the case may be).

If a defect appears or damage occurs, the Contractor shall be notified accordingly, by (or on behalf of) the Employer.

11.2 Cost of Remedying Defects

All work referred to in sub-paragraph (b) of Sub-Clause 11.1 [Completion of Outstanding Work and Remedying Defects] shall be executed at the risk and cost of the Contractor, if and to the extent that the work is attributable to:

- a) Any design for which the Contractor is responsible;
- b) Plant, Materials or workmanship not being in accordance with the Contract; or
- c) Failure by the Contractor to comply with any other obligation.

If and to the extent that such work is attributable to any other cause, the Contractor shall be notified promptly by (or on behalf of) the Employer, and Sub-Clause 13.3 [Variation Procedure] shall apply.

11.3 Extension of Defects Notification Period The Employer shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] to an extension of the Defects Notification Period for the Works or a Section if and to the extent that the Works, Section or a major item of Plant (as the case may be, and after taking over) cannot be used for the purposes for which they are intended by reason of a defect or by

reason of damage attributable to the Contractor. However, a Defects Notification Period shall not be extended by more than two years.

If delivery and/or erection of Plant and/or Materials was suspended under Sub-Clause 8.8 [Suspension of Work] or Sub-Clause 16.1 [Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work], the Contractor's obligations under this Clause shall not apply to any defects or damage occurring more than two years after the Defects Notification Period for the Plant and/or Materials would otherwise have expired.

11.4 Failure to Remedy Defects

If the Contractor fails to remedy any defect or damage within a reasonable time, a date may be fixed by (or on behalf of) the Employer, on or by which the defect or damage is to be remedied. The Contractor shall be given reasonable notice of this date.

If the Contractor fails to remedy the defect or damage by this notified date and this remedial work was to be executed at the cost of the Contractor under Sub-Clause 11.2 [Cost of Remedying Defects], the Employer may (at his option):

- a) Carry out the work himself or by others, in a reasonable manner and at the Contractor's cost, but the Contractor shall have no responsibility for this work; and the Contractor shall subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] pay to the Employer the costs reasonably incurred by the Employer in remedying the defect or damage;
- b) Require the Engineer to agree or determine a reasonable reduction in the Contract Price in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations]; or
- c) If the defect or damage deprives the Employer of substantially the whole benefit of the Works or any major part of the Works, terminate the Contract as a whole, or in respect of such major part which cannot be put to the intended use. Without prejudice to any other rights, under the Contract or otherwise, the Employer shall then be entitled to recover all sums paid for the Works or for such part (as the case may be), plus financing costs and the cost of dismantling the same, clearing the Site and returning Plant and Materials to the Contractor.

11.5 Removal of Defective Work

If the defect or damage cannot be remedied expeditiously on the Site and the Employer gives consent, the Contractor may remove from the Site for the purposes of repair such items of Plant as are defective or damaged. This consent may require the Contractor to increase the amount of the Performance Security by the full replacement cost of these items, or to provide other appropriate security.

11.6 Further Tests

If the work of remedying of any defect or damage may affect the performance of the Works, the Engineer may require the repetition of any of the tests described in the Contract. The requirement shall be made by notice within 28 days after the defect or damage is remedied.

These tests shall be carried out in accordance with the terms applicable to the previous tests, except that they shall be carried out at the risk and cost of the Party liable, under Sub-Clause 11.2 [Cost of Remedying Defects], for the cost of the remedial work.

11.7 Right of Access

Until the Performance Certificate has been issued, the Contractor shall have such right of access to the Works as is reasonably required in order to comply with this Clause, except as may be inconsistent with the Employer's reasonable security restrictions.

11.8 Contractor to Search

The Contractor shall, if required by the Engineer, search for the cause of any defect, under the direction of the Engineer. Unless the defect is

to be remedied at the cost of the Contractor under Sub-Clause 11.2 [Cost of Remedying Defects], the Cost of the search plus profit shall be agreed or determined by the Engineer in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] and shall be included in the Contract Price.

11.9 Performance Certificate

Performance of the Contractor's obligations shall not be considered to have been completed until the Engineer has issued the Performance Certificate to the Contractor, stating the date on which the Contractor completed his obligations under the Contract.

The Engineer shall issue the Performance Certificate within 28 days after the latest of the expiry dates of the Defects Notification Periods, or as soon thereafter as the Contractor has supplied all the Contractor's Documents and completed and tested all the Works, including remedying any defects. A copy of the Performance Certificate shall be issued to the Employer.

Only the Performance Certificate shall be deemed to constitute acceptance of the Works.

11.10 Unfulfilled Obligations

After the Performance Certificate has been issued, each Party shall remain liable for the fulfilment of any obligation which remains unperformed at that time. For the purposes of determining the nature and extent of unperformed obligations, the Contract shall be deemed to remain in force.

11.11 Clearance of Site

Upon receiving the Performance Certificate, the Contractor shall remove any remaining Contractor's Equipment, surplus material, wreckage, rubbish and Temporary Works from the Site.

If all these items have not been removed within 28 days after receipt by the Contractor of the Performance Certificate, the Employer may sell or otherwise dispose of any remaining items. The Employer shall be entitled to be paid the costs incurred in connection with, or attributable to, such sale or disposal and restoring the Site.

Any balance of the moneys from the sale shall be paid to the Contractor. If these moneys are less than the Employer's costs, the Contractor shall pay the outstanding balance to the Employer.

12 Measurement and Evaluation

12.1 Works to be Measured

The Works shall be measured, and valued for payment, in accordance with this Clause. The Contractor shall show in each application under Sub-Clauses 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates], 14.10 [Statement on Completion] and 14.11 [Application for Final Payment Certificate] the quantities and other particulars detailing the amounts which he considers to be entitled under the Contract.

Whenever the Engineer requires any part of the Works to be measured, reasonable notice shall be given to the Contractor's Representative, who shall:

- a) Promptly either attend or send another qualified representative to assist the Engineer in making the measurement; and
- b) Supply any particulars requested by the Engineer.

If the Contractor fails to attend or send a representative, the measurement made by (or on behalf of) the Engineer shall be accepted as accurate.

Except as otherwise stated in the Contract, wherever any Permanent Works are to be measured from records, these shall be prepared by the Engineer. The Contractor shall, as and when requested, attend to examine and agree the records with the Engineer, and shall sign the same when agreed. If the Contractor does not attend, the records shall be accepted as accurate.

If the Contractor examines and disagrees the records, and/or does not sign them as agreed, then the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer of the respects in which the records are asserted to be inaccurate. After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall review the records and either confirm or vary them and certify the payment of the undisputed part. If the Contractor does not so give notice to the Engineer within 14 days after being requested to examine the records, they shall be accepted as accurate.

Except as otherwise stated in the Contract and notwithstanding local practice:

- a) Measurement shall be made of the net actual quantity of each item of the Permanent Works; and
- b) The method of measurement shall be in accordance with the Bill of Quantities or other applicable Schedules.

Except as otherwise stated in the Contract, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine the Contract Price by evaluating each item of work, applying the measurement agreed or determined in accordance with the above Sub-Clauses 12.1 and 12.2 and the appropriate rate or price for the item.

For each item of work, the appropriate rate or price for the item shall be the rate or price specified for such item in the Contract or, if there is no such item, specified for similar work.

Any item of work included in the Bill of Quantities for which no rate or price was specified shall be considered as included in other rates and prices in the Bill of Quantities and will not be paid for separately.

However, a new rate or price shall be appropriate for an item of work if:

- a) (i) The measured quantity of the item is changed by more than 25% from the quantity of this item in the Bill of Quantities or other Schedule;
 - (ii) This change in quantity multiplied by such specified rate for this item exceeds 0.25% of the Accepted Contract Amount;
 - (iii) This change in quantity directly changes the Cost per unit quantity of this item by more than 1%; and
 - (iv) This item is not specified in the Contract as a "fixed rate item";

Or

- b) (i) The work is instructed under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments];
 - (ii) No rate or price is specified in the Contract for this item;

12.2 Method of Measurement

12.3 Evaluation

(iii) No specified rate or price is appropriate because the item of work is not of similar character, or is not executed under similar conditions, as any item in the Contract.

Each new rate or price shall be derived from any relevant rates or prices in the Contract, with reasonable adjustments to take account of the matters described in sub-paragraph (a) and/or (b), as applicable. If no rates or prices are relevant for the derivation of a new rate or price, it shall be derived from the reasonable Cost of executing the work, together with profit, taking account of any other relevant matters.

Until such time as an appropriate rate or price is agreed or determined, the Engineer shall determine a provisional rate or price for the purposes of Interim Payment Certificates as soon as the concerned work commences.

12.4 Omissions

Whenever the omission of any work forms part (or all) of a Variation, the value of which has not been agreed, if:

- The Contractor will incur (or has incurred) cost which, if the work had not been omitted, would have been deemed to be covered by a sum forming part of the Accepted Contract Amount;
- b) The omission of the work will result (or has resulted) in this sum not forming part of the Contract Price; and
- c) This cost is not deemed to be included in the evaluation of any substituted work;

then the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer accordingly, with supporting particulars. Upon receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine this cost, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

13 Variations and Adjustments

13.1 Right to Vary

Variations may be initiated by the Engineer at any time prior to issuing the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works, either by an instruction or by a request for the Contractor to submit a proposal.

The Contractor shall execute and be bound by each Variation, unless the Contractor promptly gives notice to the Engineer stating (with supporting particulars) that (i) the Contractor cannot readily obtain the Goods required for the Variation, or (ii) such Variation triggers a substantial change in the sequence or progress of the Works. Upon receiving this notice, the Engineer shall cancel, confirm or vary the instruction.

Each Variation may include:

- a) Changes to the quantities of any item of work included in the Contract (however, such changes do not necessarily constitute a Variation);
- b) Changes to the quality and other characteristics of any item of work;
- c) Changes to the levels, positions and/or dimensions of any part of the Works;
- d) Omission of any work unless it is to be carried out by others;
- Any additional work, Plant, Materials or services necessary for the Permanent Works, including any associated Tests on Completion, boreholes and other testing and exploratory work;

 Changes to the sequence or timing of the execution of the Works.

The Contractor shall not make any alteration and/or modification of the Permanent Works, unless and until the Engineer instructs or approves a Variation.

13.2 Value Engineering

The Contractor may, at any time, submit to the Engineer a written proposal which (in the Contractor's opinion) will, if adopted, (i) accelerate completion, (ii) reduce the cost to the Employer of executing, maintaining or operating the Works, (iii) improve the efficiency or value to the Employer of the completed Works, or (iv) otherwise be of benefit to the Employer.

The proposal shall be prepared at the cost of the Contractor and shall include the items listed in Sub-Clause 13.3 [Variation Procedure].

If a proposal, which is approved by the Engineer, includes a change in the design of part of the Permanent Works, then unless otherwise agreed by both Parties:

- a) The Contractor shall design this part;
- b) Sub-paragraphs (a) to (d) of Sub-Clause 4.1 [Contractor's General Obligations] shall apply; and
- c) If this change results in a reduction in the contract value of this part, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine a fee, which shall be included in the Contract Price. This fee shall be half (50%) of the difference between the following amounts:
 - (i) Such reduction in contract value, resulting from the change, excluding adjustments under Sub-Clause 13.7 [Adjustments for Changes in Legislation] and Sub-Clause 13.8 [Adjustments for Changes in Cost]; and
 - (ii) The reduction (if any) in the value to the Employer of the varied works, taking account of any reductions in quality, anticipated life or operational efficiencies.

However, if amount (i) is less than amount (ii), there shall not be a fee.

13.3 Variation Procedure

If the Engineer requests a proposal, prior to instructing a Variation, the Contractor shall respond in writing as soon as practicable, either by giving reasons why he cannot comply (if this is the case) or by submitting:

- A description of the proposed work to be performed and a programme for its execution;
- b) The Contractor's proposal for any necessary modifications to the programme according to Sub-Clause 8.3 [Programme] and to the Time for Completion; and
- c) The Contractor's proposal for evaluation of the Variation.

The Engineer shall, as soon as practicable after receiving such proposal (under Sub-Clause 13.2 [Value Engineering] or otherwise), respond with approval, disapproval or comments. The Contractor shall not delay any work whilst awaiting a response.

Each instruction to execute a Variation, with any requirements for the recording of Costs, shall be issued by the Engineer to the Contractor, who shall acknowledge receipt.

Each Variation shall be evaluated in accordance with Clause 12 [Measurement and Evaluation], unless the Engineer instructs or approves otherwise in accordance with this Clause.

13.4 Payment in Applicable Currencies

If the Contract provides for payment of the Contract Price in more than one currency, then whenever an adjustment is agreed, approved or determined as stated above, the amount payable in each of the applicable currencies shall be specified. For this purpose, reference shall be made to the actual or expected currency proportions of the Cost of the varied work, and to the proportions of various currencies specified for payment of the Contract Price.

13.5 Provisional Sums

Each Provisional Sum shall only be used, in whole or in part, in accordance with the Engineer's instructions, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly. The total sum paid to the Contractor shall include only such amounts, for the work, supplies or services to which the Provisional Sum relates, as the Engineer shall have instructed. For each Provisional Sum, the Engineer may instruct:

- a) Work to be executed (including Plant, Materials or services to be supplied) by the Contractor and valued under Sub-Clause 13.3 [Variation Procedure]; and/or
- b) Plant, Materials or services to be purchased by the Contractor, from a nominated Subcontractor (as defined in Clause 5 [Nominated Subcontractors]) or otherwise; and for which there shall be included in the Contract Price:
 - (i) The actual amounts paid (or due to be paid) by the Contractor; and
 - (ii) A sum for overhead charges and profit, calculated as a percentage of these actual amounts by applying the relevant percentage rate (if any) stated in the appropriate Schedule. If there is no such rate, the percentage rate stated in the Contract Data shall be applied.

The Contractor shall, when required by the Engineer, produce quotations, invoices, vouchers and accounts or receipts in substantiation.

13.6 Daywork

For work of a minor or incidental nature, the Engineer may instruct that a Variation shall be executed on a daywork basis. The work shall then be valued in accordance with the Daywork Schedule included in the Contract, and the following procedure shall apply. If a Daywork Schedule is not included in the Contract, this Sub-Clause shall not apply.

Before ordering Goods for the work, the Contractor shall submit quotations to the Engineer. When applying for payment, the Contractor shall submit invoices, vouchers and accounts or receipts for any Goods.

Except for any items for which the Daywork Schedule specifies that payment is not due, the Contractor shall deliver each day to the Engineer accurate statements in duplicate which shall include the following details of the resources used in executing the previous day's work:

- a) The names, occupations and time of Contractor's Personnel;
- b) The identification, type and time of Contractor's Equipment and Temporary Works; and

c) The quantities and types of Plant and Materials used.

One copy of each statement will, if correct, or when agreed, be signed by the Engineer and returned to the Contractor. The Contractor shall then submit priced statements of these resources to the Engineer, prior to their inclusion in the next Statement under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates].

13.7 Adjustments for Changes in Legislation The Contract Price shall be adjusted to take account of any increase or decrease in Cost resulting from a change in the Laws of the Country (including the introduction of new Laws and the repeal or modification of existing Laws) or in the judicial or official governmental interpretation of such Laws, made after the Base Date, which affect the Contractor in the performance of obligations under the Contract.

If the Contractor suffers (or will suffer) delay and/or incurs (or will incur) additional Cost as a result of these changes in the Laws or in such interpretations, made after the Base Date, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- a) An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Contractor shall not be entitled to an extension of time if the relevant delay has already been taken into account in the determination of a previous extension of time and such Cost shall not be separately paid if the same shall already have been taken into account in the indexing of any inputs to the table of adjustment data in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clause 13.8 [Adjustments for Changes in Cost].

13.8 Adjustments for Changes in costs In this Sub-Clause, "table of adjustment data" means the completed table of adjustment data for local and foreign currencies included in the Schedules. If there is no such table of adjustment data, this Sub-Clause shall not apply.

If this Sub-Clause applies, the amounts payable to the Contractor shall be adjusted for rises or falls in the cost of labour, Goods and other inputs to the Works, by the addition or deduction of the amounts determined by the formulae prescribed in this Sub-Clause. To the extent that full compensation for any rise or fall in Costs is not covered by the provisions of this or other Clauses, the Accepted Contract Amount shall be deemed to have included amounts to cover the contingency of other rises and falls in costs.

The adjustment to be applied to the amount otherwise payable to the Contractor, as valued in accordance with the appropriate Schedule and certified in Payment Certificates, shall be determined from formulae for each of the currencies in which the Contract Price is payable. No adjustment is to be applied to work valued on the basis of Cost or current prices. The formulae shall be of the following general type:

$$Pn = a + b\frac{Ln}{Lo} + c\frac{En}{Eo} + d\frac{Mn}{Mo} + \cdots$$

Where:

"Pn" is the adjustment multiplier to be applied to the estimated contract value in the relevant currency of the work carried out in period "n", this period being a month unless otherwise stated in the Contract Data;

"a" is a fixed coefficient, stated in the relevant table of adjustment data, representing the non-adjustable portion in contractual payments;

"b", "c", "d", etc. are coefficients representing the estimated proportion of each cost element related to the execution of the Works, as stated in the relevant table of adjustment data; such tabulated cost elements may be indicative of resources such as labour, equipment and materials;

"Ln", "En", "Mn", etc. are the current cost indices or reference prices for period "n", expressed in the relevant currency of payment, each of which is applicable to the relevant tabulated cost element on the date 49 days prior to the last day of the period (to which the particular Payment Certificate relates); and

"Lo", "Eo", "Mo", etc. are the base cost indices or reference prices, expressed in the relevant currency of payment, each of which is applicable to the relevant tabulated cost element on the Base Date.

The cost indices or reference prices stated in the table of adjustment data shall be used. If their source is in doubt, it shall be determined by the Engineer. For this purpose, reference shall be made to the values of the indices at stated dates for the purposes of clarification of the source; although these dates (and thus these values) may not correspond to the base cost indices.

In cases where the "currency of index" is not the relevant currency of payment, each index shall be converted into the relevant currency of payment at the selling rate, established by the central bank of the Country, of this relevant currency on the above date for which the index is required to be applicable.

Until such time as each current cost index is available, the Engineer shall determine a provisional index for the issue of Interim Payment Certificates. When a current cost index is available, the adjustment shall be recalculated accordingly.

If the Contractor fails to complete the Works within the Time for Completion, adjustment of prices thereafter shall be made using either (i) each index or price applicable on the date 49 days prior to the expiry of the Time for Completion of the Works, or (ii) the current index or price, whichever is more favourable to the Employer.

The weightings (coefficients) for each of the factors of cost stated in the table(s) of adjustment data shall only be adjusted if they have been rendered unreasonable, unbalanced or inapplicable, as a result of Variations.

14 Contract Price and Payment

14.1 The Contract Price

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions:

- The Contract Price shall be agreed or determined under Sub-Clause 12.3 [Evaluation] and be subject to adjustments in accordance with the Contract;
- b) The Contractor shall pay all taxes, duties and fees required to be paid by him under the Contract, and the Contract Price shall not be adjusted for any of these costs except as stated in Sub-Clause 13.7 [Adjustments for Changes in Legislation];

- c) Any quantities which may be set out in the Bill of Quantities or other Schedule are estimated quantities and are not to be taken as the actual and correct quantities:
 - of the Works which the Contractor is required to execute, or
 - (ii) for the purposes of Clause 12 [Measurement and Evaluation]; and
- d) The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer, within 28 days after the Commencement Date, a proposed breakdown of each lump sum price in the Schedules. The Engineer may take account of the breakdown when preparing Payment Certificates, but shall not be bound by it.

Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (b), Contractor's Equipment, including essential spare parts therefor, imported by the Contractor for the sole purpose of executing the Contract shall be exempt from the payment of import duties and taxes upon importation.

14.2 Advance Payment

The Employer shall make an advance payment, as an interest-free loan for mobilisation and cash flow support, when the Contractor submits a guarantee in accordance with this Sub-Clause. The total advance payment, the number and timing of instalments (if more than one), and the applicable currencies and proportions, shall be as stated in the Contract Data.

Unless and until the Employer receives this guarantee, or if the total advance payment is not stated in the Contract Data, this Sub-Clause shall not apply.

The Engineer shall deliver to the Employer and to the Contractor an Interim Payment Certificate for the advance payment or its first instalment after receiving a Statement (under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates]) and after the Employer receives (i) the Performance Security in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security] and (ii) a guarantee in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. This guarantee shall be issued by a reputable bank or financial institution selected by the Contractor and shall be in the form annexed to the Particular Conditions or in another form approved by the Employer.

The Contractor shall ensure that the guarantee is valid and enforceable until the advance payment has been repaid, but its amount shall be progressively reduced by the amount repaid by the Contractor as indicated in the Payment Certificates. If the terms of the guarantee specify its expiry date, and the advance payment has not been repaid by the date 28 days prior to the expiry date, the Contractor shall extend the validity of the guarantee until the advance payment has been repaid.

Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Data, the advance payment shall be repaid through percentage deductions from the interim payments determined by the Engineer in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.6 [Issue of Interim Payment Certificates], as follows:

- a) Deductions shall commence in the next interim Payment Certificate following that in which the total of all certified interim payments (excluding the advance payment and deductions and repayments of retention) exceeds 30 percent (30%) of the Accepted Contract Amount less Provisional Sums; and
- b) Deductions shall be made at the amortisation rate stated in the Contract Data of the amount of each Interim Payment

Certificate (excluding the advance payment and deductions for its repayments as well as deductions for retention money) in the currencies and proportions of the advance payment until such time as the advance payment has been repaid; provided that the advance payment shall be completely repaid prior to the time when 90 percent (90%) of the Accepted Contract Amount less Provisional Sums has been certified for payment.

If the advance payment has not been repaid prior to the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works or prior to termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer], Clause 16 [Suspension and Termination by Contractor] or Clause 19 [Force Majeure] (as the case may be), the whole of the balance then outstanding shall immediately become due and in case of termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer], except for Sub-Clause 15.5 [Employer's Entitlement to Termination for Convenience], payable by the Contractor to the Employer.

14.3 Application for Interim Payment Certificates

The Contractor shall submit a Statement in six copies to the Engineer after the end of each month, in a form approved by the Engineer, showing in detail the amounts to which the Contractor considers himself to be entitled, together with supporting documents which shall include the report on the progress during this month in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.21 [Progress Reports].

The Statement shall include the following items, as applicable, which shall be expressed in the various currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, in the sequence listed:

- The estimated contract value of the Works executed and the Contractor's Documents produced up to the end of the month (including Variations but excluding items described in sub-paragraphs (b) to (g) below);
- b) Any amounts to be added and deducted for changes in legislation and changes in cost, in accordance with Sub-Clause 13.7 [Adjustments for Changes in Legislation] and Sub-Clause 13.8 [Adjustments for Changes in Cost];
- c) Any amount to be deducted for retention, calculated by applying the percentage of retention stated in the Contract Data to the total of the above amounts, until the amount so retained by the Employer reaches the limit of Retention Money (if any) stated in the Contract Data;
- d) Any amounts to be added for the advance payment and (if more than one instalment) and to be deducted for its repayments in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.2 [Advance Payment];
- e) Any amounts to be added and deducted for Plant and Materials in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.5 [Plant and Materials intended for the Works];
- f) Any other additions or deductions which may have become due under the Contract or otherwise, including those under Clause 20 [Claims, Disputes and Arbitration]; and
- g) The deduction of amounts certified in all previous Payment Certificates.

14.4 Schedule of Payments

If the Contract includes a schedule of payments specifying the instalments in which the Contract Price will be paid, then unless otherwise stated in this schedule:

- The instalments quoted in this schedule of payments shall be the estimated contract values for the purposes of sub-paragraph (a) of Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates];
- b) Sub-Clause 14.5 [Plant and Materials intended for the Works] shall not apply; and
- c) If these instalments are not defined by reference to the actual progress achieved in executing the Works, and if actual progress is found to be less or more than that on which this schedule of payments was based, then the Engineer may proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine revised instalments, which shall take account of the extent to which progress is less or more than that on which the instalments were previously based.

If the Contract does not include a schedule of payments, the Contractor shall submit non-binding estimates of the payments which he expects to become due during each quarterly period. The first estimate shall be submitted within 42 days after the Commencement Date. Revised estimates shall be submitted at quarterly intervals, until the Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for the Works.

14.5 Plant and Materials Intended for the Works

If this Sub-Clause applies, Interim Payment Certificates shall include, under sub-paragraph (e) of Sub-Clause 14.3, (i) an amount for Plant and Materials which have been sent to the Site for incorporation in the Permanent Works, and (ii) a reduction when the contract value of such Plant and Materials is included as part of the Permanent Works under sub-paragraph (a) of Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates].

If the lists referred to in sub-paragraphs (b)(i) or (c)(i) below are not included in the Schedules, this Sub-Clause shall not apply.

The Engineer shall determine and certify each addition if the following conditions are satisfied:

- a) The Contractor has:
 - Kept satisfactory records (including the orders, receipts, Costs and use of Plant and Materials) which are available for inspection; and
 - (ii) Submitted a statement of the Cost of acquiring and delivering the Plant and Materials to the Site, supported by satisfactory evidence;

and either:

- b) The relevant Plant and Materials:
 - Are those listed in the Schedules for payment when shipped;
 - (ii) Have been shipped to the Country, en route to the Site, in accordance with the Contract; and
 - (iii) Are described in a clean shipped bill of lading or other evidence of shipment, which has been submitted to the Engineer together with evidence of payment of freight and insurance, any other documents reasonably required, and a bank guarantee in a form and issued by

an entity approved by the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to the amount due under this Sub-Clause: this guarantee may be in a similar form to the form referred to in Sub-Clause 14.2 [Advance Payment] and shall be valid until the Plant and Materials are properly stored on Site and protected against loss, damage or deterioration;

or:

- c) The relevant Plant and Materials:
 - (i) Are those listed in the Schedules for payment when delivered to the Site; and
 - (ii) Have been delivered to and are properly stored on the Site, are protected against loss, damage or deterioration, and appear to be in accordance with the Contract.

The additional amount to be certified shall be the equivalent of eighty percent (80%) of the Engineer's determination of the cost of the Plant and Materials (including delivery to Site), taking account of the documents mentioned in this Sub-Clause and of the contract value of the Plant and Materials.

The currencies for this additional amount shall be the same as those in which payment will become due when the contract value is included under sub-paragraph (a) of Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates]. At that time, the Payment Certificate shall include the applicable reduction which shall be equivalent to, and in the same currencies and proportions as, this additional amount for the relevant Plant and Materials.

14.6 Issue of Interim Payment Certificates

No amount will be certified or paid until the Employer has received and approved the Performance Security. Thereafter, the Engineer shall, within 28 days after receiving a Statement and supporting documents, deliver to the Employer and to the Contractor an Interim Payment Certificate which shall state the amount which the Engineer fairly determines to be due, with all supporting particulars for any reduction or withholding made by the Engineer on the Statement if any.

However, prior to issuing the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works, the Engineer shall not be bound to issue an Interim Payment Certificate in an amount which would (after retention and other deductions) be less than the minimum amount of Interim Payment Certificates (if any) stated in the Contract Data. In this event, the Engineer shall give notice to the Contractor accordingly.

An Interim Payment Certificate shall not be withheld for any other reason, although:

- a) If any thing supplied or work done by the Contractor is not in accordance with the Contract, the cost of rectification or replacement may be withheld until rectification or replacement has been completed; and/or
- b) If the Contractor was or is failing to perform any work or obligation in accordance with the Contract, and had been so notified by the Engineer, the value of this work or obligation may be withheld until the work or obligation has been performed.

The Engineer may in any Payment Certificate make any correction or modification that should properly be made to any previous Payment

Certificate. A Payment Certificate shall not be deemed to indicate the Engineer's acceptance, approval, consent or satisfaction.

14.7 Payment

The Employer shall pay to the Contractor:

- a) The first instalment of the advance payment within 42 days after issuing the Letter of Acceptance or within 21 days after receiving the documents in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security] and Sub-Clause 14.2 [Advance Payment], whichever is later;
- b) The amount certified in each Interim Payment Certificate within 56 days after the Engineer receives the Statement and supporting documents; or, at a time when the Bank's loan or credit (from which part of the payments to the Contractor is being made) is suspended, the amount shown on any statement submitted by the Contractor within 14 days after such statement is submitted, any discrepancy being rectified in the next payment to the Contractor; and
- c) The amount certified in the Final Payment Certificate within 56 days after the Employer receives this Payment Certificate; or, at a time when the Bank's loan or credit (from which part of the payments to the Contractor is being made) is suspended, the undisputed amount shown in the Final Statement within 56 days after the date of notification of the suspension in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor].

Payment of the amount due in each currency shall be made into the bank account, nominated by the Contractor, in the payment country (for this currency) specified in the Contract.

14.8 Delayed Payment

If the Contractor does not receive payment in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.7 [Payment], the Contractor shall be entitled to receive financing charges compounded monthly on the amount unpaid during the period of delay. This period shall be deemed to commence on the date for payment specified in Sub-Clause 14.7 [Payment], irrespective (in the case of its sub-paragraph (b)) of the date on which any Interim Payment Certificate is issued.

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions, these financing charges shall be calculated at the annual rate of three percentage points above the discount rate of the central bank in the country of the currency of payment, or if not available, the interbank offered rate, and shall be paid in such currency.

The Contractor shall be entitled to this payment without formal notice or certification, and without prejudice to any other right or remedy.

14.9 Payment or Retention Money

When the Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for the Works, the first half of the Retention Money shall be certified by the Engineer for payment to the Contractor. If a Taking-Over Certificate is issued for a Section or part of the Works, a proportion of the Retention Money shall be certified and paid. This proportion shall be half (50%) of the proportion calculated by dividing the estimated contract value of the Section or part, by the estimated final Contract Price.

Promptly after the latest of the expiry dates of the Defects Notification Periods, the outstanding balance of the Retention Money shall be certified by the Engineer for payment to the Contractor. If a Taking-Over Certificate was issued for a Section, a proportion of the second half of the Retention Money shall be certified and paid promptly after the expiry date of the Defects Notification Period for the Section. This proportion shall be half (50%) of the proportion calculated by

dividing the estimated contract value of the Section by the estimated final Contract Price.

However, if any work remains to be executed under Clause 11 [Defects Liability], the Engineer shall be entitled to withhold certification of the estimated cost of this work until it has been executed.

When calculating these proportions, no account shall be taken of any adjustments under Sub-Clause 13.7 [Adjustments for Changes in Legislation] and Sub-Clause 13.8 [Adjustments for Changes in Cost].

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions, when the Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for the Works and the first half of the Retention Money has been certified for payment by the Engineer, the Contractor shall be entitled to substitute a guarantee, in the form annexed to the Particular Conditions or in another form approved by the Employer and issued by a reputable bank or financial institution selected by the Contractor, for the second half of the Retention Money. The Contractor shall ensure that the guarantee is in the amounts and currencies of the second half of the Retention Money and is valid and enforceable until the Contractor has executed and completed the Works and remedied any defects, as specified for the Performance Security in Sub-Clause 4.2. On receipt by the Employer of the required guarantee, the Engineer shall certify and the Employer shall pay the second half of the Retention Money. The release of the second half of the Retention Money against a guarantee shall then be in lieu of the release under the second paragraph of this Sub-Clause. The Employer shall return the guarantee to the Contractor within 21 days after receiving a copy of the Performance Certificate.

If the Performance Security required under Sub-Clause 4.2 is in the form of a demand guarantee, and the amount guaranteed under it when the Taking-Over Certificate is issued is more than half of the Retention Money, then the Retention Money guarantee will not be required. If the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security when the Taking-Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the Retention Money, the Retention Money guarantee will only be required for the difference between half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security.

14.10 Statement at Completion

Within 84 days after receiving the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works, the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer six copies of a Statement at completion with supporting documents, in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates], showing:

- The value of all work done in accordance with the Contract up to the date stated in the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works;
- Any further sums which the Contractor considers to be due;
- c) An estimate of any other amounts which the Contractor considers will become due to him under the Contract. Estimated amounts shall be shown separately in this Statement at completion.

The Engineer shall then certify in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.6 [Issue of Interim Payment Certificates].

14.11 Application for Final Payment Certificate

Within 56 days after receiving the Performance Certificate, the Contractor shall submit, to the Engineer, six copies of a draft final statement with supporting documents showing in detail in a form approved by the Engineer:

- The value of all work done in accordance with the Contract;
 and
- b) Any further sums which the Contractor considers to be due to him under the Contract or otherwise.

If the Engineer disagrees with or cannot verify any part of the draft final statement, the Contractor shall submit such further information as the Engineer may reasonably require within 28 days from receipt of said draft and shall make such changes in the draft as may be agreed between them. The Contractor shall then prepare and submit to the Engineer the final statement as agreed. This agreed statement is referred to in these Conditions as the "Final Statement".

However, if following discussions between the Engineer and the Contractor and any changes to the draft final statement which are agreed, it becomes evident that a dispute exists, the Engineer shall deliver to the Employer (with a copy to the Contractor) an Interim Payment Certificate for the agreed parts of the draft final statement. Thereafter, if the dispute is finally resolved under Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision] or Sub-Clause 20.5 [Amicable Settlement], the Contractor shall then prepare and submit to the Employer (with a copy to the Engineer) a Final Statement.

14.12 Discharge

When submitting the Final Statement, the Contractor shall submit a discharge which confirms that the total of the Final Statement represents full and final settlement of all moneys due to the Contractor under or in connection with the Contract. This discharge may state that it becomes effective when the Contractor has received the Performance Security and the outstanding balance of this total, in which event the discharge shall be effective on such date.

14.13 Issue of Final Payment Certificate

Within 28 days after receiving the Final Statement and discharge in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.11 [Application for Final Payment Certificate] and Sub-Clause 14.12 [Discharge], the Engineer shall deliver, to the Employer and to the Contractor, the Final Payment Certificate which shall state:

- a) The amount which he fairly determines is finally due; and
- b) After giving credit to the Employer for all amounts previously paid by the Employer and for all sums to which the Employer is entitled, the balance (if any) due from the Employer to the Contractor or from the Contractor to the Employer, as the case may be.

If the Contractor has not applied for a Final Payment Certificate in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.11 [Application for Final Payment Certificate] and Sub-Clause 14.12 [Discharge], the Engineer shall request the Contractor to do so. If the Contractor fails to submit an application within a period of 28 days, the Engineer shall issue the Final Payment Certificate for such amount as he fairly determines to be due.

14.14 Cessation of Employer's Liability

The Employer shall not be liable to the Contractor for any matter or thing under or in connection with the Contract or execution of the Works, except to the extent that the Contractor shall have included an amount expressly for it:

- a) In the Final Statement; and also
- b) (Except for matters or things arising after the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works) in the Statement at completion described in Sub-Clause 14.10 [Statement at Completion].

However, this Sub-Clause shall not limit the Employer's liability under his indemnification obligations, or the Employer's liability in any case of fraud, deliberate default or reckless misconduct by the Employer.

14.15 Currencies of Payment

The Contract Price shall be paid in the currency or currencies named in the Schedule of Payment Currencies. If more than one currency is so named, payments shall be made as follows:

- a) If the Accepted Contract Amount was expressed in Local Currency only:
 - (i) The proportions or amounts of the Local and Foreign Currencies, and the fixed rates of exchange to be used for calculating the payments, shall be as stated in the Schedule of Payment Currencies, except as otherwise agreed by both Parties;
 - (ii) Payments and deductions under Sub-Clause 13.5 [Provisional Sums] and Sub-Clause 13.7 [Adjustments for Changes in Legislation] shall be made in the applicable currencies and proportions; and
 - (iii) Other payments and deductions under sub-paragraphs
 (a) to (d) of Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates] shall be made in the currencies and proportions specified in sub-paragraph (a)(i) above;
- b) Payment of the damages specified in the Contract Data, shall be made in the currencies and proportions specified in the Schedule of Payment Currencies;
- c) Other payments to the Employer by the Contractor shall be made in the currency in which the sum was expended by the Employer, or in such currency as may be agreed by both Parties:
- d) If any amount payable by the Contractor to the Employer in a particular currency exceeds the sum payable by the Employer to the Contractor in that currency, the Employer may recover the balance of this amount from the sums otherwise payable to the Contractor in other currencies; and
- e) If no rates of exchange are stated in the Schedule of Payment Currencies, they shall be those prevailing on the Base Date and determined by the central bank of the Country.

15 Termination by Employer

15.1 Notice to Correct

If the Contractor fails to carry out any obligation under the Contract, the Engineer may by notice require the Contractor to make good the failure and to remedy it within a specified reasonable time.

15.2 Termination by Employer

The Employer shall be entitled to terminate the Contract if the Contractor:

- a) Fails to comply with Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security] or with a notice under Sub-Clause 15.1 [Notice to Correct];
- Abandons the Works or otherwise plainly demonstrates the intention not to continue performance of his obligations under the Contract;
- c) Without reasonable excuse fails:
 - (i) To proceed with the Works in accordance with Clause 8 [Commencement, Delays and Suspension]; or
 - (ii) To comply with a notice issued under Sub-Clause 7.5 [Rejection] or Sub-Clause 7.6 [Remedial Work], within 28 days after receiving it;
- d) Subcontracts the whole of the Works or assigns the Contract without the required agreement;
- e) Becomes bankrupt or insolvent, goes into liquidation, has a receiving or administration order made against him, compounds with his creditors, or carries on business under a receiver, trustee or manager for the benefit of his creditors, or if any act is done or event occurs which (under applicable Laws) has a similar effect to any of these acts or events; or
- f) Gives or offers to give (directly or indirectly) to any person any bribe, gift, gratuity, commission or other thing of value, as an inducement or reward:
 - (i) For doing or forbearing to do any action in relation to the Contract; or
 - (ii) For showing or forbearing to show favour or disfavour to any person in relation to the Contract,

or if any of the Contractor's Personnel, agents or Subcontractors gives or offers to give (directly or indirectly) to any person any such inducement or reward as is described in this sub-paragraph (f). However, lawful inducements and rewards to Contractor's Personnel shall not entitle termination.

In any of these events or circumstances, the Employer may, upon giving 14 days' notice to the Contractor, terminate the Contract and expel the Contractor from the Site. However, in the case of subparagraph (e) or (f), the Employer may by notice terminate the Contract immediately.

The Employer's election to terminate the Contract shall not prejudice any other rights of the Employer, under the Contract or otherwise.

The Contractor shall then leave the Site and deliver any required Goods, all Contractor's Documents, and other design documents made by or for him, to the Engineer. However, the Contractor shall use his best efforts to comply immediately with any reasonable instructions included in the notice (i) for the assignment of any subcontract, and (ii) for the protection of life or property or for the safety of the Works.

After termination, the Employer may complete the Works and/or arrange for any other entities to do so. The Employer and these entities may then use any Goods, Contractor's Documents and other design documents made by or on behalf of the Contractor.

The Employer shall then give notice that the Contractor's Equipment and Temporary Works will be released to the Contractor at or near the Site. The Contractor shall promptly arrange their removal, at the risk and cost of the Contractor. However, if by this time the Contractor has failed to make a payment due to the Employer, these items may be sold by the Employer in order to recover this payment. Any balance of the proceeds shall then be paid to the Contractor.

15.3 Valuation at Date of Termination

As soon as practicable after a notice of termination under Sub-Clause 15.2 [Termination by Employer] has taken effect, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine the value of the Works, Goods and Contractor's Documents, and any other sums due to the Contractor for work executed in accordance with the Contract.

15.4 Payment after Termination

After a notice of termination under Sub-Clause 15.2 [Termination by Employer] has taken effect, the Employer may:

- a) Proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims];
- Withhold further payments to the Contractor until the costs of execution, completion and remedying of any defects, damages for delay in completion (if any), and all other costs incurred by the Employer, have been established; and/or
- c) Recover from the Contractor any losses and damages incurred by the Employer and any extra costs of completing the Works, after allowing for any sum due to the Contractor under Sub-Clause 15.3 [Valuation at Date of Termination]. After recovering any such losses, damages and extra costs, the Employer shall pay any balance to the Contractor.

15.5 Employer's
Entitlement to
Termination for
Convenience

The Employer shall be entitled to terminate the Contract, at any time for the Employer's convenience, by giving notice of such termination to the Contractor. The termination shall take effect 28 days after the later of the dates on which the Contractor receives this notice or the Employer returns the Performance Security. The Employer shall not terminate the Contract under this Sub-Clause in order to execute the Works himself or to arrange for the Works to be executed by another contractor or to avoid a termination of the Contract by the Contractor under Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor].

After this termination, the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.3 [Cessation of Work and Removal of Contractor's Equipment] and shall be paid in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.4 [Payment on Termination].

15.6 Corrupt or fraudulent Practices

If the Employer determines, based on reasonable evidence, that the Contractor has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive or coercive practices, in competing for or in executing the Contract, then the Employer may, after giving 14 days' notice to the Contractor, terminate the Contract and expel him from the Site, and the provisions of Clause 15 shall apply as if such termination had been made under Sub-Clause 15.2 [Termination by Employer].

Should any employee of the Contractor be determined, based on reasonable evidence, to have engaged in corrupt, fraudulent or coercive practice during the execution of the work then that employee shall be removed in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.9 [Contractor's Personnel].

For the purposes of this Sub-Clause:

- a) "Corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- b) "Fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- "Collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- "Coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- e) "Obstructive practice" is:
 - (i) Deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - (ii) Acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under Sub-Clause 1.15 [Inspections and Audits by the Bank].

16 Suspension and Termination by Contractor

16.1 Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work If the Engineer fails to certify in accordance with Sub-Clause 14.6 [Issue of Interim Payment Certificates] or the Employer fails to comply with Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements] or Sub-Clause 14.7 [Payment], the Contractor may, after giving not less than 21 days' notice to the Employer, suspend work (or reduce the rate of work) unless and until the Contractor has received the Payment Certificate, reasonable evidence or payment, as the case may be and as described in the notice.

Notwithstanding the above, if the Bank has suspended disbursements under the loan or credit from which payments to the Contractor are being made, in whole or in part, for the execution of the Works, and no alternative funds are available as provided for in Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements], the Contractor may by notice suspend work or reduce the rate of work at any time, but not less than 7 days after the Borrower having received the suspension notification from the Bank.

The Contractor's action shall not prejudice his entitlements to financing charges under Sub-Clause 14.8 [Delayed Payment] and to termination under Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor].

If the Contractor subsequently receives such Payment Certificate, evidence or payment (as described in the relevant Sub-Clause and in the above notice) before giving a notice of termination, the Contractor shall resume normal working as soon as is reasonably practicable.

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost as a result of suspending work (or reducing the rate of work) in accordance with this

Sub-Clause, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost plus profit, which shall be included in the Contract Price.

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

16.2 Termination by Contractor

The Contractor shall be entitled to terminate the Contract if:

- a) The Contractor does not receive the reasonable evidence within 42 days after giving notice under Sub-Clause 16.1 [Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work] in respect of a failure to comply with Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements];
- b) The Engineer fails, within 56 days after receiving a Statement and supporting documents, to issue the relevant Payment Certificate;
- c) The Contractor does not receive the amount due under an Interim Payment Certificate within 42 days after the expiry of the time stated in Sub-Clause 14.7 [Payment] within which payment is to be made (except for deductions in accordance with Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims]);
- d) The Employer substantially fails to perform his obligations under the Contract in such manner as to materially and adversely affect the economic balance of the Contract and/or the ability of the Contractor to perform the Contract;
- e) The Employer fails to comply with Sub-Clause 1.6 [Contract Agreement] or Sub-Clause 1.7 [Assignment];
- f) A prolonged suspension affects the whole of the Works as described in Sub-Clause 8.11 [Prolonged Suspension]; or
- g) The Employer becomes bankrupt or insolvent, goes into liquidation, has a receiving or administration order made against him, compounds with his creditors, or carries on business under a receiver, trustee or manager for the benefit of his creditors, or if any act is done or event occurs which (under applicable Laws) has a similar effect to any of these acts or events;
- h) The Contractor does not receive the Engineer's instruction recording the agreement of both Parties on the fulfilment of the conditions for the Commencement of Works under Sub-Clause 8.1 [Commencement of Works].

In any of these events or circumstances, the Contractor may, upon giving 14 days' notice to the Employer, terminate the Contract. However, in the case of sub-paragraph (f) or (g), the Contractor may by notice terminate the Contract immediately.

In the event the Bank suspends the loan or credit from which part or whole of the payments to the Contractor are being made, if the Contractor has not received the sums due to him upon expiration of the 14 days referred to in Sub-Clause 14.7 [Payment] for payments under Interim Payment Certificates, the Contractor may, without prejudice to the Contractor's entitlement to financing charges under Sub-Clause 14.8 [Delayed Payment], take one of the following actions, namely (i) suspend work or reduce the rate of work under Sub-Clause

16.1 above, or (ii) terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Employer, with a copy to the Engineer, such termination to take effect 14 days after the giving of the notice.

The Contractor's election to terminate the Contract shall not prejudice any other rights of the Contractor, under the Contract or otherwise.

16.3 Cessation of Work and Removal of Contractor's Equipment

After a notice of termination under Sub-Clause 15.5 [Employer's Entitlement to Termination for Convenience], Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor] or Sub-Clause 19.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release] has taken effect, the Contractor shall promptly:

- Cease all further work, except for such work as may have been instructed by the Engineer for the protection of life or property or for the safety of the Works;
- b) Hand over Contractor's Documents, Plant, Materials and other work, for which the Contractor has received payment; and
- c) Remove all other Goods from the Site, except as necessary for safety, and leave the Site.

16.4 Payment on Termination After a notice of termination under Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by Contractor] has taken effect, the Employer shall promptly:

- a) Return the Performance Security to the Contractor;
- b) Pay the Contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 19.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release]; and
- c) Pay to the Contractor the amount of any loss or damage sustained by the Contractor as a result of this termination.

17 Risk and Responsibility

17.1 Indemnities

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Employer, the Employer's Personnel, and their respective agents, against and from all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) in respect of:

- a) Bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, of any person whatsoever arising out of or in the course of or by reason of the Contractor's design (if any), the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects, unless attributable to any negligence, wilful act or breach of the Contract by the Employer, the Employer's Personnel, or any of their respective agents; and
- b) Damage to or loss of any property, real or personal (other than the Works), to the extent that such damage or loss arises out of or in the course of or by reason of the Contractor's design (if any), the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects, unless and to the extent that any such damage or loss is attributable to any negligence, wilful act or breach of the Contract by the Employer, the Employer's Personnel, their respective agents, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them.

The Employer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, the Contractor's Personnel, and their respective agents, against and from all claims, damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) in respect of (1) bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, which is attributable to any negligence, wilful act or breach of the Contract by the Employer, the Employer's Personnel, or any of their respective agents, and (2) the matters for which liability may be excluded from insurance cover, as described in sub-paragraphs (d)(i),

(ii) and (iii) of Sub-Clause 18.3 [Insurance Against Injury to Persons and Damage to Property].

17.2 Contractor's Care of the Works

The Contractor shall take full responsibility for the care of the Works and Goods from the Commencement Date until the Taking-Over Certificate is issued (or is deemed to be issued under Sub-Clause 10.1 [Taking Over of the Works and Sections]) for the Works, when responsibility for the care of the Works shall pass to the Employer. If a Taking-Over Certificate is issued (or is so deemed to be issued) for any Section or part of the Works, responsibility for the care of the Section or part shall then pass to the Employer.

After responsibility has accordingly passed to the Employer, the Contractor shall take responsibility for the care of any work which is outstanding on the date stated in a Taking-Over Certificate, until this outstanding work has been completed.

If any loss or damage happens to the Works, Goods or Contractor's Documents during the period when the Contractor is responsible for their care, from any cause not listed in Sub-Clause 17.3 [Employer's Risks], the Contractor shall rectify the loss or damage at the Contractor's risk and cost, so that the Works, Goods and Contractor's Documents conform with the Contract.

The Contractor shall be liable for any loss or damage caused by any actions performed by the Contractor after a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued. The Contractor shall also be liable for any loss or damage which occurs after a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued and which arose from a previous event for which the Contractor was liable.

17.3 Employer's Risks

The risks referred to in Sub-Clause 17.4 [Consequences of Employer's Risks] below, insofar as they directly affect the execution of the Works in the Country, are:

- a) War, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies;
- b) Rebellion, terrorism, sabotage by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power, or civil war, within the Country;
- c) Riot, commotion or disorder within the Country by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel;
- Munitions of war, explosive materials, ionising radiation or contamination by radio-activity, within the Country, except as may be attributable to the Contractor's use of such munitions, explosives, radiation or radio-activity;
- e) Pressure waves caused by aircraft or other aerial devices travelling at sonic or supersonic speeds;
- f) Use or occupation by the Employer of any part of the Permanent Works, except as may be specified in the Contract;
- g) Design of any part of the Works by the Employer's Personnel or by others for whom the Employer is responsible; and
- h) Any operation of the forces of nature which is Unforeseeable or against which an experienced contractor could not reasonably have been expected to have taken adequate preventive precautions.

17.4 Consequences of Employer's Risks

If and to the extent that any of the risks listed in Sub-Clause 17.3 above results in loss or damage to the Works, Goods or Contractor's

Documents, the Contractor shall promptly give notice to the Engineer and shall rectify this loss or damage to the extent required by the Engineer.

If the Contractor suffers delay and/or incurs Cost from rectifying this loss or damage, the Contractor shall give a further notice to the Engineer and shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- a) An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) Payment of any such Cost, which shall be included in the Contract Price. In the case of sub-paragraphs (f) and (g) of Sub-Clause 17.3 [Employer's Risks], Cost plus profit shall be payable.

After receiving this further notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

17.5 Intellectual and Industrial Property Right In this Sub-Clause, "infringement" means an infringement (or alleged infringement) of any patent, registered design, copyright, trade mark, trade name, trade secret or other intellectual or industrial property right relating to the Works; and "claim" means a claim (or proceedings pursuing a claim) alleging an infringement.

Whenever a Party does not give notice to the other Party of any claim within 28 days of receiving the claim, the first Party shall be deemed to have waived any right to indemnity under this Sub-Clause.

The Employer shall indemnify and hold the Contractor harmless against and from any claim alleging an infringement which is or was:

- a) An unavoidable result of the Contractor's compliance with the Contract; or
- b) A result of any Works being used by the Employer:
 - (i) For a purpose other than that indicated by, or reasonably to be inferred from, the Contract; or
 - (ii) In conjunction with anything not supplied by the Contractor, unless such use was disclosed to the Contractor prior to the Base Date or is stated in the Contract.

The Contractor shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against and from any other claim which arises out of or in relation to (i) the manufacture, use, sale or import of any Goods, or (ii) any design for which the Contractor is responsible.

If a Party is entitled to be indemnified under this Sub-Clause, the indemnifying Party may (at its cost) conduct negotiations for the settlement of the claim, and any litigation or arbitration which may arise from it. The other Party shall, at the request and cost of the indemnifying Party, assist in contesting the claim. This other Party (and its Personnel) shall not make any admission which might be prejudicial to the indemnifying Party, unless the indemnifying Party failed to take over the conduct of any negotiations, litigation or arbitration upon being requested to do so by such other Party.

17.6 Limitation of Liability

Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party for loss of use of any Works, loss of profit, loss of any contract or for any indirect or consequential loss or damage which may be suffered by the other Party in connection with the Contract, other than as specifically provided in Sub-Clause 8.7 [Delay Damages]; Sub-Clause 11.2 [Cost

of Remedying Defects]; Sub-Clause 15.4 [Payment after Termination]; Sub-Clause 16.4 [Payment on Termination]; Sub-Clause 17.1 [Indemnities]; Sub-Clause 17.4(b) [Consequences of Employer's Risks] and Sub-Clause 17.5 [Intellectual and Industrial Property Rights].

The total liability of the Contractor to the Employer, under or in connection with the Contract other than under Sub-Clause 4.19 [Electricity, Water and Gas], Sub-Clause 4.20 [Employer's Equipment and Free-Issue Materials], Sub-Clause 17.1 [Indemnities] and Sub-Clause 17.5 [Intellectual and Industrial Property Rights], shall not exceed the sum resulting from the application of a multiplier (less or greater than one) to the Accepted Contract Amount, as stated in the Contract Data, or (if such multiplier or other sum is not so stated) the Accepted Contract Amount.

This Sub-Clause shall not limit liability in any case of fraud, deliberate default or reckless misconduct by the defaulting Party.

17.7 Use of Employer's Accommodation / Facilities

The Contractor shall take full responsibility for the care of the Employer provided accommodation and facilities, if any, as detailed in the Specification, from the respective dates of hand-over to the Contractor until cessation of occupation (where hand-over or cessation of occupation may take place after the date stated in the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works).

If any loss or damage happens to any of the above items while the Contractor is responsible for their care arising from any cause whatsoever other than those for which the Employer is liable, the Contractor shall, at his own cost, rectify the loss or damage to the satisfaction of the Engineer.

18 Insurances

18.1 General
Requirements for Insurances

In this Clause, "insuring Party" means, for each type of insurance, the Party responsible for effecting and maintaining the insurance specified in the relevant Sub-Clause.

Wherever the Contractor is the insuring Party, each insurance shall be effected with insurers and in terms approved by the Employer. These terms shall be consistent with any terms agreed by both Parties before the date of the Letter of Acceptance. This agreement of terms shall take precedence over the provisions of this Clause.

Wherever the Employer is the insuring Party, each insurance shall be effected with insurers and in terms acceptable to the Contractor. These terms shall be consistent with any terms agreed by both Parties before the date of the Letter of Acceptance. This agreement of terms shall take precedence over the provisions of this Clause.

If a policy is required to indemnify joint insured, the cover shall apply separately to each insured as though a separate policy had been issued for each of the joint insured. If a policy indemnifies additional joint insured, namely in addition to the insured specified in this Clause, (i) the Contractor shall act under the policy on behalf of these additional joint insured except that the Employer shall act for Employer's Personnel, (ii) additional joint insured shall not be entitled to receive payments directly from the insurer or to have any other direct dealings with the insurer, and (iii) the insuring Party shall require all additional joint insured to comply with the conditions stipulated in the policy.

Each policy insuring against loss or damage shall provide for payments to be made in the currencies required to rectify the loss or damage.

Payments received from insurers shall be used for the rectification of the loss or damage.

The relevant insuring Party shall, within the respective periods stated in the Contract Data (calculated from the Commencement Date), submit to the other Party:

- Evidence that the insurances described in this Clause have been effected; and
- b) Copies of the policies for the insurances described in Sub-Clause 18.2 [Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment] and Sub-Clause 18.3 [Insurance against Injury to Persons and Damage to Property].

When each premium is paid, the insuring Party shall submit evidence of payment to the other Party. Whenever evidence or policies are submitted, the insuring Party shall also give notice to the Engineer.

Each Party shall comply with the conditions stipulated in each of the insurance policies. The insuring Party shall keep the insurers informed of any relevant changes to the execution of the Works and ensure that insurance is maintained in accordance with this Clause.

Neither Party shall make any material alteration to the terms of any insurance without the prior approval of the other Party. If an insurer makes (or attempts to make) any alteration, the Party first notified by the insurer shall promptly give notice to the other Party.

If the insuring Party fails to effect and keep in force any of the insurances it is required to effect and maintain under the Contract, or fails to provide satisfactory evidence and copies of policies in accordance with this Sub-Clause, the other Party may (at its option and without prejudice to any other right or remedy) effect insurance for the relevant coverage and pay the premiums due. The insuring Party shall pay the amount of these premiums to the other Party, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly.

Nothing in this Clause limits the obligations, liabilities or responsibilities of the Contractor or the Employer, under the other terms of the Contract or otherwise. Any amounts not insured or not recovered from the insurers shall be borne by the Contractor and/or the Employer in accordance with these obligations, liabilities or responsibilities. However, if the insuring Party fails to effect and keep in force an insurance which is available and which it is required to effect and maintain under the Contract, and the other Party neither approves the omission nor effects insurance for the coverage relevant to this default, any moneys which should have been recoverable under this insurance shall be paid by the insuring Party.

Payments by one Party to the other Party shall be subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] or Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims], as applicable.

The Contractor shall be entitled to place all insurance relating to the Contract (including, but not limited to the insurance referred to Clause 18) with insurers from any eligible source country.

18.2 Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment

The insuring Party shall insure the Works, Plant, Materials and Contractor's Documents for not less than the full reinstatement cost including the costs of demolition, removal of debris and professional fees and profit. This insurance shall be effective from the date by which the evidence is to be submitted under sub-paragraph (a) of Sub-

Clause 18.1 [General Requirements for Insurances], until the date of issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works.

The insuring Party shall maintain this insurance to provide cover until the date of issue of the Performance Certificate, for loss or damage for which the Contractor is liable arising from a cause occurring prior to the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate, and for loss or damage caused by the Contractor in the course of any other operations (including those under Clause 11 [Defects Liability]).

The insuring Party shall insure the Contractor's Equipment for not less than the full replacement value, including delivery to Site. For each item of Contractor's Equipment, the insurance shall be effective while it is being transported to the Site and until it is no longer required as Contractor's Equipment.

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions, insurances under this Sub-Clause:

- Shall be effected and maintained by the Contractor as insuring Party;
- Shall be in the joint names of the Parties, who shall be jointly entitled to receive payments from the insurers, payments being held or allocated to the Party actually bearing the costs of rectifying the loss or damage,
- c) Shall cover all loss and damage from any cause not listed in Sub-Clause 17.3 [Employer's Risks];
- d) Shall also cover, to the extent specifically required in the bidding documents of the Contract, loss or damage to a part of the Works which is attributable to the use or occupation by the Employer of another part of the Works, and loss or damage from the risks listed in sub-paragraphs (c), (g) and (h) of Sub-Clause 17.3 [Employer's Risks], excluding (in each case) risks which are not insurable at commercially reasonable terms, with deductibles per occurrence of not more than the amount stated in the Contract Data (if an amount is not so stated, this sub-paragraph (d) shall not apply); and
- e) May however exclude loss of, damage to, and reinstatement of:
 - A part of the Works which is in a defective condition due to a defect in its design, materials or workmanship (but cover shall include any other parts which are lost or damaged as a direct result of this defective condition and not as described in subparagraph (ii) below);
 - (ii) A part of the Works which is lost or damaged in order to reinstate any other part of the Works if this other part is in a defective condition due to a defect in its design, materials or workmanship;
 - (iii) A part of the Works which has been taken over by the Employer, except to the extent that the Contractor is liable for the loss or damage; and
 - (iv) Goods while they are not in the Country, subject to Sub-Clause 14.5 [Plant and Materials intended for the Works].

If, more than one year after the Base Date, the cover described in subparagraph (d) above ceases to be available at commercially reasonable terms, the Contractor shall (as insuring Party) give notice to the Employer, with supporting particulars. The Employer shall then (i) be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims] to payment of an amount equivalent to such commercially reasonable terms as the Contractor should have expected to have paid for such cover, and (ii) be deemed, unless he obtains the cover at commercially reasonable terms, to have approved the omission under Sub-Clause 18.1 [General Requirements for Insurances].

18.3 Insurance against Injury to Persons and Damages to Property

The insuring Party shall insure against each Party's liability for any loss, damage, death or bodily injury which may occur to any physical property (except things insured under Sub-Clause 18.2 [Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment]) or to any person (except persons insured under Sub-Clause 18.4 [Insurance for Contractor's Personnel]), which may arise out of the Contractor's performance of the Contract and occurring before the issue of the Performance Certificate.

This insurance shall be for a limit per occurrence of not less than the amount stated in the Contract Data, with no limit on the number of occurrences. If an amount is not stated in the Contract Data, this Sub-Clause shall not apply.

Unless otherwise stated in the Particular Conditions, the insurances specified in this Sub-Clause:

- Shall be effected and maintained by the Contractor as insuring Party;
- b) Shall be in the joint names of the Parties;
- Shall be extended to cover liability for all loss and damage to the Employer's property (except things insured under Sub-Clause 18.2) arising out of the Contractor's performance of the Contract; and
- d) May however exclude liability to the extent that it arises from:
 - The Employer's right to have the Permanent Works executed on, over, under, in or through any land, and to occupy this land for the Permanent Works;
 - (ii) Damage which is an unavoidable result of the Contractor's obligations to execute the Works and remedy any defects; and
 - (iii) A cause listed in Sub-Clause 17.3 [Employer's Risks], except to the extent that cover is available at commercially reasonable terms.

18.4 Insurance for Contractor's Personnel

The Contractor shall effect and maintain insurance against liability for claims, damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) arising from injury, sickness, disease or death of any person employed by the Contractor or any other of the Contractor's Personnel.

The insurance shall cover the Employer and the Engineer against liability for claims, damages, losses and expenses (including legal fees and expenses) arising from injury, sickness, disease or death of any person employed by the Contractor or any other of the Contractor's Personnel, except that this insurance may exclude losses and claims to the extent that they arise from any act or neglect of the Employer or of the Employer's Personnel.

The insurance shall be maintained in full force and effect during the whole time that these personnel are assisting in the execution of the Works. For a Subcontractor's employees, the insurance may be

effected by the Subcontractor, but the Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with this Clause.

19 Force Majeure

19.1 Definition of Force Majeure

In this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an exceptional event or circumstance:

- a) Which is beyond a Party's control;
- b) Which such Party could not reasonably have provided against before entering into the Contract;
- Which, having arisen, such Party could not reasonably have avoided or overcome; and
- d) Which is not substantially attributable to the other Party.

Force Majeure may include, but is not limited to, exceptional events or circumstances of the kind listed below, so long as conditions (a) to (d) above are satisfied:

- (i) War, hostilities (whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies;
- (ii) Rebellion, terrorism, sabotage by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power, or civil war;
- (iii) Riot, commotion, disorder, strike or lockout by persons other than the Contractor's Personnel;
- (iv) Munitions of war, explosive materials, ionising radiation or contamination by radio-activity, except as may be attributable to the Contractor's use of such munitions, explosives, radiation or radio-activity; and
- (v) Natural catastrophes such as earthquake, hurricane, typhoon or volcanic activity.

19.2 Notice of Force Majeure

If a Party is or will be prevented from performing its substantial obligations under the Contract by Force Majeure, then it shall give notice to the other Party of the event or circumstances constituting the Force Majeure and shall specify the obligations, the performance of which is or will be prevented. The notice shall be given within 14 days after the Party became aware, or should have become aware, of the relevant event or circumstance constituting Force Majeure.

The Party shall, having given notice, be excused performance of its obligations for so long as such Force Majeure prevents it from performing them.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause, Force Majeure shall not apply to obligations of either Party to make payments to the other Party under the Contract.

19.3 Duty to Minimise Delay

Each Party shall at all times use all reasonable endeavours to minimise any delay in the performance of the Contract as a result of Force Majeure.

A Party shall give notice to the other Party when it ceases to be affected by the Force Majeure.

19.4 Consequences of Force Majeure

If the Contractor is prevented from performing his substantial obligations under the Contract by Force Majeure of which notice has been given under Sub-Clause 19.2 [Notice of Force Majeure], and suffers delay and/or incurs Cost by reason of such Force Majeure, the

Contractor shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to:

- An extension of time for any such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, under Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and
- b) If the event or circumstance is of the kind described in sub-paragraphs (i) to (iv) of Sub-Clause 19.1 [Definition of Force Majeure] and, in sub-paragraphs (ii) to (iv), occurs in the Country, payment of any such Cost, including the costs of rectifying or replacing the Works and/or Goods damaged or destroyed by Force Majeure, to the extent they are not indemnified through the insurance policy referred to in Sub-Clause 18.2 [Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment].

After receiving this notice, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine these matters.

19.5 Force Majeure Affecting Subcontractor

al

19.6 Optional
Termination,
Payment and
Release

If any Subcontractor is entitled under any contract or agreement relating to the Works to relief from force majeure on terms additional to or broader than those specified in this Clause, such additional or broader force majeure events or circumstances shall not excuse the Contractor's non-performance or entitle him to relief under this Clause.

If the execution of substantially all the Works in progress is prevented for a continuous period of 84 days by reason of Force Majeure of which notice has been given under Sub-Clause 19.2 [Notice of Force Majeure], or for multiple periods which total more than 140 days due to the same notified Force Majeure, then either Party may give to the other Party a notice of termination of the Contract. In this event, the termination shall take effect 7 days after the notice is given, and the Contractor shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 16.3 [Cessation of Work and Removal of Contractor's Equipment].

Upon such termination, the Engineer shall determine the value of the work done and issue a Payment Certificate which shall include:

- The amounts payable for any work carried out for which a price is stated in the Contract;
- b) The Cost of Plant and Materials ordered for the Works which have been delivered to the Contractor, or of which the Contractor is liable to accept delivery: this Plant and Materials shall become the property of (and be at the risk of) the Employer when paid for by the Employer, and the Contractor shall place the same at the Employer's disposal;
- c) Other Cost or liabilities which in the circumstances were reasonably and necessarily incurred by the Contractor in the expectation of completing the Works;
- d) The Cost of removal of Temporary Works and Contractor's Equipment from the Site and the return of these items to the Contractor's works in his country (or to any other destination at no greater cost); and
- e) The Cost of repatriation of the Contractor's staff and labour employed wholly in connection with the Works at the date of termination.

19.7 Release from Performance

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Clause, if any event or circumstance outside the control of the Parties (including, but not limited to, Force Majeure) arises which makes it impossible or unlawful

for either or both Parties to fulfil its or their contractual obligations or which, under the law governing the Contract, entitles the Parties to be released from further performance of the Contract, then upon notice by either Party to the other Party of such event or circumstance:

- The Parties shall be discharged from further performance, without prejudice to the rights of either Party in respect of any previous breach of the Contract; and
- b) The sum payable by the Employer to the Contractor shall be the same as would have been payable under Sub-Clause 19.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release] if the Contract had been terminated under Sub-Clause 19.6.

20 Claims, Disputes and Arbitration

20.1 Contractor's Claims

If the Contractor considers himself to be entitled to any extension of the Time for Completion and/or any additional payment, under any Clause of these Conditions or otherwise in connection with the Contract, the Contractor shall give notice to the Engineer, describing the event or circumstance giving rise to the claim. The notice shall be given as soon as practicable, and not later than 28 days after the Contractor became aware, or should have become aware, of the event or circumstance.

If the Contractor fails to give notice of a claim within such period of 28 days, the Time for Completion shall not be extended, the Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment, and the Employer shall be discharged from all liability in connection with the claim. Otherwise, the following provisions of this Sub-Clause shall apply.

The Contractor shall also submit any other notices which are required by the Contract, and supporting particulars for the claim, all as relevant to such event or circumstance.

The Contractor shall keep such contemporary records as may be necessary to substantiate any claim, either on the Site or at another location acceptable to the Engineer. Without admitting the Employer's liability, the Engineer may, after receiving any notice under this Sub-Clause, monitor the record-keeping and/or instruct the Contractor to keep further contemporary records. The Contractor shall permit the Engineer to inspect all these records, and shall (if instructed) submit copies to the Engineer.

Within 42 days after the Contractor became aware (or should have become aware) of the event or circumstance giving rise to the claim, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer, the Contractor shall send to the Engineer a fully detailed claim which includes full supporting particulars of the basis of the claim and of the extension of time and/or additional payment claimed. If the event or circumstance giving rise to the claim has a continuing effect:

- a) This fully detailed claim shall be considered as interim;
- The Contractor shall send further interim claims at monthly intervals, giving the accumulated delay and/or amount claimed, and such further particulars as the Engineer may reasonably require; and
- c) The Contractor shall send a final claim within 28 days after the end of the effects resulting from the event or circumstance, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Contractor and approved by the Engineer.

Within 42 days after receiving a claim or any further particulars supporting a previous claim, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Engineer and approved by the Contractor, the Engineer shall respond with approval, or with disapproval and detailed comments. He may also request any necessary further particulars, but shall nevertheless give his response on the principles of the claim within the above defined time period.

Within the above defined period of 42 days, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine (i) the extension (if any) of the Time for Completion (before or after its expiry) in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion], and/or (ii) the additional payment (if any) to which the Contractor is entitled under the Contract.

Each Payment Certificate shall include such additional payment for any claim as has been reasonably substantiated as due under the relevant provision of the Contract. Unless and until the particulars supplied are sufficient to substantiate the whole of the claim, the Contractor shall only be entitled to payment for such part of the claim as he has been able to substantiate.

If the Engineer does not respond within the timeframe defined in this Clause, either Party may consider that the claim is rejected by the Engineer and any of the Parties may refer to the Dispute Board in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision].

The requirements of this Sub-Clause are in addition to those of any other Sub-Clause which may apply to a claim. If the Contractor fails to comply with this or another Sub-Clause in relation to any claim, any extension of time and/or additional payment shall take account of the extent (if any) to which the failure has prevented or prejudiced proper investigation of the claim, unless the claim is excluded under the second paragraph of this Sub-Clause.

20.2 Appointment of the Dispute Board

Disputes shall be referred to a DB for decision in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision]. The Parties shall appoint a DB by the date stated in the Contract Data.

The DB shall comprise, as stated in the Contract Data, either one or three suitably qualified persons ("the members"), each of whom shall be fluent in the language for communication defined in the Contract and shall be a professional experienced in the type of construction involved in the Works and with the interpretation of contractual documents. If the number is not so stated and the Parties do not agree otherwise, the DB shall comprise three persons.

If the Parties have not jointly appointed the DB 21 days before the date stated in the Contract Data and the DB is to comprise three persons, each Party shall nominate one member for the approval of the other Party. The first two members shall recommend and the Parties shall agree upon the third member, who shall act as chairman.

However, if a list of potential members has been agreed by the Parties and is included in the Contract, the members shall be selected from those on the list, other than anyone who is unable or unwilling to accept appointment to the DB.

The agreement between the Parties and either the sole member or each of the three members shall incorporate by reference the General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement contained in the Appendix to these General Conditions, with such amendments as are agreed between them.

The terms of the remuneration of either the sole member or each of the three members, including the remuneration of any expert whom the DB consults, shall be mutually agreed upon by the Parties when agreeing the terms of appointment. Each Party shall be responsible for paying one-half of this remuneration

If at any time the Parties so agree, they may jointly refer a matter to the DB for it to give its opinion. Neither Party shall consult the DB on any matter without the agreement of the other Party.

If a member declines to act or is unable to act as a result of death, disability, resignation or termination of appointment, a replacement shall be appointed in the same manner as the replaced person was required to have been nominated or agreed upon, as described in this Sub-Clause.

The appointment of any member may be terminated by mutual agreement of both Parties, but not by the Employer or the Contractor acting alone. Unless otherwise agreed by both Parties, the appointment of the DB (including each member) shall expire when the discharge referred to in Sub-Clause 14.12 [Discharge] shall have become effective.

20.3 Failure to Agree on the Composition of the Dispute Board If any of the following conditions apply, namely:

- The Parties fail to agree upon the appointment of the sole member of the DB by the date stated in the first paragraph of Sub-Clause 20.2 [Appointment of the Dispute Board];
- Either Party fails to nominate a member (for approval by the other Party), or fails to approve a member nominated by the other Party, of a DB of three persons by such date;
- c) The Parties fail to agree upon the appointment of the third member (to act as chairman) of the DB by such date; or
- d) The Parties fail to agree upon the appointment of a replacement person within 42 days after the date on which the sole member or one of the three members declines to act or is unable to act as a result of death, disability, resignation or termination of appointment;

then the appointing entity or official named in the Contract Data shall, upon the request of either or both of the Parties and after due consultation with both Parties, appoint this member of the DB. This appointment shall be final and conclusive. Each Party shall be responsible for paying one-half of the remuneration of the appointing entity or official.

20.4 Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision

If a dispute (of any kind whatsoever) arises between the Parties in connection with, or arising out of, the Contract or the execution of the Works, including any dispute as to any certificate, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, either Party may refer the dispute in writing to the DB for its decision, with copies to the other Party and the Engineer. Such reference shall state that it is given under this Sub-Clause.

For a DB of three persons, the DB shall be deemed to have received such reference on the date when it is received by the chairman of the DB.

Both Parties shall promptly make available to the DB all such additional information, further access to the Site, and appropriate facilities, as the

DB may require for the purposes of making a decision on such dispute. The DB shall be deemed to be not acting as arbitrator(s).

Within 84 days after receiving such reference, or within such other period as may be proposed by the DB and approved by both Parties, the DB shall give its decision, which shall be reasoned and shall state that it is given under this Sub-Clause. The decision shall be binding on both Parties, who shall promptly give effect to it unless and until it shall be revised in an amicable settlement or an arbitral award as described below. Unless the Contract has already been abandoned, repudiated or terminated, the Contractor shall continue to proceed with the Works in accordance with the Contract.

If either Party is dissatisfied with the DB's decision, then either Party may, within 28 days after receiving the decision, give a Notice of Dissatisfaction to the other Party indicating its dissatisfaction and intention to commence arbitration. If the DB fails to give its decision within the period of 84 days (or as otherwise approved) after receiving such reference, then either Party may, within 28 days after this period has expired, give a Notice of Dissatisfaction to the other Party.

In either event, this Notice of Dissatisfaction shall state that it is given under this Sub-Clause, and shall set out the matter in dispute and the reason(s) for dissatisfaction. Except as stated in Sub-Clause 20.7 [Failure to Comply with Dispute Board's Decision] and Sub-Clause 20.8 [Expiry of Dispute Board's Appointment], neither Party shall be entitled to commence arbitration of a dispute unless a Notice of Dissatisfaction has been given in accordance with this Sub-Clause.

If the DB has given its decision as to a matter in dispute to both Parties, and no Notice of Dissatisfaction has been given by either Party within 28 days after it received the DB's decision, then the decision shall become final and binding upon both Parties.

20.5 Amicable Settlement

Where a Notice of Dissatisfaction has been given under Sub-Clause 20.4 above, both Parties shall attempt to settle the dispute amicably before the commencement of arbitration. However, unless both Parties agree otherwise, the Party giving a Notice of Dissatisfaction in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 above should move to commence arbitration after the fifty-sixth day from the day on which a Notice of Dissatisfaction was given, even if no attempt at an amicable settlement has been made.

20.6 Arbitration

Any dispute between the Parties arising out of or in connection with the Contract not settled amicably in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.5 above and in respect of which the DB's decision (if any) has not become final and binding shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration shall be conducted as follows:

a) If the contract is with foreign contractors, International arbitration (1) with proceedings administered by the arbitration institution designated in the Contract Data, and conducted under the rules of arbitration of such institution; or, if so specified in the Contract Data, (2) international arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the United Nations Commission on International Trade Law (UNCITRAL); or (3) if neither an arbitration institution nor UNCITRAL arbitration rules are specified in the Contract Data, with proceedings administered by the International Chamber of Commerce (ICC) and conducted under the ICC Rules of Arbitration; by one or more arbitrators appointed in accordance with said arbitration rules; If the Contract is with domestic contractors, arbitration with proceedings conducted in accordance with the laws of the Employer's country.

The place of arbitration shall be the neutral location specified in the Contract Data; and the arbitration shall be conducted in the language for communications defined in Sub-Clause 1.4 [Law and Language].

The arbitrators shall have full power to open up, review and revise any certificate, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, and any decision of the DB, relevant to the dispute. Nothing shall disqualify representatives of the Parties and the Engineer from being called as a witness and giving evidence before the arbitrators on any matter whatsoever relevant to the dispute.

Neither Party shall be limited in the proceedings before the arbitrators to the evidence or arguments previously put before the DB to obtain its decision, or to the reasons for dissatisfaction given in its Notice of Dissatisfaction. Any decision of the DB shall be admissible in evidence in the arbitration.

Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after completion of the Works. The obligations of the Parties, the Engineer and the DB shall not be altered by reason of any arbitration being conducted during the progress of the Works.

20.7 Failure to Comply with Dispute Board's Decision

In the event that a Party fails to comply with a final and binding DB decision, then the other Party may, without prejudice to any other rights it may have, refer the failure itself to arbitration under Sub-Clause 20.6 [Arbitration]. Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision] and Sub-Clause 20.5 [Amicable Settlement] shall not apply to this reference.

20.8 Expiry of Dispute Board's Appointment

If a dispute arises between the Parties in connection with, or arising out of, the Contract or the execution of the Works and there is no DB in place, whether by reason of the expiry of the DB's appointment or otherwise:

- a) Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision] and Sub-Clause 20.5 [Amicable Settlement] shall not apply; and
- b) The dispute may be referred directly to arbitration under Sub-Clause 20.6 [Arbitration].

APPENDIX A – General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement

1. Definitions:

Each "Dispute Board Agreement" is a tripartite agreement by and between:

- a) The "Employer";
- b) The "Contractor"; and
- c) The "Member", who is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement as being:
 - (i) The sole member of the "DB" and, where this is the case, all references to the "Other Members" do not apply, or
 - (ii) One of the three persons who are jointly called the "DB" (or "Dispute Board") and, where this is the case, the other two persons are called the "Other Members".

The Employer and the Contractor have entered (or intend to enter) into a contract, which is called the "Contract" and is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement, which incorporates this Appendix. In the Dispute Board Agreement, words and expressions which are not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Contract.

2. General Provisions:

Unless otherwise stated in the Dispute Board Agreement, it shall take effect on the latest of the following dates:

- a) The Commencement Date defined in the Contract;
- b) When the Employer, the Contractor and the Member have each signed the Dispute Board Agreement; or
- c) When the Employer, the Contractor and each of the Other Members (if any) have respectively each signed a dispute board agreement.

This employment of the Member is a personal appointment. At any time, the Member may give not less than 70 days' notice of resignation to the Employer and to the Contractor, and the Dispute Board Agreement shall terminate upon the expiry of this period.

3. Warranties:

The Member warrants and agrees that he/she is and shall be impartial and independent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer. The Member shall promptly disclose, to each of them and to the Other Members (if any), any fact or circumstance which might appear inconsistent with his/her warranty and agreement of impartiality and independence.

When appointing the Member, the Employer and the Contractor relied upon the Member's representations that he/she is:

- a) Experienced in the work which the Contractor is to carry out under the Contract;
- b) Experienced in the interpretation of contract documentation; and
- c) Fluent in the language for communications defined in the Contract.

4. General Obligations of the Member:

The Member shall:

- a) Have no interest financial or otherwise in the Employer, the Contractor or Engineer, nor any financial interest in the Contract except for payment under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- b) Not previously have been employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except in such circumstances as were disclosed in writing to the Employer and the Contractor before they signed the Dispute Board Agreement;

- c) Have disclosed in writing to the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any), before entering into the Dispute Board Agreement and to his/her best knowledge and recollection, any professional or personal relationships with any director, officer or employee of the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, and any previous involvement in the overall project of which the Contract forms part;
- d) Not, for the duration of the Dispute Board Agreement, be employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except as may be agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any);
- e) Comply with the annexed procedural rules and with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract;
- f) Not give advice to the Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel or the Contractor's Personnel concerning the conduct of the Contract, other than in accordance with the annexed procedural rules;
- g) Not while a Member enter into discussions or make any agreement with the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer regarding employment by any of them, whether as a consultant or otherwise, after ceasing to act under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- h) Ensure his/her availability for all Site visits and hearings as are necessary;
- Become conversant with the Contract and with the progress of the Works (and of any other parts of the project of which the Contract forms part) by studying all documents received which shall be maintained in a current working file;
- j) Treat the details of the Contract and all the DB's activities and hearings as private and confidential, and not publish or disclose them without the prior written consent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any); and
- k) Be available to give advice and opinions, on any matter relevant to the Contract when requested by both the Employer and the Contractor, subject to the agreement of the Other Members (if any).

5. General Obligations of the Employer and the Contractor:

The Member regarding the Contract, otherwise than in the normal course of the DB's activities under the Contract and the Dispute Board Agreement. The Employer and the Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with this provision, by the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel respectively.

The Employer and the Contractor undertake to each other and to the Member that the Member shall not, except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor, the Member and the Other Members (if any):

- a) Be appointed as an arbitrator in any arbitration under the Contract;
- b) Be called as a witness to give evidence concerning any dispute before arbitrator(s) appointed for any arbitration under the Contract; or
- c) Be liable for any claims for anything done or omitted in the discharge or purported discharge of the Member's functions, unless the act or omission is shown to have been in bad faith.

The Employer and the Contractor hereby jointly and severally indemnify and hold the Member harmless against and from claims from which he is relieved from liability under the preceding paragraph.

Whenever the Employer or the Contractor refers a dispute to the DB under Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, which will require the Member to make a Site visit and attend a hearing, the Employer or the Contractor shall provide appropriate security for a sum equivalent to the reasonable expenses to be incurred by the Member. No account shall be taken of any other payments due or paid to the Member.

6. Payment:

The Member shall be paid as follows, in the currency named in the Dispute Board Agreement:

- a) A retainer fee per calendar month, which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) Being available on 28 days' notice for all Site visits and hearings;
 - (ii) Becoming and remaining conversant with all project developments and maintaining relevant files;
 - (iii) All office and overhead expenses including secretarial services, photocopying and office supplies incurred in connection with his duties; and
 - (iv) All services performed hereunder except those referred to in sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Clause.

The retainer fee shall be paid with effect from the last day of the calendar month in which the Dispute Board Agreement becomes effective; until the last day of the calendar month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works.

With effect from the first day of the calendar month following the month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works, the retainer fee shall be reduced by one third .This reduced fee shall be paid until the first day of the calendar month in which the Member resigns or the Dispute Board Agreement is otherwise terminated.

- b) A daily fee which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) Each day or part of a day up to a maximum of two days' travel time in each direction for the journey between the Member's home and the Site, or another location of a meeting with the Other Members (if any);
 - (ii) Each working day on Site visits, hearings or preparing decisions; and
 - (iii) Each day spent reading submissions in preparation for a hearing;
- c) All reasonable expenses including necessary travel expenses (air fare in less than first class, hotel and subsistence and other direct travel expenses) incurred in connection with the Member's duties, as well as the cost of telephone calls, courier charges, and faxes: a receipt shall be required for each item in excess of five percent of the daily fee referred to in sub-paragraph (b) of this Clause;
- d) Any taxes properly levied in the Country on payments made to the Member (unless a national or permanent resident of the Country) under this Clause 6.

The retainer and daily fees shall be as specified in the Dispute Board Agreement. Unless it specifies otherwise, these fees shall remain fixed for the first 24 calendar months, and shall thereafter be adjusted by agreement between the Employer, the Contractor and the Member, at each anniversary of the date on which the Dispute Board Agreement became effective.

If the parties fail to agree on the retainer fee or the daily fee, the appointing entity or official named in the Contract Data shall determine the amount of the fees to be used.

The Member shall submit invoices for payment of the monthly retainer and air fares quarterly in advance. Invoices for other expenses and for daily fees shall be submitted following the conclusion of a Site visit or hearing. All invoices shall be accompanied by a brief description of activities performed during the relevant period and shall be addressed to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall pay each of the Member's invoices in full within 56 calendar days after receiving each invoice and shall apply to the Employer (in the Statements under the Contract) for reimbursement of one-half of the amounts of these invoices. The Employer shall then pay the Contractor in accordance with the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to pay to the Member the amount to which he/she is entitled under the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer shall pay the amount due to the Member and any other amount which may be required to maintain the operation of the DB; and without prejudice to the Employer's rights or remedies. In addition to all other rights arising from this default, the Employer

shall be entitled to reimbursement of all sums paid in excess of one-half of these payments, plus all costs of recovering these sums and financing charges calculated at the rate specified in Sub-Clause 14.8 of the Conditions of Contract.

If the Member does not receive payment of the amount due within 70 days after submitting a valid invoice, the Member may (i) suspend his/her services (without notice) until the payment is received, and/or (ii) resign his/her appointment by giving notice under Clause 7.

7. Termination:

At any time: (i) the Employer and the Contractor may jointly terminate the Dispute Board Agreement by giving 42 days' notice to the Member; or (ii) the Member may resign as provided for in Clause 2.

If the Member fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer and the Contractor may, without prejudice to their other rights, terminate it by notice to the Member. The notice shall take effect when received by the Member.

If the Employer or the Contractor fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Member may, without prejudice to his other rights, terminate it by notice to the Employer and the Contractor. The notice shall take effect when received by them both.

Any such notice, resignation and termination shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Contractor and the Member. However, a notice by the Employer or the Contractor, but not by both, shall be of no effect.

8. Default of the Member:

If the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (a) - (d) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses received by the Member and the Other Members (if any), for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

If the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (e) - (k) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder from the date and to the extent of the non-compliance and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses already received by the Member, for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

9. Disputes:

Any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this Dispute Board Agreement, or the breach, termination or invalidity thereof shall be finally settled by institutional arbitration. If no other arbitration institute is agreed, the arbitration shall be conducted under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce by one arbitrator appointed in accordance with these Rules of Arbitration.

PROCEDURAL RULES

- 1. Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall visit the Site at intervals of not more than 140 days, including times of critical construction events, at the request of either the Employer or the Contractor. Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer, the Contractor and the DB, the period between consecutive visits shall not be less than 70 days, except as required to convene a hearing as described below.
- 2. The timing of and agenda for each Site visit shall be as agreed jointly by the DB, the Employer and the Contractor, or in the absence of agreement, shall be decided by the DB. The purpose of Site visits is to enable the DB to become and remain acquainted with the progress of the Works and of any actual or potential problems or claims, and, as far as reasonable, to endeavour to prevent potential problems or claims from becoming disputes.
- 3. Site visits shall be attended by the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer and shall be coordinated by the Employer in co-operation with the Contractor. The Employer shall ensure the provision of appropriate conference facilities and secretarial and copying services. At the conclusion of each Site visit and before leaving the site, the DB shall prepare a report on its activities during the visit and shall send copies to the Employer and the Contractor.
- 4. The Employer and the Contractor shall furnish to the DB one copy of all documents which the DB may request, including Contract documents, progress reports, variation instructions, certificates and other documents pertinent to the performance of the Contract. All communications between the DB and the Employer or the Contractor shall be copied to the other Party. If the DB comprises three persons, the Employer and the Contractor shall send copies of these requested documents and these communications to each of these persons.
- 5. If any dispute is referred to the DB in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, the DB shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 and these Rules. Subject to the time allowed to give notice of a decision and other relevant factors, the DB shall:
 - a) Act fairly and impartially as between the Employer and the Contractor, giving each of them a reasonable opportunity of putting his case and responding to the other's case; and
 - b) Adopt procedures suitable to the dispute, avoiding unnecessary delay or expense.
- 6. The DB may conduct a hearing on the dispute, in which event it will decide on the date and place for the hearing and may request that written documentation and arguments from the Employer and the Contractor be presented to it prior to or at the hearing.
- 7. Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall have power to adopt an inquisitorial procedure, to refuse admission to hearings or audience at hearings to any persons other than representatives of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer, and to proceed in the absence of any party who the DB is satisfied received notice of the hearing; but shall have discretion to decide whether and to what extent this power may be exercised.
- 8. The Employer and the Contractor empower the DB, among other things, to:
 - a) Establish the procedure to be applied in deciding a dispute;
 - b) Decide upon the DB's own jurisdiction, and as to the scope of any dispute referred to it;
 - c) Conduct any hearing as it thinks fit, not being bound by any rules or procedures other than those contained in the Contract and these Rules;
 - d) Take the initiative in ascertaining the facts and matters required for a decision;
 - e) Make use of its own specialist knowledge, if any;
 - f) Decide upon the payment of financing charges in accordance with the Contract;
 - g) Decide upon any provisional relief such as interim or conservatory measures; and
 - h) Open up, review and revise any certificate, decision, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, relevant to the dispute.

- 9. The DB shall not express any opinions during any hearing concerning the merits of any arguments advanced by the Parties. Thereafter, the DB shall make and give its decision in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4, or as otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor in writing. If the DB comprises three persons:
 - a) It shall convene in private after a hearing, in order to have discussions and prepare its decision:
 - b) It shall endeavour to reach a unanimous decision: if this proves impossible the applicable decision shall be made by a majority of the Members, who may require the minority Member to prepare a written report for submission to the Employer and the Contractor; and
 - c) If a Member fails to attend a meeting or hearing, or to fulfil any required function, the other two Members may nevertheless proceed to make a decision; unless:
 - (i) Either the Employer or the Contractor does not agree that they do so; or
 - (ii) The absent Member is the chairman and he/she instructs the other Members not to make a decision.

APPENDIX B – Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices – Environmental and Social Responsibility

1. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

The Contracting Authority and the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants must observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process and performance of the contract. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.

By signing the Statement of Integrity the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants declare that (i) "it did not engage in any practice likely to influence the contract award process to the Contracting Authority's detriment, and that it did not and will not get involved in any anticompetitive practice", and that (ii) "the procurement process and the performance of the contract did not and shall not give rise to any act of corruption or fraud".

Moreover, AFD requires including in the Procurement Documents and AFD-financed contracts a provision requiring that suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants will permit AFD to inspect their accounts and records relating to the procurement process and performance of the AFD-financed contract, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by AFD.

AFD reserves the right to take any action it deems appropriate to check that these ethics rules are observed and reserves, in particular, the rights to:

- a) Reject a proposal for a contract award if it is established that during the selection process the bidder or consultant that is recommended for the award has been convicted of corruption, directly or by means of an agent, or has engaged in fraud or anti-competitive practices in view of being awarded the Contract;
- b) Declare misprocurement when it is established that, at any time, the Contracting Authority, the suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants their representatives have engaged in acts of corruption, fraud or anti-competitive practices during the procurement process or performance of the contract without the Contracting Authority having taken appropriate action in due time satisfactory to AFD to remedy the situation, including by failing to inform AFD at the time they knew of such practices.

AFD defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

- a) Corruption of a Public Officer means:
 - The act of promising, offering or giving to a Public Officer, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person¹ or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity; or
 - The act by which a Public Officer solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Public Officer to act or refrain from acting in his official capacity.
- b) A Public Officer shall be construed as meaning:
 - Any person who holds a legislative, executive, administrative or judicial mandate (within the country of the Contracting Authority) regardless of whether that natural Person was nominated or elected, regardless of the permanent or temporary, paid or unpaid nature of the position and regardless of the hierarchical level the natural Person occupies;
 - Any other natural Person who performs a public function, including for a State institution or a State-owned company, or who provides a public service;
 - Any other natural Person defined as a Public Officer by the national laws of the country of the Contracting Authority.

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

c) Corruption of a Private Person² means:

- The act of promising, offering or giving to any Private Person, directly or indirectly, an
 undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private
 Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or
 professional obligations; or;
- The act by which any Private Person solicits or accepts, directly or indirectly, an undue advantage of any kind for himself or for another Person or entity, for such Private Person to perform or refrain from performing any act in breach of its legal, contractual or professional obligations.
- d) Fraud means any dishonest conduct (act or omission), whether or not it constitutes a criminal offence, deliberately intended to deceive others, to intentionally conceal items, to violate or vitiate consent, to circumvent legal or regulatory requirements and/or to violate internal rules in order to obtain illegitimate profit.
- e) Anti-competitive practices mean:
 - Any concerted or implied practices which have as their object or effect the prevention, restriction or distortion of competition within a marketplace, especially where they (i) limit access to the marketplace or free exercise of competition by other undertakings, (ii) prevent free, competition-driven price determination by artificially causing price increases or decreases, (iii) restrict or control production, markets, investments or technical progress; or (iv) divide up market shares or sources of supply;
 - Any abuse by one undertaking or a group of undertakings which hold a dominant position on an internal market or on a substantial part of it;
 - Any practice whereby prices are quoted or set unreasonably low, the object of which is to eliminate an undertaking or any of its products from a market or to prevent it from entering the market.

2. Environmental and Social Responsibility

In order to promote sustainable development, AFD seeks to ensure that internationally recognised environmental and social standards are complied with. Suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants for AFD-financed contracts shall consequently undertake in the Statement of Integrity to:

- a) Comply with and ensure that all their subcontractors or subconsultants comply with international environmental and labour standards, consistent with applicable law and regulations in the country of implementation of the contract, including the fundamental conventions of the International Labour Organisation (ILO) and international environmental treaties;
- b) Implement environmental and social risks mitigation measures when specified in the environmental and social management plan (ESMP) provided by the Contracting Authority.

3-85

Means any natural Person other than a Public Officer.

APPENDIX C - Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility in AFD-Financed Procurement

- 1. Financing allocated by AFD to a Contracting Authority has been entirely untied since 1st January 2002. To the exception of any equipment or any sector which is subject to an embargo by the United Nations, the European Union or France, all goods, works, plants, consulting services and non-consulting services are eligible for AFD financing regardless of the country of origin of the supplier, contractor, subcontractor, consultant or subconsultant inputs or resources used in the implementation processes. The Contracting Authority means the Purchaser, the Employer, the Client, as the case may be, for the procurement of goods, works, plants, consulting services or non-consulting services.
- 2. Natural or legal Persons¹ (including all members of a joint venture or any of their suppliers, contractors, subcontractors, consultants or subconsultants) shall not be awarded an AFD-financed contract if, on the date of submission of an application, a bid or a proposal, or on the date of award of a contract, they:
 - 2.1 Are bankrupt or being wound up or ceasing their activities, are having their activities administered by the courts, have entered into receivership, or are in any analogous situation arising from a similar procedure;

2.2 Have been:

- a) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res judicata in the country where the contract is implemented, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this conviction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- b) subject to an administrative sanction within the past five years by the European Union or by the competent authorities of the country where they are constituted, for fraud, corruption or for any other offense committed during a procurement process or performance of a contract, unless they provide supporting information together with their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this sanction is not relevant in the context of the Contract;
- c) convicted, within the past five years by a court decision, which has the force of res
 judicata, of fraud, corruption or of any other offense committed during the
 procurement process or performance of an AFD-financed contract;
- 2.3 Are listed for financial sanctions by the United Nations, the European Union and/or France for the purposes of fight-against-terrorist financing or threat to international peace and security;
- 2.4 Have been subject within the past five years to a contract termination fully settled against them for significant or persistent failure to comply with their contractual obligations during contract performance, unless this termination was challenged and dispute resolution is still pending or has not confirmed a full settlement against them;
- 2.5 Have not fulfilled their fiscal obligations regarding payments of taxes in accordance with the legal provisions of either the country where they are constituted or the Contracting Authority's country;
- 2.6 Are subject to an exclusion decision of the World Bank and are listed on the website http://www.worldbank.org/debarr, unless they provide supporting information together with

Means any Person whether natural or legal, firm, company, corporation, government, state or state agency or any association, or group of two or more of the foregoing (whether or not having separate legal status).

their Statement of Integrity (Form available as Appendix to the Application, Bid or Proposal Submission Form) which shows that this exclusion is not relevant in the context of the Contract;

- 2.7 Have created false documents or committed misrepresentation in documentation requested by the Contracting Authority as part of the procurement process of the Contract.
- 3. State-owned entities may compete only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous, and (ii) operate under commercial law. To be eligible, a state-owned entity shall establish to AFD's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information AFD may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from their state (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to their state, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt.

Section IX – Particular Conditions (PC)

The following Particular Conditions shall supplement the GC. Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GC.

Part A - Contract Data

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Data
Employer's name and address	1.1.2.2 & 1.3	Coast Water Works Development Agency P.O. Box 90417 – 80100 Mombasa, Kenya
Engineer's name and address	1.1.2.4 & 1.3	Artelia / Mangat I.B. Patel (MIBP) Ltd. Consulting Engineers
		Head OfficeLocal Project Office6 rue de LorraineP.O. Box 48674 – 0010038130 Echirolles, FranceNairobi – KenyaTel: +33 4 76334000Tel: +254 2710500Email: artelia@arteliagroup.comEmail: mibp.nairobi@mibp.co.ke
Bank's Name	1.1.2.11	Agence Française de Développement ("AFD"), being specified that, according to French laws and regulations, AFD is not a bank but a Specialized Financial Institution ("Institution Financière Spécialisée").
Borrower's Name	1.1.2.12	Government of Kenya
Time for Completion of the Works	1.1.3.3	730 days
Defects Notification Period	1.1.3.7	365 days.
Sections	1.1.5.6	Not Applicable
ESHS Specifications	1.1.6.11	ESHS Specifications are applicable: Yes ☑ / No □
Exceptionally Adverse	1.1.6.15	Additional Sub-Clause
Climatic Conditions		"Exceptionally Adverse Climatic Conditions" means:
		Unusually high amount of rainfall, more than 50% higher than he prededing 5-year average for the Project Area as determined from Kenya Meteorological Departments records.
Governing Law	1.4	The Law of the Republic of Kenya. Contractor to comply with all Laws of Kenya including all Statutory Requirements with regards to Operations in Kenya as a Contractor.
Ruling Language	1.4	English
Language for Communications	1.4	English
Time for Access to the Site	2.1	Within 28 days after Commencement Date.
Engineer's Duties and Authority	3.1	The Engineer shall obtain specific approval of the Employer before taking the following actions: Issuing any instruction resulting in substantial changes to the Works, or an increase of the Accepted Contract Amount and/or an extension of the Time for Completion;
		 Proceeding to Determination under Sub-Clause 3.5; Issuance of a Taking over Certificate under Sub- Clauses 10.1 and 10.2;

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Data
Contractor's General Obligations	4.1	The Contractor shall provide the following documents as part of the Contract and as specified in the Specification:
		Shop drawings to be approved by the Engineer prior to starting the Works;
		"As-built" drawings to be approved by the Engineer prior to taking over of the Works; and
		Operation and maintenance manuals.
Performance Security	4.2	The Contractor shall provide two Guarantees:
		Performance Security – Unconditional Demand Guarantee from a reputable bank in an Eligible Country in the amount of Eight Percent (8%) of the Accepted Contract Amount and in the same currency(ies) of the Accepted Contract Amount
		2) Environmental, Social, Health & Safety (ESHS) Performance Security – Unconditional Demand Guarantee from a reputable bank in an Eligible Country in the amount of Two Percent (2%) of the Accepted Contract Amount and in the same currency(ies) of the Accepted Contract Amount
		If the Unconditional Guarantee is issued by a bank located outside the Employer's Country, the issuing bank shall have a correspondent bank located in the Employer's Country who shall issue a back-to-back guarantee in favour of the Employer.
Subcontractors	4.4	Direct payment of Subcontractors is allowed: Yes
Normal Working Hours	6.5	As per the Laws of Kenya
Commencement of Works	8.1	 The Commencement Date shall be the date at which the following precedent conditions have been fulfilled and the Engineer's Instruction to Commence Work is received by the Contractor: Signature of the Contract Agreement by both Parties; Effective access to and possession of the Site given to the Contractor together with such permission(s) under (a) of Sub-Clause 1.13 [Compliance with Laws] as required for the commencement of the Works.
Delay Damages for the Works	8.7 & 14.15(b)	0. 1% of the Contract Price per day.
Maximum Amount of Delay Damages	8.7	10% of the final Contract Price
Percentage for Adjustment of Provisional Sums	13.5(b)(ii)	5 %
Adjustments for Changes in Cost	13.8	The Contract is subject to Adjustment for Changes in Cost as long as the Contractor has completed and submitted the Schedule of Adjustment Data in the Appendix to Bid. Yes
		Period "n" applicable to the adjustment multiplier "Pn" is Not Applicable

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Data
Contract Price	14.1	The Contract Price is an Admeasurement Contract Price (unit price contract)
	14.1(b)	The following taxes, duties and fees exemptions apply to the Contract: None
	14.1(e)	Item (e) of Sub-Clause 14.1 - Part B of the PC regarding the exemption of import duties and taxes is applicable:
		No
Total Advance Payment	14.2	20 % of the Accepted Contract Amount payable in the currencies and proportions in which the Accepted Contract Amount is payable.
Repayment Amortization Rate of Advance Payment	14.2(b)	The repayment amortization rate (%) shall not be less than 15% of the Amount of Advance Payment.
Percentage of Retention	14.3	10%
Limit of Retention Money	14.3	5% of the Accepted Contract Amount.
Plant and Materials	14.5(b)(i)	Plant and Materials for payment when shipped en route to the Site (Free on Board): <i>None</i>
	14.5(c)(i)	Plant and Materials for payment when delivered to the Site: <i>Pipes and Fittings</i>
Minimum Amount of Interim Payment Certificates	14.6	1% of the Accepted Contract Amount
Penalty for failing to perform ESHS obligations	14.6	Refer to sentence added in Part B- Specific Provisions
Payment	14.7	Payment to the Contractor of the amounts due in each currency shall be made into the following bank accounts:
		Bank account details to be inserted at the time of contract signing
Publishing source of commercial interest rates for financial charges in	14.8	The interest rate for payments in local currency is 3% above the Central Bank Rate published monthly by the Central Bank of Kenya
case of delayed payment		The interest rate for payments in foreign currency is 2% above the 3-month LIBOR Rate
Limitation of Liability	17.6	The total liability of the Contractor to the Employer shall not exceed the Accepted Contract Amount multiplied by 2 .
Periods for submission of insurance:	18.1	
a) Evidence of insurance		14 days
b) Relevant policies		28 days
Minimum amount of third party insurance per occurrence	18.3	Kshs. 20,000,000

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Data
Date by which the DB shall be appointed	20.2	28 days after the Commencement Date.
The DB shall be comprised of:	20.2	Three Members
List of potential DB sole members	20.2	None
Appointment (if not agreed) to be made by:	20.3	Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (Kenya Chapter)
Arbitration rules	20.6	International Arbitration with proceedings administered by Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (Kenya Chapter) and conducted in accordance with UNCITRAL Arbitration Rules
Place of arbitration	20.6	Kigali, Rwanda

Table: Summary of Sections

Not Applicable

Section Name/Description (Sub-Clause 1.1.5.6)	Time for Completion (Sub-Clause 1.1.3.3)	Damages for Delay (Sub-Clause 8.7)

Part B - Specific Provisions

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
Defects Notification Period	1.1.3.7	Add, at the end of the Sub-Clause "or taken over under Sub-Clause 10.2 [Taking Over of Parts of the Works]"
Site	1.1.6.7	This Sub-Clause is deleted in its entirety and replaced by:
		"Site" means the places where the Permanent Works are to be executed and to which Plant and Materials are to be delivered, and any other places as may be specified in the Contract as forming part of the Site.
Variation	1.1.6.9	This Sub-Clause is deleted in its entirety and replaced by:
		"Variation" means any change to Specification or the Drawings or the Works, which is instructed or approved as a variation under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments].
ESHS Specifications	1.1.6.11	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"ESHS Specifications" means the document entitled environmental, social, health and safety specifications, as included in the Specification, and any additions and modifications to it in accordance with the Contract. Such document specifies the environmental, social, health and safety obligations of the Contractor.
Project Area	1.1.6.12	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"Project Area" has the meaning defined in the ESHS Specifications.
Worksite - ESMP	1.1.6.13	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"Worksite – ESMP" stands for Worskite Environmental and Social Management Plan, and has the meaning defined in the ESHS Specifications.
EPP	1.1.6.14	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"EPP" stands for Environmental Protection Plan, and has the meaning defined in the ESHS Specifications.
Communications	1.3	Add the following at the end of item (a), after "Contract Data" and before ";":
		"In case of electronic transmission, these communications shall be in the form of an un-editable record attached to an electronic mail, such as a PDF document for instance, and any other communication transmitted in a different manner, such as the email body text, shall not be construed as communication under the Contract."
		Before the last paragraph, add the following sentence:
		"Delivery of communications, by any authorized method of transmission, shall be made against receipt."

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
Priority of Documents	1.5	Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"The Contractor shall be obliged to comply with the clarification or instruction of the Engineer without any adjustment to the Contract Price and/or to the Time for Completion."
Contract Agreement	1.6	This Sub-Clause is deleted in its entirety and replaced by:
		"The Parties shall enter into a Contract Agreement within 28 days after the Contractor receives the Letter of Acceptance, or within 28 days after the Employer receives the Performance Security, whichever is later. The Contract Agreement shall be based upon the form annexed to the Particular Conditions. The Contract Agreement shall include any annexed memoranda comprising agreements between and signed by both Parties. The costs of stamp duties and similar charges (if any) imposed by law in connection with entry into the Contract Agreement shall be borne by the Contractor.
		This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties in connection with its subject matter and supersedes all prior representations, communications, negotiations and undertakings concerning the subject matter of this Contract.
		The Parties acknowledge and agree that by entering into this Contract they do not rely on any statement, representation, assurance or warranty of any person (whether a party to the Contract or not or whether made in writing or not) other than as expressly set out in the Contract."
Assignment	1.7	This Sub-Clause is deleted in its entirety and replaced by:
		"The Contractor shall not assign the whole or any part of the Contract or any benefit or interest in or under the Contract without the prior written consent of the Employer. The Employer shall be entitled to assign this Contract or any part of it to any person, for which purpose it shall not require the consent of the Contractor."
Care and Supply of Document	1.8	Delete the 2 nd sentence of the 2 nd paragraph in its entirety, and replace it by:
		"The Contractor shall supply to the Engineer each of the Contractor's Documents in one (1) soft (paper) copy and two (2) hard (digital) copies "
Inspections and Audit by AFD	1.15	This Sub-Clause is deleted in its entirety and replaced by:
		"The Contractor shall permit, and shall cause its agents (whether declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, or suppliers and any personnel thereof, to permit, AFD and/or persons appointed by AFD to inspect the Site and all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the Bid, and to have such accounts and

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
		records audited by auditors appointed by AFD if requested by AFD.
		The Contractor's attention is drawn to Sub-Clause 15.6 [Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices] which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of AFD's inspection and audit rights provided for under Sub-Clause 1.15 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination."
Non Waiver	1.16	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"Except as otherwise specifically provided for in the Contract, no failure or delay by either Party in exercising any right or remedy provided by the Laws or pursuant to the Contract will impair such right or remedy or operate or be construed as a waiver or variation of it or preclude its exercise at any subsequent time and no single or partial exercise of any such right or remedy will preclude any other or further exercise of it or the exercise of any other right or remedy."
Survival of Obligations	1.17	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"Obligations under the Contract, which by their nature would continue beyond the termination or expiration hereof, including, by way of illustration only and not limitation, those in Clause 1 [General Provisions], Clause 11 [Defects Liability], Clause 17 [Indemnities], Clause 18 [Insurance], and Clause 20 [Claims and Disputes] shall survive the termination or expiration of the Contract."
Severability	1.18	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"The Parties expressly declare that each section, clause or paragraph of this Contract will be considered separate in terms of its validity and enforceability. Therefore, if, for any reason, any provision of this Contract is declared null and void, or if a ruling states that any part of it runs contrary to governing law, said declaration will in no way affect the validity and enforceability of the other stipulations, which may be construed, understood and executed independently of the portion declared null and void. Thus, every part of this Contract not declared null and void in any way will be valid, enforceable and binding on the Parties.
		Likewise, if any provision of this Contract or its application to any individual or company or in a given circumstance is declared null and void, or if its enforceability is in any way limited, the other provisions herein, as well as also the application of the doubtful provision to other people or in other circumstances, will not be affected thereby, and they will be applied to the extent permitted by governing law.
		Notwithstanding the above, the Parties undertake to negotiate in good faith the terms of a mutually satisfactory

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
		provision to replace any clause that may be declared null and void or whose enforceability is in any way restricted."
No Partnership or Agency	1.19	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"Nothing contained in this Contract shall be construed to either constitute a partnership or constitute either Party an agent or employee of the other Party."
Amendment	1.20	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"This Contract may not be altered, varied, changed, supplemented or amended except by a written instrument duly signed and executed by the Parties and expressly stated to be an amendment to this Contract. For the sake of clarity, any Variation under Clause 13 [Variations and Adjustments] which is leading to a substantial change to the Works, an increase of the Contract Price and/or to an extension of the Time for Completion shall be reflected in an amendment to this Contract."
Right of Access to the Site	2.1	Insert the following in the 1 st paragraph, after the 1st sentence and before the 2 nd sentence:
		"This Employer is however under no obligation to give the Contractor right of access to, and possession of, any other area located outside the boundaries of the Site, even if such other area is located within the Project Area. Access to, and possession of, such any other area is fully at the Contractor's risk."
		Add at the end of the 1 st paragraph, after "received", the following:
		"and until such time, whichever is the later, the Contractor has provided written evidence in the form of a broker's or an insurer's certificate that all insurances to be taken-out by the Contractor pursuant to the Contract have been duly put in place and are in full force and effect."
Employer's Claims	2.5	Delete the 2 nd sentence of the 2 nd paragraph in its entirety.
Delegation by the Engineer	3.2	Delegation by the Engineer is subject to the provisions of the contract between the Employer and the Engineer.
Instructions of the Engineer	3.3	Remove the entire text from "If the Engineer or a delegated assistant" to "(as the case may be)", and replace it by the following:
		"Verbal instructions given on Site shall only be binding on the Contractor if recorded by the Engineer or his delegated assistant (as the case may be) in the on-site log book defined under Sub-Clause 4.25."
		Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"If such an instruction would in the opinion of the Contractor, acting reasonably:

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
		(i) Result in possible adverse consequences for, including but not limited to, the quality of the Works and/or the Time for Completion; and/or
		(ii) Otherwise result in any increase in the Contract Price then:
		the Contractor shall immediately notify the Employer and the Engineer of the same in writing, and in any event before the Contractor implements the instruction. Following the issue of such notice, the Contractor shall implement the instruction given by the Engineer unless instructed otherwise by the Engineer.
		Under any circumstances, failure by the Contractor to notify the Engineer in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] shall mean that any performance of the Works relating thereto shall be deemed to be solely at the Contractor's risk and cost. The Contractor shall not have the right thereafter to rely on such circumstances when a claim is made against him by the Employer for any failure by the Contractor to perform the Works in accordance with the requirements of the Contract or by him to the Employer for any relief (which includes, without limitation, any claim for any extension to the Time for Completion and/or for any additional payment) in accordance with the Contract."
Replacement of the Engineer	3.4	Not applicable.
Contractor's General Obligations	4.1	Insert the following at the end of the 2 nd paragraph: "The Contractor commits to meet the AFD's eligibility criteria as listed under Appendix C to the General Conditions." Insert the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"If an unsolicited technical alternative, proposed by the Contractor, and approved by the Employer, becomes incorporated under the Contract and includes a change in the design of part or all of the Works, then unless otherwise agreed by both Parties: (i) the Bidder who becomes the Contractor shall design this part, (ii) sub-paragraphs (a) to (d) of the Conditions of Contract Sub-Clause 4.1 shall apply, and (iii) Contract price for this part of the Works shall be a lump sum price."
Contractor's Representative	4.3	Delete the 3 rd paragraph in its entirety and replace it by the following:
		"The Contractor shall not, without the prior consent of the Employer, revoke the appointment of the Contractor's Representative or appoint a replacement."

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
Subcontractors	4.4	Insert the following at the beginning of the Sub-Clause:
		"The Contractor shall only employ Subcontractors meeting the AFD's eligibility criteria as listed under Appendix C to the General Conditions.
		In case of failure by the Contractor to comply with this requirement, and irrespective of whether the Engineer has given prior consent under this Sub-Clause, the Contractor shall forthwith cease any business dealing with any ineligible Subcontractor and replace such Subcontractor by an eligible one, all at the Contractor's risk and cost. Otherwise, the Employer, at his own election, shall be entitled to terminate the Contract in accordance with Sub-Clause 15.2 [Termination by Employer]."
		In item (b), replace "Engineer" by "Employer".
		If the option for direct payment of Subcontractors has been selected in Sub-Clause 4.4 of the PC, then:
		A Subcontractor named in the Contract or designated after Contract signing with the Engineer's consent may be paid directly by the Employer for work done, and/or supplies or services provided by the said Subcontractor for which the Contractor has not been already paid, if (a) the Employer and the relevant authorities whose approval of the Contract is required so agree, or (b) the Employer's country laws and regulations so require.
		In such case, the Contractor shall furnish a statement to the Engineer, prior to any commencement of the subcontracted work including the following:
		The nature and scope of work or activities intended to be subcontracted;
		b) The name, registration information and address of the proposed Subcontractor; and
		c) The payment terms and conditions intended in the subcontract agreement, and the intended amount of the subcontract, including the date of establishment of the price, and if applicable, the modalities for price variation, advance payment, progress payment mechanism, price reductions, bonuses and penalties.
		Within one (1) month of their receipt the Engineer shall either accept all supporting documents relating to direct payment or reject them in full or in part with justification to the Contractor, failing which the Engineer shall be deemed to have accepted all supporting documents which the Engineer did not explicitly rejected.

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
Safety Procedures	4.8	Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"These provisions are complemented by those listed under the ESHS Specifications which the Contractor must ensure full compliance with."
Protection of the	4.18	Add the following after the last paragraph:
Environment		"These provisions are complemented by those listed under the ESHS Specifications which the Contractor must ensure full compliance with."
Progress Reports	4.21	At the end of item (h), add the following:
		"Details and dates relating to the personnel deployed through the design and execution to the completion of the Works shall be included in those comparisons."
		Add the following new item at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"(i) matters requested under the ESHS Specifications."
On-Site Log Book	4.25	Additional Sub-Clause:
		"The Contractor shall maintain on Site a log book, in a form approved by the Engineer and which shall integrate the fields required in the Specification. It will be used to record the Contractor's activities on a daily basis, and any instruction from the Engineer given on Site. The Employer's Personnel shall have the right of access to this document at all times, and one copy of each daily record shall be promptly provided by the Contractor to the Engineer."
Facilities for Staff and Labour	6.6	The last paragraph is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following:
		"The Contractor shall not permit any of the Contractor's Personnel to maintain any temporary or permanent living quarters within the Site, except with the prior and express Employer's consent. The Employer and/or the Engineer may inspect the living quarters from time to time in order to verify their compliance with the Laws and the Contract. The Contractor shall accordingly grant the Employer and/or the Engineer full access to the living quarters as and when they require."
Health and Safety	6.7	Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"These provisions are complemented by those listed under the ESHS Specifications which the Contractor must ensure full compliance with."
Contractor's Personnel	6.9	"Or" at the end of (c) is deleted and the following is added as (e) and (f):
		"(e) based on reasonable evidence, is determined to have engaged in Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices, as defined in Appendix B to these General Conditions, during the execution of the Works; or
		(f) Commits serious misconduct (e.g. spreading communicable diseases, sexual harassment, gender-

Conditions	Sub- Clause	based violence (GBV), illicit activity or crime, or any activity listed in Sub-Clauses 7.5 and 7.6 of the ESHS Specifications)." After the sentence: "If appropriate, the Contractor shall then appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement person." the following is added as a new paragraph: "The Contractor's Personnel includes Key Personnel. The Key Personnel listed in the Contractor's Bid shall remain available for the whole duration of the Contract, starting from the expected Commencement Date stipulated in the Data Sheet. In exceptional cases where the Contractor intends to replace a Key Personnel, the Contractor shall, not less than thirty (30) days before the intended date of replacement, give Notice to the Employer's Representative of the name, address, academic qualifications and relevant experience of the intended replacement Key Personnel. Replacement of Key Personnel shall be subjected to prior Consent of the Employer and shall be proposed with a Personnel having equal or higher qualifications. Except in case of illness, death or resignation of a Key Personnel, the Contractor shall not, without the prior consent of the Employer's Representative, revoke the appointment of the Key Personnel or appoint a replacement." In the first sentence of the last paragraph, add: ", in accordance with the Specification," after "notice to the Engineer," and before "whenever" In the last sentence of the last paragraph: — Add "within the prescribed period" after "notice", and — Add "within the prescribed period" after "notice", and — Add "risk and" before "cost". Add the following at the end of the 2 nd paragraph: "The Contractor shall carry out such further tests as may					
		based violence (GBV), illicit activity or crime, or ar activity listed in Sub-Clauses 7.5 and 7.6 of the ESH Specifications)." After the sentence: "If appropriate, the Contractor shall the appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement person." the following is added as a new paragraph: "The Contractor's Personnel includes Key Personnel. The Key Personnel listed in the Contractor's Bid shall remain available for the whole duration of the Contract, starting from the expected Commencement Date stipulated in the Data Sheet. exceptional cases where the Contractor intends to replace Key Personnel, the Contractor shall, not less than thirty (3th days before the intended date of replacement, give Notice of the Employer's Representative of the name, address, academ qualifications and relevant experience of the intended replacement Key Personnel. Replacement of Key Personn shall be subjected to prior Consent of the Employer and shall be proposed with a Personnel having equal or higher qualifications. Except in case of illness, death or resignation a Key Personnel, the Contractor shall not, without the pric consent of the Employer's Representative, revoke the appointment of the Key Personnel or appoint a replacement." In the first sentence of the last paragraph, add: ", in accordance with the Specification," after "notice to the Engineer," and before "whenever" In the last sentence of the last paragraph: — Add "within the prescribed period" after "notice", and add the following at the end of the 2nd paragraph: "The Contractor shall carry out such further tests as male required under the applicable Laws and as may be required by the relevant legally constituted publication the Country in order for them to approve the					
		appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement					
		the following is added as a new paragraph:					
		Personnel listed in the Contractor's Bid shall remain available for the whole duration of the Contract, starting from the expected Commencement Date stipulated in the Data Sheet. In exceptional cases where the Contractor intends to replace a Key Personnel, the Contractor shall, not less than thirty (30) days before the intended date of replacement, give Notice to the Employer's Representative of the name, address, academic qualifications and relevant experience of the intended replacement Key Personnel. Replacement of Key Personnel shall be subjected to prior Consent of the Employer and shall be proposed with a Personnel having equal or higher qualifications. Except in case of illness, death or resignation of a Key Personnel, the Contractor shall not, without the prior consent of the Employer's Representative, revoke the					
Inspection	7.3	In the first sentence of the last paragraph, add:					
		In the last sentence of the last paragraph:					
		Add "within the prescribed period" after "notice", and					
		 Add "risk and" before "cost". 					
Testing	7.4	Add the following at the end of the 2 nd paragraph:					
		"The Contractor shall carry out such further tests as may be required under the applicable Laws and as may be required by the relevant legally constituted public authorities in the Country in order for them to approve the completed Works. Any tests required by the applicable Laws or legally constituted authorities are deemed never to be varied or additional tests and are to be carried out by the Contractor at his risk and expense."					
		In the 4 th paragraph, replace "not less than 24 hours' notice" by "24 hours' notice, unless a longer period is indicated in the Specifications."					
Commencement of Works	8.1	Insert the following after "Sub-Clause 16.2 [Termination by contractor]" and before ".":					
		"unless the Contractor has caused, or contributed in any respect to, any non-fulfilment of one or all of these precedent conditions."					
		Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:					

Conditions	Sub-	Specific provisions					
Conditions	Clause	opecine provisions					
		"As defined in the ESHS Specifications (if any), no physical work may commence on any Project Area until such time the Contractor has prepared and submitted to the Engineer the Worksite - ESMP, and the annexed EPP corresponding to a Project Area, and the Engineer has approved those."					
Extension of Time for	8.4	Replace the first paragraph by the following:					
Completion		"The Contractor shall be entitled subject to Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims] to an extension of the Time for Completion if and to the extent that any of the following causes affect his ability to meet the Time for Completion:"					
		Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:					
		"However the Contractor's entitlement to an extension of time shall be reduced if and to the extent that the Contractor's failure to use all reasonable endeavours to mitigate any such delay has contributed to the delay.					
		Any extension of Time for Completion granted to the Contractor shall, except where the Contractor is entitled to an increase in the Contract Price in accordance with other provisions of the Contract, be deemed to be for compensation and satisfaction for any loss or damage sustained or to be sustained by the Contractor in respect of the matter or thing in connection with which succept the sustained by the Contractor in respect to the matter or thing in connection with which succept the sustained by the Contractor in respect to the matter or thing in connection with which succept the sustained by the Contractor in respect to the matter or thing in connection with which succept the sustained by the Contractor in respect to the sustained by the Contrac					
Suspension of Work	8.8	Add the following after the last sentence of the Sub-Clause:					
		"As an example, and without limitation to other possible causes, any suspension of work caused by any failure from the Contractor to comply with the obligations stated:					
		 under the ESHS Specifications (if any), in the event of a level 3 non-compliance; 					
		 under Sub-Clause 4.8 as to safety procedures; 					
		 under Sub-Clause 4.9 as to the quality assurance; 					
		 under Sub-Clause 4.18 as to the protection of the environment; or 					
		 under Sub-Clause 6.7 as to health and safety; 					
		shall be considered as cause of suspension which is the responsibility of the Contractor."					
Delayed Tests	9.2	In the 2 nd paragraph, add the following in between "21 days" and "after":					
		", or any other period instructed by the Engineer in accordance with and taking due regard of the Contract,"					
		In the 3 rd paragraph, add the following in between "21 days" and ",":					

Conditions	Sub- Clause	", or any other period instructed by the Engineer under the former paragraph," Add the following item d) after item c): "d) instruct the Contractor to carry out any remedial work, as provided for in Sub-Clause 7.6 [Remedial Work]" Add the following at the end of the 3rd paragraph: "For the sake of clarity, the Defect Notification Period of a part of the Works which has been taken over under this Sub-Clause will expire when the Defect Notification Period of the Works as a whole, or of the Section to which the part is related, as the case may be, will expire. It will then typically be longer than the latter." If the option "full Lump Sum" has been selected in Sub-Clause 14.1 of these Particular Conditions, then: Clause 12 is not applicable. If the option "a mix of Lump Sum Price Component and Admeasurement Component" has been selected in Sub-Clause 14.1 of these Particular Conditions, replace all text before item (a) in the Sub-Clause by the following: "The Admeasurement Component of the Works shall be measured, and valued for payment, in accordance with this Clause. The Contractor shall show in each application under Sub-Clauses 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates], 14.10 [Statement on Completion] and 14.11 [Application for Final Payment Certificate] the quantities and other particulars detailing the amounts which he considers to be entitled under the Contract. Whenever the Engineer requires any part of the Admeasurement Component of the Works to be measured, reasonable notice shall be given to the Contract. Whenever the Engineer requires any part of the Admeasurement Component of the Works to be measured, reasonable notice shall be given to the Contractor." Add the following sentence at the end of the first paragraph: "Variations shall be strictly limited to what is directly related to and necessary for the Permanent Works, and to what falls under the skills, experience and trades of the Contractor." Add the following at the end of this Sub Clause: "As an exception to the above, the	
	Olause	I as any other paried inchreated by the Freinance and	
Failure to Pass Tests on	9.4	Add the following item d) after item c):	
Completion			
Taking Over of Parts of the	10.2	Add the following at the end of the 3 rd paragraph:	
Works		a part of the Works which has been taken over under this Sub-Clause will expire when the Defect Notification Period of the Works as a whole, or of the Section to which the part is related, as the case may be, will expire. It will	
Works to be Measured	12.1	•	
		Clause 12 is not applicable.	
		and Admeasurement Component" has been selected in Sub-Clause 14.1 of these Particular Conditions, replace all text before item (a) in the Sub-Clause by the	
		measured, and valued for payment, in accordance with this Clause. The Contractor shall show in each application under Sub-Clauses 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates], 14.10 [Statement on Completion] and 14.11 [Application for Final Payment Certificate] the quantities and other particulars detailing the amounts which he considers to be entitled under the	
		Admeasurement Component of the Works to be measured, reasonable notice shall be given to the	
Right to Vary	13.1	1	
		related to and necessary for the Permanent Works, and to what falls under the skills, experience and trades of the	
Provisional Sums	13.5	Add the following at the end of this Sub Clause:	
		the cost of the DB, if any, shall be used to pay the Contractor of the Employer's one-half share of the	

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
		part of the substantiation of those Statements submitted under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates]. The Engineer's certification of such Statements shall be based upon such invoices and such evidence of their payment by the Contractor. No sum for Contractor's overhead charges and profit shall apply in addition to the DB invoices amounts."
Adjustments for Changes in Legislation	13.7	Add the following paragraph at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"If the Contractor benefits or will benefit from reduced Cost as a result of such changes, the Engineer shall, subject to Sub-Clause 2.5 [Employer's Claims], proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations], to agree or determine the amount to be deducted from the Contract Price."
Contract Price	14.1(d)	If requested by the Engineer, the breakdown of all unit prices shall also be submitted by the Contractor within 28 days from the Commencement Date.
	14.1(e)	Add the following new item (e) at the end of the Sub-Clause:
		"(e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (b), Contractor's Equipment, including essential spare parts therefore, imported by the Contractor for the sole purpose of executing the Contract shall be temporarily exempt from the payment of import duties and taxes upon initial importation, provided the Contractor shall post with the customs authorities at the port of entry an approved export bond or bank guarantee, valid until the Time for Completion plus six months, in an amount equal to the full import duties and taxes which would be payable on the assessed imported value of such Contractor's Equipment and spare parts, and callable in the event the Contractor's Equipment is not exported from the Country on completion of the Contract. A copy of the bond or bank guarantee endorsed by the customs authorities shall be provided by the Contractor to the Employer upon the importation of individual items of Contractor's Equipment and spare parts.
		Upon export of individual items of Contractor's Equipment or spare parts, or upon the completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare, for approval by the customs authorities, an assessment of the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare part to be exported, based on the depreciation scale and other criteria used by the customs authorities for such purposes under the provisions of the applicable Laws. Import duties and taxes shall be due and payable to the customs authorities by the Contractor on (a) the difference between the initial imported value and the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare parts to exported; and (b) on the initial imported value that Contractor's Equipment and spare parts remaining in the Country after completion of the Contract. Upon payment of such dues within 28 days

Sub- Clause	Specific provisions				
	of being invoiced, the bond or bank guarantee shall be reduced or released accordingly; otherwise the security shall be called in the full amount remaining."				
14.6	Add the following sentence at the end of the first paragraph:				
	"The Engineer may withhold any amount up to one hundred percent (100%) of the certification at its discretion in the event that the monthly progress report to be submitted with the Contractor's Statement is missing any of the information listed in paragraphs (a) to (h) of Sub-Clause 4.21 [Progress reports]. Such withheld amounts shall be released in the Interim Payment Certificate in the month following the Contractor's submission of the missing information."				
	The following is added to the third paragraph as (c):				
	If the Contractor was, or is, failing to perform any ESHS obligations of work under the contract, as determined by the Engineer, a penalty/deduction shall be effected in the subsequent payment certificate for each failure which will vary based on the level of non-conformity as defined in the ESHS requirements:				
	 i. A minimum of 15,000 EUR or as otherwise determined by the Engineer for Level 1 non-conformity. ii. A minimum of 40,000 EUR or as otherwise determined by the Engineer for Level 2 non-conformity. iii. A minimum of 75,000 EUR or as otherwise determined by the Engineer for Level 3 non-conformity. 				
	Failure to perform includes, but is not limited to the following:				
	 i. Failure to comply with any ESHS obligations or work described in the Works' Requirements which may include: working outside site boundaries, excessive dust, failure to keep public roads in a safe usable condition, damage to offsite vegetation, pollution of water courses from oils or sedimentation, contamination of land e.g. from oils, human waste, damage to archaeology or culture heritage features, air pollution as a result of unauthorized and/or inefficient combustion; ii. Failure to regularly review Worksite-ESMP and/or update it in a timely manner to address emerging ESHS issues, or anticipated risks or impacts; iii. Failure to implement the Worksite-ESMP e.g. failure to provide required training or sensitization; iv. Failure to have appropriate consents/permits prior to undertaking Works or related activities; v. Failure to submit ESHS reports or failure to submit such reports in a timely manner; vi. Failure to implement remediation action as instructed 				

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions		
Payment	14.7	Add the following sentence at the end of the Sub-Clause:		
		"The payment period defined in item (b) above can be suspended for reasons defined in the Contract, in particular in the event of an unresolved level 3 non-compliance specified in the ESHS Specifications if any. Such suspension shall not entitle the Contractor to any additional payment under Sub-Clause 14.8 [Delayed Payment] or otherwise"		
Application for Final Payment Certificate	14.11	Add the following sentence at the end of the Sub-Clause: "The payment period defined in item (b) above can be suspended for reasons defined in the Contract, in particular in the event of an unresolved level 3 non-compliance specified in the ESHS Specifications if any. Such suspension shall not entitle the Contractor to any additional payment under Sub-Clause 14.8 [Delayed Payment] or otherwise" In the 3rd paragraph, add "by latest 56 days after the receipt of the draft final statement", after "the Engineer shall deliver". In the 3rd paragraph, add the following sentence before the last sentence: "Failure by the Engineer to deliver such Interim Payment Certificate within that period shall constitute a dispute." If the option "for direct payment of Subcontractors" has been selected in Sub-Clause 4.4 of the Particular Conditions, then: "Payment for work by a Subcontractor which is entitled to be paid directly shall be made in accordance with the Contract, or an addendum or amendment thereof. When a Subcontractor is entitled to be paid directly by the Employer, the Contractor must furnish together with the Application for Interim Payment Certificates as per Sub-Clause 14.3 or the Application for Final Payment Certificate and to be paid directly by the Employer to the said Subcontractor, as well as the various payment currencies and amounts. Payments to the Subcontractor shall be made on the basis of the statement submitted by the Contractor as mentioned here above and as accepted by the Contractor. The aggregate amount of direct payments to a Subcontractor calculated under the conditions prevailing on the month in which the Contract payments to a Subcontractor satement requesting on the month in which the Contractor. The Application of the Subcontractor statement requesting on the month in which the Contractor. The Contractor only is entitled to submit the application for Interim or Final Payment Certificate; only claims submitted or transmitted by the Contractor shall be considered. Upon receipt of the		
		, , ,		
Direct Payments to Subcontractors	14.16	has been selected in Sub-Clause 4.4 of the Particular		
		be paid directly shall be made in accordance with the		
		Employer, the Contractor must furnish together with the Application for Interim Payment Certificates as per Sub-Clause 14.3 or the Application for Final Payment Certificate as per Sub-Clause 14.11 a statement indicating the amount to be deducted from the Payment Certificate and to be paid directly by the Employer to the said Subcontractor, as well as the various payment		
		basis of the statement submitted by the Contractor as mentioned here above and as accepted by the		
		Subcontractor calculated under the conditions prevailing on the month in which the Contract Price was established (the Base Date) may not exceed the amount of the		
		for Interim or Final Payment Certificate; only claims submitted or transmitted by the Contractor shall be		
		direct payment of the Subcontractor, the Employer shall directly notify the Subcontractor of the date of receipt and		
		Direct payments of the Subcontractor must be effected within the time specified in Sub-Clause 14.7 for payment		

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions			
		of the Contractor. A notification of the direct payment shall be issued by the Employer to the Contractor and the Subcontractor. Within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the documents supporting a direct payment request from the Subcontractor, the Contractor shall give its agreement or notify its refusal with justification to the Subcontractor, failing which the Contractor shall be deemed to have agreed to whichever supporting documents it did not expressly accept or reject. In case the Contractor does not notify its refusal with justification of a request for direct payment from a Subcontractor or transmit it to the Employer within the time indicated above, the Subcontractor is entitled to send a copy of the request for direct payment directly to the Employer, together with a copy of the proof of receipt of the original by the Contractor. Thereafter the Employer shall (i) promptly request the Contractor to submit evidence within fifteen (15) days that the Contractor rejected the said request for direct payment with justification within the time specified above, and (ii) inform the Subcontractor accordingly. If the Contractor fails to provide the requested evidence within 15 days, the Employer may directly pay the Subcontractor, up to the amount due under payment certificates claimed by the Contractor." Add the following, after item (f) in the first paragraph: "(g) Substantially fails to comply with the ESHS Specifications."			
		Subcontractor, the Contractor shall give its agreement or notify its refusal with justification to the Subcontractor, failing which the Contractor shall be deemed to have agreed to whichever supporting documents it did not expressly accept or reject. In case the Contractor does not notify its refusal with justification of a request for direct payment from a Subcontractor or transmit it to the			
		Thereafter the Employer shall (i) promptly request the Contractor to submit evidence within fifteen (15) days that the Contractor rejected the said request for direct payment with justification within the time specified above, and (ii) inform the Subcontractor accordingly. If the Contractor fails to provide the requested evidence within 15 days, the Employer may directly pay the Subcontractor, up to the amount due under payment certificates claimed by the Contractor."			
Termination by Employer	15.2	Add the following, after item (f) in the first paragraph: "(g) Substantially fails to comply with the ESHS			
		Specifications."			
Valuation at Date of Termination	15.3	Add the following at the end of sub-Clause, after "Contract" and before ".":			
		", except that the Engineer will be under no obligation to consult with the Contractor before making his determination, but may consult with the Contractor at his sole discretion."			
Corrupt or Fraudulent	15.6	Add the following at the end of the Sub-Clause:			
Practices		"In addition to the provisions of this Sub-Clause, the Contractor is also bound by the provisions found under Appendix B to the General Conditions, named "Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices Policy – Social and Environmental Responsibility."			
Duty to Minimize Delay / renamed as "Duty to Minimize	19.3	In the first paragraph, add "and/or Cost, including but not limited to those to the Works," after "delay".			
Delay and Cost"	10.0	In the 2nd personner werkers like Francisco III			
Optional Termination, Payment and Release	19.6	In the 2 nd paragraph, replace "the Engineer shall determine" par the following:			
,		"the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to agree or determine".			
Suspension or termination on	19.8	Additional Sub-Clause:			
the grounds of the Security of the Contractor's Personnel					

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions				
		"This Sub-Clause is applicable if, and only if, security specifications are included in the Contract.				
		If it believes, acting reasonably, that the physical integrity of its Personnel is seriously and imminently threatened by a danger in the performance of the Contract, the Contractor may decide, without prior notice:				
		 a) to demobilise its Personnel and Equipment from the area affected by the danger; and b) immediately suspend the performance of all or part of its obligations under the Contract that the demobilisation referred to in sub-paragraph (a) above prevents it from performing. 				
		The Contractor shall notify its decision to the Employer, within a maximum period of seven (7) days therefrom, furnish proof thereof and inform the Employer of the foreseeable impact of its decision on the Contract Price and the Completion of the Works, as well as the reasonable measures proposed to mitigate these impacts. The Contractor shall take all reasonable steps to minimise any delay in the performance of the Contract and any Cost resulting from its decision.				
		The Contractor shall continue to perform its contractual obligations that the danger does not reasonably prevent it from performing.				
		If the Contractor suffers delays and/or incurs Costs as a result of its decision, the Contractor shall be entitled to obtain, in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clause 20.1 [Contractor's Claims]:				
		(i) an extension of time for such delay, if completion is or will be delayed, in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.4 [Extension of Time for Completion]; and				
		(ii) the payment of such Costs, including the costs of repairing and replacing Works and/or Goods damaged or destroyed by the danger, provided they are not covered by the insurance policy referred to in Sub-Clause 18.2 [Insurance for Works and Contractor's Equipment].				
		After receiving this notification, the Engineer shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 3.5 [Determinations] to reach an agreement or determine (1) if and (if applicable) to what extent the Contractor's decision was justified by the circumstances, and (2) the matters described in sub-paragraphs (i) and (ii) above in due proportion.				
		If, due to a danger notified in accordance with the provisions of this Sub-clause, the completion of most of the Works is prevented for a continuous period of eighty four (84) days or for multiple periods exceeding one hundred and forty (140) days, each Party may notify the other Party of the termination of the Contract in				

Conditions	Sub- Clause	Specific provisions
		accordance with Sub-Clause 19.6 [Optional termination, payment and release]."
Contractor's Claims	20.1	Add the following sentence at the end of the 4 th paragraph:
		"As long as the event or circumstance giving rise to the claim continues having effect, the Contractor shall use all reasonable endeavours to minimise any incurred delay and/or Cost, including but not limited to those to the Works."
Failure to Comply with Dispute Adjudication Board's Decision	20.7	Delete Sub-Clause 20.7 in its entirety and replace it by the following: "In the event that a Party fails to comply with any decision
		of the DAB, whether binding, or final and binding, then the other Party may, without prejudice to any other rights it may have, refer the failure itself to arbitration under Sub-Clause 20.6 [Arbitration] for summary or other expedited relief, as may be appropriate. Sub-Clause 20.4 [Obtaining Dispute Adjudication Board's Decision] and Sub-Clause 20.5 [Amicable Settlement] shall not apply to this reference."

Section X – Contract Forms

Table of Forms

Notification of Award	3-111
Contract Agreement	3-112
Performance Security	3-113
Advance Payment Security	3-114
Retention Money Security	3-115

Notification of Award

Letter of Acceptance

[Letterhead paper of the Employer]

	Date:	[Insert Date]
To:		[Name and address of the Contractor]
This is to notify you that your Bid dated Improvement of Drinking Water and Sant the Mwache Trunk Main (Section 1), So Reservoir, CWWA/AfD/PQ/WA/2022-2023 f words] [name of currency], as corrected and hereby accepted by our institution.	itation Systems outh Mainland T for the Accepted	s in Mombasa, Lot 1 – Construction of Transmission Main and Dongo Kundu Contract Amount [amount in numbers and
You are requested to furnish the Performance for that purpose the Performance Security For Documents.		
Authorized Signature:		
Name and Title of Signatory:		
Name of institution:		

<u>Attachment</u>: Contract Agreement

Contract Agreement

THIS	AGF	REEMENT	mac	de th	е			_ day o	f				,
	een _												(hereinafter
"the		ployer"),			one (h			Contract	or"), o	f the o	ther pa	rt:	of
Sani Sout shou comp Cont	tation th Mai ld be bletion ract A	Systems inland Tra executed l of these	in Manager Manager Morks Mords Words	lombassion Contact Sand and	n Main tractor the re- figure	.ot 1 – Contract of the contra	Construngo Ku ngo Ku saccep gofan	uction of undu Res oted a Bid y defects	f the Noservoin d by the therei	Iwach r , CWI e Conti in, in th	e Trun VA/AfD actor for ne sum	k Mair D/PQ/M or the e	ng Water and n (Section 1), VA/2022-2023 execution and sert Accepted fter called the
The I	Emplo	yer and th	ie Cor	ntract	or agre	ee as foll	ows:						
1.		nis Agreen gned to th								ne me	anings	as are	e respectively
2.	The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as pa Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents. The priori documents shall be in accordance with the following documents:									•			
	a)	The Let	ter of	Acce	ptance) ;							
	b)	The Let	ter of	Bid a	nd App	pendix to	Bid (ir	ncluding t	he sigr	ned Sta	atemen	t of Int	egrity);
	c)	The add	lenda	Nos		(if ar	ny);						
	d)	The Par	ticula	r Con	ditions	; ;							
	e)	The Ge	neral	Cond	itions;								
	f)	The Spe	ecifica	tions	;								
	g)	The Dra	wings	s;									
	h)	The con	nplete	d Sch	hedule	s; and							
	i)	The Co	ntracto	or's B	id and	any othe	er docu	ıments fo	rming	part of	the cor	ntract.	
3.	this		it, the	Cont	tractor	hereby of	covena	ints with t	the Em	nployer	to exe	cute th	as specified in ne Works and ontract.
4.	com sum	pletion of	the W	orks paya	and th able ur	e remed	ying of	defects t	therein	, the C	ontract	t Price	execution and or such other in the manner
									-				n accordance ecified above.
Signe	ed by									(for the	Emplo	yer)
Signe	ed by									(for the	Contra	actor)

Performance Security

Demand guarantee

Beneficiary:			
Date:			
PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.:			
Guarantor:			
We have been informed that Contract No dated (hereinafter called "th	with the Beneficia	Bidder ") ha ary, for the	s entered into execution of
Furthermore, we understand that, according to the is required.	e conditions of the Contrac	t, a performa	nce guarantee
At the request of the Bidder, we as Guarantor, he sum or sums not exceeding in total an amoun () [insert amount in words] ¹ s of currencies in which the Contract Price is payab supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whe document accompanying or identifying the debiligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiand or the sum specified therein.	nt of	[insert amo the types are Beneficiary f or in a se Bidder is in	unt in figures) nd proportions 's first demand parate signed breach of its
This guarantee shall expire, no later than thedemand for payment under it must be received date.			
This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules f Publication No. 758, except that the supporting s	•	,	
	[Signature]		
[Note: All italicized text (including footnotes	s) is for use in preparing	g this form	and shall be

deleted from the final product.]

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Contract Price specified in the Letter of Acceptance, less provisional sums, if any, and denominated either in the currency(cies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 11.9. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

Advance Payment Security

Demand Guarantee

Bene Date:	ficiary:
	ANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.:
Guar	antor:
Contr	have been informed that (hereinafter called " the Bidder ") has entered into ract No dated with the Beneficiary, for the execution of (hereinafter called " the Contract ").
the s	ermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in um [amount in numbers and words] is to be made against an advance ent guarantee.
sum (suppo	e request of the Bidder, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures]) [insert amount in words]¹ upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's first demand orted by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed ment accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Bidder:
a)	Has used the advance payment for purposes other than the costs of mobilization in respect of the Works; or
b)	Has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Bidder has failed to repay.
certifi credit	mand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a cate from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been ted to the Bidder on its account number at [name and eass of the bank].
paym shall interir Provis which	maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance tent repaid by the Bidder as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the maximum payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, less sional Sums, has been certified for payment, or on the day of, 2², never is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by this office on or before that date.
	guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC cation No. 758.
	[Signature]

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

Insert the expected expiration date of the Time for Completion. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

Retention Money Security

Demand Guarantee

	[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]
Beneficiary:	[Insert name and address of Employer]
Date:	[Insert date of issue]
	[insert guarantee reference number]
Guarantor: [Insert name and addre	ss of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]
a joint venture shall be the name of the joint ven Contract No [insert referenc	[insert name of Contractor, which in the case of ture] (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has entered into e number of the contract] dated with [insert name of contract and brief ontract").
moneys up to the limit set forth in the Contract ("the Certificate has been issued under the Contract certified for payment, payment of the second hal under the Performance Security when the Tak	the Conditions of the Contract, the Beneficiary retains he Retention Money"), and that when the Taking-Over t and the first half of the Retention Money has been f of the Retention Money (or, if the amount guaranteed ing-Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed against a Retention Money guarantee.
sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount () [insert amount in words] ¹ supported by the Beneficiary's statement, who document accompanying or identifying the details.	ereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any nt of [insert amount in figures] upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's first demand ether in the demand itself or in a separate signed emand, stating that the Bidder is in breach of its eeding to prove or show grounds for your demand or
certificate from the Beneficiary's bank stating the	ented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a at the second half of the Retention Money as referred ter on its account number at sof Bidder's bank].
	day of 2², and any by us at the office indicated above on or before that
	for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.
	[Signature]

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the second half of the Retention Money or if the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security when the Taking-Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the Retention Money, the difference between half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the second half of the Retention Money as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

Insert the same expiry date as set forth in the performance security, representing the date twenty-eight days after the completion date described in GC Clause 11.9. The Employer should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Employer would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Employer might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."